CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF
YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO
Clerk
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE
Treasurer
LARRY J. DOE
Trustees
JEAN HALL CURRIE
STAN ELDRIDGE

MIKE MARTIN
SCOTT MARTIN

March 3, 2015

Work Session — 5:00 p.m.
Regular Meeting — 7:00 p.m.

Ypsilanti Township Civic Center
7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, MI 48197



=5 of9 Charter Township of Ypsilanti

?\ ‘w“'\l\x 7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEeYPSILANTI, MI 48197

SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO e CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE ¢ TREASURER LARRY DOE
TRUSTEES: JEAN HALL CURRIE e STAN ELDRIDGE e MIKE MARTIN ¢ SCOTT MARTIN

WORK SESSION AGENDA
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015

5:00 P.M.

CIVIC CENTER
BOARD ROOM
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVE

. NATIONAL CHURCH RESIDENCES

SENIOR HOUSING REHABILITATION CLARK EAST TOWERS ........cccccee.. ERIC WALKER

. REVIEW AGENDA ... SUPERVISOR STUMBO

. OTHER DISCUSSION ..ottt BOARD MEMBERS






To Ypsilanti Board of Trustees,

National Church Residences, owner/manager of Clark East Towers located at 1550
East Clark Road, Ypsilanti, MI, would like to submit for funding to the Michigan State
Housing Development Authority (MSHDA). The proposed application is extremely
competitive and will compete against other Owners/Developers not only from
Michigan but all over the country. If awarded the funding National Church
Residences will be able to do a significant renovation and recapitalization of this
community

Clark East Towers is now 36 years old and has not yet undergone a substantial
renovation. In 2012 the property went through a refinance that generated very
limited proceeds for rehab work. Due to the limited proceeds, many important
security issues and capital needs were not able to be addressed. Our main goal in
seeking an award from MSHDA in the April 1, 2015 funding round is not just to
address these issues for our residents, but also to ensure that the project is an asset
to the local community.

o Security and Resident Safety: The community has struggled with security
issues - and although temporary measures such as security guards are
currently being utilized - the best way to address this issue is through capital
improvements such as perimeter fencing, electronic locks at entry doors,
cameras and video communication (between units and the front doorjand a
redesigned entry. The aforementioned will improve the safety of the senior
residents, and video communication will allow the seniors to actually see who
is buzzing into the building. Improved security will also ensure that the
property contributes to the overall safety of the local community as a public
bus stop is located at the entrance of the building.

e Life Safety Systems: The building also faces life safety issues, including an
elevator that was recently shut down due to the age of the equipment. Other
life safety items that would be able to be considered with the rehab include
replacement of the emergency generator, new E-call system (new system will
provide new health and safety contact systems for the residents) a new fire
alarm system and new smoke detectors.

¢ Community Space: The building currently has limited community space - 36
years ago buildings were not designed to foster resident engagement and
aging in place communities. A substantial rehab would allow for the redesign
of the current tired and dated community space, and create a gathering place
the senior residents could be proud to congregate in. Proposed improvements

2245 North Bank Drive  Columbus, Ohio 43220 Phone: 800.388.2151 Fax: 614.451.0351 www.nationalchurchresidences.org



are to enhance and enlarge the community room. Adding a new business
center that will allow the residents to access the internet, a wellness suite and
exercise room for the residents. Another item that is still being looked at is
adding a decontamination (hotbox) room for new move-ins.

» Unit upgrades and replacements: Several key features in the units are still
original from when the project was built in 1979. The proposed renovation
will allow for significant unit upgrades to help improve the marketability of the
property and provide features that residents at the community deserve. (see
attached with perspective to unit upgrade listing).

For National Church Residences to be able to be approved for funding by MSHDA
local support and site plan approval are extremely critical. National Church
Residences is requesting to the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees for support of
our application and the project.  For the application what is needed and being
requested is a letter of support from the Township (template attached) that
demonstrates there backing of National Church Residences efforts to apply for this
funding and a site plan approval letter (template attached) that demonstrates that
the Township Commission has reviewed the proposal including the level of
rehabilitation work to be completed, the site and approves National Church
Residences plan for the renovation/recapitalization of Clark East Towers. National
Church Residences met with the Township Commission on February 5t to go over
the planned scope of work to be included in the application. Attached to this is the
proposed scope of work that was shared during that meeting.

National Church Residences wants to be long-term partner with the Township and
we really hope that you will support our efforts for our upcoming April 1st, 2015
application.

Sincerely,

QAJLLQG\DS’CA

Eric Walker
Senior Project Leader
National Church Residences

2245 North Bank Drive  Columbus, Chio 43220 Phone: 800.388.2151 Fax: 614.451.0351 www.nationalchurchresidences.org



SUMMARY OF PLANNED

Naﬂnn::ll Cawinen rrcidannes

IMPROVEMENTS

CLARK EAST APARTMENTS February 5, 2015
Ypsilanti, Michigan

Security

PN kLN

Expand security camera system to include parking lots and other outdoor areas
Redesign entrance vestibule/security/doors

Install new resident visitor call system and new fob entry system at building entrances *
Redesign auto and pedestrian entry for gated access *

Install new electronic locks at apartment entry doors *

Install new video communicaticn between apartments and entrance gates and doors
New site lighting

New perimeter fence

* All systems to be integrated so that access is by a single FOB and access can be monitored and tracked.

General Items

Nk wh e

Replace emergency generator

New screen wall for emergency generator
Replace building hot water heaters (3)
Replace trash compactor and trash dumpsters
Replace first floor A/C

Install new fire alarm system

Install new smoke detectors

Exterior Work

1
2.
3.
4

Repair brick walls

Upgrade drives, curbs and parking lot

New exterior signs

Provide new site amenities including raised planting beds, picnic pavilion, dog run and decorative landscaping

Apartment Units

WwmN ok

Add message holder at apartment entrances

New flooring throughout apartment

Remove popcorn ceiling finish at all apartments

Paint interior walls

Provide new window blinds

Replace interior doors

New HC height toilets

New shower heads and controls

Replace bathtubs with showers in 50% of the units
Replace bathroom vanities, sinks, faucets

New kitchen cabinets, countertops, sinks and faucets
New kitchen appliances

Install new lighting; add ceiling fan/light in the bedrooms
Install new wireless emergency call stations in bedrooms and bathrooms
New A/C units






REVIEW AGENDA

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD
MEETING AGENDA



OTHER DISCUSSION

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES



=5 (Q Charter Township of Ypsilanti

‘\‘ “u“\m 7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEeYPSILANTI, MI 48197

SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO e CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE ¢ TREASURER LARRY DOE
TRUSTEES: JEAN HALL CURRIE e STAN ELDRIDGE e MIKE MARTIN ¢ SCOTT MARTIN

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

PUBLIC COMMENTS

CONSENT AGENDA

A. MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS

ATTORNEY REPORT

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE

OLD BUSINESS

2"° READING OF RESOLUTION 2015-2, PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 2015-443,

AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 66 ENTITLED VEGETATION
(1°" READING HELD AT THE FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING)

RESOLUTION 2015-3, VEGETATION ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATIVE FEE
(TABLED AT THE FEBRUARY 17, 2015 MEETING)

REQUEST TO CONSIDER MAJESTIC LAKES PD STAGE 1 AMENDED PRELIMINARY
SITE PLAN

NEW BUSINESS

1.

2.

BUDGET AMENDMENT #4

RESOLUTION 2015-4, ADOPTION OF HOUSING AFFORDABILITY AND ECONOMIC
EQUITY ANALYSIS FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY

OTHER BUSINESS



AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS

1. REQUEST OF CARL GIRBACH, PUBLIC SERVICES SUPERINTENDENT FOR
AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE VEHICLES FOR VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS
INCLUDING A FORD TRANSIT 250XL IN THE AMOUNT OF $25,914.00, A FORD F-250
4X4 WITH DUMP BOX IN THE AMOUNT OF $32,289.00, A FORD F-250 4X2 IN THE
AMOUNT OF $24.690.00 AND A TANDEM DUMP TRAILER IN THE AMOUNT OF
$7,000.00 ALL BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #595-595-000-985-000

Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2 March 3, 2015



PUBLIC COMMENTS




CONSENT AGENDA




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:06 p.m. in the
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti
Township.

Members Present:  Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy Roe,
Treasurer Doe, Trustees Stan Eldridge, Mike Martin and Scott
Martin

Members Absent: Trustee Jean Hall Currie

Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters

RESIDENTIAL SERVICES JOB OPENINGS

Karen Wallin, Human Resource Department reported Carl Girbach, Public Services
Superintendent had been scheduled to retire at the end of 2014 but had graciously
agreed to stay on a few more months. She stated time had been spent updating a job
description for that position. Ms. Wallin briefly reviewed the structure of the Residential
Services Department in 2007, stating there was a Director with three positions under
him, a Park and Grounds Superintendent, Building Operations Superintendent and an
Environmental Superintendent. She presented a handout that included the duties of
each of the positions. Ms. Wallin stated the current Residential Services Director
oversees the Custodial Staff, the Building Operations Staff and the Compost Site and
the current Public Services Superintendent was a combination of all three prior jobs:
Parks & Grounds, Building Operations and Environmental Superintendent.

Karen Wallin reported that since Mr. Girbach would be retiring she had put together a
draft job description which she presented to the Board. She stated the primary
responsibilities of the position would be winter plowing, brush chipping, Motor Pool and
Environmental Trash/Recycling/Yard Waste issues. She reported they had removed the
Park design/development related responsibilities from the position. She reported the
current wage was $57,000 and recommended it be lowered along with the reduction of
responsibilities to $52,000 to $55,000 as a starting salary, depending on the experience
of the individual applying for the position.

Supervisor Stumbo stated the Board had authorized filling the position but wanted to
review the changes.

Trustee Eldridge voiced a desire for Mr. Girbach to stay, but understood and stated his
recommendation for the salary to start at the lower end based on past discussions.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION MINUTES
PAGE 2

Karen Wallin addressed the custodial positions next, stating a full-time custodial position
at the Civic Center had been temporarily filled with a part-time employee and needed to
be posted as a full-time position. She stated if the part-time employee was interested in
the position he could post for it and move into a full-time position. Ms. Wallin reported
there were possibly three more part-time custodial positions open, one being at the LEC
(Law Enforcement Center), and two at the Community Center.

Supervisor Stumbo reported the Union had agreed to increase part-time staff to full-time
temporarily, to begin in October 2014. Ms. Wallin stated that agreement was for six
months.

Karen Wallin briefly presented a need for a Compliance Coordinator to help the HR
Department, especially regarding OSHA concerns and other areas.

Supervisor Stumbo requested to skip to Item 2 under New Business since Leigh Greden
was here from EMU regarding the Boathouse Lease Agreement.

REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE BOATHOUSE DEVELOPMENT AND
LEASE AGREEMENT WITH EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY FOR BOATHOUSE
LOCATED AT LAKESIDE PARK

Attorney Winters reported the Boathouse Agreement had been a work in progress and
was in proper form.

Leigh Greden, Office of General Council, EMU stated the construction was basically
done with some inside finish work yet to be completed and the hope was to open in the
next eight weeks. He said the goal was to start using the building as soon as the
weather cooperated in the Spring, and a Grand Opening would be held in conjunction
with the Saline Rowers and the Township.

Supervisor Stumbo stated the facility was beautiful and the rowers especially were
anticipating using it. Ms. Stumbo stated the award for the bid for landscaping and other
items were scheduled for the Board meeting tonight.

Mr. Greden voiced appreciation to the Township for their partnership with EMU on this
project. He stated the Ground Lease was a relatively generic document, a 99 year lease
from the Township to the University for $1 a year, which covers legal obligations,
maintenance and capital repairs. He reported it was a public building and restrooms
were available and felt it would be a great amenity for the community at large.

Karen Lovejoy Roe said, “Thanks” for the great example of collaboration shown
regarding this project and reported the Washtenaw County Parks and Recreation,
Ypsilanti Township, Eastern Michigan University, the Saline Rowing Team, Mr. Greden
and Attorney Winters had all been involved.

Mr. Greden voiced thanks, also to the State of Michigan who had provided a $550,000
Grant that had been secured by the Township that would make the entire complex
beautiful.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION MINUTES
PAGE 3

Supervisor Stumbo stated the project also helped with Title 9 Compliance with EMU.

Supervisor Stumbo requested to add Playground Safety Inspections under Other
Business and there were no objections.

Supervisor Stumbo stated they would now move to Item 5 under New Business.

REQUEST TO CONSIDER MAJESTIC LAKES PD STAGE | AMENDED
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

Joe Lawson, OCS Planning Director stated the Developers were present from S. R.
Jacobson and Redwood Management as well as their Engineers.

Mr. Lawson provided a brief history of the project which was originally approved PD
Stage | in 2002, and received Stage Il approval in 2006. He reported Burton Katzman,
the Developer at that time had overseen the installation of the infrastructure, including
the roads and utilities until 2007 — 2008, at which time he went bankrupt and lost the
property to tax foreclosure. He reported S. R. Jacobson purchased the property in 2011
and came to the Township Board in 2012 to obtain re-approval for the original 2006 PD
Site Plan and signed a Development Agreement at that time. He stated Allen Edwin
homes began building single family homes at that point as well. Mr. Lawson stated
since that time S. R. Jacobson had reviewed the market and wanted to present a plan
to the Board which they felt would be a better match for the market demands.

The Planning Commission had conducted a public hearing since this was a major
change in the approved site plan and approved it with conditions. Mr. Lawson stated the
following conditions were approved: 1) the applicant shall agree to install security
cameras at entrances and exits of the development 2) the applicant shall agree to
assist in the creation of a Special Assessment District to maintain the cameras 3) the
applicant shall install a fence, landscaping and signage along the neighboring Lake
Joyce in order to hinder any further trespassing and 4) the applicant shall agree to
make access to existing non-motorized trails open and convenient, without hindrance
between the buildings, to enable convenient non-motorized connections to Textile Road
and encourage healthy and walkable lifestyles. This was basically a condition added by
the Planning Commission.

Joe Lawson provided an overview of the proposals which were presented in the packet.
He reviewed the proposals from the Ponds at Lakewood, the Redwood portion that
would provide a good mix of housing types within the development. Mr. Lawson stated if
the PD Stage | Amended Preliminary Site Plan was approved for the conceptual use of
the property that was the first step. He said the next step was Detailed Engineering and
once that was in order, the developer would request approval for PD Stage Il / Final Site
Plan approval from the Planning Commission, and they would make a recommendation
to the Township Board.

Trustee Scott Martin voiced concern that 50 ft. wide lots were too small for single family
homes. Discussion followed on the size of the lots throughout the proposed



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION MINUTES
PAGE 4

development and it was decided the developers could provide a presentation for
clarification on the proposed changes.

Manny Kniahynycky, Vice President of S. R. Jacobson Development Corporation
provided a summary of the changes in the marketplace regarding condominiums. He
explained there was a lot more open space in the Redwood Senior project.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked for clarification on the areas that would have more open space
and Mr. Kniahynycky explained it was space between the units. She also asked what
the square footage of the homes on the 50 ft. lots would be and Mr. Kniahynycky
responded they would probably be 1,600 to 2,200 square feet, but it would depend on
the builder and they would work with him closely to make sure it was compatible with
the development and that neighborhood. Clerk Lovejoy Roe voiced her concern for
making a major change to 50 ft. lots without a visual display.

Trustee Mike Martin asked about price ranges for proposed homes and Mr.
Kniahynycky said he thought the starting prices would be just under $200,000 but
without having a builder on board at this point he wasn’t sure.

Joe Lawson stated the actual size of the homes was part of the Developmental
Agreement in PD Stage Il and anything that deviated from that, after being approved
would have to come back to the Planning Commission and the Township Board for
approval.

Trustee Mike Martin stated square footage did not dictate the quality of a home, rather
how it was built, the materials used and how it was landscaped, along with the square
footage. He did voice concern that minimal footage could impact the surrounding areas.

Mr.Kniahynycky explained the area slated for the 50 foot lots were originally duplexes
so the thought was it would be a buffer between the larger lots where people were
already living and the Senior Project.

Supervisor Stumbo reported people were looking to downsize so that would meet that
market but agreed this was a major change. Discussion followed and Supervisor
Stumbo clarified the single family units were increased from 116 to 234 and decreased
multi-family units from 299 to 158. Mr. Lawson responded there were 116, 70 ft. single
family lots that remained the same and the duplexes, villas and some of the attached
condos were exchanged for the 50 ft. lots.

Trustee Scott Martin asked if the multi-family units were rental units and Mr. Lawson
clarified those were the senior “targeted” rental units and the rest would be owner
occupied.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked Joe Lawson for clarification on the technical process. She
stated the current request was for an Amendment to PD Stage | and then the plan
would go to the Planning Commission and she asked what that would be called. Joe
Lawson stated whenever it went back to the Planning Commission, the first step would
be Final Engineering and it was up for discussion if it would include the whole area or



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION MINUTES
PAGE 5

just the one up for development. He stated PD Stage Il approval could be done in
phases, the whole area would not have to be approved. He said the WCRC, Drain
Commission and YCUA would give their final approval, then it would proceed to PD
Stage Il to the Planning Commission, which would include the Rezoning and then, if
approved it would come back to the Township Board. Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked if the
product would be locked in and require that product to be built after the Rezoning was
approved and Mr. Lawson agreed that any change of square footage more than 3%,
would be required to come back before the Board. Joe Lawson also agreed the
percentage of brick, square footage, and actual elevations would all be put into the
Development Agreement. More discussion followed regarding the process for a
stipulation that the single family homes not be turned into rentals and the apartment
units were not allowed to be subsidized.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked Mr. Kniahynycky what demographic had been targeted for the
different areas and he responded he was not aware of the builders desire regarding that
issue. Discussion followed on the next step and Mr. Kniahynycky stated the two
strongest areas in the market at this time were for single-family residential and “Senior
Targeted”.

Trustee Mike Martin asked for clarification on “Targeted” marketing.
Trustee Eldridge stated this had been a long discussion at the Planning Commission.

Richard Batt, Redwood Acquisitions LLC, a single-story, attached ranch style rental unit
developer, stated they do this one thing and do it well. He explained they market their
floor plans toward empty nesters, but there was no age restriction. He explained their
normal community consisted of two-thirds empty nesters with the other third consisting
of people who enjoyed peace and quiet. He stated the floor plans consisted of a
driveway, two car attached garages, an eating kitchen and two bedrooms spaced far
apart. He provided pictures of the exteriors and a resume of projects in Michigan which
were in various phases. He said all residents signed a year lease and typically they
stayed five to seven years. He said background checks were done on prospective
residents and there was on-site management and maintenance. He stated they did not
restrict according to age in their communities.

Treasurer Doe asked if children were allowed in these units. Mr. Batt stated they
complied with Fair Housing Laws so families with children were not banned but since
there were no recreational activities such as a pool or basketball courts, they usually are
not interested.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe voiced concern that this development would be used for subsidized
housing and wanted to make sure it did not happen by adding that stipulation into the
agreement.

Attorney Winters asked if there wasn’t a conflict since the attached apartment units that
abutted the single family residential, how would they discourage the single family homes
from becoming rental properties? He explained that in light of the recent housing
affordability study this was troublesome to the Board.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION MINUTES
PAGE 6

Manny Kniahynycky stated they wanted to make sure there was a buffer between the
uses and there were very few places where the apartments actually abutted the single
family homes and he pointed them out. He stated a solid fence would be put in with
landscaping in the one place and a berm with landscaping for the other. He spoke about
the traffic pattern and stated there would not be a lot of cross traffic. He said the
builders they were looking for will be selling the homes, but didn’t know if you could
legally control what homeowners do in the future regarding rental, but if it were possible
they would support that. Attorney Winters said the long-term concern was the size of the
smaller 50 ft. lots, once a community becomes older, might lend themselves more to
rental properties, however Mr. Kniahynycky stated the size of the lot did not make the
house on it any less valuable.

Richard Batt stated the multi-family property being in close proximity to the single family
development did not bother them and some things had been done to separate the two
types of uses, due to what he considered over-cautiousness.

Joe Lawson stated he agreed with Mr.Kniahynycky, it was less of an issue the size of
the lot and more of what was put on it that would dictate the future of those units.

Treasurer Doe agreed but whenever the downturn had come there were a lot of
$250,000 to $300,000 homes being rented out, so it was just something we should look
into.

Manny Kniahynycky stated the size of the lots had not changed and were identical with
what was approved before, rather they replaced the attached condominium units with
site condominiums with 50 ft. lots.

Supervisor Stumbo said she felt the overall new concept plan was better than the
original, with less multiple housing and more single family which is what the residents in
the area supported. She said, however the specifics of the procedure needed to be
nailed down and if the Board was not able to protect the issues that had been raised
they would not approve it.

Attorney Winters stated there was currently on file a PD Agreement that takes into
account the Detailed Engineering for Phase | and Phase II. He stated his wish was that
the Board do nothing to repeal the current agreement with S. R. Jacobson since there
were a number of financial guarantees and commitments that should carry over into
whatever version would come later for the new PD Agreement. Mr. Winters asked how
to keep the original PD Agreement in place while allowing another version to be put in
place. Discussion followed. Mr. Kniahynycky stated the new agreement would just
amend the one in place. More discussion followed.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:00 p.m.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 WORK SESSION MINUTES
PAGE 7

Respectfully submitted,
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING

Supervisor Stumbo, called the meeting to order at approximately 7:02 p.m. in the
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive,
Ypsilanti Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silent
prayer was observed.

Members Present: Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Karen Lovejoy
Roe, Treasurer Larry Doe, Trustees Stan Eldridge,
Mike Martin and Scott Martin

Members Absent: Trustee Jean Hall Currie

Legal Counsel: Wm. Douglas Winters

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Jo Ann McCollum, Township Resident wanted to know the status of the snow
removal ordinance. Trustee Eldridge stated the ordinance was finished but there
were a variety of concerns and it was under review. Ms. McCollum reported there
were several committees in the West Willow Neighborhood and she served on
one, which reported on drug activity. She voiced concern regarding rental units in
the neighborhood and asked what the proper procedure would be when reporting
drug activity. Supervisor Stumbo briefly described the Padlock Ordinance and
stated the police would inform the Township if any actions were taken against a
property. Ms. McCollum asked if there was any way to get a list of landlords so
they could be informed about the West Willow neighborhood committees in order
to build a stronger community base in the West Willow Neighborhood. Supervisor
Stumbo informed her Habitat for Humanity had a list or all rental properties in
West Willow.

Supervisor Stumbo thanked Ms. McCollum for her comments and stated that she
had sent an email to the City of Ypsilanti regarding her comments at the last
meeting regarding the Ecorse Road property and the City was planning on taking
them to court.

Arloa Kaiser, Township Resident stated she was against having a snow removal
ordinance. She also voiced displeasure with the Relmagine Washtenaw project
bike lanes. Ms. Kaiser inquired if Attorney Winters had contacted the Attorney
General about DTE rate increase for the LED lighting.

Attorney Winters reported he had written a detailed letter to the attorney in
charge of the Michigan Coalition but he had not received a response to date. He
stated he did plan on following up with a letter to the Attorney General.

Larry Smith, Township Resident voiced his concern that West Willow was
predominantly rental properties and an appalling number of those were involved
in drug activity. He and a friend counted over sixty cars at one location and had
taken down license plate numbers but when people noticed what they were
doing, they were approached by a large group of people, one of which had a
handgun. He stated they left the scene at that point and reported the situation to
the police. He also reported speeding in the neighborhood as well as loud boom
boxes. Discussion followed regarding the process for acquiring speed bumps and
the effectiveness of the Padlock Ordinance.

Ronald Kimbrough, Township Resident and retired drug agent reported he had
witnessed at least 20 cars in the Desoto area on Monday evening. Mr.
Kimbrough concurred that the police could not always divulge all details but were
actively involved in the situation.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 2

CONSENT AGENDA

A. MINUTES OF THE JANUARY 20, 2015 WORK SESSION AND FEBRUARY
3, 2015 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR MINUTES

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS

1. STATEMENT AND CHECKS
2. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH EFT FOR JANUARY, IN
THE AMOUNT OF $41,136.74

C. JANUARY 2015 TREASURER REPORT

A motion by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to approve the
Regular Meeting Minutes of January 20, 2015 and Statements and Checks
in the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.

SUPERVISOR REPORT

2/4/15
Phone interview with Phire Group associated with the Ypsilanti Visitor and
Convention Bureau. They are interviewing stake holders for branding of
our community.

Attended retirement celebration for Fire Marshal Vic Chevrette with Clerk
Roe and Deputy Clerk Garrett.

2/5/15
Attended weekly development team meeting with three full time officials.

Attended training for new computer tablets.

Attended Bud/Blossom NHW meeting, they would like cost estimates for
two cameras.

2/9/15
Attended weekly police meeting with Larry Doe.

2/10/15
Met with Karen Wallin and Chief Copeland regarding Fire Department
personnel issues.

Met with MDEQ regarding storm water plan for RACER Trust.

Attended meeting regarding vacant house search warrant process with
Mike Radzik, Bill Elling and Jill Kulhanek.

Attended Appleridge NHW meeting, they would like two cameras and LED
lighting is only at one light and they would like it throughout their
subdivision.

Attended Holmes Road NHW meeting, they would like estimate on
cameras

211/15
Attended Ranches of Rosebrook NHW meeting, Spike and | are trying to
set up a meeting with their owner regarding investments in his property.
They requested traffic calming devices.

Attended Wingate NHW meeting.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 3

Attended Thurston NHW meeting, concern for vacant houses,
crossing railroad tracks to get to Michigan Avenue and drug activity.
Sheriff was scheduled to attend and wasn’t able to make it to this
meeting.

2/12/15
Attended weekly development team meeting.2/13/15 Met with
Chief Copeland and Karen Wallin regarding Fire Department
personnel issues.

Met with Sergeant Teets regarding issues that were raised at NHW.

Karen Roe and | met with AAATA regarding 2016 routes in NE
Ypsilanti Township.

2/16/15
Township closed, attended Eastern Safety Alliance meeting with
State Representative Dave Rutledge, Sheriff Clayton, EMU officials
and City of Ypsilanti police chief and elected officials.

2/17/15
Attended Relmagine meeting at Pittsfield Township with Mayors of
Ann Arbor and Ypsilanti as well as Supervisor of Pittsfield, AAATA
representatives and Community of Economic Development.
Request was for sidewalk clearing in business district, all three
entities have them Ypsilanti Township is only jurisdiction that does
not.

CLERK REPORT

CLERKS FILE ORGANIZATION AND SCANNING OF MINUTES -Clerk
Lovejoy Roe and Ruby Walker, Document Management Clerk continue
to work on records management and filing. Board meeting minutes
from 1896 to 1989 have been scanned by Graphic Sciences and are now
available on the shared server for easy access. The Board meeting
minutes from 1990 to current have been sent out for scanning also. The
Clerk and other staff have met with a software company to gather
information regarding workflow and document management software to
purchase for Ypsilanti Township.

TUESDAY, MAY 5, 2015 STATEWIDE BALLOT PROPOSAL ELECTION-
Angela Robinson, Elections Specialist is taking the lead in election
preparation for the Clerk’s office. Clerk’s staff is busy updating the files in
preparation for the May election. Election workers are being canvassed
and schedule for training and election work. The board meeting for May
5, 2015 was canceled and the Clerk’s budget was adjusted for the
election. The state will pay for the special election on the statewide ballot
proposal in May.

2015 DTE LED STREETLIGHT CONVERSION PROJECT- At the
February 17, 2015 Ypsilanti Township Board meeting a request to convert
213 either high pressure sodium or mercury vapor street lights to LED is
on the agenda. If this request is approved it will result in a cost saving
in the operation of these 213 lights 0f$11,839.00 per year. This DTE
Streetlight LED conversion project will be the third conversion project that
has taken place in Ypsilanti Township. A project has been completed in
each of the last three years. The project will cost $96,066.00 with a DTE
contribution of $1,904.00 and a rebate of $7,943.00 for a final cost to
Ypsilanti Township of $86,219.00. The net cost/annual savings of this
project is 7.28 years.




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 4

RE-IMAGINE  WASHTENAW JOINT TECHNICAL COMMITTEE
MEETING- On Wednesday, February 11, 2015 Clerk Lovejoy Roe
attended the Re-Imagine Washtenaw JTC met at the Learning
Resource Center on Washtenaw Ave. A presentation was made on the
results of the Arts Alliance survey. A review and update of the 2 year work
plan for the JTC was presented and discussed. A report from planners was
given.

CDBG SIDEWALK DESIGN KICK OFF MEETING-Clerk Lovejoy Roe,
Jeff Allen, Residential Services Director, OHM Engineers and Nathan
Vought and Stephen Wade with the Washtenaw County Office of
Economic and Community Development attended a meeting at the Civic
Center on Wednesday, February 11, 2015 to formulate a plan for the
design and bid of the Washtenaw Ave. CDBG 2014 project for sidewalk
infill. Plans were made to finalize design and to bid and build the project
this build season. It will include sections of sidewalk on the north side of
Washtenaw Ave. east of Golf Side to the Fountain Plaza Shopping Center.

NEW BUSINESS
1. BUDGET AMENDMENT #3

Clerk Lovejoy Roe read Budget Amendment #3 into the record and provided a
brief explanation.

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe
to approve Budget Amendment #3 (see attached). The motion carried
unanimously.

2. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO APPROVE BOATHOUSE
DEVELOPMENT AND LEASE AGREEMENT WITH EASTERN MICHIGAN
UNIVERSITY FOR BOATHOUSE LOCATED AT LAKESIDE PARK

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge
to approve Boathouse Development and Lease Agreement with Eastern
Michigan University for Boathouse Located at Lakeside Park (see
attached).

Supervisor Stumbo stated this was a Use Agreement for the Boathouse located
at Lakeside Park on Textile Road, which was nearing completion. She stated this
had been a collaborative effort with the Washtenaw County Parks Commission,
the State of Michigan with a $560,000 Grant, Eastern Michigan University,
Ypsilanti Township, the Washtenaw County Border to Border Trails grant, along
with the Saline Rowing Club. Supervisor Stumbo reported the EMU rowing team
provides the ability for young women to obtain college scholarships. She
provided a brief overview of the amenities offered at the Boathouse.

The motion carried unanimously.

3. 1°'READING OF RESOLUTION NO. 2015-2, PROPOSED ORDINANCE
NO. 2015-443, AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 66
ENTITLED VEGETATION

Clerk Lovejoy Roe read the proposed Resolution into the record.

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Treasurer Doe to
approve the 1% Reading of Resolution No. 2015-2, Proposed Ordinance No.
2015-443, Amending the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66 entitled
Vegetation.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 5

Mike Radzik, OCS Director provided a brief overview of the process used to
calculate administrative costs to arrive at the proposed fee of $35.00 on top of
the actual mowing fee.

The motion carried as follows:

Eldridge: Yes Scott Martin: Yes Stumbo: Yes
Clerk Lovejoy Roe: Yes  Treasurer Doe: Yes Mike Martin: Yes

4. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-3, VEGETATION ENFORCEMENT
ADMINISTRATIVE FEE

Clerk Lovejoy Roe and Trustee Mike Martin stated the fee should be higher to
discourage people from saying it was cheaper to have the Township mow the
grass and pay the fee rather than cutting it themselves.

Trustee Scott Martin voiced his agreement that the fee needed to be higher.

Mike Radzik stated he could revisit the cost and bring it back for the next
meeting.

A motion was made by Trustee Mike Martin, supported by Clerk Lovejoy
Roe to table Resolution No. 2015-3, Vegetation Enforcement Administrative
Fee.

The motion carried as follows:

Eldridge: Yes Scott Martin: Yes Stumbo: Yes
Clerk Lovejoy Roe: Yes  Treasurer Doe: Yes Mike Martin: Yes

Supervisor Stumbo stated this agenda item was tabled until the next regularly
scheduled meeting.

5. REQUEST TO CONSIDER MAJESTIC LAKES PD STAGE 1 AMENDED
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

A motion was made by Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to approve
request to consider Majestic Lakes PD Stage 1 Amended Preliminary Site
Plan.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe added a friendly amendment that approval of this item
include all the requirements outlined in the Planning Commission’s
approval as included in the February 12, 2015 letter from Joe Lawson,
Planning and Zoning Director which include: installation of cameras, the
Special Assessment District for the cameras, some type of fencing that all
parties agree upon, separating the residents on Joyce Lake from the
apartments, continuation of connectivity of the non-motorized paths,
additionally a legal prohibition of the renting of single family units in the
project, also a legal prohibition of the use of funds to subsidize the
apartment rents, and the Planned Development Agreement currently in
force stay in force until at such time a new Development Agreement or
Revised Development Agreement (per attorney) is brought back to the
Township Board for approval. Clerk Lovejoy Roe added everything else
that was in Joe Lawson’s recommendation letter dated February 12, 2015
(page 3) was a condition of approval. Treasure Doe agreed this was a
friendly amendment.

Attorney Winters stated he would add that individual builders within the
Development would be required to enter into a Development Agreement as well
as the Developer himself.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 6

Supevisor Stumbo voiced her concern regarding the number of issues that were
raised and some that had not yet been addressed. She asked Manny
Kniahynycky, Vice President of S. R. Jacobson Development Corporation if his
attorney was present.

Manny Kniahynycky stated his attorney was not present but commented many of
those things mentioned in the friendly amendment were already in the current
Development Agreement and they were not proposing to change any of those
things with this proposed Amendment. He reported they had spent the allotted
amount and additional funds on playground equipment so the recreational
amount required in the PD Agreement #1 was already fulfilled.

Supervisor Stumbo stated she supported the changes that were made this
evening but there were several details that needed to be taken care of and asked
Mr. Kniahynycky for two weeks to be able to properly implement the changes.

Mr. Manny Kniahynycky voiced concern that if there were any further delays the
Redwood project would not be able to be completed this year and felt all the
issues that had been raised had to be addressed in Stage Il approval anyway.

Supervisor Stumbo asked if Mr. Kniahynycky minded if the motion included,
“other things that had not been addressed tonight” and he stated it was up to
Supervisor Stumbo. She said the Board had spent a lot of time discussing these
changes and hoped it showed Mr. Kniahynycky how much the restart of the
development was appreciated.

Attorney Winters voiced his doubt that the recreational portion of the PD
Agreement Stage | obligation had been fulfilled. Joe Lawson, Planning Director
stated he would have to check on that.

Mr. Kniahynycky stated he fully expected things to come up that were not
discussed.

Trustee Mike Martin stated this particular Board would only exist for a finite
period of time and he shared that he felt it was the board’s job to be a gatekeeper
for the community and ensure, to the best of its ability, that this proposed
community improved the quality of life for a long period of time. He voiced his
reluctance to approve the project at this juncture, since all the questions had not
been satisfactorily answered.

Trustee Eldridge felt this item should be tabled for two weeks due to the number
of changes that had been discussed and not reconciled this evening, which
added to the apprehension of the Board, Mr. Lawson and Attorney Winters.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated the preliminary site plan was a conceptual plan and
detailed engineering must be presented in PD Stage Il for the rezoning, at which
time Attorney Winters and Joe Lawson would make sure all of the questions
raised would be addressed before the board would approve PD Stage Il. She
expressed she was comfortable in approving the conceptual plan. She voiced her
agreement that the apartment phase of the development must meet the
requirements regarding subsidized housing. She added there should also be
protections so that single family homes did not become rentals.

Joe Lawson stated his appreciation to everyone for their conversation this
evening since it would help in the task before him. He reported the way the
current plan was set up, since it was originally approved in 2002, there was
nothing that prohibited them from building the villas and the duplexes and then
turning them into individual rentals. He stated this was a perfect opportunity for
the Township to take what had been learned over the past fifteen years and
implement a plan that protected our community. He agreed the details were there
to work out and if that did not happen, Stage Il would not be approved and the
project would not move forward.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 7

Trustee Eldridge supported the project in the long run but in his opinion due
diligence could not be done with so many questions and too many things not
settled. He restated the Planning Commission had been much the same.

Trustee Mike Martin voiced his respect for Joe Lawson but could not accept this
amendment as being the “lesser of two evils”.

Joe Lawson stated that was a poor choice of words that the amendment was
superior to the original development plan, especially in light of all that had been
learned over the last few years.

The motion failed as follows:

Mike Martin: No Treasurer Doe: Yes  Clerk Lovejoy Roe: Yes
Stumbo: Yes Scott Martin:  No Eldridge:  No

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge
to bring the request to consider Majestic Lakes PD Stage | Amended
Preliminary Site Plan back to the Board for the March 3, 2015 meeting. The
motion carried unanimously.

6. REQUEST OF MARK NELSON, MAGISTRATE 14-B DISTRICT COURT,
TO APPROVE PRIVATE DONATION FROM THE UNIVERSITY OF
MICHIGAN IN THE AMOUNT OF $14,920.00 TO BE UTILIZED FOR THE
ADVANCEMENT OF THE DRUG COURT DOCKET TO BE BUDGETED
IN LINE ITEM 236.136.000.802.200

A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe
to approve a private donation from the University of Michigan in the
amount of $14,920.00 to be utilized for the advancement of the Drug Court
Docket to be budgeted in line item #236.136.000.802.200.

Trustee Scott Martin asked if this had been previously approved and Magistrate
Nelson stated this was related to a previous grant request. He provided a brief
overview of things it included.

Supervisor Stumbo asked for statistics regarding the Drug Court and Magistrate
Nelson stated no one had been completely through the program at this point, but
there were between 6 to 9 defendants participating in the two-year process at
this time. He reported this was a training grant and the Court was working to
develop a fully planned Drug Court to present for a new grant cycle next year.

The motion carried unanimously.

7. REQUEST OF MICHAEL SARANEN, HYDRO DAM OPERATIONS, TO
APPROVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH BARR
ENGINEERING CO. FOR 2015 FERC PART 12D SAFETY INSPECTION
OF FORD LAKE DAM IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,850.00 BUDGETED IN
LINE ITEM #252.252.000.801.000

A motion was made by Trustee Scott Martin, supported by Trustee Eldridge
to approve Professional Services Contract with Barr Engineering Co. for
2015 FERC Part 12D Safety Inspection of Ford Lake Dam in the amount of
$24,850.00 budgeted in line item #252.252.000.801.000. The motion carried
unanimously.

8. REQUEST OF MICHAEL SARANEN HYDRO DAM OPERATIONS, TO
WAIVE FINANCIAL POLICY AND AUTHORIZE REPAIRS OF
GENERATOR #1 TURBINE FOR A TOTAL OF $374,102.00 AND
APPROVE CONTRACTS WITH 1) JAMES LUFFEL COMPANY NOT TO
EXCEED $62,600.00 2) PADNOS LEITELT NOT TO EXCEED



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 8

$190,115.00, 3) COMPOSITE INDUSTRIAL GROUP NOT TO EXCEED
$28,587.00 AND TO APPROVE SAFETY SERVICES WITH HYDRO
CHEM ON A TIME AND MATERIAL BASIS FOR $44,000.00, AND A 15%
CONTINGENCY OF $48,800.00 TO ADDRESS ANY ADDITIONAL
MATTERS FOUND DURING REPAIR TO BE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM
#252.252.000.976.000

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge
to waive financial policy and authorize repairs of Generator #1 Turbine for a
total of $374,102.00 and approve contracts with 1) James Luffel Company
not to exceed $62,600.00 2) Padnos Leitelt not to exceed $190,1215.00, 3)
Composite Industrial Group not to exceed $28,587.00 and to approve
Safety Services with Hydro Chem on a time and material basis for
$44,000.00 and a 15% Contingency of $48,800.00 to address any additional
matters found during repair to be budgeted in line item
#252.252.000.876.000, with any contingencies brought back to the Board.

Michael Saranen, Hydro Dam Operations stated he had started working with
Padnos Leitelt over a decade ago and it had been the best work he had seen, so
he was requesting continuing that partnership. He reported they were very
knowledgeable and stand behind their work.

Mr. Saranen reported the turbine runner, which had been repaired 20 years ago,
needed replacement. He stated since the part was over 82 years old, and
replacement rather than a repair would shorten the project considerably.

Supervisor Stumbo stated this was a Michigan based company. Mr. Saranen
agreed and reported that was part of the reason they were chosen for the job the
first time, even though they were a little more expensive. He reported now we
had a good work history with them. He stated the James Luffel Company was the
original turbine maker from the 1930’s and they already had the drawings and
could begin building right away.

Mr. Saranen said he had not approached the Park Commission yet, but was
considering taking the old runner and putting it in South Hydro Park with a plaque
commemorating its role in Township history. Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk
Lovejoy indicated they were pleased with that idea.

Trustee Scott Martin asked if Mr. Saranen anticipated more repairs. Mr. Saranen
voiced confidence that things should begin to pay off from these repairs. He
stated there would always be some type of repairs because of FERC regulations.
He reported the funding was coming from the Hydro Dam fund balance, which
was sustainable.

Trustee Mike Martin stated this repair was not an emergency but rather a pro-
active move to which Mr. Saranen agreed. Mr. Martin then asked what his
rationale had been for asking for the financial policy to be waived. Mr. Saranen
explained it did not make sense to go through the bidding process again since
James Luffel Company was the only competitor and his choice was to go with
Padnos Leitelt for the reasons previously stated.

The motional carried unanimously.

9. REQUEST OF ERIC COPELAND, FIRE CHIEF TO APPROVE
AGREEMENT WITH WEST SHORE SERVICES INC. FOR ANNUAL
MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF TWELVE (12) OUTDOOR
WARNING EQUIPMENT SITES IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,800.00,
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #206.206.000.933.001



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 9

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge
to approve agreement with West Shore Services Inc. for annual
maintenance and inspection of twelve (12) Outdoor Warning Equipment
Sites in the amount of $4,800.00 budgeted in line item #206.206.000.933.001
(see attached).

Chief Copeland provided a brief overview of the agreement.
The motion carried unanimously.

10. REQUEST OF KAREN WALLIN, HUMAN RESOURCES TO APPROVE
DAWN SCHEITZ, MICHIGAN ADVANCED ASSESSING OFFICER
(MAAO), ASSESSING DEPARTMENT, AS THE TOWNSHIP GIS
SPECIALIST WITH A PAY INCREASE OF $1.00 PER HOUR

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge
to approve Dawn Scheitz, Michigan Advanced Assessing Officer (MAAO),
Assessing Department, as the Township GIS Specialist with a pay increase
of $1.00 per hour.

Supervisor Stumbo stated a detailed memo was included in the packet. She
explained the Township did not have a GIS Specialist, at the present time,
because no one was certified, until now. Supervisor Stumbo stated half of the
increase would be covered by the OCS Department and half by the Assessing
Department and the Union was in agreement.

The motion carried unanimously.

11. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION
TO SEEK LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC
NUISANCE FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 2733 APPLERIDGE, 1402
WENDELL, 1014 LORI ST. , 1725 HEATHERRIDGE, 5859 BIG PINE DR.,
1334 FALL RIVER, 1288 WOODGLEN, 574 BROOKSIDE AND 2578
HEARTHSIDE IN THE AMOUNT OF $45,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE
ITEM #101.950.000.801.23

A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Scott Martin
to authorize seeking legal action if necessary to abate public nuisance for
properties located at 2733 Appleridge, 1402 Wendell, 1014 Lori St., 1725
Heatherridge, 5859 Big Pine Dr., 1334 Fall River, 1288 Woodglen, 574
Brookside and 2578 Hearthside in the amount of $45,000.00 budgeted in
line item #101.950.000.801.023.

Mike Radzik, OCS Director provided a brief overview of each vacant and
abandoned house. He stated some were bank owned and many had been
inspected using the Administrative Search Warrant and two had been damaged
by fire last year and the owners had not repaired or demolished them.

Mr. Radzik reported the State of Michigan had passed new legislation regarding
Fire Withholding Funds, effective January 1, 2015. He said the threshold dollar
amount had gone up to $12,000 to be adjusted January 1, every year going
forward. He stated that amount should be more than enough to cover any
demolition expenses.

Clerk Lovejoy Roe reported on a successful rebuild after a fire on Delaware in
which the OCS Department had been instrumental in supporting this investment
in the Township.

The motion carried unanimously.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 10

12. REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SIGN PURCHASE AGREEMENT
WITH DTE FOR CONVERTING THIRTY-FOUR (34) 400 WATT MERCURY
VAPOR COBRA HEADS TO 135 WATT LED, THIRTY-EIGHT (38) 250
WATT HIGH PRESSURE SODIUM COBRA HEADS TO 135 WATT LED
AND ONE HUNDRED FORTY-ONE (141) 100 WATT HIGH PRESSURE
SODIUM GRANVILLE POST TOPS TO 80 WATT GRANVILLE POST TOP
LED FOR A TOTAL TWO HUNDRED THIRTEEN (213) STREET LIGHTS
IN THE AMOUNT OF $94,162.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM
#101.956.000.926.050

A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Clerk Lovejoy Roe to
authorize signing Purchase Agreement with DTE for converting thirty-four
(34) 400 Watt Mercury Vapor Cobra Heads to 135 Watt LED, Thirty-Eight
(38) 250 Watt High Pressure Sodium Cobra Heads to 135 Watt LED and One
Hundred Forty-One (141) 100 Watt High Pressure Sodium Granville Post
Tops to 80 Watt Granville Post Top LED for a total Two Hundred Thirteen
(213) Street Lights in the amount of $94,162.00 budgeted in line item

# 101.956.000.926.050. The motion carried unanimously.

OTHER BUSINESS

1. AUTHORIZE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT WITH SAF’ PLAY
TO INSPECT ALL PARK PLAY STRUCTURES

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Scott
Martin to authorize a Professional Services Contract with Saf’ Play to
inspect all park play structures. The motion carried unanimously.

Supervisor Stumbo stated this would complete an inventory of all playground
equipment.

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS

1. REQUEST OF JOE LAWSON, PLANNING DIRECTOR TO AWARD LOW
BID FOR LANDSCAPING AT LAKESIDE PARK BOATHOUSE TO
MARGOLIS COMPANIES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $14,050.00
AND TO AUTHORIZE PURCHASING OF SITE FURNISHINGS FROM
VICTOR STANLEY IN THE AMOUNT OF $18,747.00, BLUE VALLEY
INDUSTRIES IN THE AMOUNT OF $469.48 AND SG FABRICATORS IN
THE AMOUNT OF $1,500.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM
#212.970.000.974.036

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Mike
Martin to award Low Bid for Landscaping at Lakeside Park Boathouse to
Margolis Companies in an amount not to exceed $14,050.00 and to
authorize purchasing of Site Furnishings from Victor Stanley in the amount
of $469.48 and SG Fabricators in the amount of $1,500.00 budgeted in line
item #212.970.000.974.036.

Supervisor Stumbo stated this would complete the Boathouse and these were
the lowest bidders.

The motion carried unanimously.

2. REQUEST OF MARK NELSON, MAGISTRATE 14-B DISTRIC COURT
TO AUTHORIZE PURCHASE OF BOND/TRUST/RESTITUTION CHECK
WRITING APPLICATION LICENSE AND BOND/TRUST/RESTITUTION
RECONCILIATION APPLICATION LICENSE ALONG WITH
INSTALLATION AND TRAINING FROM DMC TECHNOLOGY GROUP,
INC IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,600.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
PAGE 11

#236.136.000.819.006 AND TO WAIVE FINANCIAL POLICY FOR
SEEKING BIDS DUE TO THE FACT THIS VENDOR IS THE SINGLE
SOURCE FOR THIS PRODUCT

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge
to authorize purchase of Bond/Trust/Restitution Check Writing Application
License and Bond/Trust/Restitution Reconciliation Application License
along with installation and training from DMC Technology Group, Inc in the
amount of $7,600.00 budgeted in line item #236.136.000.819.006 and to
waive Financial Policy for seeking bids due to the fact this vendor is the
single source for this product. The motion carried unanimously.

ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Scott
Martin to adjourn the meeting. The motion carried unanimously.

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:42 P.M.

Respectfully submitted,

Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Charter Township of Ypsilanti



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT #3

February 17, 2015

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase

Increase the budget for conversion of 213 street lights to LED. This will be funded by an Energy Rebate $7,943 and an
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance $86,219.

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $86,219.00
Rebates and Energy Savings Credit 101-000-000-675.100 $7,943.00

Net Revenues $94,162.00

Expenditures: Streetlight Construction 101-956-000-926.050 $94,162.00

9416200

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, RECREATION, ROAD AND GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND (BSR Il) Total Increase

Increase the budget for trees and site furniture in Lakeside Park for the Boathouse area. This will be funded by an
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance for funds held in reserve for specific usage for trees and parks.

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance -Reserve for Tree 212-000-000-699.000 $14,050.00
Prior Year Fund Balance -Reserve for Parks 212-000-000-699.000 $34,355.00

Net Revenues $48,405.00

Expenditures: Lakeside Park Landscape & Site Furn. 212-970-000-974.036 $48,405.00
Net Expenditures $48,405.00

206 - FIRE FUND Total Increase

Increase Reimbursement Hazardous response service settlement revenue and increase the expenditure to pay the
Washtenaw County Technical Rescue Team for the work at 2500 Airport Dr., Ypsilanti. This will be funded by the
reimbursement check from MCM Management Corp.

Revenues: Reimb - Hazardous Response Serv 206.000.000.682.000 $3,253.71
Net Revenues $3,253.71

Expenditures: Prof Servs - Hazardous Response 206.206.000.801.005 $3,253.71
Net Expenditures $3,253.71

236 - 14B DISTRICT COURT FUND Total Increase

Increase budget for a U of M Law School Intern to complete a special project at the 14B District Court. This will be funded
by a reimbursement from the University of Michigan.

Revenues: Reimbursement Projects - 14B Court 236-000-000-688.200 $14,920.00
Net Revenues $14,920.00
Expenditures: 14B Court Special Projects 236-136-000-802.200 $14,920.00

Net Expenditures $14,920.00

1of2

$94,162.00

$48,405.00

$3,253.71

$14,920.00



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT #3

February 17, 2015

252 - HYDRO STATION FUND Total Increase  $174,102.00

Increase budget of expenditure an additional $174,102 to replace the small generator #1 turbine, wicket gates &
hardware. There is currently $200,000 budgeted in this line item but the total project will be $374,102. This will be
funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Revenues: Prior Year Appropriation 252-000-000-699.000 $174,102.00
Net Revenues $174,102.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay Equipment 252-252-000-976.000 $174,102.00
Net Expenditures $174,102.00

20f2



Motion to Amend the 2015 Budget (#3):

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $94,162 to $7,850,835 and approve the
department line item changes as outlined.

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Recreation, Roads, & General Operations - BSRI|I
Fund budget by $48,405 to $1,706,534 and approve the department line item changes as
outlined.

Move to increase the Fire Fund budget by $3,254 to $5,152,365 and approve the
department line item changes as outlined.

Move to increase the 14B District Court Fund by $14,920 to $1,343,009 and approve the
department line item changes as outlined.

Move to increase the Hydro Station Fund budget by $174,102 to $762,466 and approve
the department line item changes as outlined.



BOATHOUSE DEVELOPMENT AND LEASE AGREEMENT

This Agreement and Lease (“Agreement” or “Lease”) made this day of
, 2015, between Ypsilanti Township, a municipality and Charter
Township of the State of Michigan (“Landlord” or “Township”) and Eastern Michigan
University, a public university established under the laws of the State of Michigan
(“Tenant” or “University”).

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The circumstances leading to the execution of this Agreement and Lease are as
follows:

A. There is a parcel of land on Ford Lake within and owned by the Township
which is proposed to be developed as the Eastern Michigan University Boathouse. The
parcel of land for the Boathouse is more particularly described in Exhibit A to this
Agreement.

B. The Township is willing and prepared to develop and construct the
Boathouse as a means of assisting the University in establishing the Boathouse for the
University’s purposes and in order that Township residents and members of the public
may use and have access to the Boathouse, as determined by the University.

C. The Township will design, engineer and construct the Boathouse, as
provided in this Agreement, subject to certain University approvals, as provided in this
Agreement.

D. The University is willing and prepared to control, manage and operate the
Boathouse. Its actions in this regard shall comply with the directives of the Michigan
Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant (“the Grant”) which partially funded
the Project (see Acknowledgment E below). Specifically, the University’s control,
management, and operation of the Boathouse shall both (1) further the educational, inter-
scholastic and recreational purposes of the University and the public community, and (2)
enforce the Grant’s requirement that the land be used solely for public purposes.

E. With the assistance of the University, the Township has obtained from the
State of Michigan Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant in the amount of
approximately Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000) Dollars, in order that the Township
may construct the Boathouse and complete improvements to the park. Other partners
provided additional funding to support the park improvements.

F. The Township, as Landlord, is willing and prepared to enter into a lease of

the Boathouse property under which the University, as Tenant, will operate, manage and
control the Boathouse, under the terms and conditions specified herein.

Page 1 of 21



DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND LEASE

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follow:
ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

The terms defined in this Article shall, for all purposes of this Agreement and Lease
and all agreements supplemental hereto, have the meanings herein specified.

(@) “Boathouse” shall mean the Boathouse to be constructed on the
Land and is illustrated in Exhibit A.

(b)  “Boathouse Facilities,” shall mean any and all improvements and
structures, fixtures and appurtenances now or at any time erected, constructed, affixed
or attached to or placed in or placed upon the Land that are adjacent to the Boathouse or
used for or adapted in any way for the use, enjoyment, occupancy and operation of the
Boathouse, including but not limited to the parking lot adjacent to the Boathouse.

(c) "Commencement Date” shall have the meaning provided in Article 3.

(d)  “Default” shall mean any condition or event which constitutes or
would, after notice or lapse of time or both, constitute an “Event of Default.”

(e)  "Equipment" shall mean and include, but shall not be limited to, all
machinery, engines, dynamos, boilers, elevators, equipment, heating, hot water and air
conditioning systems, pipes, plumbing, wiring, gas, steam, water and electrical fittings,
ranges and radiators, but shall exclude any golf carts, whether pull or powered.

() "Event of Default" shall have the meaning provided in Article 17.

(g0 “Grant” shall mean the State of Michigan Department of Natural
Resources Trust Fund Grant of funds to the Township to be used for the construction of
the Boathouse, Boathouse Facilities, and park improvements including all of the terms,
conditions and requirements of the Grant.

(h) "Impositions” shall have the meaning provided in Article 5.
0] “Insurance Proceeds” shall have the meaning provided in Article 7.
()] ‘Land" or “Boathouse Property” shall mean the parcel of land

described in Exhibit A, together with all easements, air rights, riparian rights and all
tenements, hereditaments, privileges and appurtenances belonging or in any way
pertaining thereto and Landlord’s interest in any land lying in any body of water, or the
bed of any street, road, or avenue, open or proposed or adjoining said parcel, to the
center line thereof.

Page 2 of 21



(k) ‘Lease Year" shall mean the twelve (12) month period commencing
on the Commencement Date or the twelve (12) month period commencing on any
anniversary of said date and ending one year thereafter.

()] ‘Park” means the public park land and amenities owned and
maintained by the Township of which the Land is part.

(m) “Party” means the Township or the University and “Parties” means
the parties to this Agreement and Lease.

(n)  “Premises" shall mean the Land or Boathouse Property and the
Buildings or Boathouse Facilities.

(o)  “Project” shall mean the design, engineering and construction of the
Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities and all related matters provided for in this Agreement
and Lease.

(p) "Rental" and “Net Annual Rent” shall have the meanings provided in
Article 4.

(@ “Tenant” shall mean the University, provided, however, that
whenever this Lease and the leasehold estate hereby created shall be assigned or
transferred in the manner permitted herein, from and after such assignment or transfer
and until the next such assignment or transfer, the term “Tenant” shall include the
assignee or transferee named therein.

n The words “the Term hereof,” “Lease Term,” or words of similar
import shall mean the Term of this Lease.

(s) The singular includes the plural and the plural includes the singular.

® The words "herein, "hereof" and "hereunder" and words of similar
import refer to this Agreement and Lease as a whole and not to any particular Article or
paragraph.

ARTICLE 2
DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND BOATHOUSE CONSTRUCTION

2.01. Upon all necessary clearances and approvals from the State and
other necessary approvals, if any, the Township will, in partnership with the University,
design, engineer and construct the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities and complete the
construction of the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities with all reasonable dispatch.
(The Parties acknowledge that the Grant has been “approved” and that Grant funds are
provided by the State on a reimbursement basis, and thus the Parties reserve the option
to enter into a separate agreement that, on an interim basis, otherwise provides the
funding necessary and needed to commence the Project.)

Page 3 of 21



2.02. The Township shall design, engineer and construct the Boathouse
and Boathouse Facilities and shall do so in the Township’s normal, standard and
customary manner for the design, engineering and construction of Township
infrastructure, buildings and similar municipal projects. This shall include, but will not
necessarily be limited to, the Township’s selection of a general contractor and other
professionals and contractors, if necessary, by and through the Township’s normal,
standard and customary competitive bidding process and procedure for such a municipal
project.

2.03. The Township shall facilitate the University’s participation in the
design of the Boathouse, and Boathouse Facilities which shall be subject to the
University’s final approval. The University’s participation in the design of the Boathouse
and Boathouse Facilities shall include participation in and approval of the design,
materials, size, quality of construction, and aesthetics of the buildings and structures of
the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities.

2.04. The general contractor for the Project shall purchase and provide
insurance and bonds on and for the Project that meets and satisfies the Township’s
normal, standard and customary insurance and bond specifications, and insurance
coverages and limits of liability for a Township construction project of the size and type of
the Project. This shall include, but will not necessarily be limited to, general liability
insurance, worker's compensation insurance, automobile liability insurance, umbrella
and/or excess liability insurance coverage, owner’s and contractor’s protective liability
insurance, builder's risk insurance, a performance bond and a maintenance and
guarantee bond.

2.05. The Township shall construct and complete the Project in full
compliance with the Grant’s terms, conditions and requirements and in full compliance
with all federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations applicable to the
Project and applicable to municipal construction projects of the size and type of the
Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities.

ARTICLE 3
PREMISES AND TERMS OF LEASE; TERMINATION RIGHT

3.01. Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby takes from
Landlord, the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities and the Land to have and to hold unto
Tenant, its successors and assigns, for a Term of ninety-nine (99) years, which Term
shall commence on the date first written above (the “Commencement Date”) and shall
end 99 Years thereafter, unless such Term is sooner terminated as provided herein.

3.02. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the University determines that it no
longer wants to or is unable to operate the Boathouse or to assign or sublease the same
in accordance with Article 9, Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease upon one (1) year’'s
advance written notice to Landlord.

Page 4 of 21



ARTICLE 4
RENT

4.01. Tenant shall pay to Landlord at Landlord’s principal office, a Net
Annual Rent of one ($1.00) dollar per annum payable on the first day of each Lease Year
starting with the Commencement Date, or Tenant may pay Net Annual Rent earlier, for
any number of years, at Tenant’s option, but advance payment of Net Annual Rent, for
any number of years, shall not constitute a waiver by Tenant of any of Tenant’s other
rights and options under this Agreement and Lease.

4.02. Tenant shall also pay Impositions required to be paid by Tenant
under Article 5, and all sums, costs, expenses and payments which Tenant assumes or
agrees to pay. In the event of any nonpayment of any of said items, Landlord shall have
all the rights and remedies provided for herein for nonpayment of Rental.

ARTICLE 5

OTHER CHARGES
(Impositions)

5.01. Landlord acknowledges and agrees that so long as the University is
Tenant, during the Term neither the Land nor the Buildings nor any personal property of
Tenant used in connection with the Boathouse are or will be subject to real or personal
property taxes or any tax imposed under Public Act 189 of 1953, as such may be
amended, or any public act adopted in substitute or in lieu thereof, or any other tax under
any other public act, ordinance or law.

5.02. Tenant shall pay the following, to the extent applicable:
assessments, water and sewer rates and charges, post-construction license and permit
fees and similar governmental charges, post-construction charges for easements for the
primary benefit of the Land, and charges for public and private utilities including, without
limitation, gas, electricity, light, heat, air conditioning, power and telephone and other
communication services, which at any time during the Term of this Lease may be lawfully
billed, assessed or imposed upon the Premises, all such items being herein called
“Impositions.” Each Imposition, or installment thereof, falling due during the Lease Term
shall be paid prior to the day any fine, penalty, interest or cost may be imposed by law for
the nonpayment thereof.

5.03. If by law any Imposition may at the option of the obligor be paid in
installments, whether or not interest shall accrue on the unpaid balance for such
Imposition, Tenant may exercise the option to pay the same in installments, and Tenant's
obligations to pay the same shall be limited to those installments accruing or falling due
during the Term of this Lease. Upon request, Tenant shall provide Landlord with written
evidence of the payment of any Imposition.

Page 5 of 21



5.04. Tenant shall have the right at its own expense to contest the amount
or validity, in whole or in part, of any Imposition by appropriate proceedings diligently
conducted in good faith. Upon the termination of any such proceeding, it shall be the
obligation of Tenant to pay the unpaid amount of such Imposition as finally determined in
such proceeding.

ARTICLE 6

USE OF PERMISES AS A BOATHOUSE;
TENANT’S MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

6.01. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that Landlord will construct the
Boathouse, which may include the Boathouse Facilities, and will be responsible for all
costs associated with the design, engineering and construction, provided, however, that
Tenant’s sole remedy for the failure of Landlord to construct the Boathouse and/or
Boathouse Facilities shall be to terminate this Lease pursuant to Article 3.

6.02. Tenant shall be responsible for and shall have exclusive control over
the operation, management and use of the Boathouse and the Boathouse Facilities, with
the exception of (1) the restrooms that will be accessible to the public, which will be
maintained by the Landlord and repaired by the Landlord and Tenant as outlined in this
Agreement, and (2) the Boathouse shall be generally available to the public, consistent
with State of Michigan regulations. Tenant may operate and use the Boathouse and use
the Boathouse Facilities as an integral part of its educational function or as part of any
associated support organization or alumni group, and may advertise or promote the
Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities as part of or in the name of the University. Tenant
shall have sole and exclusive control over the appointment or termination of persons or
entities operating, managing, supplying or otherwise associated with or providing services
at, to or for the Boathouse.

6.03. The Project has been funded, in part, by the Grant. Under the Grant,
certain conditions have been or will be imposed with respect to the Land, including that
the Land be used only for public purposes. The Parties shall perform and observe all of
the requirements or conditions imposed upon the Land, Boathouse or the Boathouse
Facilities under and by the Grant.

6.04 In the event the State of Michigan informs the Township in writing
that the operation of the Boathouse or Boathouse Facilities are not in conformity with
previously imposed requirements or conditions of the Grant, the Township shall provide
prompt written notice thereof to Tenant pursuant to Section 17.02 of this Agreement.
Tenant shall then have the opportunity to cure the alleged violation pursuant to Section
17.02. If Tenant fails to exercise its right to cure, and if a court subsequently upholds the
State of Michigan’s allegations, Landlord may terminate this Agreement pursuant to
Section 17 and may exercise its remedies, including but not limited to mandatory non-
binding mediation as outlined in Section 26.03.

6.05 The Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities shall be used to further the
educational purposes of the University and shall be reasonably available for public use.

Page 6 of 21



Tenant shall have the right to establish the fees, charges, terms and conditions on which
the Boathouse is made available for public use, and such fees, charges, terms and
conditions may be different for members of the public generally than those offered to
residents of the Township or to the students, faculty, employees or invitees of the
University. Such fees, charges, terms, and conditions shall be the subject of a forthcoming
Use Agreement between the Parties. Landlord and Tenant shall cooperate with one
another in obtaining the approval of the State of Michigan of any fees or charges
applicable to the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities, if such approval is necessary to
satisfy the conditions of the Grant or any grant hereafter received relative to the Land,
Boathouse or Boathouse Facilities.

6.06 Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that, with Tenant’s cooperation
and assistance, Landlord has applied for and has been approved for the Grant. Landlord
and Tenant have and shall continue to provide full cooperation to one another to procure
and secure the Grant or grants in the maximum available amounts, and the proceeds of
all such grants shall be made solely available to Landlord, except as may be provided in
any separate agreement between the Parties for interim funding or financing of the
Project, in order to enable Landlord to pay the costs associated with designing,
engineering and constructing the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities in advance of
receipt of Grant funds.

6.07. All rents, concessions, income or other revenues received with
respect to the Boathouse shall be the sole and exclusive property of Tenant. Tenant shall
be the sole and exclusive holder of all improvements to the Boathouse during the Lease
Term.

6.08. The Boathouse will be primarily used by Tenant in furtherance of its
educational purpose and for public purposes as discussed in Section 6.03. Specifically,
the Boathouse will be used by the University, in part, as a base of operations for the
University’s rowing team or club including, but not limited to, storage of associated athletic
facilities and equipment.

6.09. Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that the development of any
property adjacent to the Premises could have an effect on the Boathouse and Boathouse
Facilities. If Landlord receives any petition or other notice of a request for rezoning, site
plan, variance or other land use approvals with respect to any property adjacent to the
Premises, Landlord shall promptly and timely notify Tenant of same and provide Tenant
with copies of all plans, drawings or other documents submitted in connection therewith.
To the extent permitted by law, any such development shall be subject to University
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. In any event, the Township may not
engage in or participate in any such development without the University’s approval, which
shall not be unreasonably withheld.

6.10. Tenant will not discriminate in the control, operation or management
of the Boathouse or Boathouse Facilities against any person or group of persons because
of the race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, age, national origin, ancestry or disability
of such person or group of persons.

Page 7 of 21



ARTICLE 7
INSURANCE

7.01. On or before “substantial completion” of the Project, as determined
by the Township and according to the terms of the Township’s construction contract for
the Project, Tenant shall maintain, or cause to be maintained, policies of insurance with
respect to the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities as follows:

(@) Comprehensive broad form boiler and machinery insurance
including but not limited to coverage for pressure vessels, air-conditioning equipment,
electric motors, transformers, pumps, compressors and miscellaneous electrical
apparatus with a limit of liability not less than Five Hundred Thousand ($500,000) Dollars
per occurrence.

b) Commercial general liability insurance against claims for
bodily injury and personal injury, death, property damage, contractual liability,
products/completed operations, explosion, collapse and other events occurring on the
Premises or arising out of Tenant’s use or occupancy thereof. Such insurance shall afford
minimum protection of Three Million ($3,000,000) Dollars combined single limit occurring
or resulting from any one occurrence.

C) Property insurance covering the Premises with a limit of
liability not less than Two Million ($2,000,000) Dollars per occurrence.

7.02. All losses under the policy or policies under Section 7.01 shall be
adjusted by Tenant or Tenant's insurer. Property damage insurance proceeds
(“Insurance Proceeds”) shall be paid to and disbursed in accordance with Article 8.

7.03. All premiums on policies required by this Article shall be paid by
Tenant. Certificates of Insurance shall be delivered to Landlord within thirty (30) days of
a written request for same. Premiums on policies shall not be financed in any manner
whereby a lender, on default or otherwise, shall have the right or privilege of surrendering
or cancelling the policies.

7.04. All insurance policies required by this Article shall be valid and
enforceable policies issued by insurers of recognized responsibility which are legally
authorized to issue the required insurance in the State of Michigan.

7.05. Any insurance provided for in this Article may be provided, on the
same basis or under the same arrangements as other buildings or properties of the
University by a policy or policies of blanket insurance, provided, however, that the amount
of the total of blanket insurance allocated to the Premises shall be equivalent to the
amounts of the separate policies herein required, and provided further that in all other
respects any such blanket policy or policies shall comply with the other provisions of this
Article.

Page 8 of 21



ARTICLE 8
USE OF PROPERTY DAMAGE INSURANCE PROCEEDS

8.01. If any of the Boathouse Facilities shall be destroyed or damaged in
whole or in part by fire or other casualty, Tenant shall have the right to elect to repair the
damage or construct new buildings or improvements out of the Insurance Proceeds. The
design, nature and quality of such repairs or new buildings or improvements shall be
within Tenant’s discretion. If Tenant elects not to repair or replace the damage or the
damage is of such a nature that it prevents the operation of a Boathouse on the Premises,
Landlord may elect to terminate this Lease pursuant to Article 19 or Tenant may elect to
terminate this Lease pursuant to Article 3.

8.02. Any Insurance Proceeds payable with respect to the Boathouse or
Buildings shall be paid to Tenant, subject, however, to the superior right of any leasehold
mortgagees as to any such Insurance Proceeds.

ARTICLE 9
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING

9.01. Except as otherwise provided in this Article, Tenant shall have the
right to grant subleases, assignments, concessions or other transfers of its interest under
this Lease with respect to the Boathouse and/or Boathouse Facilities. No subtenant,
assignee, concessionaire or other transferee shall have non-disturbance or recognition
rights except under the circumstances described in paragraph 9.04. Any transferee shall
take subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease that apply to the part of the
Boathouse and/or Boathouse Facilities so transferred or sublet, including those provisions
pertaining to the observance of any requirements of the Grant or of the State of Michigan.

9.02 (&)  As used in this Article the term “sublease of the Boathouse”
shall mean a sublease whereby the Boathouse is sublet to an entity other than the
University or a subsidiary or related entity of the University. Such term shall not apply to
management agreements or like arrangements whereby the University retains control
over and/or an economic interest in the operation of the Boathouse and/or the Boathouse
Facilities, even if persons who are not direct employees of the University have day-to-day
management responsibilities.

(b) The Tenant’s right to sublease the Boathouse and/or the
Boathouse Facilities shall commence on the date the University notifies the Township of
its intent to seek proposals for subleasing the Boathouse and/or the Boathouse Facilities.
The University’s notice shall include information relative to the sub-tenant and the
proposed form of the sublease. During such period, the Township may examine all
records of the University pertaining to the operation or management of the Boathouse
and/or the Boathouse Facilities. If the Township wishes to enter into the sublease, it must
provide the University with written notice of its intent and agreement to do so within sixty
(60) days of the University’s notice of intent to sublease. The sublease shall be executed

Page 9 of 21



within fifteen (15) days after the date the 60-day period expires. In the event that the
Township does not provide written notice of its intent and agreement to enter into the
sublease of the Boathouse within such 60-day period or does not execute a sublease
within such 15-day period, the Township’s rights under this paragraph shall terminate and
Tenant shall have the right to sublease the Boathouse to a third party on the terms and
conditions specified in the notice to the Township, as the same may be amended pursuant
to negotiations with potential subtenants. Any such subtenant shall be subject to the
approval of the Township, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

9.03 Tenant shall not assign all of its interest under this Lease without first
offering to assign the Lease to the Township on the same terms and conditions as Tenant
proposes to assign the Lease to a third party. Such right of first refusal shall exist for a
period of sixty (60) days after the date on which Tenant provides Landlord with written
notice of a proposed assignment and the terms and conditions thereof. Such right shall
expire, and Tenant shall be free to assign all of its interest hereunder, unless Landlord
indicates its intention and agreement to accept the assignment on the proposed terms
and conditions within such 60-day period, and the assignment is consummated within
fifteen (15) days after the expiration of such 60-day period. If Landlord declines to exercise
such right of first refusal or does not consummate the assignment within such 15-day
period, the Township’s rights under this paragraph shall terminate and Tenant shall have
the right to assign its interest under this Lease. Any such assignment shall be subject to
the approval of the Township, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Upon
such assignment Tenant shall be relieved of any further obligation or liability under this
Lease.

9.04 Landlord and Tenant acknowledge the possibility that, if Tenant
subleases part of the Boathouse Facilities, the subtenant may require Landlord to grant
recognition or non-disturbance rights, to the end that the sublease will continue in force
and effect if Tenant defaults hereunder and this Lease is terminated. Landlord agrees
that, after a request therefor, it will promptly grant such recognition and non-disturbance
rights to any subtenant of the Tenant, and shall execute a Recognition and Non-
disturbance Agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to such subtenant, if the
following conditions are met:

@) Landlord is advised of the identity of the subtenant and is
provided with a copy of the sublease.

(b) Landlord has approved the subtenant in terms of experience
in managing the aspect of the business which is the subject of the sublease. Landlord
agrees that it shall not unreasonably withhold or delay such consent.

(c) The subtenant agrees in writing to attorn to Landlord and
recognize Landlord as subtenant’s landlord under the sublease, in the event that Tenant
defaults hereunder and the Lease is terminated.

(d) The Recognition and Non-disturbance Agreement provides
Landlord will have all the rights of the landlord under the applicable sublease, including
the right to terminate the sublease if the subtenant is in default thereunder.

Page 10 of 21



(e) The requirements of section 9.02, relative to the subleasing of
the Boathouse, have been observed, if applicable.

)] The sublease does not extend beyond the Term of this Lease.

9.05. Any act required to be performed by Tenant pursuant to the terms of
this Lease may be performed by any subtenant occupying all or any part of the Premises
and the performance of such act shall be deemed to be the performance by Tenant and
shall be acceptable as Tenant's act by Landlord.

9.06. If any prospective subtenant requires modification to this Lease as a
condition to entering into the same, Landlord shall not unreasonably withhold its consent
to such modifications, provided that Landlord shall not be required to consent to such
modifications pertaining to Rental, the Term, or any modifications which increase
Landlord’s obligations or decrease Landlord’s rights or remedies hereunder.

ARTICLE 10
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS

10.01 Throughout the Lease Term, Tenant, at its sole cost and expense,
shall, except as outlined in this section, be responsible for ongoing maintenance and
repairs to the Boathouse in accordance with the applicable Township building code,
although the level of repair and maintenance shall be within Tenant’s discretion pursuant
to that code.

10.011 During the season when the Park is open to the public,
Landlord shall be responsible for maintenance to the restrooms that are accessible
to the public.

10.012 Regarding repairs to the Boathouse restrooms, the docks and

the parking lot(s) adjacent to the Boathouse, the parties shall meet and confer to
discuss payment of significant non-recurring expenses as they arise. For
illustration purposes, the following is a non-exhaustive list of examples of such
expenses: re-sealing or re-paving the parking lot adjacent to the Boathouse,
replacing the docks, and installation of new plumbing fixtures inside the
Boathouse.

10.02. During the season when the Park is not open to the public, Tenant
shall, at its own cost and expense, keep clean and free from snow, ice, rubbish,
obstructions and encumbrances, the sidewalks and areas in front of or adjacent to the
Boathouse. During the season when the Park is open to the public, Landlord shall, at its
own cost and expense, keep clean and free from snow, ice, rubbish, obstructions and
encumbrances, the sidewalks and areas in front of or adjacent to the Boathouse.

10.03. Except as otherwise provided herein or otherwise in a separate
writing, Landlord shall not be required to furnish any services or facilities to the Premises
such as, but not limited to, water, steam, heat, gas, electricity, light and power. Landlord
shall have no duty or obligation to make any alteration, change, improvement,

Page 11 of 21



replacement or repair to, or to demolish, any buildings or improvements erected or
maintained on the Land. Landlord shall, however, provide all Township municipal services
to the Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities and the Township’s construction of the
Boathouse and Boathouse Facilities shall include provisions for and proper connection to
all necessary and standard utilities and utility services.

ARTICLE 11
CHANGES AND ALTERATIONS

Tenant may construct, demolish, replace or materially alter any Building or
structure, or any part thereof, whether voluntarily or in connection with a repair or
restoration required by this Lease, so long as the Premises can be used as a Boathouse,
it being recognized that the nature and quality of the Buildings and any other
improvements on the Land shall be determined solely by Tenant.

ARTICLE 12

REQUIREMENTS OF PUBLIC AUTHORITIES AND OF INSURANCE
UNDERWRITERS AND POLICIES

12.01 During the Lease Term, Tenant at its own cost shall comply with any
and all applicable laws, rules, regulations and requirements of any governmental or public
authority and of any applicable fire rating bureau, insurer of the premises or other body
exercising similar functions affecting the Premises. Tenant shall be required to comply
only with those requirements of entities with the lawful authority to regulate the Tenant
and the Premises.

12.02 Tenant shall have the right to contest the validity of any such
requirements or the application thereof, at Tenant's own expense. Landlord shall
cooperate with Tenant in any such contest to such extent as Tenant may reasonably
request.

ARTICLE 13
FIXTURES OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

In no event shall Landlord have any obligation whatsoever to keep the Premises
furnished and equipped with equipment, fixtures or articles of personal property.

ARTICLE 14
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY LANDLORD
Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant as follows:

@) Landlord owns the Land described in Exhibit A in fee simple and has
marketable title to the Land.

Page 12 of 21



(b) The Land is not in violation of any current building or zoning law or
ordinance and is zoned to allow the development and use of the Boathouse and
Boathouse Facilities.

(©) To Landlord’s knowledge, the Land has not been used as a site for
storing, dumping or otherwise disposing of chemical, oil, petroleum or any hazardous
substances.

(d) Landlord has the power and authority to enter into this Agreement
and Lease and perform and satisfy all of Landlord’s obligations under this Agreement and
Lease.

ARTICLE 15
LANDLORD’S RIGHT OF INSPECTION

15.01. Tenant shall permit Landlord and its agents or representatives to enter the
Premises at reasonable times for the purpose of inspecting the premises.

15.02. Nothing in this Article or this Agreement and Lease shall imply any duty
upon the part of Landlord to do any work and performance thereof by Landlord shall not
constitute a waiver of Tenant’s default in failing to perform the same.

ARTICLE 16
PERMITTED USE; NO UNLAWFUL OCCUPANCY

16.01 Subject to applicable law and this Lease, Tenant will use the
Premises solely as and for a Boathouse with related facilities, including the Boathouse
Facilities. Tenant may permit guests, employees and invitees to use the Boathouse and
Boathouse Facilities on such conditions as Tenant determines, in its sole discretion.

16.02 Tenant shall not use or occupy, nor permit or suffer, the Premises or
any part thereof to be used or occupied for any unlawful or illegal business, use or
purpose, nor for any purpose or in any way in violation of a certificate of occupancy or of
any present or future law, ordinance, or regulation applicable to the University.

16.03 Tenant will not suffer any act to be done or any condition to exist on
the Premises or any portion thereof that constitutes a nuisance, public or private, or which
may make void or voidable any insurance then in force on the Premises.

ARTICLE 17
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

17.01. Each of the following events shall be an “Event of Default” and the Landlord
shall have the right to terminate this Lease in any of the following events and none other:

Page 13 of 21



(@) Tenant’s failure to perform any covenant or condition of this
lease for ninety (90) days following a written notice of default from Landlord plus any
additional time that is necessary to cure the default as long as Tenant commences the
cure within the 90-day period and diligently pursues the cure.

(b)  Tenant permanently abandons the Boathouse or fails to
permit any use of it for a period in excess of one (1) year, unless the same is attributable
to labor disputes, reconstruction, repair or maintenance activities or any factor or factors
beyond Tenant’s reasonable control.

17.02. In order to terminate this Lease for a reason specified in this Article,
Landlord must provide ninety (90) days prior written notice to Tenant. Such notice of
termination shall not be effective if Tenant commences good faith efforts to cure the
applicable Event of Default within such 90-day period and diligently pursues the cure.

17.03. Upon the expiration or termination of this Lease, whether by lapse of
time, by reason of the Tenant’s default, or as otherwise provided in this Lease, possession
of all Buildings on the Premises shall automatically transfer to and vest in Landlord without
any payment therefore. However, if this Lease terminates prior to the end of its full Term
and if any Building is occupied by a subtenant whom Landlord is obligated not to disturb,
possession of that Building shall continue in the subtenant until the expiration or earlier
termination of that sublease, whereupon it shall automatically be transferred to and vest
in Landlord without any payment therefore.

ARTICLE 18
NOTICES

Whenever it is provided herein that notice, demand, request or other
communication shall or may be given to or served upon either Party by the other, and
whenever either Party shall desire to give or serve upon the other Party any notice,
demand, request or other communication with respect hereto, each such notice, demand,
request or other communication shall be in writing and shall be effective if given or served
as follows:

@) If to Tenant, by mailing the same to Tenant by registered or certified
mail, postage prepaid, addressed to:

Eastern Michigan University
Attn: Office of the President
Welch Hall

Ypsilanti, Ml 48197

Page 14 of 21



(b) If to Landlord, by mailing the same to Landlord by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to:

Supervisor

Ypsilanti Township

7200 South Huron River Dr.
Ypsilanti, Ml 48197

(c) Every notice, demand, request or other communication hereunder
shall be deemed to have been given or served at the time and date set forth on the date
of mailing.

ARTICLE 19
CONDEMNATION

19.01. If at any time during the Term, the whole or materially all of the
Premises shall be taken for any public or quasi-public purpose by any lawful power or
authority, this Lease and the Term shall terminate and expire on the date of such taking
and the Rental, and other charges to be paid by Tenant shall be apportioned and paid to
the date of such taking. The term “materially all of the premises” shall mean such portion
of the Premises, as when so taken, would leave remaining a balance of the Premises
which, due either to the area so taken or the location of the part so taken in relation to the
part not so taken, would not readily accommodate a Boathouse or Boathouse Facilities
or would impede or otherwise hinder the University’s goals, purposes and intent under
this Agreement and Lease, within the University’s reasonable discretion. If the whole or
materially all of the Premises is so taken, the rights and interests of Landlord and Tenant
in and to the entire award or the aggregate of any separate awards to Landlord and
Tenant shall be apportioned between Landlord and Tenant as follows:

(@ There shall be first paid any and all reasonable fees and
expenses incurred in collecting the award.

(b)  The balance of the award shall be equitably apportioned
between Landlord and Tenant based on the then respective fair market values of the fee
on a non-mortgaged basis (appraised by reference to the value of the income stream
derivable by Landlord under this Lease together with the present value of the expiration
of the Lease in accordance with its remaining term) and the leasehold on a non-
mortgaged basis, with any award to Tenant payable to Tenant.

19.02. For the purpose of this Article, the Premises or a part thereof, as the
case may be, shall be deemed to have been taken or condemned on the date on which
actual possession of the Premises or a part thereof, as the case may be, is acquired by
any lawful power or authority or the date on which title vests therein, whichever is earlier.

Page 15 of 21



19.03. If less than materially all of the Premises be so taken or condemned,
this Lease and the term thereof shall continue. In that event, the entire award or the
aggregate of the separate awards to Landlord and Tenant, as the case may be, shall be
apportioned between Landlord and Tenant as follows:

(@)  There shall be paid any and all reasonable fees and expenses
incurred in collecting the award.

(b)  There shall be paid to Tenant so much thereof as may be
necessary for the cost of repairing and restoring for use and occupancy the part of the
buildings and improvements not so taken, or constructing substitute facilities as
determined by Tenant.

(c)  The balance of the award shall be equitably apportioned
between Landlord and Tenant based on the reduction in the respective fair market values
of the fee on a non-mortgaged basis and the leasehold on a non-mortgaged basis,
computing values in accordance with the principles set forth in subsection 19.01(b) and
considering the value of the leasehold after completion of all repairs and restoration, with
any award to Landlord payable to Landlord and any award to Tenant payable to Tenant.

19.04. In case of any governmental action, not resulting in the taking or
condemnation of any portion of the Premises but creating a right to compensation
therefor, such as, without limitation the changing of the grade of any street upon which
the Premises abut, this Lease shall continue in full force and effect without reduction or
payment of Tenant to be made hereunder, and the award shall be shared by Landlord
and Tenant on an equitable basis in proportion to the injury or loss suffered by them.

19.05. The above provisions of this Article notwithstanding, the Township
hereby waives and foregoes its right, authority and power to condemn the Land and
agrees that it will not condemn the Land through the Lease Term.

ARTICLE 20
CERTIFICATES BY LANDLORD

Landlord agrees at any time and from time to time upon not less than ten (10) days
prior notice by Tenant to execute, acknowledge and deliver to Tenant or any other party
specified by the Tenant a statement in writing certifying that this Lease is unmodified and
in full force and effect, or if there shall have been modifications that the same is in full
force and effect as modified and stating the modifications, and such other and similar
matters as Tenant may reasonably request.

Page 16 of 21



ARTICLE 21
LANDLORD’S CONSENTS

It is understood and agreed that the granting of any consent by Landlord to Tenant
to perform any act of Tenant requiring Landlord’s consent under the terms of this Lease,
or the failure on the part of Landlord to object to any such action taken by Tenant without
Landlord’s consent, shall not be deemed a waiver by Landlord of its rights to require such
consent for any further similar act by Tenant.

ARTICLE 22
SURRENDER AT END OF TERM

22.01. On the last day of the Term hereof or upon any earlier termination of
this Lease, Tenant shall surrender and deliver up to Landlord the Premises “as is” and
subject to all lettings and occupancies, liens and encumbrances, if any, existing at the
date hereof or placed thereon by Tenant as provided herein, or created by Landlord,
without any payment or allowance whatever by Landlord on account of or for any building
and improvements erected or maintained on the Land at the time of the surrender or for
any contents remaining therein or thereon, whether or not the same shall have been
constructed by, paid for or purchased by Tenant.

22.02. Except as otherwise provided herein, Tenant waives any notice now
or hereafter required by law with respect to vacating the Premises at any such expiration
or termination date.

22.03. Tenant may remove all equipment, removable fixtures, vehicles and
personal property from the Premises after the termination of this Lease. However, any
personal property of Tenant or any subtenant which shall remain on the Premises after
the termination of this Lease may be retained by Landlord as its property or be disposed
of, without accountability, as Landlord may see fit.

22.04. Landlord shall not be responsible for any loss or damage occurring
to any personal property owned by Tenant or any subtenant.
22.05. The provisions of this Article shall survive any termination of this
Lease.
ARTICLE 23

QUIET ENJOYMENT

Landlord covenants that, if and so long as Tenant shall perform the agreements,
terms, covenants and conditions hereof, Tenant shall and may peaceably and quietly
have, hold and enjoy the Premises for the Term without molestation or disturbance by or
from Landlord and free of any encumbrance created or suffered by Landlord, except those
to which this Lease is made subject and subordinate as provided herein.

Page 17 of 21



ARTICLE 24
LANDLORD’S EASEMENT AND ZONING OBLIGATIONS

24.01. If, in connection with the improvement, development and use of the
Premises under this Agreement and Lease, it becomes necessary to grant or terminate
one or more easements or rights of way for utility purposes including, but not necessarily
limited to, sewer, gas, water, telephone, telegraph and electrical, Landlord agrees to
cooperate in the making of such grants or termination as may be requested by Tenant. In
addition, if in connection with the improvements, development and use of the Premises
by Tenant, it becomes necessary or desirable to: vacate all or any portion of any alleys,
streets or roads adjoining the Premises; dedicate streets, alleys, roads, parks, retention
areas or open spaces to public or other uses; waive any rights or benefits granted under
applicable zoning, building or other ordinances; or, modify or change any existing zoning,
building or other ordinances, Landlord agrees, at the Tenant’s request, to promptly
execute documents necessary to accomplish same or to effectuate same.

ARTICLE 25
RECORDING OF MEMORANDUM

Upon the written request of a Party, Landlord and Tenant will join in the execution
of a memorandum of Lease in proper form for recording in the appropriate office or offices
setting forth the existence and essential terms of this Lease, and Landlord and Tenant
will each take such further action as may be necessary to effect such recording.

ARTICLE 26
MISCELLANEOUS

26.01. The captions of this Agreement and Lease are for convenience of
reference only and in no way define, amplify, limit, construe or describe the scope or
intent of any part of this Agreement and Lease.

26.02. This Agreement and Lease cannot be modified, amended or
terminated orally. This Agreement and Lease may be modified or amended by a written
document only, signed by Landlord and Tenant and properly and legally approved by the
Landlord’s and Tenant’s respective governing body.

26.03. This Agreement and Lease shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the state of Michigan, and exclusive jurisdiction for any
disputes directly or indirectly concerning this Lease shall be in the Circuit Court in and for
the County of Washtenaw, State of Michigan, or in the Court of Claims, State of Michigan.
The Parties agree to and shall engage in a good faith effort to settle any such dispute
before the filing of any suit in a court of law, and such effort shall include both of the
following: (1) at least one face-to-face meeting between the Parties, and (2) mandatory
non-binding mediation with a mediator selected mutually by the parties and the mediator’s
fees and costs divided equally between the parties.

Page 18 of 21



26.04. The agreements, terms, covenants, and conditions herein shall bind
and inure to the benefit of Landlord and Tenant and their successors and, except as
otherwise provided herein, their assigns.

26.05. If either party becomes a party to any litigation concerning this
Agreement and Lease or the Premises by reason of any act or omission of the other Party
or its representatives, and not by any act or omission of the Party that becomes a Party
to that litigation or of its representatives, the Party that causes the other Party to become
involved in the litigation shall be liable to that Party for reasonable attorneys’ fees and
expenses and court costs incurred by it in the litigation.

26.06 If either Party commences an action against the other Party arising
out of or in connection with this Agreement and Lease or the Premises, the prevailing
Party shall be entitled to have and recover from the other Party reasonable attorney fees
and expenses and costs of suit.

26.07. Whenever any Party to this Agreement and Lease gives any notice
to the other Party it may and, where specifically required elsewhere in this Lease, shall
give a written copy of such notice to any Leasehold Mortgagee.

26.08. Whenever the consent or approval of Landlord, Tenant, a Leasehold
Mortgagee, or any other person is expressly required hereunder, and except as expressly
provided to the contrary herein, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld and the Party whose consent or approval is sought shall reply to the request for
consent or approval within a reasonable time.

26.009. Landlord and Tenant represent to one another that there has been
no broker involved in the soliciting or arranging of this Agreement and Lease.

26.10. Other than any separate agreement for interim funding identified in
paragraphs 2.01 & 6.06, this Agreement and Lease merges all proposals, negotiations,
representations, agreements, and understandings with respect to this Agreement and
Lease. There are no representations with respect to the condition of the Premises or any
other matter in any way related to the Premises or this Agreement and Lease except as
expressly set forth in this Agreement and Lease. No rights, covenants, easements or
licenses may arise by implication.

26.11. Any intention to create a joint venture or partnership relationship
between Landlord and Tenant is hereby expressly disclaimed.

26.12. The submission of or exchange of this Agreement and Lease for
examination and review does not constitute a reservation, option or agreement to develop
and/or lease the Premises, and this Agreement and Lease will become effective only
upon execution and delivery by both Parties and approval by the governing body of each
Party.

26.13. If any covenant of this Agreement and Lease is invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable, that covenant will be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by applicable

Page 19 of 21



law and the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining covenants will not, in any
way, be affected or impaired.

26.14. Nothing contained in this Agreement and Lease will be construed so
as to confer upon any other party the rights of a third-party beneficiary, except rights for
the benefit of a mortgagee, if any. The agreements, terms, covenants and conditions
herein shall not inure to the benefit of any third party.

26.15. This Agreement and Lease has been negotiated at arm’s-length and
has been reviewed by both Parties. This Agreement and Lease may not be construed
against Landlord or Tenant. This Agreement and Lease has been jointly drafted by the
Parties.

26.16 No covenant or breach is intended to be waived unless a waiver is
clearly expressed in a document signed by the waiving party specifically identifying the
covenant or breach and expressly stating that it is a waiver of the identified covenant or
breach. The wavier of a covenant or breach is not construed as a continuing waiver of
the same covenant or of any future breach. Consent by Tenant or Landlord to any act
requiring Tenant’s or Landlord’s consent does not constitute a waiver of the requirement
of Tenant’s or Landlords’ consent with respect to any similar or subsequent act.

SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE

Page 20 of 21



LANDLORD:

TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI, a Michigan
Charter Township

By, Lo . Ol Do
Printed Name: g 4 L - Stumbo

Its: Super

visor]| T )
By rads M g }‘2’@&“‘{5
Printed Narie: (a{%‘} M\/g()t)f Ko

lts: Clerk

TENANT:
EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY

By:

Printed Namie:

fts: President

Page 21 of 21




MNRTF Grant Application
Lakeside Park Improvements

] SETER TSR oty nchilm A F ~citay
{narter Township of Ypsiant

PROJECT LOCATION MAP

Lakeside Park
9999 Textile Road
Ypsilanti, Ml 48197

Exhibit A

e

./ N

N N

 Fordlake L —/"

—1
: 5 |2
1 Huron River Dr 13 p
e - = =
/ o Textile Rd ] s
3] Project | o
'S £ Site ¢
g B
(] . T
Y Merritt Rd né
5] \ 2]
e m .:;:.o c
g 3 * 3
= = Q‘P o =
B BemisRd & =
@ @
§ E
&) =
=
Willis Rd =

1 Apri 2010






SKETCH/AREA TABLE ADDENDUM

File No K -11-23-400-02%

Property Address 9599 TEXTILE RD

Cily YPSILANTI Counly WASHTENAW State M Zip 48197
Owner CHARTER TWP CF YPSILANTL
Client
Appraiser Name
Lakeview Estates July 20, 1927
Lg 7480 S gae Subject Site
300EM5'0"E .
o T P e ' 280196.7sf
49.85'| 5 5086 6.43 Acres
w
2 § 1t .21 34,5 6178 210 11]12i4
i ’ rm
g = )
= = o
§TT] o 2]
5 ~ b (
b = i S
g L e
= —
e
I .
! i I
| | ‘
: | |
i 5 | i | | i
i i i l ‘ i |
| i l
488 | - ‘ : ‘ " ‘ " ’ \ " j N \ 49.5 l
1 S 89° 59' 8" W 593.85° _ ol
5 @ TextieRd. —~ &

Scaie: 1=125

Subject Site

Perimeter = 2169.22 Feet

RV

THENRCE Horth 1° 17°
THENCE Morth 75° 30' 0©
THENCE South B84° 15+ 0¥
THENCE North 75° 11t' 0"
THENCE South i° 17+ o"
THENCE South 8%° 59

EBast,

Beginning at a point of the Tract described by Metes and Bounds as follows:
0" West, a distance of 462.937 Feet;

Easkt,
East,
East,

a distance of 74.BB Feet;
a distance of 305.53 Feet:;
a distance of 223.79 Feet;
a distance of 508.20 Feet:;

8" West, a distance of 593.85 Feet to point of beginning;
Said tract containing 6.43 acres (280196.69 sr)

of land, more or less.

No significant error of closure.

YREILANTICHARTER TCWAISHIR

APEX SOFTHERE 8305586558

AoxTT00-# Apox Medna




SKETCH/AREA TABLE ADDENDUM

File No K -11-24-300-005
Property Address 10049 TEXTILE RD

{L;).j City YPSILANTI County WASHTENAW State Ml Zip 48197
3 Owner CHARTER TWP OF YPSILANTI
‘i% Client
Agppraiser Name
e 7
RREIRT 6y w0 E®

z

88" 54" 30°E 16829

|
=
-
o)
o‘ \
"
gt |
z @ I
-
= o =
-4 =] € g o 7]
) "l
- &)
P P H
hd (]
o
3 < )
% m o
m . -
3 ™ m
o w B~
K -
O B
(=]
=

Subject Site
472607 2sf '

1 O 85 ACreS W BT 207307 E 50490

SLE%S M .OC Sr.ON

TMPROVEMENTS.SRETCH

L000n 3.5 84S

5 87" 20° 30" W 4133
=

——————— 517 B 157w 50.00° g
-
e h—— g g7 20 3T 73339 /,_j——-v—'—‘—'"—'_'
—_— p” D —_—
b e

o
[

Py

e —_—
S —

i e

2 Uy

Textile Rd.

Scale
Subject Site

1=2030

Beginning at a point of the Tract described by Metes and Bounds as follepws:
THENCE North 0° 45' 30" West, a distance of 558,15 Feet;
THENCE North 75° 19' 20" East, a distance of 46.62 Feaet;
THENCE North 80° 1i* 50" Hast, a distance of 72.32 Feet;
THENCE North 31° 17' 0" East, a distance of 39.19 Feet;
THENCE North 72° 21° 0" East, a distance of 231.10 Feet;
THENCE North 88° 54° 30" East, a distance of 168.25 Feet;
THENCE North §7° 15' D" East, a distance of 56.49 Feet;

THEHCE South 759° 48' D" East, a distance of 106,88 Feet;

THENCE North B80° 39' 0" East, a distance of 27.00 Feet;

THENCE South 2° 39' 30" East, a distance of 413.0% Feet:;

THENCE North 87° 20' 30" Bast, a distance of 50.10 Feet:

THENCE South 1° 8' 15 East, a distance of 200.00 Feet;

THENCE South 87° 2Z0' 30" West, a distance of 41,33 Feet;

THENCE South 1° 8' 15" West, a distance of 50.00 Feet;

THENCE South 87° 20°' 3" West, a distance of 733.38 Feet to peint of beginning;

Said tract containing 10.85 acres {472607.18 sf) of land, mere or less.
Perimeter = 2793.80 Feet

No significant error of closure.

YEBI_ANTI CHARTER TOAVNEHP

APEX SOFTWARE BUT-858-3356

Aari el Apaa e




K

-11-24-300-005

YP#24-12A-1: BEG AT SW COR OF SEC, TH N O
-45-30 W 558.15 FT IN W/L OF SEC, TH N
75-19-20 B 46.62FT; TH M 8C-11-5C E 72.32 FT;
TH ¥ 31-17-00 B 39.19 FT; TH N 72-21-00 E
231.10 FT; TH N 88-54-30 E 16B.2% FT; TH H
67-15-00 E 56.49 FT; TH § 72-42-00 E 106.88
FT; TH N 80-3%-00 E 27.00 FT: TH S 2-39-30 E
413.09% FT; TH W 87-20-30 E 50.10 FT; TE S
1-08-15 E 200.00 FT; TH s 87-20-30 W 41.33
FT; TH S 1-08-15 W 50.0C FT; TH S 87-20-30 ¥
733.38 FT TO POB. BEING PART OF 5W 1/4, S3EC
24, T35-R7E, 10.B5 AC.



SKETCH/AREA TABLE ADDENDUM

File No K -11-23-400-021

Property Address 9939 TEXTILE RD

f(?: Cily YPSILANTI County WASHTENAW State  Mi Zip 48197
1 Owner CHARTER TWP OF YPSILANTI
2| Clent
Appraiser Name
Lakeview Estates July 20, 1927 1
. L 22 . .
e B Sae e s OUEET Subject Site
5 WIS TP IO 0E 305 5 N 280196, 7sf
50.85'| 3 & 49 88 " ; . A5
49w 5086 6.43 Acres
| w
i =
» : : 2
e/ 112,345,678, 9]10:11]12]g
: ' ’ m
gﬁﬁ = | wn
= = )
S < =
S P~ \ | S Y
D3 - |
= - | 1
Z l |
; 1 \
) | L i
| | | .
1 | | !
49.5' | - " : | \ . . " . \ G , 485
g S 89° 59' 8" W 593.85' ol
3 @ s TextleRd. = &
- LT
Scale: 1=125
Subject Site
Beginning at a point of the Tract described by Metes and Bounds as follows:

THENCE North 1° 17® G" West, a distance of 462.937 Feet;

THENCE North 75° 30' (" East, a distance of 74.88 Feet;

THENCE South 84° 15' (" East, a distance of 305.53 Feet;

THENCE Horth 75° 11! (" East, a distance of 223.79 Feet;

THENCE South 1° 17° D" East, a distance of 508.20 Feet;

THENCE South B$” 59' 8" West, a distance of 593.85 Feet to point of beginning;

Said tract containing 6.43 acres (280196.69 sf) of land, more or less.
Perimeter = 2169.22 Feet

No significant error of closure.

YESWAMT| CHARTER TCWEHSHI® APEX. SOFTWARE BL0-858-5053 AoxTVaGw Azee Medra



SKETCH/AREA TABLE ADDENDUM

Fite No K -11-24-300-005
Froperty Address 10049 TEXTILE RD

Laj City YPSILANTI Counly WASHTENAW State Ml Zip 48197
g Owner CHARTER TWP OF YPSILANTI
2l Client
Appraiser Name
%
s ?9'48'(;:- e 2 &

Vg O
E 105 gy ot

N 88" 54 30" E 16825

z
3
v -
) <
/Jb\?’- m
z e, o |
= = & 5
E i ‘?-‘3?;9_ ) @
a2 .
5 B 3
; P 2
Py 8 s
! ) ‘ . :
- Subject Site B
=
o
472607.2sf |
i
Z 1 085 Acres HET 2T E SAAG |
: &
- &
LR
B
S
=4
-4
G 87° 200307 W 41, 3J e
e 51 55 W 5000 3
- ) I 587 20 3w 73338 o ____‘ B -
2 " — =
—— T T
L2

Text:le Rd

Subject Site

Scale:  1=200
Beginning at a point of the Tract described by Metes and Bounds as follows:
THENCE Nerth 0° 45' 30" West, a distance of 558,15 Feet;
THENCE North 75% 19'

20" East, a distance of 46.62 Feet;
THENCE North 80° 11' 50" East, a distance of 72.32 Feet;
THENCE North 31° 17' 0¥ East, a distance of 39,19 Feet;

THENCE North 72° 21' (" East,
THENCE North 88° 54' 30" East,
THENCE North 67° 15' D"
THENCE South 78° 48' 0"
THENCE North 80° 3§* 0¥

a distance of 231.10 Feet;
a distance of 16B.25 Feet;
Easkt, a distance of 56.49 Feet;
East, a distance <f 106.88 Feet;
Bast, a distance cf 27.00 Feet;
THENCE South 2° 39' 30" East, a distance of 413.08 Feet;
THENCE North 87° 20® 30" East, a distance of 50.10 Feet;
THENCE Socuth 1° 8' 15" Bast, a distance of 200.00 Feet;
THENCE South 87° 20' 30" West, a distance of 41,33 Feet;

THENCE Scuth 1° 8' 15" West, a distance of 50.00 Feet;
THENCE Soukn B7° 20!

3" West, a distance of 733.38 Feet to point of beginning;
Said tract containing i0.85 acres {472607.18 =f) of land, more or less.
Perimeter = 275%3.90 Feet

No significant error of closure.

YEBILANTI CHARTER TOANNSHP APEX SOFTVWWASE EL8-T56-7358

Aor?Bbow fpex Medne




K -11-24-300-005

YP#24-125-1: BEG BT 5W COR OF SEC, THE W 0
-45-30 W 558.15 FT IN W/L OF SEC, TH N
75-19-20 E 46.62FT; TH N €0-11-50 E 72.32 FT;
T4 W 31-17-00 E 39.19 FT; TH N 72-21-00 B
231.10 ¥T; TH N 88-54-30 E 168.25 FT; TH N
67-15-00 E 56.49 FT; TH 3 79-48-00 E 106.88
FT; TH N 80-39-00 £ 27.00 FT: TH § 2-39-30 E
413.09 FT; TH W 87-20-30 E 50.10 FT; TH §
1-08-15 E 200.00 FT; TH S 87-20-30 W 41.33
FT; TH S 1-06-15 W 50.00 FT; TH § 87-20-30 W
733.39 FT TG POB. BEING PART OF SW 1/4, SEC
24, T3S-R7E, 10.85 AC.



Vpsilanti

"Placing Residents First”
Office (734) 544-4225
Fire Chief (734) 544-4110 FIRE DEPARTMENT
Fire Marshal (734) 544-4107 222 SOUTH FORD BOULEVARD
Fax (734) 544-4195 | YPSILANTI, MICHIGAN 48198-6067

MEMORANDUM

To: Ch;arter Township of Ypsilanti Supervisor and Trustees

From: Ypsilanti Township Fire Chief Eric Copeland

Date: February 11, 2015

Subject: Authorization to approve the 2015 Maintenance Contract for Outdoor Warning Sirens

With West Shore Services, Inc. in the amount of $4,800.00 budgeted in line item
206-206.000-933.001 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS for the servicing of 12 Qutdoor
Warning Sirens located in Ypsilanti Township.

Attached is West Shore Services, Inc. Agreement for Inspection and Annual Preventive Maintenance for
Outdoor Warning Equipment sites in Ypsilanti Township. Currently there are 12 sites within Ypsilanti
Township including the 2014 additions located at: #11) Munger Road between Osprey Dr. and Whimbrel
Ct, and #12) McCartney Road between State St. and Cedarcliff Ave. providing over 90% coverage area.

This agreement covers the visual inspection, routine servicing, testing and adjustments on both AC & DC
system types of Outdoor Warning Sirens and complies with the agreement between Washtenaw County
and Ypsilanti Township for annual maintenance charges (ARTICLE I—-SCOPE). To my knowledge
West Shore Services, Inc. has been the sole provider of the siren maintenance, servicing and installation
of outdoor sirens. Furthermore the annual costs are budgeted in the 2015 FIRE FUND line-item 206-
206.000-933,001 MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS.




West Shore Services, Inc.

Warning Systems Division
6620 Lake Michigan Drive ¢ P.O. Box 188 e Allendale, Ml e 49401
800.632.6184 ¢ 616.895.4347 e Fax: 616.895.7158 ¢ WWW.WESTSHOREFIRE.COM

24/7 Emergency Service Number: 616.242.6745

Agreement for Inspection and Annual Preventative Maintenance
For Outdoor Warning Equipment

Initiation Date: 2015

The following is an Annual Preventative Maintenance Agreement between West Shore Services, Inc. (WSS)
and Charter Twp. of Ypsilanti Fire Dept. (customer). The agreement covers annual inspection and preventative
maintenance only for the siren(s) and associated controls listed on Attachment A.

New sirens added to the customer’s system will automatically be added to Attachment A the year following the
installation, unless the customer notifies WSS otherwise.

This agreement will renew annually unless either party gives notification of intent to amend or discontinue at
least 30 days prior to the annual renewal date. The following work is included under this agreement:

1. Annual inspection and testing of each remote siren site including the following:

Visual Inspection of:

e Grounding system(s) and junctions

e AC Service, Disconnect, Fuses and Breakers

e Utility Pole (Condition and Level)

¢ Conduits and weather seals

e Electrical connections and junctions

e AC Surge Protection

e Cabinets, Housings and Coated Surfaces
Inspect and Service:

Grease and Transmission Fluid Levels

Belts, Gears and Clutch Tension

Motors and Collector Bushings

High Current Relay(s)/Contactor(s)

Test and Adjust:

e RF Controller and Radio Communications Integrity(If so equipped)
e Antenna System

e Current Sensors (If so equipped)

¢ Rotation Transmission Inspection/Testing
Inspect and Test on DC systems: (If so equipped)
e Transformer Rectifier

e DC Chargers, Regulator settings and Limiting Circuit(s)
e Batteries

Page 1 of 3
WSS Maintenance Agreement-Y psilanti Twp-2015


http://www.westshorefire.com/

2. All labor, material, equipment use and trave! expenses required to complete the annual inspection and
preventative maintenance work.

3. Any needed repairs that are discovered during the inspection and preventative maintenance process
that take less than fiftesn (15) minutes and require less than ten dollars ($10.00) worth of parts, will be
completed at the time we are on site at no additional charge. Repairs that exceed these paramelers are
not covered under this agreement and an estimate to complete any additional repairs will be submitted
for customer approval prior to completing the work.

4, A completed copy of each site inspection report will be forwarded for customer’s records.

5. Recommendations for any additional repairs or upgrades including a cost estimate to complete the
work.

6. Battery Replacement Program: This agreement includes battery replacement every four years for
AC/DC systems during annual preventative maintenance process, For existing systems, the cost for
batteries, miscellaneous material and labor will prorated by the number of years left before the next
scheduled battery replacement.

This siren system has the following equipment type and number of sites:
The number of Federal 2001 Outdoor Warnlng Sites: {12) at $400.00 per site annually is $4800.00
Total Annual Cost for this agreement is:  $4800.00
Payment .
Payment for work completed under this agreement is due 30 days from the time you have received an invoice showing
. that the annual inspection and preventative maintenance work has been completed. Customer coples of the site

inspection reports will be forwarded with the invoice. :

This agreement has an initialion date of. 2015

For: West Shore Services, Inc. For: Charter Twp. of Ypsilanti Fire Dept.
Printed Name: Printed Name:

Nancy Williams-Service Coordinator Brenda Stumbe-Ypsilanti Twp. Supervisor
Signature Signature

W \7

Signed: Feb. 11" 2015 Signed F(ib\”uauk ‘K 2015

Printed Name;

Karen Lovejoy Roe-Ypsilanti Twp. Clerk

Signature

%Z / = j /’Z""\u{ﬂ

Signeﬁtym‘j \g 2015

Page 2 of 3
WSS Maintenance Agreement-Ypsilanti Twp-2015




Municipality: Charter Twp of Ypsilanti

Appendix A — Siren Site List

For Inspection and Annual Preventative Maintenance Agreement

Initiation Date: 2015

SITE | STREET ADDRESS LOCATION DESCRIPTION BRAND MODEL MOUNT
001 Ellsworth Road N42.230651 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
West of Fairway Trails W83.649165
entrance to Apt.
Complex
002 54 Wiard Street N42.251315 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
NE Corner of Wiard W83.563520
and Michigan Ave
003 Share Ave N42.230576 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
SW corner of Harris Rd W83.583448
and 1-94 behind Party
Store
004 Textile Road N42.202968 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
West of Bunton Road at W83.564263
Lakeside Park
005 8184 Huron River N42.210997 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
East of Indian Trail W83.598572
006 6929 Merrit and N42.187570 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
Hitchingham Road at W83.621914
the Pump Station
007 Huron Road N42.22533 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
South of 1-94 at the W83.617443
entrance of the park
and ride
008 5754 Textile Road N42.201920 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
North side of Textile W83.644379
just East of Ellis
009 Merritt Road N42.188395 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
1/4 Mile West of Tuttle W83.586443
010 Corner of Martz and N42.181529 Federal 2001-SRNB Pole
McKean Roads W83.552072
NE corner near bean
field
011 Munger Road N42.182300 Federal 2001-130 Pole
Between Osprey Dr. W83.659316
and Whimbrel Court
012 McCartney Road N42.225190 Federal 2001-130 Pole
Between State Street 83.563030
and Cedarcliff Ave
Page 3 of 3

WSS Maintenance Agreement-Y psilanti Twp-2015




Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO
Clerk,

KAREN LOVEJOY ROE
Treasurer
LARRY J. DOE
Trustees
JEAN HALL CURRIE
STAN ELDRIDGE
MIKE MARTIN
SCOTT MARTIN

STATEMENTS AND CHECKS

MARCH 3, 2015 BOARD MEETING

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS - $703,562.98

HAND CHECKS - $ 52,579.04

GRAND TOTAL - $756,142.02

Accounting
Department

7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Ml 48197
FPhone: (734) 48-3702
Fax: {734) 484-5154




02/23/2015 03
User: mharris

112 PM

DB: Ypsilanti-Twp

CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI Page: 1/2
CHECK NUMBERS 167709 - 167785

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Mame (:\ f{ YWD (f““ &w\ *%:(T k<:»~£; Amount
Bank AP AP [

03/03/2015 AP 167709 6570 21ST CENTURY MEDIA 1,098,90
03/03/2015 AP 167710 ARLL 4ALLPROMOS / K-READ 462,51
03/03/2015 AP 167711 2937 A & R TOTAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. 926,02
03/03/2015 AP 167712 15493 ADAM KURTINAITIS 70.00
03/03/2015 AP 167713 0560 ALLGRAPHICS CORPORATION 1,220.60
03/03/2015 AP 167714 15184 BMERIGAS - YPSTLANTI 530,73
03/03/2015 AP 167715 0017 ANN ARBOR CLEBNING SUPPLY 1,034.24
03/03/2015 AP 167716 1014 ARGUS HAZCO 12.71
03/03/2015 AP 167717 0215 AUTC VALUE YPSILANTI 175.43
03/03/2015 AP 167718 6397 BARR ENGINEERING COMPANY 1,069.00
03/03/2015 AP 167712 0898 BS & L SOFTWARE 6,338.00
03/03/2015 AP 167720 6959 BUTZEL LONG 7,437.40
03/03/2015 AP 167721 1094 C & G GRINDING 1,090.00
03/03/2015 LP 167722 3005 CAREERTRACK 149.00
03/03/2015 AP 167723 CEDRONTI CEDRONI ARSSOCIATES, INC. 71,733.24
03/03/2015 AP 167724 2276 CINCINNATI TIME SYSTEMS 755,20
03/03/2015 P 167725 CEB&C LLC CLEAR EWERGY BROKERAGE & CONSULTING 128.84
03/03/2015 AP 167726 0102 COLMAN-WOLF SANITARY SUPPLY CO 265,09
03/03/2015 AP 167727 1312 COMPLETE BATTERY SOURCE 42,42
0D3/03/2015 AP 167728 0582 CONGDON'S 72,91
03/03/2015 AP 167729 DAN'S DAN'S ELECTRIC CORP 20,00
03/03/2015 AP 167730 D, BEAURE DANNY BERUREGARD 35.99
03/03/2015 AP 167731 2039 DTE ENERGY COMPANY - 94,162.00
03/03/2015 AP 167732 2913 EMERGENCY VEHICLE SERVICES 450.00
03/03/2015 AP 167733 6192 EURAMCO SAFETY INC 41.87
03/03/2015 AP 167734 6161 GOVERNMENTAL CONSULTANT 2,850.00
03/03/2015 AP 167735 0107 GRAINGER 57.89
03/03/2015 AP 167736 6414 GRIFFIN PEST SOLUTIONS 90,00
03/03/2015 AP 167737 0503 HOME DEPOT 359,31
03/03/2015 AP 167738 HSHV HUMANE SOCIETY OF HURON VALLEY 100,00
03/03/2015 AP 167739 15167 RURON VALLEY CABLING 666.25
03/03/2015 AP 167740 15496 J.F. MOORE & ASSOCIATES, LLC 30.00
0D3/03/2015 AP 167741 1467 JOHN DEERE LANDSCAPES 151,40
03/03/2015 AP 167742 0158 MARE HAMILTON 1,500,900
03/03/2015 AP 167743 0253 MCLAIN AND WINTERS 9,775.00
03/03/2015 AP 167744 16461 MICHIGAN LINEN SERVICE, INC. 923,62
03/03/2015 AP 167745 0272 MICHIGAN MUNICTPAL LEAGUE 101.40
03/03/2015 AP 167746 MCR, LLC MODERN COURT REPCRTING, LLC 326,25
03/03/2015 AP 167747 2986 NAPA AUTO PARTS* 291,96
03/03/2015 AP 167748 NEXSTAR NEXSTAR NATIONAL TALENT COMPETITICHN 1,458.00
03/03/2015 AP 167749 NORTH EAST NORTR EASTERN UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT 89.99
03/03/2015 AP 167750 2997 OFFICE EXPRESS 534.79
03/03/2015 nP 167751 6893 OFFICE MAX* #434705 30.00
03/03/2015 AP 167752 0566 ORIENTAL TRADING COMPANY, INC, 271.96
03/03/2015 AP 167753 0147 OSCAR W. LARSON CO. 450,00
03/03/2015 AP 167754 P. POWER PETER POWER 1,225.00
03/03/2015 AP 167755 0928 PROFESSIONAL TREE SERVICE 2,450.00
03/03/2015 AP 167756 15386 RICOH USA, INC. 1,305.26
03/03/2015 AP 167757 0634 SAM'S CLUB DIRECT 764.73
03/03/2015 AP 167758 0383 SHERWIN WILLIAMS COMPANY 156.90
03/03/2015 AP 167759 6288 SIGNS BY TOMORROW 149.45
03/03/2015 AP 167760 15751 SOUTHERN COMPUTER WAREHOUSE 8,343.43
03/03/2015 AP 167761 1507 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS 424.70
03/03/2015 AP 167762 0399 SPEARS FTRE & SAFETY SERVICE 714.65
03/03/2015 AP 167763 SPOK, INC SPOK, INC. 137.10
03/03/2015 AP 167764 15362 STANDARD & POOR'S 2,000.00
03/03/2015 AP 167765 6384 STAPLES* — ACCOUNT #1026071 34.58
03/03/2015 AP 167766 1814 STEVEN WALLGREN 1,155.00
03/03/2015 AP 167767 S, CLINTH SUSAN CLINTHORNE 381.50
03/03/2015 AP 167768 TETRA TECH TETRA TECR, INC 1,010.49
03/03/2015 AP 167769 15941 TODD BARBER 7,800,00
03/03/2015 AP 167770 7035 WASHTENAW COMMUNITY COLLEGE# 527.55
03/03/2015 AP 167771 WCTRT WASHTENAW COUNTY TECH RESCUE TEAM 3,840.00
03/03/2015 AP 167772 WCTRT WASHTENAW COUNTY TECH RESCUE TEAM 3,253.71
03/03/2015 AP 167773 7005 WASHTENAW CCOUNTY TREASURER 2,060,00
03/03/2015 AP 167774 7005 WASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURER 128,50
03/03/2015 AP 167775 0444 WASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURER# 452,541.25
03/03/2015 AP 167776 0444 WASHTENAW COUNTY TREASURER# 100.00
03/03/2015 AP 167777 7042 WASHTENAW INTERMEDIATE 117.58
03/03/2015 AP 167778 WASHTENAW WASHTENAW URGENT CARE 50.00
03/03/2015 AP 167779 4263 WOLVERINE FREIGHTLINER 76.90
03/03/2015 AP 167780 7054 YCUA 499.74
03/03/2015 np 167781 0480 YPSTLANTI COMMUNTITY 971,22
03/03/2015 AP 167782 YCCS YPSTLANTI COMMUNITY SCHOOLS -~ WR 1,222.35
03/03/2015 AP 167783 7039 YPSTLANTI COMMUNITY SCHOOLS - YP 257.41
03/03/2015 AP 167784 7034 YPSILANTI DISTRICT LIBRARY 78.88
03/03/2015 AP 167785 0729 ZEP MANUFACTURING COMPANY 105,18




02/23/2015 03:12 pM CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI Page: 2/2

Usex: mharris CHECK NUMBERS 167709 - 167785
DB: Ypsilanti-Twp

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Name Amount

AP TOTALS:

Total of 77 Checks: 703,562.98

Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00
703,562.98

Total of 77 Disbursements:




02/23/2015 03:1¢ PM CHECK REGISTER FOR CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI Page: 1/1

User: mharris CHECK NUMBERS 167680 - 167708

DB: Ypsilanti-Twp

Check Date Bank Check Vendor Vendor Hame Lr“"‘"““ C/‘Ji (\\ Y«B < ‘\(«\ (:::s(”n/l‘(mﬁount
Bank AP AP

02/11/2015 AP 167680 0363 COMCAST CABLE 330.20
02/11/2015 AP 167681 0363 COMCAST CABLE 270.20
02/11/2015 nP 167682 0363 COMCAST CABLE 324.20
02/11/2015 AP 167683 0363 COMCAST CABLE 363,70
02/11/2015 AP 167684 0363 COMCAST CABLE 467,20
02/11/2015 AP 167685 0363 COMCAST CABLE 363.70
02/11/2015 AP 167686 0363 COMCAST CABLE 102.85
02/11/2015 AP 167687 0363 COMCAST CABLE 102,35
02/11/2015 AP 167688 0363 COMCAST CABLE 102,35
02/11/2015 AP 167689 0363 COMCAST CABLE 102.85
02/11/2015 AP 167690 0426 GURRDTAN ALARM 508.08
02/11/2015 AP 167691 0426 GUARDIAN ALARM 453,93
02/11/2015 AP 167692 0426 GUARDIAN ALARM i 300.00
02/11/2015 AP 167693 1475 VERIZON WIRELESS 81.41
02/11/2015 AP 167694 1475 VERIZON WIRFLESS 1,536.78
02/11/2015 ny 167695 15934 WASTE MANAGEMENT 123.11
02/13/2015 AP 167696 0211 YPSILANTI TWP. TAX COLLECTION 11,616.6%9
02/13/2015 AP 167697 6821 AT & T 2,158.58
02/13/2015 AP 167698 0363 COMCAST CABLE 2477.35
02/13/2015 AP 167699 0363 COMCAST CABLE 264,35
02/13/2015 AP 167700 0363 COMCAST CABRLE 93.89
02/13/2015 AP 167701 15421 WEX BANK 1,385.21
02/13/2015 AP 167702 1200 FEDERAL EXPRESS CORPORATION 209.51
02/17/2015 AP 167703 0118 DTE ENERGY 28,125.67
02/18/2015 AP 167704 FIRESTONE FIRESTONE COMPLETE AUTO CARE 285,92
02/18/2015 AP 167705 6288 SIGNS BY TOMORROW 25.00
02/18/2015 AP 167706 2990 SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO. 88.26
02/18/2015 AP 167707 0480 YPSILANTI COMMUNITY 1,392.20
02/20/2015 AP 167708 0211 YPSILANTI TWP. TRX COLLECTICHN 1,153.50
AP TOTALS:

Total of 29 Checks: 52,579.04
Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00

Total of 29 Disbursements: 52,579.04




ATTORNEY REPORT

GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE



OLD BUSINESS




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -2

Amending the Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66 entitled Vegetation

Whereas, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (“Township”) Ordinance 66-31
requires property owners to maintain grass, weeds and other vegetation to a
maximum height of seven inches (7”); and

Whereas, the Township Ordinance 66-32 authorized the Commissioner to
enforce the vegetation Ordinance by authorizing an agent to cut grass or noxious
weeds in excess of seven inches (7”) and charge the property owner with the
costs of the mowing plus a 15% administrative fee; and

Whereas, the Township’s Office of Community Standards’ records show
that the 15% administrative fee does not cover the actual administrative costs
sustained by the Township in processing mowing complaints, mowing
inspections, written reports, coordination with contract mowers and billing
notices; and

Whereas, amending the Ordinance to permit newspaper publication of the
annual mowing notice in April will provide the Township with an additional month
to prepare such notices for newspaper publication; and

Whereas, amending the Ordinance to provide that the administrative costs
assessed against property owners will be determined by resolution of the
Township Board will enable the Township to set an annual administrative fee rate
which is directly based on the actual administrative costs sustained by the
Township in monitoring and enforcing the seven inch (7”) vegetation limit;

Now therefore, be it resolved that Ordinance 2015- 443 is hereby adopted

by reference.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
PROPOSED
ORDINANCE NO. 2015 - 443

An Ordinance to Amend the Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66 entitled Vegetation

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that the Charter Township
of Ypsilanti Code of Ordinances, Chapter 66 entitled Vegetation, is amended as
follows:

Delete: In its entirety, Section 66-31 entitled Grass and weeds and
Delete: In its entirety, Section 66-32 entitled Enforcement.
Add: The following new provisions to Chapter 66 Vegetation:

Sec. 66-31. - Grass and weeds.

It shall be the duty of all owners of any residential, developed, subdivided or
landscaped areas, including vacant properties that adjoin such areas, to cut
or destroy any grass, noxious weeds or other vegetation found growing on
such land before it reaches an average height of seven inches. In other
areas situated within close proximity to an occupied structure and when
deemed necessary to protect the health, safety and welfare of citizens, such
vegetation may be maintained at an average height of less than ten inches.

The commissioner may designate natural areas where such vegetation may
be permitted to grow in excess of ten inches without causing blight, creating
a nuisance or compromising the safe and sanitary maintenance of nearby
dwellings, commercial and industrial buildings.

Annually, a notice shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation
during the month of April indicating that if grass, weeds and other vegetation
are not cut or destroyed by Memorial Day and thereafter maintained
according to these standards during the growing season, they may be cut or
removed by the township and the costs charged against the property as
described in section 66-32.

Sec. 66-32. - Enforcement.

If private property or a lawn extension is not maintained as required by this
article, the commissioner may have the work done to bring the property or
lawn extension into compliance. The notice provided for enforcement of
sections other than section 66-31 shall be sent to the address of the owner
as shown on the assessor's records at least five days prior to commencing
the work. If an immediate hazard to public safety occurs, no prior notice
shall be necessary. The actual costs of the work needed to bring property or
a lawn extension into compliance, together with an administrative fee as
determined by resolution of the Township Board, shall be billed to the
owner. If this amount is not paid within 45 days, it shall be a special
assessment against the property as provided in this Code. The supervisor
shall add such expense to the tax roll on such lands, and such shall become
a lien against such lands and be enforced in the same manner as provided
by the laws of the state for general property taxes.



Severability

Should any provision or part of the within Ordinance be declared by any
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or enforceable, the same shall not
affect the validity or enforceability of the balance of this Ordinance which shall
remain in full force and effect.

Effective Date and Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed.

This ordinance shall take effect after publication in a newspaper of general
circulation as required by law.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
RESOLUTION NO. 2015 -3

Vegetation Enforcement Administrative Fee

Whereas, the Township Board has adopted Ordinance 2015-443 which
provides for administrative fees to enforce the Code of Ordinances Sec.
66-31, pertaining to nuisance vegetation. The fees recover the
Township’s cost of inspections, record keeping and collections above and
beyond the cost of perform mowing services.

Now Therefore, Be it resolved, that the following fee schedule is
adopted:

VEGETATION ENFORCEMENT FEE

$50.00 per completed enforcement event



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS

Building Safety « Planning & Zoning . Ordinance Enforcement . Police Services

2015 Vegetation Enforcement Cost Recovery Model
(Revised Feb. 23, 2015)

Average
*Average Hourly Average
Time (hrs) Compensation Cumulative
Rate ! Cost

Ordinance Officer 2 0.75 $34.70 $26.03
Clerical Complaint Processing * 0.05 $33.28 $1.66
Clerical Invoicing/Payment * 0.20 $40.82 $8.16
Vehicle Use Cost > 0.50 $7.53 $3.77
Budget Admin Fee Expense ° 1.00 $10.18 $10.18
Invoicing Supplies $0.56
Total $50.35

*The average time spent on a typical vegetation enforcement case includes:
e Receiving the complaint (phone, voicemail, email, in person)
e Assigning the complaint for service
e Responding to the location
e Inspecting/photographing the location
e Opening case in BS&A - inputting inspection results and photographs
e Generating work order to contract mowing vendor
e Re-inspection/photographing the location after mowing is complete
e Updating case in BS&A — input notes and photographs
e Receive/review billing statement from contract mowing vendor for accuracy
e Generate invoice in BS&A
e Print and mail invoice to property owner
e Receive/process payment in BS&A

! Compensation rate includes actual employee wages and fringe benefits.

% Compensation rate for the average of Bill Elling and Jill Kulhanek (OCS ordinance officers)

® Compensation rate for the average of Aaron Dietz and Jane Carr (OCS clerical staff)

* Compensation rate for Kristi Troy (Treasurer/OCS clerical staff)

> Average 30 minutes vehicle use @ $7.53/hr per 2015 MDOT Schedule C

® Fund 266 (Ordinance Dept) administrative charges paid to general fund for operational overhead
" Printing, paper, envelopes, postage

7200 S. Huron River Drive e Ypsilanti, Ml 48197 e (734) 485-4393 / ﬂﬂs

ytown.org

A community of opportenity



Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO Office of Community

(aREN v RO Charter Township of Standards

Treasurer 7200 S. Huron River Drive
LARRY J. DOE * * Ypsilanti, MI 48197
Trustees %Sl[antl Phone: (734) 485-3943
JEAN HALL CURRIE “Placing Residents Tirst” rex mﬁi‘v‘&ﬁﬁé
STAN ELDRIDGE acing ReSents Lrs ytown.

MIKE MARTIN
SCOTT MARTIN

Memorandum

To:  Township Board of Trustees

Cc: LisaGarrett, Deputy Clerk

From: Joe Lawson, Planning Director

Date: February 26, 2015

Re: Majestic Lakes PD Stage | Amended Preliminary Site Plan Application

First and foremost, please allow me to begin with a gesture of gratitude to the Board for
the beneficial discussion that took place during the February 17" regular meeting. As
with any development of this complexity, particularly a Planned Development, the input
of the Planning Commission and Board are very important in the production of a
beneficial and viable site plan. | believe the comments and suggestions provided the
night of the meeting were well received and understood by the applicant and certainly
staff.

After reviewing the draft meeting minutes of the February 17" meeting in addition to the
recommended conditions and concerns noted by the Planning Commission, the
following conditions were suggested:

1. The applicant shall agree to install security cameras at all entrances
and exits of the subject property.

2. The applicant shall agree to assist in the creation of a special
assessment district in order to provide funding for the operation and
maintenance of the security camera system.

3. The applicant shall install a fence, landscaping, and signage along the
neighboring Lake Joyce in order to hinder any further trespassing.

4. The applicant shall agree to make access to existing non-motorized
trails open and convenient without hindrance between buildings to
enable convenient non-motorized connections with Textile Road and
encourage healthy, walkable lifestyles.


http://www.ytown.org/

Majestic Lake PDI Amendment
February 26, 2015

5. Each subsequent developer and/or builder shall be required to enter
into a development agreement with the Township to insure compliance
with the approved final plan.

6. All conditions, obligations and requirements noted within the
Development Agreement executed on April 8, 2013 between the
Charter Township of Ypsilanti and Blue Majestic, LLC shall remain in
full force and effect.

7. The applicant shall agree to maintain the required and approved single-
family/multi-family residential ratio (60/40) by the prohibition of renting
the detached single-family units within the development.

8. The applicant shall agree not to accept any form of government subsidy
in lieu of rent for the apartment portion of the development. All rent
shall be sustained at a market rate.

9. Any and all additional issues that may arise during the preparation of
the final engineering and final site plan shall be resolved prior to PD
Stage Il final site plan consideration.

Recommendation:

Due to the overall number and complexity of the conditions noted above and due to the
fact that the zoning relating to this property must be revisited, it is the recommendation
of staff that the Board of Trustees refer the plan back to the Planning Commission for
further review and consideration. Taking this action is permitted per section 1917(5)(b)
of the Township Zoning Ordinance. Said section states: If the township board believes
there is new information which might modify the recommendation of the planning
commission, the board may return the application with the new information to the
planning commission for reconsideration. The planning commission shall provide a
recommendation within 30 days.

Due to the number of concerns, suggestions and comments noted during the February
17" meeting, | feel this is the most appropriate course of action. Doing so will allow the
applicant time to further consider those comments and make any necessary changes to
the PD Stage | Preliminary Site Plan and draft development agreement prior to any
future consideration of the Planning Commission or Board.

Once again, if you should have any questions or comments please feel free to contact
me at your convenience and again, | appreciate your time and consideration.

Page 2 of 2



Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO Office of Community

(aREN v RO Charter Township of Standards

Treasurer 7200 S. Huron River Drive
LARRY J. DOE * * Ypsilanti, MI 48197
Trustees %Sl[antl Phone: (734) 485-3943
JEAN HALL CURRIE “Placing Residents Tirst” rex mﬁi‘v‘&ﬁﬁé
STAN ELDRIDGE acing ReSents Lrs ytown.

MIKE MARTIN
SCOTT MARTIN

Memorandum

To:  Township Board of Trustees

Cc: LisaGarrett, Deputy Clerk

From: Joe Lawson, Planning Director

Date: February 12, 2015

Re: Majestic Lakes PD Stage | Amended Preliminary Site Plan Application

On September 23, 2014 the Township Planning Commission held the necessary public
hearing to consider the proposed amendment to the Lakewood Farms (aka Majestic
Lakes) Planned Development. As part of this proposed amendment, the developer, SR
Jacobson in partnership with Redwood Management of Ohio, proposed to amend the
previously approved plans to reduce the overall number of units from 415 to 392 units.
Also with the reduction in the total number of units, the proposed amendment would
also change the type of units to be constructed (map enclosed). As proposed, the plans
calls for the elimination of the previously approved multi-family duplex and villa units and
in turn substitutes these units with duplex, triplex and quad ranch style apartment
homes. The remaining attached condominiums approved at the intersection of Textile
and S. Huron River Drive, also known as “The Ponds at Lakewood”, have also been
eliminated in favor of smaller, 50 foot wide lots for the construction of detached single-
family residential homes. | have also enclosed a copy of the review provided to the
Planning Commission outlining the history of the project, the proposed amendment and
the process in which to consider this application.

At the conclusion of the public hearing, the Commission tabled the application to the
regular October meeting date as | was unable to attend this meeting due to a scheduled
absence. The application was brought back before the Commission as scheduled
during their October 28™ meeting and during this meeting; the applicant provided the
Commission and staff with revised plans that resolved many of the questions and/or
concerns noted during the public hearing.

After reviewing the revised plans, the Commission passed a motion to recommend
approval of the amended PD Stage | site plan with the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall agree to install security cameras at all entrances
and exits of the subject property.


http://www.ytown.org/

Majestic Lake PDI Amendment
February 12, 2015

2. The applicant shall agree to assist in the creation of a special
assessment district in order to provide funding for the operation and
maintenance of the security camera system.

3. The applicant shall install a fence, landscaping, and signage along the
neighboring Lake Joyce in order to hinder any further trespassing.

4. The applicant shall agree to make access to existing non-motorized
trails open and convenient without hindrance between buildings to
enable convenient non-motorized connections with Textile Road and
encourage healthy, walkable lifestyles.

Due to the fact that the proposed amendment changes the overall ratio of residential
uses for the property, staff has deemed that the proposed amendment as a major
change from the previously approved 2006 PD Stage Il final site plan. That being the
case, the Township zoning ordinance requires that the plan be considered as an
amended PD Stage | application prior to further being considered for final engineering
and an amended PD Stage Il approval.

As the current application before the board is only an amendment to the PD Stage |
plan, please allow me to reiterate the point that per section 1918(2) of the zoning
ordinance “Approval of the PD stage | preliminary site plan shall not constitute final site
plan approval. It shall be deemed as approval of the land use plan submitted and shall
serve as a guide in the preparation of the PD stage Il final site plan. Rezoning
procedures under this article of the ordinance will rely on the plan submitted for both
stage | and stage Il and the supporting documentation and the plan, therefore, is basic
to the rezoning.”

| wanted to make this point as there are a number of noted engineering and
development agreement related items that must be resolved prior to this application
being presented to the Planning Commission and Board for PD Stage Il review.

This has been and will continue to be a very detailed and complicated process so
should you have questions relating to this process or the proposed plan itself, please
feel free to contact me and | will be happy to meet with any Board member at your
convenience to help clarify this application and/or the process.

It should also be known that Redwood Management also has similar developments
located in Commerce Township and Orion Township should any Board member wish to
visit one of their completed sites. As an invitation has already been extended to the
Board by the Developer, | will be happy to arrange a meeting at the Commerce
Township site should any Board members wish to visit the site. Please let me know if
you may be interested.

Enclosed for your review are the documents provided by the applicant, including the
proposed site plan; review comments provided by a number of reviewing agents along
with the applicant’s response letter; the proposed amendment to the development
agreement and a copy of a proposed lease agreement relating to the Redwood portion
of the project.

Page 2 of 3



Majestic Lake PDI Amendment
February 12, 2015

Recommendation:

Taking into consideration the presentation of the recent affordable housing market study
as presented by the Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic
Development stating in part that Washtenaw County has a growing disparity in housing
options between the eastern and western portions of the county, staff feels that the
construction of the “age targeted” Redwood portion of the project and the potential for
small lot detached residential is very much in line with the goals of the report as this
project calls for the construction of 1300-1400 square-foot ranch style apartment homes
will be leasing at a “market rate” of around $1300-$1400/month. In addition to the
market rate housing, this housing, as previously mentioned is also age targeted and
directed toward the empty nesters and active senior community which from our most
recent master plan update, is also a section of the market that will continue to grow into
the foreseeable future and is further lacking within our community.

Based on the recent Washtenaw County affordable housing market study and the goals
proposed by the recently adopted master plan, staff recommends that approval of the
proposed Majestic Lakes PD Stage | amended preliminary site plan with the following
recommended conditions:

e All conditions recommended by the Planning Commission during the
public hearing held on October 28, 2014.

e All conditions and requirements noted within the Development Agreement
executed on April 8, 2013 between the Charter Township of Ypsilanti and Blue
Majestic, LLC shall remain in full force and effect.

e The developer shall agree to maintain the required and approved single-
family/multi-family residential ratio by the prohibition of renting detached single-
family units within the development.

e Each subsequent developer and/or builder shall be required to enter into a
development agreement with the Township to insure compliance with the
approved final plan.

Once again, if you should have any questions or comments please feel free to contact
me at your convenience.

Page 3 of 3



Original Approved Plan 2002-2006 Proposed PD Stage | Amendment - 2015

| TEXTILE ROAD _ TEXTILE ROAI 4
= & & = —
THE PONDS
AT LAKEWOOD
=|
(= =
=
(= | REDWOOD AT
MAJESTIC LAKES

TUTTLE HILL ROAD

\I\IULTI-FAMILY
HOMES
A
—— MAJESTIC
\SINGLE-FAMILY || LAKEWOOD -~ LAKES
HOMES | ESTATES ESTATES

| PHASE 1

Units (70-foot wide lots)
e Total Number of Units = 415
o 116 - Single-family Units
o 299 — Multi-family Units

e Single — Family Units — 116 Detached Single-family Units (60-foot wide
lots)

Single-family Units — 81 Detached Single-family Units (50-foot wide

Total Number of Units = 392
o 234 Single-family Units
o 158 Multi-family Units




Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO
Clerk
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE

Treasurcr

Office of Community

Y Standards
/Charter Township of

7200 S. Huron River Drive

LARI?Y ;J DOE / (Y Sz. nti Ypsilanti, Ml 48197
rustees tzt Phone: (734) 485-3943
JEAN HALL CURRIE / p ; )

STAN ELDRIDGE | “Placing Residents Tirst” e gvs\/‘\}v).;t?)‘\tvr?l)?;

MIKE MARTIN ZL,
DEE SIZEMORE
Memorandum
To:  Planning Commission

From: Joseph Lawson, Planning Director
Date: October 28, 2014
Re:  Majestic Lakes PD Stage I - Amendment

History:

April 23, 2002, the Township Planning Commission grants PD Stage I approval for the
constriction of 415 units of single family and attached multi-family residential on 254.9
acres. One of the conditions of this approval, amongst others was that the applicant
install fencing between the development and Joyce Lake.

In 2005 and 2006, then developer Burton-Katzman completed the necessary engineering
and PD Stage reviews and approvals. Construction began later in 2006.

In 2007, after much of the development’s infrastructure was installed, mass grading
completed, some roads installed and construction began on the attached mulit-family
units known as the “Ponds”.

Later in 2007-2008, Burton-Katzman and the project went bankrupt leaving the project
dormant. 16 of 72 planned multi-family units were constructed and slowly sold. No
additional units were constructed or sold until the recent purchase of the project by S.R.
Jacobson.

In December of 2011, current owner S.R. Jacobson purchased the project from the
Washtenaw County Treasure during a tax foreclosure sale. Due to the amount of time
that the project laid dormant, it was later necessary for Jacobson to request “re-approval”
of the project since technically the former approval had expired. The Township Board
granted the approval in May of 2012. Since that time, Jacobson has made a number of
improvements to the site and began selling lots for the construction of single-family
homes. The first builder to take advantage of the available lots was Allen-Edwin Homes.
Allen-Edwin constructed 25 homes between 2013 and 2014 before deciding to pull out of
the project.



PC Memo — Majestic Lakes PD
October 28, 2014

During this same time period, Jacobson began discussions with Redwood Management to
convert the previously approved Villas and Duplex homes into an attached for lease
product.

Initial plans that were presented to the Township included 6 and 8 plex ranch style
apartment units. Staff expressed their concern at that time that the 6 and 8 plex units
constituted a far deviation from the original approval and recommended that the units be
reduced in size to a quad or 4 plex units. Redwood agreed and has presented this plan to
the Commission for consideration.

As the Commission may recall, a public hearing was held before the Commission during
the regular September 23, 2014 meeting to consider a recommendation to the Township
Board of Trustees as it related to the proposed amendment to the Lakewood Farms PD
(Majestic Lakes). This amendment requests a change to the number and type of units to
be constructed as part of this overall project. The total number of units is proposed to be
reduced from 415 to 392 units. The amendment also proposes to eliminate the villa and
duplex units in favor of 118-50 foot wide detached site condos; 116 — 60 foot detached
site condos and 142 attached for lease units. During this public hearing, the Commission
took comments from a number of residents in relation to concerns over the fencing
between the project and neighboring Joyce Lake and the type of units to be constructed,
particularly the attached for lease units.

In addition to the concerns noted by the public, staff and our reviewing agents also noted
a number of plan revisions that would need to occur prior to staff making a positive
recommendation for the proposed amendment. The comments were provided to the
applicant during the August 2014 review period.

Since the September 23" meeting date, staff along with OHM representatives have had
an opportunity to meet with design engineer John Ackerman along with Redwood
Management and SR Jacobson representatives in order to discuss the provided review
comments and comments noted during the public hearing. During this meeting, the
response letter composed by Mr. Ackerman dated September 10, 2014 was reviewed in
comparison with the revised site plan dated September 12, 2014.

After the thorough review of the revised plan and the September 10® response letter, both
staff and OHM representative Matt Parks are comfortable in moving this project forward
with a recommendation to the Board for a revised PD Stage I amendment.

The Process:

At this point, due to the amendment that is being requested, it has been determined that

the change is considered “major” per our ordinance and thus the application must go
through the public hearing process.

2|Page



PC Memo — Majestic Lakes PD
October 28, 2014

That being said, the public hearing held in September was the first of 4 meetings that the
applicant will need to attend. The Commission and Board of Trustees will consider PD
Stage 1.

PD Stage I approval is the time in the process where the Commission and Board approve
the general concept and layout of the project. The applicant must prove that the project
has or will provide an overall community benefit. The applicant shall also submit a draft
of a development agreement for review and consideration. S.R. Jacobson has
sumbmitted a first draft of their proposed development agreement. This agreement has
been forwarded to the Attorney’s office for review and consideration. When appropriate,
the agreement will be presented to the Board for final approval and execution.

Should the project gain PD Stage I approval from the Commission and Board, the project
will move into Detailed Engineering. During this phase, the applicant will submit for
review their final engineering plans for review and consideration of the Township
Engineer, YCUA, Road Commission, Water Resource Commissioner and the Township
Building Department for Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control permits. The project
may not move to PD Stage II review until such time that all engineering related items
have been resolve and are ready for the issuance of a permit.

Once all final engineering related items are resolved, the applicant shall submit a final PD
Stage II set of plans. These plans must be in general conformance with the approved PD
Stage I plans. Minor alterations are permitted per ordinance based on the engineering
reviews. Should be plan not be deemed in conformance, the PD Stage I approval shall be
reconsidered prior to moving forward with PD Stage II.

Similar to the PD Stage I process, PD Stage II plans will be reviewed by staff and then
presented to the Commission for review and a recommendation to the Board of Trustees
for final consideration. At this time, the final draft of the development agreement must
also be in proper form for final Board approval and execution.

Overall this process, should all approvals be granted, will take this application into the
spring of 2015. It is my understanding that should the project be approved, the applicant
will begin construction on the attached housing in the spring of 2015 with the other
phases to follow as lots are sold.

As this is a very complicated process, I understand if there will be many questions.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at your convenience and I
will do my best to clearly answer those questions in a timely manner.

3|Page



PC Memo — Majestic Lakes PD
October 28, 2014

Suggested Motions:
Motion to Table:

I move to table the request of Blue Majestic, LLC to amend the previously approve
Planned Development known as Lakewood Farms and currently known as Majestic
Lakes in order to allow the Commission to consider comments noted during this hearing.

Motion to Recommend Approval:

I move to recommend approval to the Township Board of Trustees the request of Blue
Majestic, LLC to approve the amended PD Stage | plan dated September 12, 2014 and
prepared by John Ackerman of the Atwell Group. This motion is further made with the
following conditions:

e The applicant shall agree to install security cameras at all entrances/exits of the
subject property.

e The applicant shall agree to assist in the creation of a special assessment district
in order to provide funding for the operation and maintenance of the security
camera system.

e The applicant shall install a fence, landscaping and signage along the
neighboring Lake Joyce in order to hinder any future trespassing.

Motion to Recommend Denial:
I move to recommend denial to the Township Board of Trustees the request of Blue

Majestic, LLC to approve the amended PD Stage | plan dated September 12, 2014 and
prepared by John Ackerman of the Atwell Group due to the following reason(s):

4|Page



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
PLANNING COMMISSION
REGULAR MEETING-OCTOBER 28, 2014
MINUTES

The regular meeting was called to order by Chair John Reiser at 6:30 p.m. in the Ypsilanti
Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township.

Commissioners Present: John Reiser — Chair; Sally Richie — Vice Chair; Brenda Brewington-
Secretary; Stan Eldridge; Gloria Peterson;

Commissioners Absent: Laurence Krieg; Ralph Walls; (both were absent at Roll Call but
arrived later in the meeting)

Others in Attendance: Angie King — Township Attorney, Jessica Howard - OHM
Representative; Joe Lawson — Planning Director

1. Call to order
2. Roll Call
3. Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes from the September 23, 2014 meeting.
Motion: Eldridge to approve the regular minutes
Support. Richie Motion Carries: All
4. Approval of the agenda
Motion: Eldridge to approve the agenda
Support. Richie Motion Carries - All

5. Public hearings and plans for review.

a. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN - LOS AMIGOS RESTAURANT - 2851 E.
MICHIGAN AVENUE - to consider the preliminary site plan application to permit
the expansion of the existing parking lot from 37 parking spaces to 109 parking
spaces at the 2.0 acre facility located at 2851 East Michigan Avenue, parcel K-11-01-
310-001.

Lawson — Stated that the application before the commission this evening was also
before the commission back in August. At that point in time the project was not in
proper form for the planning commission’s consideration. It was sent back to staff
for further review and comment. Since that time the plans have been revised. As
mentioned in the description, the proposal is to expand the existing parking lot. Los

Over =



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 10

Eldridge — responded that he would like to see what Pittsfield has.

Duffy — responded that they really have done a good job of working together in that
respect. She added that as a planner, it is difficult to read through theirs. Ypsilanti
Township’s is much more streamlined.

Motion: by Krieg to table this until the next meeting so they will have a chance to go
over it in more detail.

Support. Eldridge Motion Carries — All

Reiser — added that he would like to take action on this at the next meeting, so he
asked the commissioners to be ready for that. He asked Director Lawson to get them
the draft of Pittsfield’s documents. He thanked Kathleen Duffy and stated she was

welcome to come back if she likes.

- discussion at this point returned to the set agenda at item 6b -

6. Old Business

a.

TABLED ITEM - PROPOSED PD STAGE I AMENDMENT - MAJESTIC
LAKES PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - S.R. JACOBSON - to consider the
proposed amendment to PD Stage I Site Plan as associated with the Majestic Lakes
residential development, formally known as Lakewood Farms. The proposed
amendment would permit an amendment to the total number and type of residential
units to be constructed within the development. This item was tabled during the
September 23, 2014 regular meeting.

Reiser — invited representatives to come to the microphone.

Motion: by Eldridge to remove the item from table

Support. Richie Motion Carries — All

Manny Kianicky — from SR Jacobson Company introduced himself.

Richard Batt — from Redwood Management introduced himself.

Kianicky — responded that this was a continuation of the public hearing. They are
requesting stage one approval for an amendment to their PUD. They are requesting a
favorable recommendation to the Township Board so they can continue with the
project and do their engineering plans and all of the other things that need to be done

before they come back for stage two.

Reiser — asked if Director Lawson wanted to add anything.



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 11

Lawson — responded that the commission has before them a revised set of plans that
were provided by the applicant - in addition to the response letter from the first full
review by himself and the other reviewing agents. In the interest of cooperation, he
did not ask that this developer go through the full blown review a second time. He
offered to accept the review letter. The reason is that each review costs them $9,000.
In order to keep this project moving and in the spirit of cooperation, he accepted the
letter and reviewed it. The comments were addressed. For this point, and seeing that
we have three more steps to go to this, he felt it was appropriate to go ahead and put
this before the commission for PD Stage 1, which is a recommendation to the
Township Board of Trustees. At that point in time the plans will be massaged a little
more in terms of the drain office and road commission, just to make sure that they
have no other comments for this early stage of the approval process. He put the
process in his review, but for the public interest, this is PD Stage 1 before the
Commission. This is a recommendation to the Township Board of Trustees. The
Township Board will consider whatever recommendation is sent forward and either
approve, deny or table this PD Stage 1 application. Should it be approved, it will go
through a final engineering phase, just like any other project, where the road
commission, drain commission, OHM, YCUA, everyone has to sign off saying its in
proper form to move on to what is PD Stage 2 or final site plan approval. At that
point in time it will once again come before the commission for PD Stage 2 review
and approval, for recommendation to the Board, where it will receive final approval if
that is the case. So this is one of many steps to go through. At this point in time, if
the commission is comfortable with the proposed uses, the plan before them meets
our ordinance requirements and is ready to be considered by this commission and
move on to the board.

Reiser — commented that in spite of what Manny said, they are not here for a public
hearing.

Lawson — responded that he believed the last one was tabled, but he was not present
at that meeting.

Reiser — responded that the prudent thing would be to open it to the public and see if
anyone wants to talk, then turn it over to the fellow commissioners.

PUBLIC PORTION OPEN

Tom Faro — stated he and his wife are in the process of constructing a home in
Majestic Lakes, and are making a tremendous investment in that new development.
The home that they are building is with Allen Edwin. As they are aware, Allen
Edwin has pulled out of the development. It is his understanding that Affinity Homes
is going to complete the first phase of the 72 lots that were Allen Edwin. With the
first phase of Majestic Lakes, the new plan actually provides for more single family
homes. He thinks that is good for the existing development and the property values.



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 12

With respect to the Redwood Development, he does have some concerns. Since there
is not a lot of residents living there, he wanted to share his comments. He went onto
the website and researched Redwood Development. Within minutes, he found there
were twenty complaints within a twelve month period, and currently Redwood
Development is rated “C” by the Better Business Bureau. So that is somewhat
discomforting to him. In terms of the quality that they envisioned, the investment that
they are making, he thinks they are expecting something more. He feels if they
choose to proceed with the Redwood Development, it is easier for the Township to
manage one owner, rather than managing multiple owners that are going to rent their
units out. He thinks the concept of having 55 plus living in the development makes
sense, but it will only be realized with deed restrictions. If Redwood is not wanting to
follow through with deed restrictions to ensure that is precisely what they plan on
doing, that would certainly be a concern in his mind. As they indicated earlier, the
proposal that you have in front of you, for him as a person that is building a home in
the first phase, is a much better plan because you will see more single family dwelling
homes. The concern that he has with the additional phases with the Redwood
development would be working with a company that has had twenty complaints in a
twelve month period and is rated “C”. He hopes they will spend some time
researching more about that company and if “C” is what they are looking for, that is
what they are going to get.

Reiser — thanked him and asked if there were any additional members of the public
that wished to be heard.

There were none.
PUBLIC PORTION CLOSED

Reiser — invited Director Lawson and representatives of Majestic Lakes to return to
the microphones for questions from the committee.

Eldridge — Responded that he would go back to the same one he asked in the last
public hearing, regarding the security cameras. He stated they showed a willingness
to put them in and asked if there were any objections to following the minimum
standards that have been put into place throughout the Township and having
Township staff make sure through an inspection that they meet those standards.

Kianicky — responded that they were fine with that and that he thinks they agreed to
that in the response to the letter that was given to them about the various concerns.

Eldridge — asked if the 30 day retention would be a problem.

Kianicky — responded that it would not.



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 13

Eldridge — added in regards to Mr. Faro’s concerns with Redwood, this was the first
he has heard of it and it certainly brings a different tone to it for him now.

Batt — Redwood representative. Asked to address those concerns. First, in response
to the comment relative to twenty complaints. They have four thousand units, which
makes him kind proud that they only have twenty complaints. Relative to the
comment regarding the Better Business Bureau, if you actually look at what the
complaints from the Better Business Bureau are, they are almost exclusively people
who did not receive their security deposits back because they damaged their units.
He added they respond to those complaints, but the bottom line is that anybody can
make a complaint to the Better Business Bureau. They can respond to them, it takes
the Better Business Bureau time to process that response. The majority of their
complaints are relative to non-returned security deposits over damages. They have
roughly over 5,000 units. They are leased everywhere. Their portfolio is 99% leased.
That is a testimonial to how they keep their units, how they maintain their sites, how
they keep their customers happy. Out of 34 properties, they have waiting lists at 26.
It is always easy to take a couple of isolated things and blow them into something
else. With the number of units they have, to only have 20 complaints is pretty darn
good.

Eldridge — addressed Director Lawson. He stated that he understands that they have
to be cautious when they discuss age and who they rent and do not rent to. This is
proposed to be age-targeted. He added that at last month’s session, he asked if there
has been any discussion with deed restrictions in that way.

Lawson — responded that they had discussed it in development team meetings. It is
his understanding that they do not deed restrict or age restrict their properties. They
age target, but there is no restriction on their other properties. His understanding is
that they do not do that and they do not wish to do that.

Eldridge — responded that they may not know, and some of the commissioners may
not know, the many problems they have had throughout this township with promises
that this board and this township have received from other developers about what the
intent was when certain things were approved, only to find out down the road that that
good will went away very quickly. So he does have some concerns. If that is the
intent of what they are doing, can someone explain to him why they are concerned
about any type of a deed restriction to make that commitment, and why they are
opposed to that.

Batt — Responded that they comply with fair housing. That is their corporate policy
and they take that seriously. The issue about age restricting. Normally two-thirds to
three-quarters of their residents are empty nesters. The average age in their
communities portfolio wide is 58. With the average age being 58, it is hard to age
restrict at 55. There are a lot of disadvantages for them doing that. Normally the
other quarter or third of their residents that are not empty nesters are people who have



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 14

rotating schedules, maybe law enforcement, maybe medical care, maybe airline
related, which is probably specifically relevant to this site. They do not offer property
amenities — they don’t have playgrounds or pools, they don’t have recreation centers.
They sell one thing and that is peace and quiet. They are very conscious to do that.
Because of that conviction on their part, to have peace and quiet in their communities,
they have an on-site manager and an on-site maintenance person, who both police
their site. If anyone is a disturbance, they are asked to leave or their lease is not
renewed, depending on the circumstances. They do background and credit checks on
every resident. Their floor plans are designed to accommodate the needs of empty
nesters. They have the ADA compliance with their driveways, garages, approaches.
They have fair housing accessibility compliance within their units, the wider doors
and turning radiuses, things of that nature. Their floor plans are not conducive to
family living. They essentially target a specific market with their floor plans, design,
and amenities. Because their average age of constituent is close to 55, they do not
age restrict.

Eldridge — responded that he appreciated all of that, but he did not hear why they
would not want to, what the disadvantage to them was.

Batt — There are a couple disadvantages. One, the 55 age restricting is very restrictive
and very complicated. For example — if you had a couple that moved into your
community and one spouse was 60 and the other one was 54, that is not considered an
over 55 family. There are a lot of specific rules like that. The other thing they find is
because their people are empty nesters, and they will have people up to 80 years and
older in their communities, in general their residents are people who do not choose to
live in over 55 communities. You look around other areas here, like the Dell Web
communities that are over 55, there are a lot of people who want to live in those, for
sure, but there are also a lot of people who are empty nesters who are 55 or close to
55, that do not want to be in that kind of community. And those are typically their
residents.

Richie — asked Director Lawson if there was a deed restriction on the property, would
the people that were applying for the lease know that.

Lawson — responded not particularly, that it would be up to the management to honor
the deed restriction and not lease to anyone who was over whatever age is set.

Richie — asked if that could be in place without that actually being known as a place
for people 55 or older.

Lawson — responded that absent of a sign out from saying Senior Living Community
or what not, outside of whoever signs an application gets rejected because of their

age, that would be the only other way he would guess.

Krieg — asked to bring up something else related to the layout.



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 15

Reiser — asked generally if you can rent or not rent to someone based on age. He
repeated that they said they complied with fair housing.

Batt — responded that they do. He added that there is a section in the law that allows
you to age restrict in specific 55 and older communities, and that is within the fair
housing requirements.

Reiser — asked if there is some negative connotation with being 55 or older to the
industry.

Batt — responded that it limits your potential tenants. He asked for clarification of the
question.

Reiser — asked if their might be a reputation issue, like with a section eight place, or a
55 or older (sometimes called Granny Stackers).

Batt — responded that there is a connotation to that.
Reiser — clarified that it is marketing and appeal being discussed.
Batt — responded yes.

Reiser — Clarified that they wanted to target that population, but not be designated as
them because it is more marketable and desirable.

Batt — responded generally yes. He stated that it is more restrictive and too close to
the average age of their residents at 58.

Reiser — responded that what the commission is concerned about is that they are
asking the commissioners to take them on faith because they have a track record and
according to their statistics older, more affluent people generally live here. The
commission is saying, if it turns out that not enough older people live there, then you
are renting to families who shouldn’t be there. They are worried about having a mess
on their hands that they can’t do anything about. He added that they are coming into
a community that has had some negative experiences. They took Liberty Square out
down the road. He stated that he gets that this isn’t Liberty Square, but now is the
time for them to do what they can to make sure things don’t go awry down the road.

Eldridge — asked to follow up with Mr. Batt and the representatives. A majority of
their complexes have waiting lists, so obviously something is going well. This
project is now over twelve years old. It came back to the commission, from his
perspective, that the benefits of looking at this again was because of the 55 and over
housing component to it. He added that, as someone also serving on the Township
Board, they have gone through some real big struggles the last couple of years, and he



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 16

is not ready to go through that again. Obviously they want to protect their interests,
but there are seven planning commissioners, and there will be seven people on that
Township board, who are trying to protect the interests of 54,000 people. And they
do not want to go through that again. He added that he did not know Mr. Batt, he has
never met any of the other representatives, and he hopes he can take it on great faith
and their word, but that has been proven to the commission in the past not to be very
successful in certain instances. So he is trying to find some measure to meet their
goals and protect the Township at the same time, and he is having a hard time
understanding the reluctance to a deed restriction that speaks to exactly what they are
proposing to the committee, which is 55 and over housing.

Batt — responded that the 55 and older restriction is a detriment to their leasing. They
have looked at the demographics of Ypsilanti, which is why they are here. Normally
their residents come from within a three mile circle of their development. They know
that the type of people that they would like to lease to live in this community, and
they know that they will lease well here. Relative to the age restriction, they have
done one community where the community requested that they make it an age-
restricted community. It didn’t work for them. They have had trouble leasing. One
of the best ways to relate this is that there are a lot of people 55 to 65 who do not
want to be in a designated retirement community. They just don’t want that style of
life.

Reiser — added that they do not regard themselves as ‘old people’.
Batt — responded that was exactly right.

Reiser — asked if they were to say something like “90% of the tenants shall be 55 or
older”, would that be possible.

Batt — responded that was basically the actual 55 and over age restriction.
Resier — asked if 85% or 80% would be better.

Batt — responded that he felt legally they would have to go one way or the other.
They would either have to be an age-restricted community or they would not be
complying with fair housing. That is his understanding of the law. His understanding
is you have to either be an over 55 designated community, or you don’t comply with
fair housing if you put those restrictions on.

Reiser — stated that he wanted to ask Director Lawson if there was a way they could
bifurcate this project, approve one not the other or approve one and table the other,
but he will yield to Commissioner Richie first.

Richie — stated she was wondering if the average person comes in to get leasing
information, they will not know specifically about the deed restriction. If they are



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 17

renting to that many people that are that age group, they are going to come in and rent
and not have any idea that there is a deed restriction in that you have to be 55 years
are older, unless you have a big sign out that says Senior Living or something.

Batt — responded that he thinks they have to have it in their lease, that it is an age
restricted community. His understanding is that it is required to be in there.

Peterson — stated that one of the recommendations that a fellow commissioner asked
at the previous meeting was in regards to a fence. She asked if that was one of the
recommendations they would approve. She stated she was in that district today and
talked to one of the residents on Tuttle Hill. Their concern was about a fence. She
thinks it would be to their benefit to put that fence up. If you look at the yardage in
the back, she saw some things up. She asked if that was one of the recommendations
they would approve.

Batt — responded that that was one of the comments in Director Lawson’s letter and
they have responded positively to it. They are willing to comply with that.

Krieg — stated that he has a concern about the planned layout and he realizes the
streets are already on the map. As he looks at it, it looks like a typical 1970s
development, where all the streets curl around and there are only two or three ways
you can get in or out. It is a long way to get to anywhere without an automobile. He
thinks they need to get over the idea of setting up developments that force people to
own automobiles, or force people to get a ride with someone else. He is not clear
from the materials in his packet whether all of the land that is in the diagrams belongs
to this particular PUD, or whether there are areas that are interspersed that are not
property. He sees the development with a street that goes directly to Textile Road,
and another that goes out to Tuttle Hill, and another that goes out to Merritt Road.
What is proposes is that there would be paved, non-motorized connections that would
make it possible for people to either walk or ride their bicycles to Textile Road. He is
seeing on the aerial photographs that there are some trails of some kind, which are not
listed. He asked Director Lawson if he could elucidate.

Lawson — responded that the portion to the north that goes to Textile, all the ponds
except Lake Joyce, and the part that goes toward but not quite to Merritt are all
included within this PD. All the open spaces are basically owned by the association
of Majestic Lakes, what used to be Lakewood Farms. The ponds themselves are
actually located within a conservation easement. That was part of the approval
process that took place back in 2004. These ponds were the home of the Blanchard
Cricket Frog, which is a threatened species in this area. Before construction could
begin, the University of Michigan and Detroit Zoo came out, collected all the frogs
they could find, housed them at the Detroit Zoo until a new habitat was built here, and
then they were reintroduced. There is a pathway system that goes basically up the
middle of those ponds and connects to the ponds at Majestic Lakes to the north. In



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 18

his review letter, at the very east end of the cul-de-sac in the Ponds, there is a bike
path that goes out to the existing path on Textile. So there is that connection.

Krieg — asked if those were paved.

Lawson — responded that the portion near the ponds, DEQ will not allow them to be
paved. They have to remain gravel or whatever they are, because they are located
within the conservation easement.

Krieg — responded that they were some kind of bark chips.

Lawson — responded that there was also a bridge that was built as part of that pathway
system as well to get over the little cut between the ponds. And Manny just informed
him it actually is paved, so he apologizes. So there is some sort of non-motorized
connection in that part. The portion in front of Redwood right now, he believes
would be paved at the time of construction. He does not believe it is there at the
moment. Last summer or spring, SR Jacobson actually paved their portion of Tuttle
Hill in front of what is Majestic Lakes, or where Allen Edwin is currently
constructing. The property to the south — if you go out there it appears to be part of
this development, but it is not. That is the other half of a Pulte development called
Creekside East, so there still will be a large field until it is built between this
development and Merritt Road. So there will not be an internal connection there yet.

Krieg — asked if the housing along Poplar Drive was part of this or separate.

Lawson — responded that the south end of Poplar Drive is a different subdivision, but
this does connect to that, so this will connect at the very southeast corner to another
subdivision.

Krieg — asked for clarification on Poplar Drive north of Merritt.
Lawson — Pulled up a visual to assist in clarification.

Krieg — responded that what he would like to propose to his fellow commissioners is
a condition that the nature trails be connected specifically between Nature View
Street and Tallwood, and also WhiteTail Drive, so that people could conveniently
walk. If it is bark or gravel bicycling is not as convenient. He added that he is 68
years old, and he finds that walking is a very practical way of exercising. He wants to
make sure that not only can people do it for fun, but they can actually get somewhere.
Textile Road, as his fellow commissioners probably know, now has a bus route and
there is a bus stop right across Textile from the South Huron River Drive that Nature
View connects with. So given all those facts, and the fact that a lot of older people
use walking as their primary form of exercise, this is something we should have in
more of our developments and especially when we have a chance like this one.



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 19

Lawson — stated to add to that, many of those connections are there. In looking at the
plan it appears there is just one very short portion needed to basically complete what
Commissioner Krieg mentioned in terms of that pathway system. In addition to that,
the Township put a lot of resources, time and effort this past summer into completing
that Textile Road bike path, so basically you can go from this site development all the
way to Kroger through that pathway system. He agrees and this is obviously a goal
of the Township to make those connections and it is definitely something they need to
look at.

Reiser — asked if it is something they need to incorporate into one of the conditions.
Lawson — responded that it is on the plan that is presented.

Krieg — responded that he was concerned because he was looking at an area with no
buildings on it. He thinks there may be some dirt bike trails there.

Lawson — clarified that the trails were a part of the 2004 approval, and they were
installed early on.

Krieg — responded that what he is concerned about is when the buildings are put in
place, that the property lines would not obstruct people who are walking, for example
along Tallwood, and trying to get out to Textile. He is concerned that there would be
property line barriers there that would prevent people from crossing over and
reaching those trails.

Manny — responded that there is a beautiful asphalt path, six feet or better wide, that
connects up to the Cul-de-sac in the Ponds at the north end. That trail goes down
better than a half a mile and almost connects up to the street that is already in in the
southern portion of the project. The only reason it does not connect right now is
because that street stops there. The next phase will take that street and it will develop
the very southeastern portion of the development. It is already planned. It is on their
site plan, and that connection will be made at that time. He added that today you can
very easily walk that small gap over the field there, and you literally can walk from
the Estates portion, where Allen Edwin is building, to Textile Road down that
beautiful path that goes through the conservation area and along the lakes. So that is
already in place. If you want to make it part of your approval that is fine, but it is
already planned and designed for and shown on the plans.

Krieg — responded that his concern is that the buildings and properties would not
prevent people from reaching those.

Manny — responded that it doesn’t on the north end already, because the connection is
there. On the south end it is intended to go through an open space area where there
are no lots.



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 20

Reiser — asked if Krieg was asking for a specific path.

Krieg — responded that his concern was with the connections. That the connections to
the trail system not be blocked.

Reiser — responded that he would be able to amend a motion to incorporate something
that might be redundant just to protect it on the record.

Eldridge — asked legal counsel if there was anything legally that would stop the deed
restrictions from being a condition. Specifically if adding age restrictions to the deed
is permissible. He referenced the Del-Web communities mentioned earlier that
restrict to 55 and over.

King — responded that she did not think there was anything in Township ordinances
that would permit the Township to oppose that.

Eldridge — clarified for the developers that his concern is that at some point in the
future, when Redwood is no longer a part of the development and the next company
that comes in to take it over does not have the same beliefs, goals, & desires as they
do, the Township would find the development no longer a targeted market of 55 and
over. It has come up in the past where there was an age in one location that was
disregarded and it has caused the Township an immense amount of problems in a
variety of areas.

Batt — asked to address the comment. He stated that there were two things than might
give some comfort. First, they have been at this twenty years and they still own the
first one they ever built. They are not “build and run” merchant builders. They
construct them and hold them. They have made a substantial commitment to the
Michigan market. In this market they have either under construction or going through
the approval process roughly twenty projects. They are committed to this area.
Second, they are relatively high rent. Their rent in this location is going to be $1400
a month or more. Both of those speak to the quality and to them being in this for the
long term and maintaining their property. Relative to the age restriction, it is his
understanding that if you file a deed restriction you have to file a 55 and older deed
restriction. If you agree to something else you are not complying with fair housing.
It is either that or nothing, and you have to meet the specific requirements of the 55
and older deed restriction with 80% of your people being over 55 and that includes all
residents in the unit. There are also a number of other restrictions and reporting
requirements. It is something that they are not trying to avoid things they should be
doing. Its just that their particular residents don’t want to be in with a lot of older
people. They are retirees, maybe people at the tail end of their working time, people
who for whatever reason want to get out of their single family home. They want to be
in a full maintenance community. They are not an assisted living environment. They
have tried an age-restricted community, for them it just does not work.



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 21

Eldridge — responded that he appreciated the passion for it and the explanation. He
added that he hoped they also understood his position. The history in this market
long-term seems to validate the very question he is asking. If they are so successful
and so committed to that, why can’t they agree to that deed restriction. He clearly
understands that it has to be all or nothing. He added that there have been a lot of
people who have come before the board and the commission and told them things that
never came to pass. As one commissioner here and also a board member who will be
at the next meeting, he is looking for ways to protect the Township interest just as
they are looking for ways to protect theirs.

Batt — responded that he understands that. The meeting that they have had with
Township staff has made that message clear. They are aware of some of the problems
the Township has had in the past. They are not going to be a part of those problems.

Peterson — asked if the commission were going to vote if it was out of order to do a
five minute caucus with the commissioners.

Reiser — responded that it might violate the open meetings act. He would refer to
counsel.

King — responded that that would be a violation.

Krieg — proposed that perhaps further discussion was in order, or perhaps tabling. He
also asked if those who were in favor of a 55 and older deed restriction would want to
make that a condition of approval.

Reiser — stated that he was in favor of voting for this knowing that they have to
convince the Township Board of Trustees. This is just step one. They know they
have to convince the Board of Trustees that this is going to be worthy. He is willing
to send this up because overall it is better than what is there right now, and overall it
is a move forward for the Township. This has his personal approval because it is
better than what is there, but it is up to the Board of Trustees, who will be asking a lot
of those same questions. Instead of one Stan Eldridge, they will have seven to deal
with.

Peterson — asked for clarification that it would go before the Board of Trustees after
the commission makes their recommendation, and that they would have the last say-
so on this.

Reiser — responded that was correct.
Peterson - stated that she has visited there and it is very nice. She added that anything

for the Township for revenue was good. But there are some issues, and she knows
that there have been some problems. She also knows it can come back on you if



Planning Commission Minutes
October 28, 2014

Page 22

people feel they are being discriminated against, and the commission needs to look at
this and be concerned.

Motion: by Krieg to recommend approval to the Township Board of Trustees the
request of Blue Majestic LLC to approve the appended PD Stage One plan dated
September 12, 2014 and prepared by John Ackerman of the Atwell Group. This
motion is further made with the following conditions:

1. The applicant shall agree to install security cameras at all entrances and exits
of the subject property.

2. The applicant shall agree to assist in the creation of a special assessment
district in order to provide funding for the operation and maintenance of the
security camera system.

3. The applicant shall install a fence, landscaping, and signage along the
neighboring Lake Joyce in order to hinder any further trespassing.

4. The applicant shall agree to make access to existing non-motorized trails open
and convenient without hindrance between buildings to enable convenient
non-motorized connections with Textile Road and encourage healthy,
walkable lifestyles.

Reiser — asked if Krieg would accept a friendly amendment in regards to the first
condition, to change the segment “to install security cameras....” to “to install high
definition security cameras at all entrances and exits of the subject property and retain
the data for at least thirty days in compliance with the Township standards”

Krieg — responded that he would be glad to accept that amendment.

Support. Eldridge Motion Carries — All

Lawson — apologized that he gave them an old version of the agenda. Under public
hearings there should also have been a public hearing for the Reimagine Washtenaw
Overlay District and the code that goes along with it. He requested they back step to
that so the representative from LSL could give her presentation to the commission.
Reiser — asked how long her presentation was likely to be.

Lawson — responded that it was fifteen minutes.

Reiser — stated that they also had the Medical Marihuana Dispensary & Nursery, and
asked how long that was likely to take and if they would be taking action on that. He
added that he was just wanted to get anything that was preliminary out of the way so

that people present for those things could leave.

-1t was agreed to move to item 7a. at this time-



Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department
Bureau of Fire Prevention
222 South Ford Bivd.
Ypsilanti, Michigan 48198

Site Plan Review Report

Date: 5 August 2014
Business Name: Majestic Lakes Planned Unit Development (Blue Majestic, LLC)
Business Address: 32400 Telegraph Road, Suite 100, Bingham Farms, MI 48025
Contractor: Atwell LLC

Two Towne Square, suite 700, Southfield, MI 48076
Applicable Codes:  International Fire Code 2009

Reviewed By: Victor G. Chevrette, Fire Marshal
Plans Dated: 07-11-2014
Job No: 45029

Review Comments and Requirements

1. Re-addressing of Lots required, IFC 2009 Chapter 5, section 503.

2. Roads shall comply with IFC 2009, Chapter 5, section 503.

3. Fire Hydrants shall be tested and maintained in accordance with IFC 2009, Chapter 5,
section 507.

Status of Plans:
() Approved as submitted — pending field inspection and final testing
(x)  Approved conditionally — see remarks
( ) Denied — see remarks

Remarks:
Fire Hydrant Flow testing record shall be submiitted to Fire Marshal.

ki

Victor (. Chevrette, Fire Marshal
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Fire Department

One (1) set of these plans will be retained by the Fire Department, one (1) set forwarded to the
mechanical inspector; thiree (3) sets are available for pick up with the permit,




August 4, 2014

Joe Lawson, Planning Director
Office of Community Standards
Charter Township of Ypsilanti
7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Ml 48197

Re:  Revised PD Stage | Plan Review #1
Majestic Lakes (f.k.a. Ponds at Lakewood and Lakewood South)
Charter Township of Ypsilanti (Plan Date: 07-11-14)

Dear Mr. Lawson:

In response to the memorandum from your office dated July 15, 2014, we have reviewed the
referenced plans with regards to water supply and wastewater system design. The plans are not
acceptable to the Authority. The following comments need to be addressed by the Applicant
and/or the Applicant’s designer.

1. More detail needs to be provided regarding the existing water supply and wastewater
infrastructure identified as “being relocated.” At a minimum, the proposed alignments of
the relocated utilities should be provided.

2. The existing water supply and wastewater infrastructure, in particular previously installed
water services and building sewers, needs to be analyzed in relation to the proposed site
layout. It is anticipated that the proposed revisions to the site layout will result in existing
water services and building sewers that will no longer be needed. Unnecessary water
services shall be disconnected from the water main at the corporation stop with the
corporation stop closed. Unneeded building sewers shall be abandoned, with the lateral
abandoned from inside the sanitary sewer using a cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) spot liner
such as Pipe Patch or Authority approved equal.

3. Itis understood that the utilities for phase 2 of the Lakewood South project, located in the
southeast area of the site and now identified as the Villages at Majestic Lakes and
Majestic Lakes Estates, have not yet been constructed.

All work needed to ensure acceptable water supply and wastewater systems is the responsibility
of the applicant. Should there be any questions please contact this office.

Sincerely,

Z Dty

Scott D. Westover, P.E.
Engineering Manager

cc: Jeff Castro Bob Fry YCUA File
Eric Copeland (Township Fire Department)
Matt Parks, P.E. (Township Engineer)
Matt MacDonnell, P.E. (WCRC)
Manny Kianicky (Applicant)
Jared Kime, P.E. (Applicant’s design engineer)

G:\CDproj\YpsiTwp\2003 - Lakewood South\Revised PD Stage | Rev#1.docx



COMMISSIONERS Washtenaw County ROY D. TOWNSEND, P.E.

DOUGLAS E. FULLER MANAGING DIRECTOR
CHAIR BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS SHERYL SODERHOLM SIDDALL, P.E.
COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER
BARBARA RYAN FULLER 555 NORTH ZEEB ROAD JAMES D. HARMON, P.E.
VICE CHAIR ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN 48103 oy
WILLIAMMEI’\\/IAEFEARRLANE WWW.WCROADS.ORG FAX (734) 761-3737

January 27, 2015
Blue Majestic LLC
32400 Telegraph Rd Suite 100
Bingham Farms, Ml 48025

Attention:  Manny Kianicky, P.E.

Regarding: Majestic Lakes Condominium
Charter Township of Ypsilanti

Dear Mr. Kianicky:

This letter is provided in response to the request to amend the Agreement for Public Road
Development and the variance request for the future phases of the development to be
public roads. All of these items must be presented to the WCRC Board for approval.

The Agreement for Public Road Development dated April 17, 2013 must be revised to
reflect the road name changes and the intent to have Joyce View Drive, White Wing Drive,
Waterside Drive, and Tallwood Drive remain private roads. Buck Crossing, Country View
Drive, Fawn Drive, Shula Vista, and White Tail Court are to remain as public roads to be
completed in accordance with the WCRC Procedures and Regulations for Developing
Public Roads. WCRC staff will recommend this change for approval to the WCRC Board at
its next available meeting.

The variance request for the WCRC Board to consider granting is to allow the proposed
roadways contained in the Majestic Lakes Site Condominium for Phase 3 in the Village at
Majestic Lakes and Majestic Lakes Estates be public roads. The current WCRC
Procedures and Regulations for Developing Public Roads requires proposed public roads
be developed within a platted subdivision. WCRC staff will also recommend the approval of
the variance to the WCRC Board at its next available meeting.

Both items are contingent on the amendments to the PUD/Site Condominium be approved
by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board. After which, the Agreement for Public Road
Development will be revised and you may submit for WCRC Preliminary Plan review for
Phase 3 of the project.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (734) 327-6688.

Sincerely,

Dictthow B Puconald

Matthew F. MacDonell, P.E.
Assistant Director of Engineering



November 12, 2014

Mr. Joc Lawson RE:  Majostic Lakes AKA Lakewood Farms,
Planning Dircctor Y psilanti Township

Charter Township of Ypsilant

7200 5. Fluron River Drive

Ypsilanti, MI 48197

Dear Mr. Lavson:

This olfice has met with representatives [rom the Majestic Lakes project, aud discussed the procedure to

resuie developuent on the site. As a result of our review, we would like to olfer the [‘01|0wing conunents:

[a}

The proposed clianges w the housing and road modilications (overall imperviousiess) are considered
revisions 1o the desion plans that will require approval from our office.

The 433 agreement to establish a drainage district and drain on the Lakewood site s still valid, although
ity need o be revised D Our ollice expects to take jurisdiction of the storm water management
svstem outside of any pubilic road right-of-way, The master deed and exhibit B drawings will need to be
amended to rellece the private roads.

The Water Resources Commissioner’s rules and standards were revised on August 6, 2014, Two
material changes to the rules include redefining the storm events using more current rainfall data, and
also the requirerent ol infiltration on site. 8.R. Jacobson has agreed to investigate the infiltration
potential on siie, although it will be in arcas already designared as forebays or open space,

No pre-existing storm waler inlrastructuee will be required to be removed o relocated as part of the
inltleration investigation (pending a video inspection verifying the integrity of said systemy.

If there is no inkiltration possible due to s high water table or wisuitable suils, addidgonal volume will be
required in the detention basins. No change in the layout af the basins will be required however,

The site layout is acceptable to our office but will need 1o be veviewed for final approval after the soil
testing process is complete.

Storm water management approval will he pranted alter sail testing is conducted, design plans arc

approved, and approprate sceurities are posted with our oflice,

]| you have any tlllL‘Hl’i(ll'iH_ |)|\':a.5'w contact our OI“CL‘.

n

Sincerely ,

= ~

Seott Miller, PUE.
Storm Water Engincm‘

{lll'.lin.lgv (||'striL.l\|n.|i_usliL.' Jakass ¢ tiereniL statiesy



FIRST AMENDMENT TO LAKEWOOD

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

This First Amendment to Lakewood Planned Development Agreement (“Amendment”)
is entered into on the date last signed by Blue Majestic LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company, whose address is 32400 Telegraph Road, Suite 100, Bingham Farms, Michigan 48025,
including its successors and assigns (“Blue Majestic), and the Charter Township of Ypsilanti,
a Michigan municipal corporation, whose address is 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti,
Michigan 48197-7099 (the “Township™).

Recitals

A. Blue Majestic and the Township entered into the Lakewood Planned
Development Agreement, dated April 8, 2013, and recorded in Liber , Page ,
Washtenaw County Records (the “PD Agreement”), with respect to certain real property which
is described therein and on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Property”). Capitalized terms used,
but not defined, in this Amendment shall have the meanings given to such terms in the PD
Agreement.

B. Pursuant to the PD Agreement, four (4) condominium developments have been
established within the Property: (i) The Ponds at Lakewood; (ii) Lakewood Villas; (ii1)
Lakewood Pointe; and (iv) Lakewood Estates (individually, a “Condominium Project,” and

collectively, the “Condominium Projects”).

{00945888.DOC;4} 1



C. Blue Majestic is the sole owner of the units within Lakewood Villas and
Lakewood Pointe and neither Condominium Project has any residents. Two (2) building have
been constructed within The Ponds at Lakewood (the “Existing Buildings”), containing a total
of sixteen (16) attached condominium units.

D. The Lakewood Association Declaration of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and
Restrictions, dated May 18, 2007, was recorded in Liber 4627, Page 74 Washtenaw County
Records (“Declaration”) with respect to the Property. A master association (“Lakewood
Association”) will be established pursuant to the Declaration to provide for the maintenance of
the Open Space within the Property which is shared by each Condominium Project.

E. Blue Majestic has requested that the PD Agreement and related plans be
amended: (i) to permit the establishment of different types of residential projects where
Lakewood Pointe and Lakewood Villas are currently located; and (ii) to permit the establishment
of site condominium units within the portion of The Ponds at Lakewood that does not contain the
Existing Buildings.

F. In connection with its request to amend the PD Agreement, Blue Majestic has
submitted to the Township Planning Commission a new application for PD Stage I Preliminary
Site Plan Approval, together with a copy of a new Preliminary Site Plan (“New PD Stage I
Preliminary Site Plan”). The Planning Commission forwarded to the Township Board its
recommendations regarding the New PD Stage I Preliminary Site Plan.

G. On , the Township Board reviewed and approved the

New PD Stage I Preliminary Site Plan.

H. On , the Township Planning Commission reviewed

Blue Majestic’s new PD Stage II final site plans for the Project (“New PD Stage II Final Site

{00945888.DOC;4} 2



Plans”) and forwarded to the Township Board its recommendations regarding the New PD Stage
II Final Site Plans.

L. On , the Township Board reviewed and approved the

New PD Stage II Final Site Plans.

J. The New PD Stage II Final Site Plans are consistent with the purposes and
objectives of the Condominium Act, Act 59 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1978, as amended,
and are otherwise consistent with the Township’s Zoning Ordinance and Condominium
Regulations pertaining to the use and development of a planned development.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the parties’ promises, duties and covenants
described in this Amendment, the parties agree to amend the PD Agreement as follows:

1. General Terms.

a. Recitals Part of Amendment. Blue Majestic and the Township
acknowledge and represent that the Recitals are true, accurate and binding on the
respective parties and are an integral part of this Amendment.

b. Approval of New PD Stage I1I Final Site Plans. Section 1.3 of the PD

Agreement is amended in its entirety to provide as follows: The PD Stage II final site
plans for the Project, as amended by the New PD Stage II Final Site Plans, copies of
which are on file with the Township, have been approved in accordance with the
authority granted to and vested in the Township pursuant to Act 184, Public Acts of
1943, as amended, the Township Rural Zoning Act, Act 285, Public Acts of 1931, as
amended, and Act 168, Public Acts of 1945, as amended, relating to municipal planning,
in accordance with Ordinance No. 74, [99-200] the Zoning Ordinance of Ypsilanti

Township, enacted in 1994 [1999], as amended, and specifically Article XIX entitled PD

{00945888.DOC;4} 3



Planned Development Regulations, and in compliance with Act 288, Public Acts of 1967,
as amended, the Land Division Act. The parties acknowledge that the New PD Stage 11
Final Site Plans do not modify the PD Stage II final site plan for Lakewood Estates and,
Lakewood Estates is identified in the New PD Stage II Final Site Plans for identification
purposes only.

C. Conditions of PD Stage Il Final Site Plan Approval. Section 1.4 of the

PD Agreement is amended in its entirety to provide as follows: Blue Majestic and the
Township acknowledge that the approved PD Stage II final site plans, as amended by the
New PD Stage II Final Site Plans, incorporate the approved conditions and requirements
pertaining to the New PD Stage II Final Site Plans that were adopted by the Township
Board in its resolutions, based upon the recommendations of the Township Planning
Commission.

d. Definitions. The term “Condominiums” and “Condominium Projects”
shall mean Lakewood Estates, The Ponds at Lakewood, The Ponds at Majestic Lakes (defined
below) and Majestic Lakes Estates South (defined below). The Condominium Projects and
Nautica Pointe (defined below) are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Residential
Projects.” The term “PD Stage II final site plans” as used in the PD Agreement shall be
deemed to mean the approved PD Stage II final site plans, as amended by the New PD Stage II
Final Site Plans.

2. Amendments to Article I1 of the PD Agreement

a. Issuance of Building Permits. Section 2.2 of the PD Agreement, which

is ratified by the parties, is hereby amended by the addition of the following:

{00945888.DOC;4} 4



In addition to Lakewood Estates Condominium (which is addressed by the existing
provisions of Section 2.2 of the PD Agreement), Blue Majestic, or its successors or assigns, shall
be entitled to obtain building permits for units and/or residential dwellings within the other
developed portions of the Project upon the completion of the punch list items that are identified
by the Community & Economic Development Department, in consultation with the Ypsilanti
Community Utilities Authority (“YCUA”), the Washtenaw County Water Resources
Commission (“WCWRC”) and the Washtenaw County Road Commission (“WCRC”), if
applicable, and the posting of performance guaranties for the completion of the final road
wearing course, street lights, street trees and certain common area and open space landscaping
within the portion of the Residential Project for which Blue Majestic, its successor or assign, has
requested building permits, in accordance with Section 2.20 of the PD Agreement. A punch list
shall consist only of those items that are required to comply with the approved PD Stage II final
site plans for the applicable portion of the Project. Blue Majestic, its successor or assign, shall
have the right, but not the obligation to develop all or a portion of the Undeveloped Land in
accordance with the approved PD Stage II final site plans. The Project shall be deemed to be
“vested” and the PD Agreement and this Amendment shall continue in effect. In the event a
Residential Project is completed by a successor in title to Blue Majestic, such successor in title
shall be deemed to have assumed the rights and obligations of Blue Majestic under the PD
Agreement and this Amendment with respect to such Residential Project and Blue Majestic shall
have no liability in connection therewith (except as may otherwise be agreed in writing between
Blue Majestic and its successor in title).

b. Changes in the Types of Permitted Residential Developments. Section

2.3 of the PD Agreement is hereby amended to add the following provisions:

{00945888.DOC;4} 5



1. Blue Majestic shall have the right to terminate Lakewood Pointe
Condominium and Lakewood Villas Condominium and establish (directly or by its
successors or assigns) the following Residential Projects within the portion of the
Property on which Lakewood Pointe and Lakewood Estates were located:

A. A condominium project containing up to 34 single-family
site condominium units to be known as Majestic Lakes Estates South, as identified
in the New PD Stage II final site plans; and

B. An attached for lease community consisting of 145 ranch
units with attached 2 car garages, to be known as Nautica Pointe, as identified in
the New PD Stage II final site plans.

il. Blue Majestic shall have the right to establish within The Ponds of

Lakewood up to 37 site condominium units either as: (i) a separate site condominium
project to be known as The Ponds At Majestic Lakes; or (ii) as part of The Ponds at
Lakewood Condominium Project. If Blue Majestic establishes such site condominium
units as a separate condominium project, Blue Majestic shall establish the easements
necessary for the proper functioning and shared cost of maintaining the common elements
within The Ponds At Lakewood and The Ponds at Majestic Lakes, including utility,
access and entranceway easements.
c. Declaration.

1. Section 2.4 of the PD Agreement is amended to provide that all of the
Residential Projects, including Nautica Pointe, shall be entitled to the benefits of, and be
subject to the obligations under, the Declaration, including the right of residents within

Nautica Pointe to use the Open Space and the obligation of the owner of Nautica Pointe

{00945888.DOC;4} 6



to contribute to the costs of operating the Lakewood Association. The Declaration
currently addresses the maintenance of the Open Space which is subject to the
Conservation Easement and certain other site improvements within the Condominium
Projects that are shared by the Condominium Projects, such as entranceways, parks and
pathways. Blue Majestic shall have the right to amend the Declaration to clarify that each
Residential Project, at its cost, shall be solely responsible for maintaining the site
improvements that are located within such Residential Project and the Lakewood
Association shall be responsible for maintaining the Open Space, including the lakes.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the easements that have been established in the
Declaration for the shared use of roads, entranceways, parks, pathways, recreational
facilities, utilities and storm drainage facilities which are located within the Residential
Projects shall continue in effect.

il. Section 2.5 of the PD Agreement is amended to provide that, at such time
as Blue Majestic is no longer entitled to appoint all of the members of the Board of
Directors of the Lakewood Association, the Board shall consist of one (1) director from
each of the Residential Projects.

d. Master Deeds and Bylaws. Section 2.6 [sic] of the PD Agreement is amended to

add that Blue Majestic shall submit to the Township for its review and approval a Master Deed
for Majestic Lakes South and, if applicable, The Ponds at Majestic Lakes, and that following
approval of such Master Deed(s) by the Township, Blue Majestic shall record such Master
Deed(s) with the Washtenaw County Register of Deeds.

e. Storm Water Management. Section 2.9 of the PD Agreement is amended to

add the following:

{00945888.DOC;4} 7



1. The owner of Nautica Pointe shall assume responsibility to preserve,
retain, maintain and keep operational any detention areas, inlet and outlet areas, and other
storm drainage facilities located within Nautica Pointe, whether arising under the PD
Agreement or any other open space maintenance agreements or other maintenance and/or
easement agreements entered into with the Township or other governmental entities, from
the date of certification by the Township engineer that he or she has inspected the
required improvements and is reasonably satisfied that they are proper and complete.
Upon the completion of the storm water and detention facilities within Nautica Pointe
and the approval of such storm drainage and detention facilities by the WCWRC, the
owner of Nautica Pointe shall be responsible for the maintenance of such storm drainage
and detention facilities and Blue Majestic shall have no further maintenance obligations
in connection therewith.

il. In the event that the owner of Nautica Pointe at any time fails to maintain
or preserve the detention areas, the inlet and outlet areas, or other storm drainage
facilities located within Nautica Pointe in accordance with the PD Agreement, the
Township or the Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s Office may serve
written notice by certified mail upon the owner of Nautica Pointe, setting forth the
deficiencies in the owner of Nautica Pointe’s maintenance and/or preservation of the
detention areas, inlet and outlet areas or other storm drainage facilities in accordance with
the PD Agreement. The written notice shall include a demand that deficiencies of
maintenance and/or preservation be cured within thirty (30) days of the date of said
notice. If the deficiencies set forth in the original notice, or any subsequent notice are not

cured within the thirty (30) day period, the Township, in order to prevent the detention

{00945888.DOC;4} 8



areas, inlet and outlet areas, etc. from becoming a nuisance, may enter upon the detention
areas, inlet and outlet areas, or other storm drainage facilities, and perform the required
maintenance and/or preservation to cure the deficiencies. The Township’s cost to
perform any such maintenance and/or preservation, together with a ten (10%) percent
surcharge for administrative costs, shall be placed on the next Township roll as a special
assessment and collected in the same manner as general property taxes.

f. Applicable Yard Setbacks. All references to “Condominiums” in Section 2.11

shall be deemed to refer to the Residential Projects.

g. Development Review. Section 2.13 of the PD Agreement is amended in its

entirety and replaced with the following:
The PD Stage II final site plans, detailed construction plans for the Residential Projects,
and homes to be built within the Condominium Projects, shall not be subject to any
enactments or amendments to the Township Zoning Ordinance, the Township Site
Condominium Ordinance, or any other Township ordinances, rules and regulations which
affect the development of the Property, the architectural standards governing
construction in the Residential Projects that became effective after August 1, 2006, the
date of the approval of the initial PD Stage II final site plans. Detailed construction plans
for land development have been reviewed and approved taking into consideration the PD
Agreement, as amended pursuant to this Amendment, the New PD Stage II Final Site
Plans, the Township Zoning Ordinance, the Township Site Condominium Ordinance and
any other applicable Township Ordinances, rules and regulations, as they existed as of the

foregoing date.

{00945888.DOC;4} 9



h. Roads. Section 2.14 of the PD Agreement is amended to provide that the internal
roads within Nautica Pointe may be private, subject to the mutual agreement of Blue Majestic
and the WCRC.

1. Public Water and Sewer.  All references to “Condominiums” in Sections 2.16

shall be deemed to refer to Residential Projects.

J- Street Lighting. Section 2.18 of the PD Agreement is amended to add that street

lighting in Nautica Pointe shall be private and maintained by the owner of Nautica Pointe.

3. Blue Majestic’s Marketing Procedures. Section 3.3 of the PD Agreement is

amended to add that Blue Majestic may utilize one pre-leasing trailer for Nautica Pointe until
such time that a certificate of occupancy is issued for any portion of Nautica Pointe and one

construction trailer until such time that a certificate of occupancy is issued for Nautica Pointe.

4. Miscellaneous.

a. Approval by the Parties. This Amendment has been approved by Blue

Majestic and the Township, as evidenced by the Township’s governing body resolutions, dated

,2014.

b. Execution in Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in

multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute
one agreement. The signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed to be a signature
to, and may be appended to, any other counterpart.

c. Headings; Construction. The various headings of this Amendment are

included for convenience only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of this

Amendment or any provision. When the context and construction so require, all words used in

{00945888.DOC;4} 10



the singular shall be deemed to have been used in the plural and the masculine shall include the
feminine and the neuter and vice versa.

d. Partial Validity; Severability. If any term or provision of this

Amendment or its application to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be held invalid
or unenforceable, the remainder of this Amendment, or the application of such term or provision
to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall
not be affected, and each such term and provision of this Amendment shall be valid and be
enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

e. No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Amendment is for the sole and

exclusive benefit of the parties and their respective successors in interest and assigns, and no
third party is intended to, or shall have, any rights hereunder.

f. Joint Product of Parties. This Amendment is the result of arms-length

negotiations between Blue Majestic and the Township and their respective attorneys.
Accordingly, none of the parties shall be deemed to be the author of this Amendment, and this
Amendment shall not be construed against either party.

g. Inspections. In consideration of the above undertakings to approve the
Residential Projects, the Township shall provide timely and reasonable Township inspections as
may be required during construction.

h. Recordation of Amendment. The Township shall record this

Amendment with the Washtenaw County Register of Deeds.

1. Effect of Amendment. Except as modified by this Amendment, the terms

and provisions of the PD Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and are hereby ratified

by the parties. In the event of any conflict between the terms and provisions of the PD

{00945888.DOC;4} 11



Agreement and this Amendment and the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance or any other
Township ordinances, rules, regulations or any amendments thereto, the provisions of the PD
Agreement and this Amendment shall control.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the year

and date set forth above.

Signatures and acknowledgments by the parties and approval by
counsel for the parties appear on following pages

{00945888.DOC;4} 12



Blue Majestic:

Blue Majestic LLC
By:
Its:
STATE OF MICHIGAN)
)SS
COUNTY OF )
On this day of , 2014, the foregoing instrument was acknowledged

before me by of Blue Majestic LLC, a

Michigan limited liability company on behalf of the company.

, Notary Public County, MI
Acting in the County of , State of Michigan
My Commission expires:

Charter Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan
Municipal corporation

By:

Brenda L. Stumbo
Its: Supervisor

Charter Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan
Municipal corporation

By:

Karen Lovejoy Roe
Its: Clerk

{00945888.DOC;4} 13



STATE OF MICHIGAN)

)SS
COUNTY OF )
On this day of , 2014, the foregoing instrument was acknowledged

before me by Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor, and Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk, of Charter
Township of Ypsilanti, a Michigan Municipal corporation on behalf of the corporation.

, Notary Public County, MI
Acting in the County of , State of Michigan
My Commission expires:

[Approved as to form & substance] [Approved as to form only:]

DRAFTED BY:

Mark S. Cohn

Seyburn Kahn

2000 Town Center, Suite 1500
Southfield, Michigan 48075

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:
Wm. Douglas Winters
McLain & Winters

61 N. Huron St.
Ypsilanti, MI 48197

{00945888.DOC;4} 14



EXHIBIT A

PROPERTY

DESCRIPTION OF A 254.51 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IN THE WEST > OF SECTION 26,
T3S, R6E, YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Commencing at the West % corner of Section 26, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw
County, Michigan; thence N89°51°07E 50.00 feet along the East-West " line of said Section 26
for a PLACE BEGINNING: thence N00°40°17”W 492.09 feet along the Easterly Right of Way
line of Tuttle Hill Road (variable width); thence S89°39°35”E 528.04 feet; thence N00°40°17”W
495.14 feet; thence S89°52°12”E 736.71 feet; thence N00°50°53”W 1681.82 feet along the West
line of the East 'z of the Northwest 4 of said Section 26; thence S89°56°52”E 1309.51 feet along
the North line of said Section 26 and the centerline of Textile Rod (66.00 feet wide) to the North
Ya corner of said Section 26 (as monumented); thence S89°55°00”E 1110.09 feet along said
North line and said centerline of Textile Road; thence S01°27°01”W 572.66 feet (recorded as
578.82 feet); thence S88°20°52”E 227.71 feet; thence S00°55°58”E 2064.38 feet along the East
line of the West ' of the Northeast ' of said Section 26; thence S89°30°11”W 1209.33 feet
along the East-West ' line of said Section 26 to the Center of said Section 26 (as monumented);
thence S00°34°23”W 1329.00 feet to the Northeast Corner of the Frank H. Clark Subdivision (as
monumented) as recorded in Liber 10, Page 11, Washtenaw County Records, Washtenaw
County, Michigan; thence S01°15°20”E 0.86 feet along the West line of said Frank H. Clark
Subdivision (as monumented) S89°45°51”W 2606.78 feet along the South line of the North %2 of
the Southwest % of said Section 26; thence N00°39°24”W 959.17 feet along the West line of said
Section 26 and the centerline of said Tuttle Road; thence N89°51°07E 581.40 feet; thence
NO00°39°24W 374.63 feet; thence S89°51°07”W 531.40 feet along said East-West % line to the
Place of Beginning, contain 254.79 acres of land, more or less. Excepting therefrom a 0.28 acre
parcel of land being described as follows: Commencing at the North %4 corner of Section 26,
T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence S§9°55°00”E 1110.09 feet
along the North line of said Section 26 and the centerline of Textile Road (66 feet wide); thence
S01°27°01”W 33.01 feet; thence N89°55°00”W 120.00 feet along the Southerly Right of Way
line of said Textile Road for a PLACE OF BEGINNING; thence S00°55°59”E 175.00 feet;
thence N89°55°00”W 70.00 feet; thence N00°55°59”W 175.00 feet; thence S89°55°00”E 70.00
feet along the said South line of Textile Road to the Place of Beginning, containing 0.28 acres of
land, more or less; The remaining parcel containing 254.51 acres of land, more or less, being part
of Section 26, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan. Being subject to
the rights of the public over the Northerly 33.00 feet thereof as occupied by Textile Road, also
being subject to the rights of the public over the Westerly 33.00 feet thereof as occupied by
Tuttle Hill Road, also being subject to easements and restrictions of record, if any.

{00945888.DOC;4} 15



P

D’ NN

Dawda, Mann, Mulcaby & Sadler, PLC

COUNSELORS AT Law

MICHALL L. MULCALIY ROBERT A WRIGHT, lll*
| LWWARD T, DAWDA? JOISEPH b4, JUDGE OF COUNSLI
CURTIS | MANN RANDAL 1. COLL SIINLY W SWITH, R
SUANNE TIBFRIO TRIMMER  BRIAN |, CONSIDINE*** FAUL A. BRINGER
SUSAN J, SADLER ALFREIT) CASAR TR M. GANS
TYLER [, TENNENT DAYIN & MO LICONES LEON M, SCHURGIN
GLENN 6 ROISS L3N KREIS GLENTER
THERESA € JOSWICK MARC K SALACH * ALSO MFMBFR CF IINOIS BAR
ROBERT P, ANDERSON SCOTC SIORRIL *ALSOMLMBLR OF O IO BAR
JOHN RUCHA, I CHRISTOPHER bt FAANN “h ALSO MEMBER OF WASHINGTOMN DO BAR
WILLEAM L, RgslN FACHARY | FSKALI*+»* February 6, 2015 et APSOMEMBFR CF FI ORIDA BAR
TODD A, SCHAFER* FRANCES BI LZER WILSON®==ss T T e ALSO MEMEER OF ARIZONA BAR
BAMILL . HALBRIN EARL R JOHMSON
LIANIEL M- [SRAEL** ERIM BOWWFM WYFICTH
JEFFREY 12, MOSS KOVLIE E. ANCILER} Epwarn C. DAWDA
WAYNF 5. SFGAl (I][REF.‘T‘ DIAL} 244,642 B6%G
EMALL! EDAWDATEDAWDAMANN COM
. il
Mr, Wm. Douglas Winters Via FedEx

¢/0 Charter Township of Ypsilanti
Office of Community Standards
7200 S. Huron River Drive

Y psilanti, Michigan 48197

Re: Redwood Acquisition LLC / Nautica Pointe
Dear Mr. Winters:

[ write on behalf of Redwood Acquisition LLC ("Redwood"} regarding Redwood's
proposed multifamily development ("Nautica Pointe") within the Charter Township of Ypsilanti
("Township™). As you know, Redwood intends to develop Nautica Pointe as a multifamily
community of distinctive single-story homes with two car garages attached in two to four unit
configurations. Consistent with thc high quality standards for which the Company ts known,
Redwood will maintain Nautica Pointe in compliance with all applicable codes and ordinances
and in a condition that will allow Redwood to maximize both the initial lease up and the long-
term retention of residents within the Township.

To assist in the approval process and as concepts to be included in a future development
agreement guiding this project, Redwood provides the below information regarding Nautica
Pointe:

Age-Targeted: As a comnmunity, Nautica Pointe will be age-targeted but not age-
restricted. For additional background, approximately seventy percent (70%) of residents within
Redwood's portfolio of communitics are mature adults without young children. The average
Redwood resident is in his/her mid-fifties, Throughout its communities, Redwood fully
complies with all fair housing requirements.

No Subsidized Rates: Redwood does not intend to offer any units within Nautica Pointe
for lease at government subsidized rates or pursuant to programs offered by any governmental
body for subsidized leased housing. None of the communities within Redwood's portfolio offer
units for lease at government subsidized rates. As previously stated, Redwood fully complies
with all fair housing requirements.

39533 Woodward Avenue, Suite 200 » Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304-5103 » 248.642.3700 (Fax) 248.642.7791 » www,dawdamann.com



Mr. Wm. Douglas Winters
February 6, 2015
Page 2

Market Rates: Lease rates within Nautica Pointe will be consistent with market rates in
the Township for new multifamily housing. In general, units within Redwood's portfolio of
communities lease for Thirteen Hundred to Fourteen Hundred Dollars ($1,300 - $1,400) per
month; however, Redwood reserves the right to adjust such rates at any and all times in response
to market conditions.

Security Cameras: In support of the Township's initiative for the installation of
neighborhood security cameras, Redwood has agreed to install security cameras at the front
entrance of Nautica Pointe. Redwood will pay the initial cost of the installation of such security
camcras. Additionally, Redwood acknowledges that Nautica Pointe will be subject to a special
assessment district to fund the costs of operation and maintenance of the Township's
neighborhood security camera system located within Nautica Pointe as well as the costs of
archiving such security footage.

Square Footages: The proposed square footages of the unit types shown on the current
Nautica Pointe site plan are also follows:

Orverall

Unat Net Square Sguare
Type Noes Footage Footage
2D 28' x 68' - 2 car garage 1294 1714

7 38'x 52'- 2 car garage 1392 1792

Redwood looks forward to its continued collaboration with the Township in pursuit of the
approval and development of Nautica Pointe, and I await our joint efforts to negotiate and draft a
development agreement for the project.

Should you require additional information, please contact me. Thank you.
Cordially,

DAWDA, MANNMULCAHY & SADLER, PLC

C

Edward C. Dawda
ECD/ebw

cc:  Mr. Richard Batt (via ematil)
Ms. Kellie Mclvor (via email)
Mr. Joe Lawson (via email)



K: \14000914\DWG\PLAN SETS\PUD\14000914PD—01—CV.DWG 6/6,/2013 10:39 AM JARED KIME

PROJECT OWNER/DEVELOPER:

BLUE MAJECTIC, LLC

32400 TELEGRAPH RD. - SUITE 100
BINGHAM FARMS, MICHIGAN 48025
ATTN: MANNY KIANICKY

PROJECT ENGINEER:

ATWELL, LLC

TWO TOWNE SQUARE, SUITE 700
SOUTHFIELD, MI 48076

PHONE: 248.447.2000

FAX: 248.447.2001

ATTN: JOHN ACKERMAN

OVERALL SITE DESCRIPTION

DESCRIPTION OF A 254.51 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND IN THE WEST 2 OF SECTION 26, T3S, R6E, YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP,

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

Commencing at the West 2 corner of Section 26, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence N89°51'07"E 50.00 feet along the East-West V4 line of
Said Section 26 for a PLACE OF BEGINNING; thence N00°40'17"W 492.09 feet along the Easterly Right-of-Way line of Tuttle Hill Road (variable width); thence S89°39'35"E
528.04 feet; thence N00°40'17"W 495.14 feet; thence S89°52'12"E 736.71 feet; thence N00°50'53"W 1681.82 feet along the West line of the East V2 of the Northwest 4 of
said Section 26; thence S89°56'52"E 1309.51 feet along the North line of said Section 26 and the centerline of Textile Road (66.00 feet wide) to the North V4 corner of said
Section 26 (as monumented); thence S89°55'00"E 1110.09 feet along said North line and said centerline of Textile Road; thence S01°27'01"W 572.66 feet (recorded as
578.82 feet); thence S88°20'52"E 227.71 feet; thence S00°55'58"E 2064.38 feet along the East line of the West 2 of the Northeast 4 of said Section 26; thence S89°30'11"W
1309.33 feet along the East-West 4 line of said Section 26 to the Center of said Section 26 (as monumented); thence S00°34'23"W 1329.00 feet to the Northeast Corner of
the Frank H. Clark Subdivision (as monumented) as recorded in Liber 10, page 11, Washtenaw County Records, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence S01°15'20"E 0.86 feet
along the West line of said Frank H. Clark Subdivision (as monumented); thence S89°45'51"W 2606.78 feet along the South line of the North 2 of the Southwest 4 of said
Section 26; thence N00°39'24"W 959.17 feet along the West line of said Section 26 and the centerline of said Tuttle Hill Road; thence N89°51'07"E 581.40 feet; thence
N00°39'24"W 374.63 feet; thence S89°51'07"W 531.40 feet along said East-West V4 line to the Place of Beginning, containing 254.79 acres of land, more or less. Excepting
therefrom a 0.28 acre parcel of land being described as follows: Commencing at the North 1/4 corner of Section 26, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County,
Michigan; thence S89°55'00"E 1110.09 feet along the North line of said Section 26 and the centerline of Textile Road (66 feet wide); thence S01°27'01"W 33.01 feet; thence
N89°55'00"W 120.00 feet along the Southerly Right-of-Way line of said Textile Road for a PLACE OF BEGINNING; thence S00°55'59"E 175.00 feet; thence N89°55'00"W
70.00 feet; thence N00°55'59"W 175.00 feet; thence S89°55'00"E 70.00 feet along the said South line of Textile Road to the Place of Beginning, containing 0.28 acres of land,
more or less. The remaining parcel containing 254.51 acres of land, more or less, being part of Section 26, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan.
Being subject to the rights of the public over the Northerly 33.00 feet thereof as occupied by Textile Road, also being subject to the rights of the public over the Westerly 33.00
feet thereof as occupied by Tuttle Hill Road, also being subject to easements and restrictions of record, if any.

SINGLE FAMILY AND ATTACHED SINGLE FAMILY LEGAL DESCRIPTION

MAJESTIC LAKES

A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPEMENT
SECTION 26, TOWN 3 SOUTH, RANGE 7 EAST
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP, WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

o v

THE PONDS
AT LAKEWOOD
(PHASE 4)

NAUTICA POINTE
(PHASE 2)

EXISTING
LAKE

9
@g" ‘

U

ger —— e (E“'S_ﬁﬁﬁ
} ¥ B R 8 '

4 i EXISTING ]

T S LAKE:
! EXISTING o ey i
V\d : s s e s / ' J

4 S
| <§ﬁ =
%/m%@%
%C%» %
X VILLAGE AT

9 MAJESTIC

N LAKES
2 /4 (PHASE 3)

¥, O

MAJESTIC

LAKEWOOD LAKES

| ESTATES ESTATES

(PHASE 1) (PHASE 3)

OVERALL DEVELOPMENT AREA

SCALE: 1" = 400’

DEVELOPMENT NOTES:

(LAKEWOOD SOUTH)

DESCRIPTION OF A 239.54 ACRE PARCEL OF LAND LOCATED IN THE NORTH 1/2 OF SECTION 26, T3S, R7E, YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP,

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN.

Commencing at the West 4 corner of Section 26, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence N89°51'07"E 50.00 feet along the East-West 4 line of
said Section 26 for a PLACE OF BEGINNING; thence N00°40'17"W 492.09 feet along the Easterly Right-of-Way line of Tuttle Hill Road (variable width); thence S89°39'35"E
528.04 feet; thence N00°40'17"W 495.14 feet; thence S89°52'12"E 736.71 feet; thence N00°50'53"W 1681.82 feet along the West line of the East 2 of the Northwest V4 of
said Section 26; thence S89°56'52"E 1266.17 feet along the North line of said Section 26 and the centerline of Textile Road (66.00 feet wide); thence S00°05'02"W 381.06
feet; thence S45°04'16"E 310.86 feet; thence S89°55'00"E 918.71 feet; thence N01°27'01"E 27.82 feet; thence S88°20'52"E 227.71 feet; thence S00°55'58"E 2064.38 feet
along the East line of the West V2 of the Northeast V4 of said Section 26; thence S89°30'11"W 1309.33 feet along the East-West V4 line of said Section 26 to the center of said
Section 26 (as monumented); thence S00°34'23"W 1329.00 feet to the Northeast Corner of the Frank H. Clark Subdivision (as monumented) as recorded in Liber 10, page
11, Washtenaw County Records, Washtenaw County, Michigan; thence S01°15'20"E 0.86 feet along the West line of said Frank H. Clark Subdivision; thence S89°45'51"W
2606.78 feet along the South line of the North %2 of the Southwest V4 of said Section 26; thence N00°39'24"W 959.17 feet along the West line of said Section 26 and the
centerline of said Tuttle Hill Road (variable width); thence N89°51'07"E 581.40 feet; thence N00°39'24"W 374.63 feet; thence S89°51'07"W 531.40 feet along the East-West
Y4 line of said Section 26 to the Place of Beginning, being part of Section 26, T3S, R7E, Ypsilanti Township, Washtenaw County, Michigan, containing 239.54 acres of land,
more or less, being subject to the rights of the public over the Northerly 33.00 feet thereof as occupied by Textile Road, also being subject to the rights of the public over the
Westerly 33.00 feet thereof as occupied by Tuttle Hill Road, also being subject to easements and restrictions of record, if any.

Roads - The roads servicing the attached single family residences are proposed to be private
as well as the roads in the Ponds of Majestic Lakes. All other roads are proposed as public.

Trash - Curbside pickup will be available for all single family lots. Private trash service will
be provided for the attached single family residential portion of the development.

Catch Basins - All catch basin covers shall include the phrase iDump no waste, drains to
river.o

Know what's below.
Call vefore you dig.

THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
ARE SHOWN IN AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY AND
HAVE NOT BEEN INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY THE
OWNER OR ITS REPRESENTATIVE. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL DETERMINE THE EXACT LOCATION OF ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE COMMENCING WORK, AND
AGREES TO BE FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND
ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT BE OCCASIONED BY THE
CONTRACTOR’S FAILURE TO EXACTLY LOCATE AND
PRESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

NOTICE:

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF
THE CONTRACTOR; NEITHER THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER
SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR

SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK,
OF ANY NEARBY STRUCTURES, OR OF ANY OTHER PERSONS.

COPYRIGHT © 2014 ATWELL, LLC
NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF ATWELL, LLC

DD: US/‘\'Z l
o
wl
|_-
&
5 A
N
\; S \/9 t
('7) FORD LAKE |~94
% oON—RI '@'
;' % NI@LAKE Y g%
TEXTILE RD. T > — =
= <|o
4 z|°
A cly
MERRITT_RD. ° é s
2 MARTZ RD.=|=
! a
9 BEMIS RD. T
|
|
a T S
o WILLIS RD. Ly -
II:\LJ = -
= Q\Q' S =
Z = >
[ <+ . z
o QS/ la) (o]
x| @) o %]
< €k a =
S & @ <
AN < z e
A < o]
= =
= z
z 2

VICINITY MAP

NOT TO SCALE

SHEET INDEX

COVER SHEET
02 AERIAL PLAN
03 EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN
04 LAYOUT PLAN
05 LAYOUT PLAN
06 LAYOUT PLAN
07 OPEN SPACE PLAN

Landscape Plans
MAJESTIC LAKES:

L-1 OVERALL PRELIMINARY MASTER LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-2 PRELIMINARY MASTER LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-3 PRELIMINARY MASTER LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-4 PRELIMINARY MASTER LANDSCAPE PLAN

NAUTICA POINTE:

L-1 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-2 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE PLAN
L-3 PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATION

SITE DATA

ZONED PLANNED DEVELOPMENT (PD)

OVERALL DENSITY 1.60 UNITS/ACRE (25490 AC)
PROPOSED 392 UNIT DEVELOPMENT

NORTH PORTION (14.96 ACRES)
37 - 50’ SINGLE FAMILY SITE CONDOS
16 - ATTACHED MULTI-FAMILY UNITS (EXISTING)

SOUTH PORTION (239.54 ACRES):
116 - 60’ SINGLE FAMILY SITE CONDOS (72 LOTS CURRENTLY EXIST)
81 - §0° UNITS
142 - ATTACHED SINGLE FAMILY UNITS

SETBACKS:

60’ LOTS

FRONT - 2%’

REAR - 3%

SIDE - & SIDE / 16' TOTAL
50’ LOTS

FRONT - 2%’

REAR - 3%

SIDE - & SIDE / 10' TOTAL

NAUTICA POINTE MULTI-FAMILY UNITS

FRONT - 20°

BLDG TO BLDG - 30’

TOTAL PRESERVATION AREA (INC. LAKES) - 167.20 ACRES (647 OF SITE)
TOTAL AREA OF LAKES - 9015 ACRES (357 OF SITE)

NET = TOTAL - LAKES 164.75 ACRES

OPEN SPACE PROVIDED - 83.37 ACRES (50.7% OF NET SITE)

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Land Development & Real Estate

Power & Energy

Infrastructure & Transportation

Environmental & Solid Waste
Water & Natural Resources

Telecommunications

£ 5
8
§%§
2 SES
SR 0%
‘E“’u-%
R
N

EEBEEF

©C =z
823:)
@2'98
-—o
27
§r:

i3

(=)

/A ATWELL

v.‘

TOWNSHIP

TOWN 3 SOUTH, RANGE 7 EAST
YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

SECTION 28

BLUE MAJESTIC, L.L.C.
MAJESTIC LAKES
PUD
COVER SHEET

07-11-2014

09-12—-2014 PER TWP. REVIEW
11-10—2014 PHASING

REVISIONS

r/

/ \
v‘V

ATWELL

™ ™
AS NOTED

DR. WLH JMK

P.M. J. ACKERMAN

BOOK ——

CAD FILE:
14000914PD—-01-CV.DWG

JOB 45029

FILE CODE: ——

SHEET NO.

PD-0




K: \14000914\DWG\PLAN SETS\PUD\14000914PD—02—AP.DWG 6/6/2013 10:39 AM JARED KIME

Know what's below.
Call vefore you dig.

THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE
SHOWN IN AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY AND HAVE NOT BEEN
INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY THE OWNER OR ITS
REPRESENTATIVE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE
EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE
COMMENCING WORK, AND AGREES TO BE FULLY
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT BE
OCCASIONED BY THE CONTRACTOR’S FAILURE TO EXACTLY
LOCATE AND PRESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND
UTILITIES.

NOTICE:

CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF
THE CONTRACTOR; NEITHER THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER
SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR

SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK,
OF ANY NEARBY STRUCTURES, OR OF ANY OTHER PERSONS.

COPYRIGHT © 2014 ATWELL, LLC
NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF ATWELL, LLC

TUTTLE RILL ROAD

TUTTLE HILL ROAD

TEXTILE ROAD

TEXTILE ROAD

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

Land Development & Real Estate

8 ¢
g;g
23
X
mgggz
aE§=a
EEEE
; o
ESEEE
S
E2
528
B2C
REE
8.8
S
ZElEs
g2 53
g:El—(n
RS
o | F
8 £
(@]

/A ATWELL

v.‘

TOWNSHIP

TOWN 3 SOUTH, RANGE 7 EAST
YPSILANTI

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

SECTION 28

BLUE MAJESTIC, L.L.C.
MAJESTIC LAKES
PUD
AERIAL PHOTO

07-11-2014

09-12—-2014 PER TWP. REVIEW
11-10—2014 PHASING

REVISIONS

s

ATWELL

\ N
‘V

SCALE O 100 200

™
1” = 200 FT

DR. WLH JMK

P.M. J. ACKERMAN

BOOK ——

CAD FILE:
14000914PD—-02—AP.DWG

JOB 45029

FILE CODE: ——

SHEET NO.

PD-02



K:\14000914\DWG\PLAN SETS\PUD\14000914PD—-03—EC.DWG 6/6/2013 10:39 AM JARED KIME

[EATILE RUAU

: — FEAHLE ROAD——— — e e N

LAKEVIEW MOBIL HOME PARK
TEX

TLE
YPSILANTI, MI 48197
K-11-26-100-005

2

; (AN ¢ T

3 ] . UNION UPELL CEMETARY

L ) TLE -

)| , YPSILANTI, MI 48197 |
i C 81-11-126-100-004 ]
. 7 PONED: “SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL
i

i

=

Infrastructure & Transportation

Environmental & Solid Waste
Water & Natural Resources

Power & Energy
Telecommunications

TR LR e -
®

[
<]:
-
iy 0% Eé
4 W NZgos5'00"W 8-
1 g% S
=L =)
—l GEORGETOWN CONDOMINIUMS { ] 59
L] n [1] £&°%
- b s % . N . ZEN
\|=JI— { ' ) ZONED: M2 (MULTI-RESIDENTIAL) |  (MULTHR ; E Z S
< - ) £ 4 A TS = g o__J o<
e -l 4 ZONED RS (SINGLE RESIDENTIAL) { g ZONE (SINGEE RESIDENTIAL | i — B E Ao
SHORT, LES _\_ K ] 3 OK ; i I:r| — g % % §
A e, P FLERa ey Ve 5 S =5
81-11-27-108-011 | \ : T ~ (_ — ] . ! l |:| 8 [oXe)
DUNEON, WILLIE, WR. | /A (\ T . /] {\ i [m] (o B
az#smﬁ%aﬁgw- | r . o / rz—w : \ I:l < & o
a1—1;r‘—N27—109—o10 U] [igSvarD, TOBR: KN \l N / / T & \ g 8 v =
a0 % [ = || | SRE R ' e LEGEND % @8 F
022 U
ggw%_rwggz | //// 0 EXlSTlNG —/ § E
Lo __ | E—_ e N LAKE o EXIST. CONTOUR &
| T T e, oo b i —] x 854.6 EXIST. SPOT ELEVATION
| PSLAN, NI 48197 CONSERVATION EASEMENT C C EXIST. STORM SEWER
YPS%'“ CHARTER '¥ 51—11—25-' 00-023 - & 022 | q
7200 5. MR A ER. DRIVE N i ! i] TO THE MDEQ g o) EXIST. MANHOLE
Effhf‘z“v' M 48107 i: MISURE, MICHAEL & CHAVBERS, GiNY it L..4476 P.906 1 o o EXIST. CATCH BASIN/INLET
Fo-iossd - o571 e WL ROAD & 5247 e 4 4 EXIST. SANITARY SEWER
& | ‘i B1—11-26-200-013. & 021 /( D:' 0 C.0. EXIST. CLEANOUT
| ‘ . NORM NSl [ w EXIST. WATER MAIN
e | 1) \‘_5@%&%‘1&"@8 gﬁ?ﬁ" NWE 70200 s p— EXIST. HYDRANT
6 AN - iﬁ RS —036\ —_ 4 &—W EXIST. POST INDICATOR VALVE
Q| =iEpa o] ] | oo W EXIST. SHUTOFF OR CURB BOX
N b= ammsoh | AKE &—W EXIST. GATE VALVE IN BOX
| DANNY G & Peoay [ ||| SZSMIRE HILRoAD ¢ ) &— W EXIST. GATE VALVE IN MANHOLE b
! 6280 TUTTLE WL ROAD R v / JOYCE ; x OHE OHE EXIST. OVERHEAD ELECTRIC
. Bot1-28-100008 = \ ; < E E—  EXIST. UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
| = ||| oo ,%%\ ! : DD—‘ E EXIST. LIGHT POLE
WeR, e . | ou.P. EXIST. UTILITY POLE
“——'————r%ﬂaﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁm = || ervicsesoim "\ RO %%1%5“_; 3 - «— GUY WIRE =
! 8i-11-26-100-020 g gpaToE ) ' |:| TS = EXIST. ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER <
{ R = 1] . ; WA OHF OHF—  EXIST. OVERHEAD TELEPHONE = )
sty | oy ‘ ] : 2 = o T T EXIST. UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE g:’ T
—11-27-1p ‘\ BRITTON, DOUGLAE‘SMB- _ (S Ay . i 3 o 2 G G EXIST. GAS w
wawserpm el (REES (N — -« =XIS TING o ig s ~[Z] 2
eozr-toveoid /P ||| errrrow, novotss g~ LAKE i = Ot EXIST. TELEPHONE RISER 5 =
soHoEnBbRN, TIMOTHY & WARGEE | | gagpo0ROTY S~ o i |:'|:| S EXIST. CURB AND GUTTER w )
i Wi 2 CENTERLINE OF DITCH OR EDGE OF WATER O < >
81y 11-27-100~ ( — —26-200-01 X =z ; —
| E I S e < O =
L — im0 L et e T WETLAND AREA o — 3
BT, Ao || Bi=T1-28-300-015 o EXISTING: il ey Wy e S Wl 0 e et Al il o0 e e e e e e e e e e e — @)
I BUCHTE, HUBERT = i fu] — = (@]
— | Newe e 07@E| LAKE H|:| —  — — .. — .. — EDGE OF WETLAND -} Z
= —26-2001016 ¢ Q < ;
___________________ I KAKE oo ; EXISTING FENCE a — =
N | A
‘\/{)& MISUI MICHAEL JAMBERS, CINDY D E PROPERTY LINE N-) U) Z
: 8371 o I'_:.IILLMI & 6247 { D- LIJ
AN, SO & Lo } -11-265200-015 & — ¢ CENTERLINE 0 Z > —
St 00015 & 16 \i — EXIST. SIGN o (% (:If:)
E]\; \ : | Q SECTION CORNER % = <
=t , = ) U U EXIST. UTILITY UNSPECIFIED 8 =
___________________ AR o T 5 A CONTROL POINT
z ? | 81=11-26-200 ul
2 ,.‘Q i oF FOUND IRON PIPE n
Lo ] os SET IRON PIPE
a o, sosey swuo ||| H————— ==~ OF FOUND CONCRETE MONUMENT
> CLEARWATER, Fl 33705 ©s SET CONCRETE MONUMENT
o 81-11-27-100—-015 & 016 | XF FOUND PK NAIL
N ] N ) ” | R y xS SET PK NAIL
____________________ _1 4 | = = F FOUND LEADED CHISEL HOLE
TR, LAY | B xS SET LEADED CHISEL HOLE
P e ‘g ) . i — OF—RR FOUND REROD %
| g | — APPROX. LOCATION OF SOIL BORING G =
§ 2 | = )
((u’ i EXISTING i } | —ayn —eb— APPROX. LOCATION OF -l & @)
= L AKE b MONITORING WELL i ~ =
] | | APPROX. LOCATION OF —
:;?%‘———E—— O \ { © PENETRATION TEST ) <€ )
Et s"%;g:ﬁégi% i \ \ | Yo % o} EXIST. DECIDUOUS TREE = — A %Z
2 81-11-21-104—13 j \ LAKE I >
3 : N ) \ J /\ / }é‘] |:| H > EXIST. CONIFEROUS TREE 8 O > (_)<_E|
PSS - S ) B\\¥ L I o S|+ O
oY% ~ AN Y Y YV I ie sl e~ - - - - - - D_
: AARANSS Li P A : g e — il : YT YT YT YT L EXIST. TREE OR BRUSH LIMIT <<|| W O
e Ay i»www&&—’bg\tﬁg —L : S \ ZL/M\A::A—:\:”;/\J\?”DT‘ID‘T’FA—XTM TSSEossetuen 7 = = S Sl {\ J ______ ]f‘ - 2 % Z
< ¢ T—|| E - o g'ﬁa5311g-w ::"“ ~ \ R//./ = : I =) pt o
S e | - L NP = R
O |l “BgEhty = @ >
1 2 L]
| | e
[l 0 _
— . =
[ - L
Iy 2 NOTES: =
el = ~
| 8 5 o
Lol 5s8¥ 1. THE EXISITING SITE DRAINAGE WILL BE COLLECTED IN THE PREVIOUSLY DATE
— § I | - zx'cz_’: INSTALLED STORM SEWER AND FLOW TO THE PREVIOUSLY CONSTRUCTED 07—11-2014
|_ ; I| Pﬁ W&ww\,w " # 3"_§§ DETENTION PONDS.
F— {51} 1 BTH ooosomts 1533 09—12—2014 PER TWP. REVIEW
T R ogeagre RETR 11-10-2014 PHASING
Dm,( ; | t j : p=g =1
. Y wwwvvv\mww\«wvlvﬁ ! | ¢ )]
5 PP % o E ﬂr
¢ \%)\)\\kk Lo~ S e !’ ‘
\ [ |1 E
J } i EaN b
i | I
: S [
I
o 1 ]
L 10
D [ . 4
| | 1
|
) & ?\ } | %
! v
) o
% jl | \
L
N N —
|1 REVISIONS
B
: g |
Know what's below. s ‘\
ol
: | h
Call pefore you dig. R
Bl ' ‘
a 2 |1 N
affen| L1 |
1EEz8 | 0 Lo \
THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE EEEEE 1 ‘ " L€ XN\ g
SHOWN IN AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY AND HAVE NOT BEEN Rl o WA : A I ‘A’ELL
INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY THE OWNER OR ITS T~ g é\ } & S <
REPRESENTATIVE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE N”;“L | oA ) % 3
EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE ~_ : ! - asaaad N : SCALE O 100 200
COMMENCING WORK, AND AGREES TO BE FULLY \ﬂ | ST T s [N XSTING GREENFELD SUBDIVSON H ’ &gs-zo-s —"—"
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT BE L |I : W T . .86’ 1,, — 200 FT
OCCASIONED BY THE CONTRACTOR’S FAILURE TO EXACTLY 1 ¢ FUTURE CREEKSIDE VILLAGE EAST : Jﬁfﬁ :5 —
b(_)rﬁ:_/lﬁ\_l:ll'ESAND PRESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND 3 |I ; EE'%% 'ﬁg%ﬁgﬁ'g\gfg{o?% - ((f ~ ;f DR. WLH JMK
: i > - ' ZONED: R3 )
I e e R R - oo P.M. J. ACKERMAN
E';j | L%\ ™ a
NOTICE: ] | % 3 BOOK -
CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF CAD FILE:
THE CONTRACTOR; NEITHER THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER —03—
SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR 14000914PD-03—-EC.DWC
SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK, JOB 45029
OF ANY NEARBY STRUCTURES, OR OF ANY OTHER PERSONS.
FILE CODE: —_—
COPYRIGHT © 2014 ATWELL, LLC

SHEET NO.
NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE NO I FOR ‘ ONS I Rl " I ION PD-03
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF ATWELL, LLC



K: \14000914\DWG\PLAN SETS\PUD\14000914PD—04—L.DWG 6/6/2013 10:39 AM JARED KIME

sl Yy ‘ \I | : PHASE 2
q ~ [ A . I - . - —_
C " %N%%G%EMB\H\*G\G\G\%Wj::_ h N "'—’:_"'/_-_—vzé'—éﬁ%//PIHASEt?)\-“ T §
< %/ \S&BWN . = PRESERVATION AREA | R EASEMENT. _JI ! 2 8§ g
__c? / 531.40 EX’SEG@ESNyAm \ji S ::‘___’j& ) ) ) ‘i[ ) ) ] )\ ) ) D D) T_ ] E g,i g
~ %J ' - iy — rﬁ\ 2 @ g ‘§
o - | 35| 36 | 9/ |38 39 140 \ 41147 |43 |44 |45 |46 |47 | 48 | 49 50 B “OR g Eg - . g
| = 248§ z
I 37% 2 — Ié s 5 £ : E % -
a% N — Gty \ ZAN Ll
H — gg | e NS D) 53
* E L—j %D z 81| 80| 79| /8| 77| /6] 75| 74| 73|72 | 4 \/ N 54\ _— ,Ej’ .
. ﬁ; Q, Pe P2 — U \ EE Eco
{ 30 sl W 30’ <;To ;ﬁ [ 2 2 J\ == 7 \<l = 55 4 59 %%O
! < S EASEMENT A5 L20' STORM 1A ?/\ VARIAQLE ; m g & .38
‘ FI——CI—t— ‘u‘ X (\\\ o 3 o EASEMENT ey \ E 2 %;E
; , PHASE 2 \\ \ ASEMEIél'g o Ho = 3a3
20 STORM [ A H—= J: = ) . \\F 37 > o w ~ -8 §§§
EASEMENT — — I T —- A—SE——TD—TTK N\ \ 36 7 L S 7 PROPOSED i 68 3 57 g Z 53
19|20 | 21|23 |}a3 |24 {25 26 el 57 |28 |29 (30 |31 | 32183 | 34 N\ 7%/ S, OPEN SPACE NSt <
E\ I ] . X L W . % 34 NS 43& 0/ 59 30' STORM § ?5
WHITE TA:AL/ COURT ' : - — N 34 % 60 Y - J | T | EASEMENT
(66’<] PROPOSED ZEDICATIO:I) ~ - — <]— - \/ \ » N g ’ |.m..? — >6O_>L ‘ ’
X ] /4 ‘\'
\ =

A ; f g
2\\\ % N/ J%\ /\k 65 v

WHITE TAIL DRIV

216l 5] 4] 3 2] 1 ke

%66’ PROPOSED DEDICATION)
~N
Cd

D}
o)

L30’ STORM v
EASEMENT

|

B

i

vy -

X

]

4

I N
)=

v~
N
v ?%
/
/ ~
/
o
%
~”
I/
3
NO
~
>/
~
/
~
\\9/
V\/:
™
’fi
S00P3
1329.00°

VARIABLE
SANITARY / 90’ OVERHEAD
! v '\\EASEMENT . / 9 25 AN ELECTRIC
, O\ ) 30° STORM A Y4 0 [ EASEMENT

/ EASEMENT 5 \\

D
71656
we M, ¥C.68,00N

. - W
l W W w =
FAWN DRIVE ] \ ,
) (66’ WIDE PUBLIC) S égs ES'\ATSm/I
. > > > > — D > > > \

~
X
N
/
/
b
N\,
7
Vi

O/\/ o

N\ N\ / 6\(3"3%/%@ 23 S

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

SHULA VISTA
(66’ WIDE PUBLIC)

~
~
TOWN 3 SOUTH, RANGE 7 EAST

J
1
T > P
| \ VARIABLE
WIDTH
SANITARY
A\

o

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

0
= % N
\EASEMENT v / \\\ v & z
S| e, 'S ] MK L g / N\ / / X/ & 14 % QAN S
2| ox - 7 5
| g ¥ | l — NS ( I 929 2
ﬁ iR =] T / | 2, 5
Q<< _ N 30’ STORM W ~
< _— n / @ - 3 \ v \
| A o L = o L . / / EASEMENT %, — \\
O »n v e s /
N S /) |8 131 Ny 2
o | + \ < \ \
C‘E A )L > ) ,7 4 7‘) \
m
\ \ | v W X \ \ = )
o] N w—i w w w W w w e N\ s , N W 1 / o
Ry VIEW DR - N\ 30" STORM _|
s COUNJ&Y VIEW DRIVE COUNTI \\C S L =z
55’ WDE PUB e "/ EASEMENT / i
~ ) (66| RDE PUBLIC) = ( \ e \ SN a <
g N > —f > > . > o5 > > > p——e— = \? 10 T 30" STORM s <C I
—_— ' : — — — 2 ~_ /4 19 I & Easement — o
AN I X 1 X V = ) gl Q — ~ )
Wl =
n | : — A — | Sl o
™~ i EASEMENT. — UpgU = VARIABLE ) I\ o
~ _ ] 4 ! -~ ~—=" PROPOSED OPEN SPACE ZIf= o e T oo ||| 18 .=
T n — 1 i T 5 = EASEMENT SANITARY 17 1 - — — o w < _]
“\%ﬂ I — — . A N L -2 & % o EASEMENT| | | =——=2£01°15"20"E =1B=
- __— — 3
c\ ? ‘@\.__—c C > Y ——a— > - C - g C — ) * __S89°45'51"W 7 50 @
3 —_
L | | | 30" STORMA 2606.78 N
N . . G o EASEMENT
'_
1ol - z
>
@]
LEGEND P 071122014
PROPERTY LINE 09—-12—-2014 PER TWP. REVIEW
11-10—2014 PHASING
PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER
———————— PROPOSED SETBACK LINE
PROPOSED R.O.W. LINE
C EXISTING STORM SEWER
C PROPOSED STORM SEWER
oo EXISTING MANHOLE / CATCH BASIN
(em PROPOSED MANHOLE / CATCH BASIN / END SECTION
EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
EXISTING TELEPHONE SERVICE
MIN. MIN. 8w EXISTING WATER MAIN
60’ 50° W PROPOSED WATER MAIN
PROPOSED WATER SERVICE
o— EXISTING HYDRANT
30' BLDG. TO BLDG. » PROPOSED HYDRANT
SETBACK MIN. Y A EXISTING GATE VALVE & WELL
W W
E‘ %[O % |o ® PROPOSED GATE VALVE & WELL REVISIONS
o) EXISTNG WATER MAIN MANHOLE
12 PROPOSED REDUCER \
4 PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MAIN
140 140 PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LEAD
L ™ - ] TYP. MIN 8400 TYP. MIN 8400 o PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
SQ. FT. LOT SQ. FT. LOT
’ . ’ 5 EXISTING UNDERGROUND CABLE SERVICE
516'S|[S)FDI-§\MECG 51O,S|[%FDE\ME¢G EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER
( ) ( ) PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER
« EXISTING GUY WIRE
20° I V\,
MIN. - - oU.P. EXISTING UTILITY POLE A ELL
3% 3%
R.O.W. % : % : O ety EXISTING CATV BOX SCALE O 50 100
m EXISTING TELEPHONE BOX —
e EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX 1”7 = 100 FT
9 9
TYPICAL ATTACHED SINGLE FAMILY TYPICAL 60 LOT DETAIL TYPICAL SO LOT DETAIL EXISTING SIGN DR. WLH MK
NO SCALE NO SCALE NO SCALE
PROPOSED PAVEMENT P.M. J. ACKERMAN
BOOK ——
PHASE LINE
CAD FILE:
UTILITES TO BE RELOCATED 14000914PD—04—L.DWG
JoB 45029
FILE CODE: —_—

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION|™ "o-o0s



K: \14000914\DWG\PLAN SETS\PUD\14000914PD—04—L.DWG 6/6/2013 10:39 AM JARED KIME

Pop
L §
\ \ o o o 7 M)
\ ' e S PROPOSED " — ¢ 2 ?
'. LAKE L | _ PRESERVATION-AREA - - — PP RTT g e g 3
T ] B Bicst
JOYCE “ = == L
/ = T ///// §'z EZE®
.I / \\) ) g §§ .E g
~ E )
e e~ 11 H
/ N _ N \ X 20° STORM
- / S \\ EASEMENT g é
‘ "/ — GYCE VIEW DRIVE N \, _— 4 g
. / 7 ; s % PROPOSED DEDICATION Qe - \ //7/ - “% '8
e S\ ; =i
\ i j ﬂ 9 / QN W . ) . / K . =§ g é%o
. Sl ° R ] O LL] m o . O
. 736.71 // S 27 21 = 353
= L — —_ L
——|—|C 10 : | c T1Ll VARIABLE Y < Tx D/E / K ' 8§§§§
y—“ WIDTH V/_ _» B : Sz F0
: \ 7 8 | \ c 7 8250
= o - u fu = )l, A " < § @ E
o T i
>— 4> >——¢ !
(—w JOYCE VIEW DRIVE E ><| S —H N G ' ’
©4’ PROPOSED DEDICATION ‘
T W W
% A | AKE /.
glgo // E H
| B | T e | N
i ITI O 29 EASEMENT /
/m/ e . -
O L pzd
EEI::CQF\'QI[Z(I:?HEAD /// PROPOSED - '(7, <<_(')
- OPEN SPACH » - =~
| EASEMENT A LH_| ! ' (OPEN FIELD . s S— ’ N o (f)
= (n ot A SPORTING AREAJ 0 66’ N~ EXSESJSI\IT"I\'A : (:l/:) =
35 SANITARY N > 3 u 0 o é 5"
EASEMENT S u O 28 23| 5
a8 / 20" STORM ‘m 4 =3 : 20° STORM | . 3 12| 3
we E/AENT‘I S89°39'35% A E@ 1 EASEMENT O = | PRESERVATION AREA -~ R = | = 8
—le) o = . o 1 - - - - - -
Pz 1 FE E T [ ey ~ 3 e 3| | =
o8 — T Tt 188 16 B . S | ’. ol 2| =
% 3 | e A
- L =N ' / ) P P ' p > —
§ ] [ ] E <(8 1 /' » v , —— -~ R L/ g ;
I Al |32 F d27] | ]of g —b EXISTING a T 5| P 5
5 = ] v L 8;]8[ % ’_/x—//_—__-_’_\,_-_\/_\_ _/\‘\.k/’_\_- /__/—'--\ AL 8 =
il N L AKE - W
— N 1 vh ,/\ , T~ - ‘/\_/_/\
= m B 20’ STORM A ; ) :
i\z =7 VARIABLE EASEMENT 17 I , -
Jd = .
Bl o2 s | e FASE
o N & B B =
AF g | " SN Sl
< D:E 1% H ﬂ ] I' X [\/ R s = \ T _! L -
| g = I | CXISTING & —— —h nEa
NS O S 5 = =
o PAKE - T 2l0S -
wp || - ‘ - <
T % J A - TN '. ﬂz =q1% O
N —-———JL=L_______________ ‘ ' N B N . ; - — W :E fﬁ
I PEAS TG BAS o EASEMENF——f— ] G | L T PHASE 3 T 33
1 0= v TR = 90’ OVERHEAD " PRESERVATION AREA _ 20" STORM =
P S89°51°07"W _EASEMENT |
531.40° ’ it \% o | | T ) E—
o oo | S N e A A\ S B B e e B e e e = S o :
Z
Ll
3
O
DATE
LEGEND 07-11-2014
PROPERTY LINE 09-12-2014 PER TWP. REVIEW

11-10—2014 PHASING

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

———————— PROPOSED SETBACK LINE
PROPOSED R.O.W. LINE

C EXISTING STORM SEWER
C PROPOSED STORM SEWER
o O EXISTING MANHOLE / CATCH BASIN
[ N | PROPOSED MANHOLE / CATCH BASIN / END SECTION
EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
EXISTING TELEPHONE SERVICE
EXISTING WATER MAIN
PROPOSED WATER MAIN
PROPOSED WATER SERVICE
EXISTING HYDRANT
PROPOSED HYDRANT

PROPOSED GATE VALVE & WELL REVISIONS

EXISTING WATER MAIN MANHOLE
PROPOSED REDUCER
PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LEAD ’.‘

8'ur

o—

»

EXISTING GATE VALVE & WELL
®

O

Ia

(]

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND CABLE SERVICE
EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER
PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

(S EXISTING GUY WIRE ELL
oU.P. EXISTING UTILITY POLE 1 \ I V V
100

O CATV EXISTING CATV BOX SCALE 0 50
m EXISTING TELEPHONE BOX —
e EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX 1”7 = 100 FT
EXISTING SIGN DR. WLH JMK
PROPOSED PAVEMENT P.M. J. ACKERMAN
BOOK -
PHASE LINE
CAD FILE:
UTILITES TO BE RELOCATED 14000914PD—04—L.DWG
JOB 45029
FILE CODE: —_—

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION|™ "o-os




)/x 3 \g g / <VZ ~ —E ) Kﬂi/B\JRH A D\ C c C JJ.* C C
e <4 < < < 4= ——.d — < ; =g —C——=C b ¢ < G<<1—3 = X L ! od q —a CD%

57 36| 35
N
4

EXISTING 16 UNIT
MULTI-FAMILY BLDG.

G G G G G G G G : G G Lo S & c—< g i —
| | i s
W W W = w w W W W W W W i} ey el W W—] Wagoee AW W W W = :
S89°56 52 E = £ G G lag 52055 00IE & o - & g
1309.57 & t v 100 & T 7000 ' = 3 gs g
BR 2 >- \‘PROPOSED 10" WIDE W & 2 2
J \fx'F‘{OW @ PEDESTRIAN PATH/—I \: ‘1\9£X'ROW=§ A g E A
| | N// PROPOSED OPEN SPACEA)'/ 8 ' %E—N 79 [Re // T \ % S > 8" g Eg @ ®E
~~ 5y 1’C // o= Clo § @ E g &
o LS 1 / 88398 g
: =3 — \ 7] : : E E T E E
oo 2o A V.V, W,/ 16 21 .00°0L FEoD S
o> e A\ i) /;17’\.)( | ﬂ( | | «00.SG 68N
= 02 E/M & % e <
= g
f I Az i s k
532 EASEVENT g2 3
< N
V2 13 14 c o
20" STpRM | [ X 5055
_ EASEMENT P Hoo ‘E E m@g
|| = AL : o 3 ¥s%
. < N
I : Poag
— . 3 -LED
853
] q Z =W
S O
2g°F

341 33

(]
‘
PRESERVATION AREA U> s
e

/A ATWELL

v.‘

__ | N o
BN | — i

281891

K: \14000914\DWG\PLAN SETS\PUD\14000914PD—04—L.DWG 6/6/2013 10:39 AM JARED KIME

VAR )
.- I N ok s -
= =t L SE T 0
! ZONgﬁ;/RM—z (MULT-RESIDENTIAL) = / / R [ L <\ U ZONED R\Y"mU&T"RES'DENT'/A'-}\~, | HHE
ZONED=M(S}NGLE RESIDENTIAL) | kv/ ‘\ e . \ ZONED: R-3 @GEREﬂDENT@/ﬂ | 18k
g : J ; ' A ', ) 315 =
E | S s Sa s ¥ AHE
' (——o e 5 \F\\ N jkﬁg | : 18] |2
> . N  Luwmmhyvwrs . ult
: Qy N ’ﬁ?Cj) ///Z;v//, N F\\\=_ _//’ | D ’ L} Q = 3
: CXISTING . T Y oae 10 L
L AKE \_,/\E , \ / / 21}/) e é V< §§ :
/ . EX@;{Q@E\#& c 525 ¢
| A0 ~LAKE g
/Q)\ - | OJ | &Q g : ;\\ L g = -
. ./ - | ;

11-10—2014 PHASING

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER
———————— PROPOSED SETBACK LINE
PROPOSED R.O.W. LINE

C EXISTING STORM SEWER
C PROPOSED STORM SEWER
o O EXISTING MANHOLE / CATCH BASIN
[ N | PROPOSED MANHOLE / CATCH BASIN / END SECTION
EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC
EXISTING TELEPHONE SERVICE
EXISTING WATER MAIN
PROPOSED WATER MAIN

PROPOSED WATER SERVICE

EXISTING HYDRANT
PROPOSED HYDRANT

PROPOSED GATE VALVE & WELL REVISIONS

EXISTING WATER MAIN MANHOLE
PROPOSED REDUCER

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MAIN

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LEAD ’.‘

8'ur

o—
»

EXISTING GATE VALVE & WELL
®

O

Ia

(]

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND CABLE SERVICE
EXISTING CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

(S EXISTING GUY WIRE ELL
oU.P. EXISTING UTILITY POLE l \ I V V
100

O CATV EXISTING CATV BOX SCALE 0 50
m EXISTING TELEPHONE BOX —
e EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX 1”7 = 100 FT
EXISTING SIGN DR. WLH JMK
PROPOSED PAVEMENT P.M. J. ACKERMAN
BOOK -
PHASE LINE
CAD FILE:
UTILITES TO BE RELOCATED 14000914PD—04—L.DWG
JOB 45029
FILE CODE: —_—

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION|™ "o-0s



K:\14000914\DWG\PLAN SETS\PUD\14000914PD—05—-0S.DWG 6/6/2013 10:39 AM JARED KIME

TEXTILE ROAD R S U TEXTILE ROAD H

NON—MDEQ PRESERVATION AREA

B
0
o
7
[3
3 4
666
€
3 4
€
3 4

N\

2 —SEsp - P11 SR A é
a e
— [ : s i
8 gg 9 18 19 B 3 o E 3 =
D 7 B o 17 20 g ° :>< 2 23
6 || [ " | 1 - e ; g E3
5 | 12 15 22 ] -@- & Eg ® g
N 13 | 14 24 |25 |26 P S5 & 82
| 23 E €
5 L 0 ] £ g -]
@//ﬁ/ e a— — E g § g E §
- = | Q £~ ESS
| B 7| 36| 35
g 3 34| 33| 32| 31| 30| 29 [ g LEGEND <
T 27 PROPERTY LINE 5 2
PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER 4 Q.. (] 8
_ 1 PROPOSED SETBACK LINE I EE ~
i PROPOSED R.O.W. LINE - 5 Eﬁ
T [ 1 ] 25338,
N ‘E Hy_8
|_|_| v PROPOSED PAVEMENT > E %EE
- f2i
— O Q § PHASE LINE E 8%%
— — e ur3
D) S O OPEN SPACE AREA 8 2 éEN
— 3 S o §z°%
@ SYe) W LANDSCAPE BUFFER AREA < § é’ Ig
2 B
) Q OO s 0 ‘ § 8
O MDEQ — PRESERVATION AREA
EXISTING =
LAKE ‘

v.‘

SOUIUIONNNRRIRRRSS

LAKE
JOYCE

|
% 5

s

o>
10 1

EXISTING
LAKE

7

EXISTING
LAKE

JOYCE VIEW DRIVE
(66'_PROPOSED DEDICATION)

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

TOWN 3 SOUTH, RANGE 7 EAST

WASHTENAW COUNTY, MICHIGAN

[ %@/@0 & 6 é
N N\\\\\"eeay \\\\\\\\\f\\ /

|
»
/// 7
Al
-
71

[(PITTIIIIID
RRRRRRZZR
°
]
w
N
u
imBm]
N
~
WATERSIDE DRIVE

. EXISTING \\\ N N S
| Tt | | b LAKE ) |0
] 176 E; S
9 26| : Q EXISTING o|S <
9 %) El T o az
LAKE 0o n<
E - T EXISTING C:j—bo : N ez 73
o ,18p [SAKE - Y o &
o] o \ \ 5" g
= IF S OO OO rRRnh—_ \ — ﬁ@‘ 3% °
= R N S 3=
- ‘
e | 25 35| 3637 38 |39 |40 | 4142 [43 |44 |45 |46 ///j
— 1 :
i (u'm;lum“m) Ll
f l §§ ] 35: 24 s 19 5
]
‘! 3 1| 80| 79| 78| 77| 76 75| 74 DATE
Lo L] Fs 07-11-2014
_ =7 09-12-2014 PER TWP. REVIEW
|_ alll 38 11—10—2014 PHASING
|_ % *07"E
_D 0 37
36
— 18 (19 20 | 21]22 |23 |24 |25 | 26 27 |28 |29 |30 |31 [32[s3 | 34 35 SITE DATA
17 34
16 T 33 66 |8 | OPEN SPACE AREA = 83.37 ACRES
: — 32 e
(/ # 65 ||
3 =g
N Q ol ol sl 716l 5| 4] 3] 2] 1 42 30 64 || 6 RECREATIONAL AREA = 4734 ACRES
3 " L 8 /L 29 4] 2
N v 2
3|1 L7/ Y Y, 6 ¥ LANDSCAPE BUFFER = 0.60 ACRES
4 0
\% 26
{ ) 2 B/ o PRESERVATION AREA = 3238 ACRES REVISIONS
2 [ c— ity >
Know what's below. % ) ; ! > ‘\
3 , 5
Call before you dig. i i 6 g 25
\ KR 8 Gﬁ* 13 2
THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE N )
SHOWN IN AN APPROXIMATE WAY ONLY AND HAVE NOT BEEN X ) L 9 19 20 A' I "A’ELL
INDEPENDENTLY VERIFIED BY THE OWNER OR ITS S COURTRY WEW DRIV X 15
REPRESENTATIVE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE THE S /- 10 k] 19
EXACT LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE R w 16 SCALE 0 100 200
COMMENCING WORK, AND AGREES TO BE FULLY \ 8 ——
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGES WHICH MIGHT BE ¥ »o_
OCCASIONED BY THE CONTRACTOR’S FAILURE TO EXACTLY E; / 17 01°15'20"E 1 = 200 FT
LOCATE AND PRESERVE ANY AND ALL UNDERGROUND ’ e 86 DR. WLH JMK
UTILITIES. EXISTING NON-REGULATED
NOTICE WETLANDS (TO BE PRESERVED) P-M. J. ACKERMAN
. BOOK ——
CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF CAD FILE:
THE CONTRACTOR; NEITHER THE OWNER NOR THE ENGINEER _05_
SHALL BE EXPECTED TO ASSUME ANY RESPONSIBILITY FOR 14000814PD-05-0S.DWG
SAFETY OF THE WORK, OF PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE WORK, JOB 45029
OF ANY NEARBY STRUCTURES, OR OF ANY OTHER PERSONS. FILE CODE. —
COPYRIGHT © 2014 ATWELL, LLC SHEET NO.
NO REPRODUCTION SHALL BE MADE WITHOUT THE NO I FOR < ONS I Rl H I ION PD-07
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF ATWELL, LLC






















P:\DJB\Ypsilanti 14047\SRJ\prelim-SRJ.dwg

SECTION O2900 - LANDSCAPING

PART | - GENERAL

A. DESCRIPTION:
I. Work Included:
Planting required for this Work is Indicated on the Dranings and, In general, Includes
the planting and other ground cover throughout the Work.

B. QUALITY ASSURANCE:
I. Qualifications of workmen:
Provide at least one person nho shall be present at all times during execution of this
Eor‘tlon of the Work and who shall be thoroughly familiar with the type of materials
eing Installed and the best methods for thelr Installation and who shall direct all
work performed under this Section.

2. Codes, Regulations and Standards:
a. All plants and planting materlal shall meet or exceed the Specifications of Federal,
State and County lanws requiring Inspection for plant disease and Insect control.
b. Quallty and Size:
(1) General:
Guallty and size shall conform with the current edition of "Hortlcultural
Standards" for number one grade nursery stock as adopted by
the American Assoclation of Nurserymen.
(2) Deciduovs Trees:
Trees wWill measure In units of average height In feet above the ground or of an
average caliper at a point & Inches above the ground.
(3) Evergreen Trees:
Trees Will measure In units of an average height In feet above the ground.
(4) Plant stock:
Each ball shall be of sufficlent size to Insure successful flbrovs feeding roots
necessary to Insure successful recovery and development of the plant.

c. Topsoll shall conform with ASTM D 5268-92.

C. SUBMITTALS:
I. Material List:

Within 35 days after anward of Contract, and before any Flantlng materials are dellvered

to the job site, submit to the Architect a complete list of nurseries where plants are to

be obtained and other types proposed to be Installed.

a. Include complete data on source, size and quality.

b. Demonstrate complete conformance with the requirements of this Section.

¢. This shall In no way be constrved as permitting substitutions for specific items
described In the Dranings or these Specifications unless the substitution has
been approved In advance by the Architect.

2. Certlficates:

a. All certificates required by law shall accompany shipments.

b. Upon completion of the Installation, deliver all certificates to the Architect.
3. Approval of plants at source does not alter right of rejection at project site.

D. PRODUCT HANDLING:
I. Dellvery:

a. Balled and Burlapped Stock:
Care should be taken at all times as to not damage the bark or branches. Plants
shall be lIfted and handled from the bottom of the ball as much as possible In order
to prevent damage to the plant.

b. Plant stock to be delivered in B ¢ B shall be moved with a compact natural ball of
earth so firmly wrapped In burlap, that vpon delivery the soll in the ball Is still firm
and compact about the small feeding roots.

2. Temporary Storage and Protection:
a. Protect plants at all times from sun or drying winds.
b. Plants that cannot be planted immediately on delivery shall be kept In the shade,
well protected nith soll, nood chips, stran or other acceptable material, and shall
be kept well watered.

3. Replacements:
In the event of damage, Imnmediately make all repairs and replacements necessary for
the approval of the architect and at no additional expense to the Onner.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

A. MATERIALS:
I. Topsoll/Planting Mix:

a. Lawn Areas:
Use on-site stockplled topsoll. If the quantity of on-site topsoll stockplled Is
insufficlent to complete the work, provide Imported topsoll.

b. Planting Beds:
Use Imported topsoil. Contractor to obtain rights and pay all costs for imported
topsoll material. Topsoll shall meet the following requirements:

(1) Shall be free from admixture of subsoll, heawy clay, coarse sand, stone, plants
roots, sticks, and other foreign material.

(2) Shall be classified in the "Loam" portion of the US.D.A. Soll Textural Triangle.

For topsoll to be classified as "Loam", that fraction passing through a #1O sleve

shall meet the follonwing mechanical analysls:

(a) & to 25% clay (less than 0.002 mm particle size).
(b) 30 to 55% sand (2.0 to 0.05 mm particle size)

(c) 30 to 50% silt (0.05 mm to .002 mm particle size).

(3) Contain neither less than &%, nor more than 20%, organic matter as determined
by loss on Ignition of samples oven-dried to constant neight at 212 degrees F.

(4) Have a pH level of between 6.2 and 6.8.

(5) All topsoll shall be screened through a |-1/4" screen.

(6) Submit an analysis of proposed topsoll. Topsoll shall be acceptable to
Landscape Architect and Solls Testing Firm.

2. Seed:
Seed shall be 5 Way Blend Perennial Rye Grass, composed of 20% Apple 6L Perennial
Rye, 20% HomeRun Perennial Rye, 20% Flesta 4 Perennlal Rye, 20% Amazing 65
Perennial Rye, 20% Protege GLR Perennial Rye.

3. Sod (if specified on the dranings):
Sod shall be a mixture of disease reslstant Kentucky Blvegrass soll gronwn sod.
Provide well-rooted, healthy sod, free of diseases, nematodes and soll borne Insects.
Provide sod uniform in color, leaf texture, density, and free of weeds, undesirable
grasses, stones, roots, thatch, and extraneovs material; vidble and capable of growth
and development when planted.

4, Lime:
Lime shall be ground limestone containing not less than 85% of total carbonates and
shall be ground to such a fineness that 50% will pass through a 200-mesh sieve and
a0% will pass through a 900-mesh sieve.

5. Fertllizer For Lanns:
Fertilizer shall be 12-12-12, uniform In composition, free flowing and sultable for
application with approved equipment delivered to the site In bags or other convenient
contalners, each fully labeled, conforming to the applicable State Fertilizer Law, and
bearing the name, trade name or trademark, and warranty of the producer.

6. Plants:
a. Trees, shrubs, and herbaceovs plants:

(1) All trees, shrubs and herbaceouvs plants, deciduous plants or evergreens shall
be sound, healthy, vigorovs, first-class, freshly dug, nursery grown in a climate
similar to or more severe than Ohlo.

(2) All plant material shall be free of Insects, their eggs, and larvae.

(3) Plants shall be free of mechanical or cultural injury by rodents, and free of
noticeable after effects of Insects (borers).

(4) Plants shall be true to sclentific names. The names used are those of
“Standardized Plant Names".

1. Soll Amendments:
'Soll Molst' granvlar soll molsturizer Polymer Product or equal, as manvfactured and
distriovted by JRM Chemical Inc., Cleveland, Ohlo, (216-475-8488), or equal.

&. Mulch:
All mulch shall be double shredded, hardwood bark, dark brown in color.,

4. Fertllizer For Plantings:

Fertilizer shall be 20-10-5 Agriform Planting tablets or equal manufactured by Slerra
Chemical Company, |1-408-263-8080 or equal and suitable for application with approved
equipment. Deliver to the site In bags or other convenlent containers, each fully
labeled, conforming to the applicable State Fertlilizer Lan, and bearing the name,
trade name or trademark, and warranty of the producer.

10. Wood Cellvlose Flber Mulch: Degradable green dyed wood cellvlose flber or 100%
recycled long flber pulp, free from nweeds or other foreign matter toxic to seed
germination and svitable for hydromulching.

Il. Tackifler: Liquld concentrate dilvted with nater forming a transparent 3-dimensional
film like crust permeable to water and air and containing no agents toxic to seed
germination.

I2. Eroslon Control Blanket: -5 by North American Green as distributed by
Meredith Brothers, Phone: (614) 258-4494| or equal.

I3. Anti-Desiccant. Emulsion type, film-forming agent designed to permit transpiration
but retard excessive loss of molsture from plants. Deliver In manufacturer's
fully-identified containers and mix In accordance wWith manvfacturer's Instructions.

4. Herbicide: Round Up, or Kleenup or equal.

I5. Wrapping: Tree-wrap tape not less than four inches (4") wide, designed to
prevent bore damage and winter freezing.

6. Stakes and Guys: Provide stakes and deadmen of sound new hardwood, treated
softwood, or redwood, free of knot holes and other defects. Provide wire ties and
gws of 2-strand, twisted, pliable galvanized Iron wire not lighter than 12 ga. with
zinc-coated turnbuckles. Provide not less than one-half inch (1/2") diometer rubber
or plastic hose, cut to required lengths and of uniform color, material and size to
protect tree trunks from damage by wire.

I7. Soll Separator: Shall be non-noven, nater-permeable polyester geotextlle,
manufactured as a landscaping product.

1&. Need mat: Provide 4.l oz., noven polypropylene, needle-punched fabric, need barrier.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

A. SURFACE CONDITIONS:
l. Inspection:
Prior to all work In this Section, carefully inspect the Installed work of all other
trades and verify that all such work is complete to the point where this
Installation may properly commence.

2. Discrepancles:
a. In the event of any discrepancies, immediately notify the Architect.
b. Do not proceed with the Installation In the areas of discrepancy untll all such
discrepancles have been fully resolved.

B. LAYOUT:
Shrubs and trees shall be Installed within I'-O" and groundcover shall be Installed
Within &" of plant location shown on plan.

C. LAWN:
|. General:
a. Planting season:
() Fall: August |5 to October 15
(2) Spring: From time ground Is workable to duly, unless Irrigation Is provided.
b. All areas not required to be developed othernise shall be planted In grass.
c. Sod or seed as designated on plan and any areas disturbed by construction.
2. Finished grading:
a. All depresslons or settled areas shall be corrected. All stones over one Inch
(") in size, gravel, needs, sticks, and rubbish shall be removed.
b. Scarify subgrade to a depth of 3" where topsoll Is scheduled, and In areas where
equipment has compacted subsoil.

c. Distribute topsoil to a two inch (2") minimum depth. Provide imported topsoll
material as required.

d. Manvally spread topsoll around trees, plants and bulldings to prevent damage.
e. Areas to be sodded or seeded shall be brought to a smooth finished grade.
F. Lightly compact placed topsoil.

g. Remove surplus topsoll from site.

3. Soll preparation:
a. Lime:
Hhere lime Is required, ofter testing, It shall be applied at the rate of 50 pounds
to 1,000 square tfeet and raked In.

4. Fertilizing:
Fertlilizer shall be applied at the rate of 15 pounds to 1,000 sq. ft. and raked in,
5. Soddlng:
a. Limit preparation to areas which will be immediately sodded.

S

Loosen topsoll of lann areas to minimum of 2", Remove stones over |" In any

dimension and sticks, roots, rubbish, and extraneous matter.

Remove all needs from area.

Grade lann areas to smooth, free draining and even surface with a loose, uniformly

fine texture. Roll and rake; remove ridges and flll depresslons as required to drain.

Rake In a light application of 12-12-12 fertilizer at a rate of 5 Ib. per 1000 SF.

before laying sod.

Dampen dry soll prior to sodding.

g. Restore prepared areas to specified condition If eroded, settled, or othernise
disturbed ofter fine grading and prior to sodding.

h. Lay sod to form a solld mass with tightly-fitted joints. Butt ends and sides of sod
strips. Do not overlay edges. Stagger strips to offset joints In adjacent course.
Remove excess sod to avold smothering of adjacent grass. Provide sod pad top
flush nith adjacent curbs, sidenalks, drains, and seeded areas.

I. Do not lay dormant sod or Install sod on saturated or frozen soll.

J. Install Initlal row of sod In a straight line, beginning at bottom of slopes,
perpendicular to direction of the sloped area. Place subsequent rows parallel
to and lightly against previously Installed ron.

k. Water sod thoroughly with a fine spray Immediately after laying.

I. Roll wWith light lawn roller to ensure contact wWith sub-grade.

6. Seeding:
a. Seed areas as follons:
(1) Remove all needs from area to be seeded.
(2) After topsoll has been spread, thoroughly disc all areas. Remove all stones
and lumps mechanically. Then spread evenly and work into the topsoll,
[2-12-12 fertllizer at a rate of fifteen pounds (I15#) per 1,000 square feet.
(3) Then sow evenly the grass seed mixture at a rate of five pounds per
1000 square feet.
(4) Cover the seeded area with a I-1/2" thick layer of non-compacted stram
or other approved means.
b. Maintain watering (between Jly and September) and protection of the seeded
area as needed untll a full stand of grass Is established and accepted by
the Onner's Representative or Field Inspector.

c. Seed all areas disturbed by construction.

& Qo

-

1. Hydroseeding
se a Hydromvlcher (sprayer) and apply mixture(s) at the folloning rates. Mix In
accordance With manufacturer's recommendations.

a. Seed: 260 lbs./acre
b. Fertilizer: 435 lbs./acre
c. Tacklifier: 45 lbs./acre
d. Wood cellvlose, Fiber muich: | 500 lbs./acre of stranw mulch: 2-1/2 tons/acre
e. Limestone: Rate determined by soll test.
D. PLANTING
l. General:

a. All plantings shall be done between the dates of March | and June | or
September | and November |. All other plantings to be done between the dates
of June 2nd and August 3| to be Wilt Proofed (or equal) and a watering
schedule shall be maintained by the Contractor until acceptance by Onner.

b. Plont areas: Plant areas are plts or pockets for trees, shrubs and
groundcovers where Indicated on the Dranings.

¢. Topsoll for planting operations shall be furnished by the Contractor.
d. The depth of Flantln areas ls the depth belon the finished grade.
e. Provide positive drdinage anay from all buildings and around or anay
from planting beds to prevent ponding of water. Do NOT raise bed
grades or finished grades above finished floor elevations.
2. Shrubs:
a. General:

(1) Planting areas shall have a soll mixture at a 6" depth minimum.

(2) On the bottom of all plant areas, add and lightly tamp a layer of planting
soll mixture at least six inches (6") thick or as much as Is necessary so
that the ball or roots will rest thereon nhen the plant Is set to the
required grade.

(3) Set all plants so that when they are settled they will bear the same relation
to the required grade as they bore to the natural grade before being
transplanted. Make ad]ustment of position where necessary or as directed.

(4) Plant in topsoll in the center of the pit unless otherwise specified or
shown on the Dranings. Remove all non-treated or non-rot proofed burlap,
ropes, staves, etc., off sides and tops of balls and remove from the pit
before it I1s filled In. Completely remove all treated or polypropylene burlap
or ropes from planting plts.

(5) Do not mat roots of bare-rooted plants together, but arrange In their
natural state and work topsoll In among them. Use no soll In a frozen or
muddy condition for backfilling. Do not fill around trunks or stems.
Properly cut off all broken or frayed roots.

b. Shrub pits:
(1) Dig and prepare shrub pits or beds prior to planting to a minimum depth
of 6".

(2) Width of the pits - at least 2 feet greater in diameter than their ball of earth
or spread of roots.

(3) Add 2l ?r‘am ‘Agriform' planting tablets or equal, to plantlr@ Flt, manufactured
by Slerra Chemical Co. (1-406-263-8080) or equal. Backfill planting pit halfway with

planting soll mixture and place tablet beside rootball about 1" from root tips. Do
not place In bottom of hole. Follon manufacturer's recommended application rates
for size of plant installed.
(4) Set shrubs so as to allon sufficient depth. Properly set the cronwn of plant at
the finished surface of the bed.
(5) Backfill topsoll about the roots and thoroughly settle by watering. Form a
mound of earth around each shrub so as to produce a shallow savcer.
(6) Edge the bed In a neat line as directed and make sure an even 6" layer of
topsoll remains over entire area.
(7) Dress all beds with a uniform 3" layer of finely shredded hardwood bark.
(&) If an irrigation system Is NOT Installed as part of the project, add 'Terra AG'
soll moisturizer grarvles to the soil mix, per manufacturer’s recommended application.

3. Trees:
a. Tree pits:

(1) Depth of the pits-deep enough as Is necessary to accommodate the ball or roots
and to permit the required preparation of the bottom of the pit so that when
the tree 15 settled In the plit, It Will not be necessary to raise or lower the tree.

(2) Width of the pits - 2 feet greater In diameter than their ball of earth or spread
of roots.

(3) Plant tree In topsoll In the center of the pit unless othernise specified or shown
on the Dranings. Remove all non-treated or non-rot proofed burlap, ropes,
staves, etc., off sides and tops of balls and remove from the pit before it Is
filled In. Completely remove all treated or polypropylene burlap or ropes from
planting pits.

(4) If an irrigation system Is NOT Installed as part of the project, add 'Terra Sorb AG'
soll molsturizer granvles to the soll mix, per manufacturer's recommended application.

b. Fertilizer:

(1) hhen the tree has been properly set, backfill tree pit halfway and place fertilizer
planting tablet beside rootball about 1" from root tips. Do not place in bottom
of hole. Use one 2| gram tablet (20-10-5) for each |/2" cal.. or each foot of
height or spread. Backflll tree pit the rest of the way with planting soll mixture.

(2) Thoroughly tamp and water during and after backfilling.

c. All trees are to be nrapped and staked. Protect the bark from the guying Wire with

a length of hose or any other material approved by the Architect.

d. Dress all beds with a uniform 3" layer of finely shredded hardwood bark.

4, Ground Cover:
a. All ground cover beds shall have a minimum depth of 6" of topsoll.
b. Dress all beds with a uniform 3" layer of finely shredded hardwood bark.

5. Annuals:
a. All annual planting beds shall have a minimum of 10" of "annual bed mix".
b. "Annual bed mix" shall be processed shredded topsoll With organic compost and fine
sllica gravel for annuals.
¢. Mulch with 1" of compost mulch or treat soll nith a granular pre-emergence herbicide
suvitable for annval plantings.

6. Pruning:
a. Prgune all new trees and shrubs In accordance with acceptable standard practices.
All cuts over one Inch In diameter shall be treated with an approved tree Ealnt. In
the same manner, prune existing trees which are to remain If indicated on the
landscape plan.

7. Protection:
a. Protect all plant areas and plants from damage. If any plants are injured, treat
and replace as required. Execute no work In or over prepared plant areas, or
adjacent to planting without proper safeguards and protection.

&. Maintenance During Installation:

a. M?lnttaln meedlatelg folloning the accomplishment of planting operations of any

ant unit.

b. 5ppr‘ag follage with nater, nhere required, during the evening after sundown or
othernise as directed. Keep all plantings In a healthy, groning condition by
Watering, weeding, cultivating, pruning, spraying, trimming and by performing any
other necessary operations of maintenance.

c¢. The Contractor shall be responsible for continved proper care of the lanwn
areas during the perlod nhen the grass 1s becoming established. The perlod of
maintenance for all lann area shall extend for sixty (60) days with two (2) monings
required or as long as necessary to establish over the entire lann areas a
uniform stand of grasses as speclfied, free of weeds and undesirable grasses.
After the required maintenance period and upon acceptance of lann area by the
Architect, the Onner will assume maintenance responsibility.

d. Mowing: The lann seeded area shall be mowed With approved mowning equipment
to a height of two inches (2") nwhenever the average height of grass becomes three
inches (3"). If needs or other undesirable vegetation threaten to smother the
planted specles, such vegetation shall be moned, or in the case of exceedingly rank
growths, be vprooted, raked and removed from the area.

e. Refertllizing: Areas needing refertilization will be designated by the Architect at
least Fifteen (15) days prior to the time that the application 1s required. The fertilizer
shall be distributed on the seeded area between August |15 and October 15, during a
perlod nhen the grass Is dry. The fertllizer shall be 10-6-4 grade and shall be
applied vniformly at the rate of ten (10) pounds per one thovsand (1,000) square
feet. Physical condition, packaging and marking of the fertilizer shall be as specified
for original seeding.

f. Reseeding: Areas that require reseeding will be designated by the Architect at
least fifteen (15) days prior to the period specified for reseeding. Reseeding shall
be with the seed specified therein before and shall be drilled at four (4) pounds per
one thousand (1,000) square feet In a manner which Will cavse a minimum of
disturbance to the existing stand of grass, and at an angle of not less than
fifteen (15) degrees from the direction of the rows of prior seeding.

g. Lanns shall be protected against damage, Including eroslon and washouts.

Damaged areas shall be promptly replanted. Use erosion netting as required.

h. The contractor Is responsible to clean the site of all mulching materials and
other debris prior to the final Inspection.

1. Final Inspection: Inspectlon of work for lanns Will be made after the second
cutting; nritten notice requesting Inspection shall be submitted at least ten (0) days
prior to anticipated date.

J. Acceptance: Final Inspection shall determine acceptance or non-acceptance of lann
areas. Acceptance Iindicates a complete cover of grasses In all lawn areas, which
have been maintained by weeding, reseeding and refertllizing as necessary, natering
and moning as stated above and appears to be In a potentlal healthy state with
weeds, rocks, stones and debris removed and all erosion or ruts repaired. Lawns
not maintained or appearing as stated herein shall be unacceptable and shall be
reworked as necessary until desired results are obtained.

k. Maintain trees, shrubs and other plants until final acceptance, but In no case less
than 60 days after substantial completion of planting.

I. Maintain trees, shrubs and other plants by pruning, cultivating, matering and
weeding as required for healthy gronth. Restore planting saucers. Tighten and
repair stake and guy supports and reset trees and shrubs to proper grades or
vertical position as required. Restore or replace damaged wrappings. Spray
as required to keep trees and shrubs free of Insects and disease.

E. CLEAN-UP

I. Upon completion of the planting, all excess soll, stones and debris which has not
previously been cleaned vp shall be removed from the site or disposed of as directed by
the Architect.

2. Any soll, manure, peat, or similar material which has been brought onto paved areas by
havling operations or otherwise shall be removed promptly, keeping these areas clean at
all times.

3. Protect landscape nork and materials from damage duve to landscape operations,
operations by other contractors, trades and trespassers. Maintain protection during
installation and maintenance periods. Treat, repair or replace damaged landscape
work as directed.

F. ACCEPTANCE
Flnal Inspection:

a.

Inspection:
At the conclusion of the contract work, (exclusive of maintenance and replacement) one
Inspection will be made by the Architect. Written notice to the Architect requesting such an

Inspection shall be svbmitted by the Contractor at least ten days prior to the anticlpated date.

b. The purpose of this inspection will be to determine whether or not the Contractor

has completed all the work of the contract.

c. The condition of the lanns and shrubs Will be noted and a determination will be made by the

Architect nwhether maintenance shall continve In any part as specified under Maintenance
During Installation.'

2. Acceptance Inspection:
a. At the conclusion of the maintenance during installation period, an inspection wWill

be made by the Architect. Written notice requesting the Inspection shall be
submitted by the Contractor at least 10 days prior to the anticipated date.

b. The purpose of the Inspection shall be for the acceptance of the contract

work including maintenance during installation, but exclusive of replacements.

c. After the Inspection of the Architect, the Contractor shall be notified In writing of

acceptance of the work. If there are any deficlencles In the maintenance,
during Installation, the Contractor will be notifled of these deficiencies In writing by
the Architect, and the work shall be subject to reinspection before acceptance.

3. Guarantee Period:
a. Guarantee perlod shall begin at the Issuance of the Certificate of Completion and

shall end exactly one year from that date.

b. At the conclusion of the guarantee period, a final inspection of the work will be

made to determine the condition of the plant material. All plant material not In a
healthy or 40% defoliated growning condition will be noted.

c. Remove the material so noted from the site at the direction of the Architect and

replace during the folloning planting season with the materials of like kind and size,
and In a manner speclfied for the original planting at no extra cost.

d. Guarantee period also applies to replaced material.

We— %
Zoo
Lu!‘
{=t>
aL .
=200
<L Z
a4

549 E. Washington Street . Chagrin Falls, OH 44022

440-247-7003/fax 440-247-7143

CAWRSE & ASSOCIATES, inc.
Landscape Architecture - Land Planning

~J

QO

PRELIMINARY LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS
MAJESTIC LAKES

Ypsilanti Twp., MI
32400 Telegraph Road, Suite 100 Bingham Farms, MI 48025

SR Jacobson Companies

Date Notes
Od-1l-l4 DRAN EAD

Job No: 14057

File: prelim-sR.dwg

L-4

Sheet 4of 4
COPYRIGHT ;SS)CAWRSE & ASSOC., INC.




Memo

TO: Joe Lawson

FROM: John Ackerman

DATE: 9.10.14

RE: Majestic Lakes

Joe, | have copied all comments below and addressed accordingly. Any responses will be after the
comment in red.

Joe L awson letter dated 8.29.14

1.

w

It is recommended that the applicant and their engineer agree to meet with Township staff to discuss
the following comments. It is felt that such a meeting will assist in resolving any issues prior to
presenting the plan to the Commission or Boatdmpleted on 9.10.14

As the proposed amendment is considered a major change per section 1922(3), a public hearing
shall be heard by the Township Planning Commission. At the completion of the public hearing,
the Commission shall make a recommendation to the Township Board of Trustees for the
consideration of a revised approval to the PD Stage | plan. PD Stage Il will be considered upon
final engineering approval for the sitkgain, our hope walking away from today’s meetiaghiat

we can get conditional approval from the PC on tH&a2®! formally resubmit the necessary plans

prior to the October 212st Board mtg.

. It is recommended that a new PD/Development Agreement be prepared and submitted to this office

for review. The intent is to have a draft of this document readydview by this Friday (9/12)

Much of the data noted on the cover sheet iscimate and will need to be revised prior to

the next submittal Atwell will revise the data on the cover sheet for mvised plan package to be
submitted this Friday.

The overall ratio of attached units versus detached units does not meet the minimum
requirements of the Township’s Planned Development Ordinance. The number of units will need to
be revised in order to meet the minimum standard noted within said ordinance sedtioa.
discussion on this below

As the total number of units is proposed to decrease, unless otherwise required by the Washtenaw
County Road Commission, no further traffic studies will be required for the proposed p&ijeat.

good news!

Roposed elevation drawings and floor plans will be required as part of the PD/Development
agreement. S.R. Jacobson is working on obtaining those €féll t them for timing of the

submittal.



8. The applicant shall supply the Township with a proposed landscape plan per section 2108 of
the Township Zoning Ordinancd.he landscape plan is being prepared with hopesofgh
submitted by this Friday

Plan Details
Certain details are required to be included on every site plan. Please address the following detail
deficiencies in revised plans:

1. The coversheet notes the overall number of units to consist of 409 units, as discussed during this
review, the plan indicates 395 proposed units. Please revise the coversheet to note the appropriate
number of total units proposed for this revisidrne cover sheet notes will be revised as necessary
and resubmitted on Friday

2. As proposed the ratio of attached units versus detached units is as follows: Detached 234 units or
59.2%; attached units 161 or 40.8%. Township ordinance permits a maximum 60/40 ratio of
attached versus detached. Please revise the unit ratio in order to maintain this noted percentage.
3 units are being removed from Nautica Pointe to gng@chieve the 60/40 required split. This
will be reflected on Friday’s submittal

3. Rease overlay the proposed building envelopes on all future submittals. The overlay of
building envelopes will assist staff in verifying that each lot is buildable as propdsed.
will address specific building envelopes discussed below for Friday and all building
envelopes will be added for the revised submittal package prior to the Board meeting.

4. The coversheet notes a proposed reduction in the required side yard setbacks for all 50-foot wide
lots. Should such a reduction be approved, the development agreement shall reflect said approval.
All spacing requirements shall conform to the adopted residential building £6deldg. to
bldg. setbacks are proposed on the 50’ lots. The language will be included in the development
agreement draft, currently being prepared by others.

5. Hease review the provided open space calculations noted on the coversheet. It is unclear to staff
how these numbers were derived. Clarification will be provided on Friday’s submittal

6. Sheet PD-07 indicates to total calculated aeglicdted to open space. Section
1905(4)(b) states that any area proposed to be occupied by multiple-family dwellings, including
the minimum required setbacks around the buildings shall not be included within the open space
calculation. Please review the noted plan sheet and revise according to the noted ordinance
section. The open space calcs will be revised to reflect thieling setbacks and provided on
Friday’s resubmittal

7. PRedestrian pathways are noted on sheet PD-07, please include these pedestrian pathways on the

remainder of the “Layout” plansThese paths will be provided on the landscape plans.

8. Rease include a notion and inclusion within the PD/Development Agreement and bylaws as to how
the multi-family residential portion will be included within the overall open space association.

This will be included in the draft Development Agreathproposed to be provided for review this
Friday

9. Rease note the proposed plan for trash and recycling services relating to the multi-family
residential portion of the project. The Township does not currently provide trash and recycling
service to this type of development. Private service should be arranged by the property owner.
Private trash service will be arranged for the mialtiily residential portion of the project.

10. Please provide a lighting plan for the development. The plan shall include the type of fixture
and pole proposed for installatioA. lighting plan is being prepared by other consukdat
the multi-family residential portion of the project - I'll defer to Redwood for timing of the
submittal.



11. Please include within the development bylaws that no property owner shall use phosphorus as a
lawn fertilizer. This requirement was included in the original approval by the Township Board and
continues as a recommendation through this process in order to protect the ponds and wildlife
located within the existing conservation easement. This will be included in the draft Development
Agreement proposed to be provided for review this Friday

12. The property line between lots 6 & 7 on sheet PD-06 is missing, please rEvisevill be added to
the plans for Friday’s submittal.

SiteInfrastructure

The infrastructure plans for the site have been reviewed in accordance with established
procedures. The Township’s consulting engineer, OHM, will provide comments prior to detailed/final
engineering review.

1. The submitted plans note the relocation of a number of stormsewer lines. The review and
approval of the proposed relocation shall be provided by the Washtenaw County Road Commission
and the Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s Offiechave not received any
correspondence / comments to date from the WCRC but were contacted by Scott Miller with
WCWRC to set up a meeting within the coming weeks. We are currently awaiting dates / times
that work for his office.

2. It is recommended that the roads proposed to service the multi-family residential portion of the
project be converted to private roads. Doing so will require the review and approval of the Road
Commission in addition to an amendment to the Road Improvement Agreement sign by Road
Commission Director Roy Townsend and dated April 17, 26dads serving the multi-family
residential portion of the development will be proposed to be private, as will the roads in the Ponds.
The roads servicing the SF lots are proposed to be public.

3. The sanitary lift station shall be restotedthe satisfaction of the Ypsilanti
Communities Utility Authority prior to the issuance of a building permit. That is noted.

4. Please provide a notation that aeratoils lve provided within the existing detention basis.

A note will be added to the plans for Friday’s sulbahit

5. All catch basin covers shall include the phrakerip no waste, drains to river” as
provided within the attached detail sheet. A note will be added to the plans for Friday'daubmit
Appropriate notes / details for these catch basin requirements will be provided with our Stage Il plan
submittal package.

Site Design Issues

We have considered the proposed building layout, required yard areas and setbacks from
property lines, pedestrian access, site lighting and traffic circulation patterns on the site. Please
address the following issues:

1. Due to the noted drainage easements along the west property line of proposed lot
35, it may be necessary to either increase the overall lot size or eliminate said lot as the building
envelope does not appear to be feasible. As with the remainder of the proposed lots within the
development, please provide the requested building envelops in order to verify the buildabiltiy of
each lot. We will review lots 35 — 63 to verify buidability prior to Friday’s submittal. Should
building envelopes be impacted by setbacks, they will be labeled accordingly for clarity of review.
ALL building envelopes will be provided on the plans prior to the Board mtg.

2. Hease review the proposed lot 44. Considering the size and shape of the lot, staff has concerns of
how this lot will be developed. Please provide the proposed building envalbpéauilding
envelope will be provided on Friday’s submittal



3. Unit #24 within the multi-family portion does not appear to meet the minimum front yard setback of
20-feet. Please review this lot as the increase in setback may be hindered by the existing gas-line
easementUnit 24 will be adjusted slightly to the N-NW so asneet the front yard setback and
remain out of the gas easement. This will be reflected on Friday’s submittal

4. It is recommended that an additional pedestrian pathway be included from the eastern end of
Nature View north to the Textile Road non-motorized pdthis path will be added to the
plans.

5. Itis recommended that an additional pedestrian pathway be included from the cul- de-sac north of
Nature View (between lots 18 & 19) to the Textile Road non- motorized fathpath will be
added to the plans

Parking, Loading and Traffic Circulation
Please address the following concerns related to proposed parking, loading and traffic
circulation on the site:

1. Please provide a detail sheet of the playground area parking lot. Staff would like to verify the
space dimension and availability of an ADA compliant parking sp@egails of this parking lot
will be provided no later than the submittal prior to Board.

2. lItis recommended that the roads proposed to service the multi-family residential portion of the
project be converted to private roads. Doing so will require the review and approval of the Road
Commission in addition to an amendment to the Road Improvement Agreement sign by Road
Commission Director Roy Townsend and dated April 17, 2013.

3. Should the multi-family residential portion be converted to private roads, it is further
recommended that the owner provide a cross-access easement to the remainder of the project in
order to provide a second means of access to Tuttle Hill Rdadgreement will be addressed
accordingly — | will defer to Redwood and S.R. Jacobson for details.

Site Landscaping
Please address the following concerns related to existing or proposed landscaping on the
site:

1. Please provide a proposed and existing landscape plan per section 2108 of the zoning
ordinance for review and consideration by this office. This plan shall include the location of all

existing and proposed street trees, landscape buffer, open space plantings, detention pond

landscaping etcThis is being prepared by Redwood’s consultant — Il defer to them for
commitment of submittal
2. As was a condition of the existing site plan, please provide either a landscape or hardscape

between this development and Joyce Lake. Signs are also to be provided stating Joyce Lake,

Private Property, No Trespassing.his will be addressed as part of the landscape pdahkage
currently being prepared.

YCUA Comments dated 8.4.14

In response to the memorandum from your office dated July 15, 2014, we have reviewed the referenced
plans with regards to water supply and wastewater system design. The plans are not acceptable to the
Authority. The following comments need to be addressed by the Applicant and/or the Applicant’s
designer. Based on our conversation with Scott Westover toeagrenhopeful that our commitment to



addressing his comments today and in this memo will be sufficient to obtain conditional approval even
though Scott mentions in his letter that the plans are not acceptable.

1. More detail needs to be provided regarding the existing water supply and wastewater infrastructure
identified as “being relocated.” At a minimum, the proposed alignments of the relocated utilities
should be providedProposed alignments of the relocated utilities wellgoovided on Friday’s
submittal

2. The existing water supply and wastewater infrastructure, in particular previously installed water
services and building sewers, needs to be analyzed in relation to the proposed site layout. It is
anticipated that the proposed revisions to the site layout will result in existing water services and
building sewers that will no longer be needed. Unnecessary water services shall be disconnected from
the water main at the corporation stop with the corporation stop closed. Unneeded building sewers
shall be abandoned, with the lateral abandoned from inside the sanitary sewer using a cured-in-place
pipe (CIPP) spot liner such as Pipe Patch or Authority approved equal. Detailed coordination will
occur with YCUA when addressing the proper demolition / abandonment of any existing utilities no
longer proposed to be utilized.

3. Itis understood that the utilities for phasaf the Lakewood South project, located in the southeast
area of the site and now identified as the Villages at Majestic Lakes and Majestic Lakes Estates, have
not yet been constructedurther investigation will be required to verify this

OHM Review Letter dated July 31, 2014

SITE PLAN
COMMENTS:
OVERALL
GENERAL

1. Scale of drawing is acceptable for preliminary PUD; however, final PUD will require 50 scale
drawings and more detail with regards to grading as the lot change will impact the grades originally
designed in 2005. Scale will be adjusted accordingly at final PUD

2. Existing grades shall be shown along with preliminary proposed finished grades of each building.
Should it be determined that this is required padiirtal design, the information will be provided
prior to the Board meeting.

3. Preliminary calculations showing pre and pogtamious surfaces have been provided; however,
additional information in regards to a breakdown of units with estimated roof top, driveways, and
green space (percentage of coverage) shall be included to better understand the impacts to the
storm water collection and management systémould it be determined that this is required prior
to final design, the information will be provided prior to the Board meeting.

PONDSATLAKEWOOD

4. Right-of-way (ROW) lines for Textile Road and Tuttle Hill Road shall be shown on the plan sheet.
ROW lines will be added to the plan sheet for Fridagtibmittal

5. Itappears Lots 8, 9, 18 and 19 extend pastdisérg water main and ROW along Textile Road.
Per the 2005 plans, the existing water main is within the existing 33-foot wide half ROW and a
proposed
60-foot wide half ROW is shown on the plans. Plans should be updated accordingly to include
this information, and lot lines shall not extend beyond the current ROW. ROW information will
be provided and any necessary lot line revisions will be provided on Friday’s submittal




6.

10.

All lot lines should be shown on the plan sheet. It appears plans show incomplete lines and
lines missing between lot number indicated on the plans. All lot lines will be shown on
Friday’s submittal
Plans show relocating existing underground utilities. It appears removal is proposed near the
westerly existing multi-family building. Clarification on why this is necessary and where the new
utilities will
be installed is neededlarification on this will be shown on Friday’s sulital.
All existing easements will need to be vacatatieasements will need to be re-recorded once the
new location of underground utilities is installed. Existing water main and sanitary sewer with
easements shall also be showiinis comment will be addressed during the Stageah preparation
and submittal.
For Detailed Engineering/Final PUD review:

a. Proposed utilities, profiles, and easements shall be shown on the plans

b. Existing water and sewer leads shall be shown on the plans
The roads show existing driveways with curb cuts. The applicant shall show curb cuts being
removed and approximate locations of new driveways/curb cuts shall be shown on thé&lplkans.
will be revised for Friday’s submittal

MAJESTICLAKES

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

A key map should be provided on the plans with clear cutoffs of each planBhieetill be
revised for Friday’s submittal
It appears lots encroach on the 30-foot storrareest. The applicant may want to consider revising
as it encroaches on the 35-foot rear yard setback, leaving little to no room for amémniti€sg
storm easement / lot location conflicts will be review accordingly. Amenity restrictions to lots that
contain utility easements will be addressed accordingly in the master deed / By-laws.
It appears there is a conflict between sheets. Clarification is needed for multi-family
development area — Nautica Pointe or Redwood at Majestic Lakagica Pointe is the name
moving forward. Plans will be revised accordingly for Friday’s submittal
Better labeling and sizes of existing and proposed water main and sanitary sewer shall be included.
Detailed labeling / sizing of proposed watermain aardtary sewer will be addressed during the
Detailed design.
Clarification on the hatching and lines crosdingle Hill Road shall be labeled and noted on its
intent. Clarification will be provided in this area on Frigagubmittal
It shall be noted that the sanitary sewer pump station is no longer in place while the structure and
wet well remain. Notes and details on Sheet PD-05 should be added. The service area of the pump
station shall be included along with a preliminary basis of deSigould it be determined that this
is required prior to Stage I, the information will be provided prior to the Board meeting.
Storm sewer is shown to be removed behind units 16, 17 and 18 of Nautica Pointe needs more
information detailed on the plan sheet. It is unclear in this area, and others, what is being removed
and how storm water is going to be conveyBdoposed alignments of the relocated utilities wall b
provided on Friday’s submittal
Lot 44 of Majestic Lakes Estates potentially limits access to the storm sewer and places the building
envelope very close to the existing gas médiins recommended that this lot remain an open space.
It is our client’s intention to keep lot 44. Any utility access concerns will be address accordingly.


































































NOTICE: MICHIGAN LAW ESTABLISHES RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS FOR
PARTIES TO RENTAL AGREEMENTS. THIS AGREEMENT IS REQUIRED TO
COMPLY WITH THE TRUTH IN RENTING ACT. IF YOU HAVE A QUESTION
ABOUT THE INTERPRETATION OR LEGALITY OF A PROVISION OF THIS
AGREEMENT, YOU MAY WANT TO SEEK ASSISTANCE FROM A LAWYER OR
OTHER QUALIFIED PERSON.

RESIDENTIAL LEASE AGREEMENT
THIS LEASE (“Lease”) is made this day of , 20 , by and between—

(“Landlord”), a Michigan Corporation, as managing agent, and

(and)
(Jointly and severally, “Tenant”).
1. PREMISES: Landlord hereby leases to Tenant Apartment Number# (the Apartment) at
Property Name located at
Address , City , State , ZIp

Tenant agrees that only the person(s) listed below shall occupy the Apartment. Person(s) not listed below may not occupy the

Apartment for more than three (3) consecutive days within a six (6) month period. The Apartment will be occupied only by:

Additional occupants are strictly prohibited. The PRIOR WRITTEN consent of Landlord is necessary in order to change
occupants. Under no circumstances shall the apartment be occupied by more than two persons per bedroom.

2. CONDITION OF APARTMENT AT ACCEPTANCE : Tenant acknowledges that Tenant has examined the Apartment
prior to executing this Lease and that no representations as to the condition or state of repairs thereof have been made by Landlord
which are not specifically set forth in this Lease. Tenant hereby accepts the Apartment in its present condition. Tenant shall notify
Landlord in writing of any defects or damages prior to Move In. Written notice must be signed by both Landlord and tenant. Defects
and damage not reported to Landlord shall be presumed to have first occurred during Tenant’s occupancy of the Apartment. Tenant
acknowledges that all appliances are in good working order at the time of occupancy.

3. TERM: The term (“Term”) of this Lease is for months commencing on
, 20 and ending on , 20
4. RENT: Tenant covenants and agrees to pay to Landlord as rental ("Rent") for the Apartment, without deduction, offset or

prior demand, the following:

Base Monthly Rent: $

Monthly Pet Fee: $

Monthly Water Utility Fee: $

Monthly Short Term Fee: $

Monthly Fireplace Fee: $

Monthly Fee for : $

TOTAL MONTHLY RENTAL PAYMENT *: $

*Tenant shall pay pro-rated Rent in the amount of $ for the period from:
/[ to__ [/ [ __ for ( ) days.

*Tenant shall pay the last months Rent in the amount of $ for the period from:
/I to__ [/ [ __ for ( ) days.

PAYMENTS:



JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight


6. LATE FEE:

SERVICE CHARGE:

8. USE: The Apartment shall not be used for commercial purposes, but shall be used only for customary residential
purposes. Tenant agrees to abide by all rules and regulations contained in Exhibit A (attached hereto), as the same may be
modified from time to time, and Tenant shall cause any permitted guests of Tenant to comply with such rules and regulations. Any
failure to keep and observe said rules and regulations shall constitute a breach of the terms of this Lease. The use of the common
areas and amenities by Tenant and Tenant's guests is at such party’s own risk. Tenant will use the Apartment and appliances in a
careful, safe and proper manner, and will at Tenant's own expense comply with the directions of the proper public officers as to the
use, repair, and maintenance thereof. Tenant will not allow the Apartment to be used for any purpose or in any way that will
increase the rate of insurance thereon or on the Apartment Complex, nor for any purpose other than that hereinbefore specified,
nor shall the Apartment be occupied by any other person. Tenant will not suffer to be brought into the Apartment any substance or
force that will increase the hazard of fire in the Apartment. Tenant will not permit the Apartment to be used for any unlawful
purpose or in any way that will injure the reputation of the same or of the building in which they are a part, or disturb the tenants
of such building.

9. PETS: Tenant covenants and agrees not to keep or harbor any dog, cat, bird, reptile, or any other animal in the
Apartment without Landlord’s prior WRITTEN consent. Any person caught with a pet without this written consent will be given a

thirty day eviction notice. Landlord and Tenant shall execute a “Pet Addendum,” the terms of which are incorporated herein b
reference. The maximum shall be limited to two (2) pets. Tenant shall not feed stray/wild animals.
If the lessee has a

pet prior to moving on property, the fee and deposit must be paid prior to or upon move-in. If the pet is obtained during the lease
term, payment of said fee is due immediately. Full payment of the Pet Fee is required regardless of the length of time the pet
occupies the premises. Fish tanks may not to exceed 55 gallons total. We reserve the right to refuse any pet.

Initials: Initials:

10. AUTOMOBILES: No automobile with any type of fluid leak is permitted. Any damage done to asphalt or
concrete will be charged back to tenant. No repairing of automobiles is permitted at the Apartment Complex. Any abandoned
automobile, or automobile, which is not operable or not having current license plates, may be towed after 24 hour notice from
the Apartment Complex at Tenant’s risk and expense. The use and storage of Tenant's or any other person’s automobile, whether
or not parked, driven in or about the Apartment Complex, shall at all times be at the risk of Tenant, and Landlord assumes no
liability for said automobile or damage caused to or by said automobile. Tenant covenants and agrees that in no event shall Tenant
park more than two (2) vehicles in the parking lot at any time. “Operable” means the vehicle must have air in the tires, have all
major components intact, including windows and windshields, and be reasonably clean. Vehicles may not be used to store bulky
personal items on a permanent basis. All vehicles are to be parked within marked spaces only, and not in any areas designated “No
Parking” or on the lawns, walks, curbs, stoops or patios of the Apartment, the Apartment Complex or any of the common areas.
Tenant hereby agrees that except for automobiles, no vehicles (including, without limitation, motorcycles, boats and boat trailers,
campers, travel trailers, utility trailers, trucks, commercial vehicles and motor homes) may be parked in the parking lot without
Landlord’s prior written consent. Any violation of the foregoing rules will subject such vehicle to being towed without notice at
Tenant’s expense. Tenant agrees that Landlord shall not be liable for any damage arising as a result of towing or for loss or damage
to Tenant's vehicle (or that of any permitted guest of Tenant) or to any personal property left therein. Tenant agrees to indemnify
and hold Landlord harmless for any claims by Tenant’s guests or invitees for the towing of any vehicles for violation of these rules.
Tenant shall advise its guests and invitees of the proper manner for the parking of vehicles. Landlord may impose additional parking
regulations, including limiting the number of vehicles which Tenant or its guests may park, requiring the use of parking decals on
vehicles, and/or assigning parking spaces. Tenant agrees to obey posted speed limits signs and inform guests and invitees of the
posted speed limit.

Initials: Initials:

11. REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS: Tenant may not make any alterations to the Apartment without first obtaining
Landlord’s written consent. Landlord shall make repairs to the Apartment, appliances and equipment furnished by Landlord, as set
forth in this Lease upon written request by Tenant. Tenant's request for any repairs shall constitute permission for Landlord or
Landlord’s agent to enter the Apartment for such purpose at any reasonable time. Payment for repairs necessary due to misuse or
negligent use of the Apartment by Tenant shall be the responsibility of Tenant and shall be due as Rent immediately upon receipt of
an invoice from Landlord. Tenant shall pay for the repair and/or replacement of all items broken or damaged due to misuse or
negligent use, such as clogged drains, broken windows, mirrors and light fixtures. Tenant shall pay all fees and charges to unlock
doors or replace keys, repair nail holes, unstop sewers and plumbing fixtures, fix jammed disposals and other similar expenses.
Upon commencement of the Term, Landlord shall furnish light bulbs and tubes of prescribed wattage for light fixtures located in the
Apartment. Tenant shall thereafter replace light bulbs and tubes of the same wattage at Tenant’s expense. Tenant shall pay for and
replace batteries in any garage door opener provided by Landlord. Landlord will furnish smoke detectors, locks and latches in
compliance with state law. Landlord shall test smoke detectors and provide working batteries (as necessary) at Lease
commencement. Thereafter, Tenant shall pay for and replace detector batteries as needed. Tenant shall not disconnect any smoke
detectors and Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for any loss and damage arising from Tenant's disconnecting or failing to replace
batteries in smoke detectors. All alterations, additions and improvements made to the Apartment shall become the property of
Landlord and shall be surrendered with the Apartment at the expiration or termination of this Lease. NO HOLES SHALL BE DRILLED
INTO THE WALLS, WOODWORK, OR FLOORS, AND NO ANTENNA INSTALLATIONS, SATELLITE SYSTEMS, ADDITIONAL
TELEPHONE OR CABLE OUTLETS, STRINGING OF WIRES, ALARM SYSTEMS OR CHANGE OF LOCKS OR ADDITIONAL LOCKS SHALL
BE PERMITTED WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF LANDLORD. TENANT SHALL NOT PLACE AN AIR CONDITIONING UNIT IN ANY
WINDOW OF THE APARTMENT. Tenant shall not remove any of Landlord’s fixtures, furniture, appliances and/or furnishings from the
Apartment. Tenant shall make no alterations or improvements to the exterior of the Apartment, including but not limited to affixing,
hanging or displaying lights or decorations, satellite hardware etc. to the exterior of the Apartment or common areas without the
written permission of the Landlord.

In the event that the Apartment is damaged to any extent whatsoever by fire or other casualty and if the damage is a result of
Tenant's negligence, use, abuse, or misuse of the Apartment, then Tenant shall be liable for and promptly pay all costs and
expenses to restore the Apartment (including, for example, the cost to repair, refurnish and refurbish, reimbursement to Landlord
for its costs for the adjustment of the loss, legal fees, and costs for temporary board-up and other repairs).


JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight


12. UTILITIES: Tenant shall pay all charges directly to the utility provider or to Landlord or such party designated by
Landlord (if utilities are provided by Landlord) in amounts reasonably determined by Landlord, for:

CHECK APPROPRIATE ITEMS:
Electric
Gas
Water/Sewer

Tenant agrees that concurrently upon taking possession of the Apartment, Tenant will contact the utility companies to place in
Tenant’s name those utilities to be provided and billed to Tenant directly by the utility company. In the event that the utilities are to
be paid by Tenant but are not provided by a utility company or cannot be billed to Tenant directly by said utility company (and as a
consequence are billed by Landlord), Tenant shall pay Landlord (or such party designated by Landlord to invoice and collect such

amounts) as additional rent the cost of the utility as billed within three (3) days of receipt of an invoice.—
In the event the electric utility is interrupted and/or terminated, Tenant will use

only battery-powered lighting. The use of candles and/or kerosene lamps or heaters is prohibited. Electric charges required to be
paid by Tenant include charges for all power for appliances, interior lighting, exterior security lights and sump pumps serving the
Apartment, which are installed and metered to the Apartment.

Landlord reserves the right to charge Tenant any fee which is assessed to Landlord by its trash provider for the disposal of any
items which Tenant places in or near the refuse container.

Notwithstanding the other provisions in this Lease above, Tenant agrees to pay Landlord or its authorized agent for water, sewer,
storm water, municipal fixed water/sewer charges and other related water/sewer charges to the leased premises under the Lease
(“unit”) the Utility Flat Fee specified in Paragraph 4 of the lease, as additional rent, due and payable with the monthly rental amount
on the due date provided for the payment of rent hereunder. The monthly Utility Flat Fee includes an amount allocated to Tenant
for water, sewer, storm water, municipal fixed water/sewer charges and other related water/sewer charges used by Landlord to
maintain the common areas, common grounds and common structures of the Apartment Complex. Landlord reserves the right to
revert to a method that charges Tenant or directs Tenant to pay a third party an allocated amount per month for water, sewer,
storm water, municipal fixed water/sewer charges and other related water/sewer charges based upon metering equipment designed
and installed for such purpose and to charge Tenant with a monthly invoice-processing fee for billing services.

To the extent permitted by law, any delinquent payment of a Utility Bill shall be considered a default under the Lease to the same
extent and with the same remedies to Lessor (including, without limitation, the right to bring a summary proceeding for eviction
against Resident and the right to impose late fees and other related charges and fees) as if Resident had been delinquent in
Resident’s payment of rent.

Tenant will provide proof of utilities into their name prior to move in. Agent for Landlord:

13. HOLDOVER:

SECURITY DEPOSIT: Tenant will, concurrent with the execution of this Lease, deposit the sum of:
$ (TOTAL “SECURITY DEPOSIT")

with Landlord as a security deposit (“Security Deposit”) for the faithful performance of all the covenants and agreements in this
Lease and to guarantee the return of the Apartment to Landlord at the termination of this Lease in as good or better condition as
accepted, normal and reasonable usage excepted.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL TENANT USE THE SECURITY DEPOSIT AS A SUBSTITUTE FOR OR IN LIEU OF
ANY RENTAL PAYMENT DUE UNDER THIS LEASE. UPON MOVE-OUT A WALK THOUGH IS MANDATORY BETWEEN
TENANT AND AGENT FOR LANDLORD.

The deposit will be returned to Tenant within thirty (30) days after the expiration of the Term, after deduction of any amount
needed to cover the replacement of keys, changing of the locks (if the keys are not returned), damage to the Apartment, unpaid
utilities, unpaid Rent, all other fees entitled by law, provided, however, that Tenant has occupied the Apartment for the full Term. If
Tenant has occupied the Apartment for less than the full Term, Landlord shall use the Security Deposit toward lost rent until the
unit is re-rented, damage to the Apartment, unpaid utilities, unpaid Rent, all fees entitled by law due Landlord. Tenant agrees to
provide Landlord, in writing, a forwarding address where the Security Deposit may be returned and/or accounted for. Landlord may
make the Security Deposit refund by check payable to all tenants who have signed this Lease, and said refund shall be in the form
of a single check. Landlord may mail the check and notice of itemized deductions to any one Tenant.

Landlord may during the Term use, apply or retain the whole or any part of the Security Deposit to the extent required for the
payment of any Rent or other sum as to which Tenant is in default or for any sum which Landlord may expend or may be required
to expend by reason of Tenant's default in respect of any of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease, including any
damages or deficiency in the re-letting of the Apartment or other re-entry by Landlord. If Landlord uses, applies or retains the
whole or any part of the Security Deposit, Tenant shall replenish the Security Deposit to its original sum as listed above within five
(5) days of being notified by Landlord of the amount due. Tenant shall be in default of this Lease if the amount is not paid within
the said time period.

Within thirty (30) days after termination of Landlord’s interest in the Apartment, whether by sale, assignment, appointment of a
receiver or otherwise, Landlord shall transfer the Security Deposit to Landlord’s successor in interest and Landlord shall thereupon
be relieved of all liability in connection with said Security Deposit and accrued interest thereon.


JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight


YOU MUST NOTIFY THIS LANDLORD IN WRITING WITHIN FOUR (4) DAYS
AFTER YOU MOVE OF A FORWARDING ADDRESS WHERE YOU CAN BE
REACHED AND WHERE YOU WILL RECEIVE MAIL; OTHERWISE YOUR
MANAGEMENT SHALL BE RELIEVED OF SENDING YOU AN ITIMIZED LIST OF
DAMAGES AND THE PENALTIES ADHERENT TO THAT FAILURE.

15. MAINTENANCE OF APARTMENT: Tenant shall keep the Apartment and appliances thereto in a clean and healthy
condition, according to all applicable statutes and ordinances, all at Tenant’s own expense, and shall return the Apartment back to
Landlord upon termination of this Lease for any reason whatsoever in the same condition of cleanliness and repair as at the date of
the execution hereof, reasonable wear and tear excepted. Tenant shall be charged and promptly pay for all necessary repairs and
restoration to walls, ceilings, floors, woodwork, paint, plastering, plumbing, pipes and fixtures in or upon the Apartment whenever
damage or injury to the same shall have resulted from misuse or neglect or any other cause other than Landlord’s acts, and Tenant
shall replace broken globes, glass and fixtures with material of the same size and quality as that broken. Tenant likewise shall
replace broken parts of all kitchen appliances when the same shall have been lost or broken by Tenant or any other person. The
charge to Tenant for any replacements shall be the cost of replacement of broken or worn out parts or appliances when the same
shall have been lost or broken by Tenant or any other person. If the Apartment shall not be kept in good repair and in a clean and
sightly condition by Tenant as aforesaid, Landlord may enter the Apartment, itself or by its agents, servants or employees, without
such entering causing or constituting a termination of this Lease or an interference with the possession of the Apartment by Tenant,
and Landlord may place the same in the same condition as existed at the date of execution hereof. Tenant shall pay Landlord, in
addition to the Rent hereby reserved, the expenses of Landlord in thus placing the Apartment in that condition. Tenant agrees not
to cause or permit any waste, misuse or neglect of the water, or of the water, gas or electric fixtures. Landlord may, but shall not
be obligated to, provide exterminating service to the Apartment, but Landlord shall have no liability to Tenant or Tenant's agents,
employees, guests, invitees or members of their families by reason of the discontinuance of such service, failure to provide such
service or the manner in which such service is performed.

16. SUBLEASE AND ASSIGNMENT: Tenant shall not assign or transfer this Lease or any interest therein, or hypothecate or
mortgage the same, or sublet the Apartment or any part thereof, without in each case the prior written consent of Landlord.
17. VACATING THE APARTMENT:

A. At the termination of this Lease, Tenant shall deliver possession to Landlord and return all keys to the

Apartment, outside doors and mailbox to Landlord and shall peaceably deliver the Apartment in as good order and repair as at the
commencement of the Term, reasonable wear and tear excepted. Tenant shall remove any and all rubbish or other matter,
including any furniture and other items of personal property, prior to vacating the Apartment. Any items not so removed shall be
considered abandoned by Tenant and Landlord shall, without any liability to Tenant and at Tenant's sole cost and expense, dispose
of same or remove all or any part of such property in any manner Landlord may choose and store the same without liability to
Tenant for loss or damage. Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for all expenses incurred in such removal and storage of such
property. Upon any termination of this Lease, Landlord shall have a lien upon the personal property and effects of Tenant remaining
in the Apartment and Landlord may at its option and without notice sell at private or public sale all or any part of the property and
effects for such price as Landlord may deem best. Landlord shall apply the proceeds of such sale to any amounts due under this
Lease from Tenant to Landlord, including the expense of removal and sale.

B. At the time Tenant vacates the Apartment, Landlord shall inspect the Apartment and all items of damage or
defects shall be noted on a “Move-Out Form.” Tenant will be held responsible for any and all damages to the Apartment which was
not reported prior to move in. At the time Tenant vacates the Apartment, Landlord or Landlord’s agent shall inspect the Apartment
and identify those items which need to be repaired, corrected or cleaned. In case of damage to the Apartment or other unfulfilled
obligations by Tenant, Landlord shall mail to Tenant within thirty (30) days after the termination of said occupancy an itemized list
with the estimated cost of cleaning, replacement or repair of each item. A check for the difference, if any, between such
assessment and the amount of the Security Deposit held by Landlord will be processed and delivered to Tenant as this Lease and
applicable law require.

18. RESERVED RIGHTS: Landlord (including its agents, employees or any other party designated to act on Landlord’s
behalf) reserves the following rights: (a) to enter the Apartment or any part thereof at any time in the event of an emergency and
otherwise at all reasonable hours for inspection, repairs, alterations or additions, to exhibit the Apartment to prospective tenants or
purchasers, to display “For Rent” and similar signs, and for any other purposes whatsoever related to the safety, protection,
preservation or improvement of the Apartment or Apartment Complex, (b) to enter the Apartment at any time or times, during the
last sixty (60) days of the Term, if during or prior to said sixty (60) day period Tenant has vacated the Apartment, to decorate,
remodel, repair, alter or otherwise prepare the Apartment for re-occupancy, and (c) to retain and use pass keys to the Apartment.
The exercise of these reserved rights by Landlord shall not render Landlord liable in any manner to Tenant or any person in the
Apartment.

19. MOLD: Resident acknowledges that it is necessary for Resident to provide appropriate climate control, keep the Premises
clean, and take other measures to retard and prevent mold and mildew from accumulating in the Premises. Resident agrees to
clean and dust the Premises on a regular basis and to remove visible moisture accumulation on windows, walls and any other
surfaces as soon as reasonably possible. Resident agrees not to block or cover any of the heating, ventilation or air-conditioning
ducts in the Premises. Resident agrees to immediately report to the management office (a) any evidence of a water leak or
excessive moisture in the Premises, as well as in any storage room, garage, or other common area: (b) any evidence of mold or
mildew-like growth that cannot be removed by simply applying a common household cleaner and wiping the area: (c) any failure or
malfunction in the heating, ventilation, air conditioning or laundry systems in the Premises: and (d) any inoperable doors or
windows. Resident further agrees that Resident shall be responsible for damage to the Premises and Resident’s property as well as
injury to Resident and Occupants resulting from Resident's failure to comply with the terms of this clause, as permitted by
state/local law. A default under this clause may be deemed good cause for termination of Residents tenancy.

20. QUIET ENJOYMENT: Landlord hereby covenants with Tenant that, subject to Tenant's performance of and compliance
with the terms and conditions and covenants herein set forth, Tenant shall peacefully hold and enjoy the Apartment.


JLateulere
Highlight


21. ABANDONMENT: In the event that Tenant shall abandon or vacate the Apartment before the end of the Term while all
or any portion of the Rent is unpaid or if Tenant shall fail to pay Rent promptly when due, the Apartment or any part thereof may
be repossessed by Landlord and relent upon terms satisfactory to Landlord, and Tenant shall be liable for any deficiency resulting
there from. Tenant's liability for deficiency includes, but is not limited to, painting, cleaning and repair costs, and loss of rent for any
day that the Apartment is vacant, and costs of obtaining a new tenant. Landlord may apply the Security Deposit to pay for any
damages caused by Tenant's vacating or abandonment. Such application of the Security Deposit shall not waive or limit Landlord’s
right to further hold Tenant liable for any other costs, damages, losses or injury. Tenant understands that upon such abandonment
or vacation of the Apartment, Tenant's belongings may then be inventoried, stored or disposed of and the Apartment re-rented
without liability of Landlord to Tenant whatsoever.

In the event that said tenant is required to vacate prior to term of lease the Tenant may choose to terminate the
Agreement before the natural expiration of the Agreement. To exercise this option, Tenant must submit his/her
intentions, in writing, to Landlord at least thirty (30) days before termination and must pay a penalty equal to two
monthly installments in addition to their final month’s rent. In paying this penalty, the Agreement will be
terminated and the Landlord will not hold the Tenant accountable for any of the monthly installments remaining in
the term of this Agreement.

Initials: Initials:

22. LIABILITY: Tenant releases and relieves Landlord, its managing agent, and their agents, employees, contractors,
lenders, successors and assigns, from any and all liability to Tenant or Tenant's agents, employees, guests, invitees or members of
their families (collectively, the “Landlord Parties”), from any loss, damage or injury to their property or person in the Apartment or
in the building or on the grounds of which the Apartment or Apartment Complex is a part, occurring by, through or in connection
with theft, burglary, assault or any other act, or from fire, heat or cold, or from gas, water, rain, snow, ice or other substance which
may leak into, drop, issue or flow from any part of the building or from the pipes or plumbing or wiring of the building or from any
other place or arising from any other cause whatever. Tenant shall indemnify and save harmless, including all reasonable attorneys’
fees, the Landlord Parties from all legal action, damages, loss, liability, cost and any other expenses in connection with the loss of
life, bodily or personal injury or property damage arising from or out of the use or occupancy of the Apartment. Moreover, the
foregoing release and indemnity shall include, but not be limited to, claims for damage to person or property resulting from any
equipment or appurtenance out of repair, defective electrical heating, air conditioning, plumbing, sewer or water system or
installation or for the acts, omissions or negligence of trespassers, guests, invitees or other occupants of the Apartment.

LANDLORD STRONGLY RECOMMENDS THAT TENANT SECURE TENANT’'S OWN RENTERS INSURANCE TO PROTECT
AGAINST ALL OCCURENCES.

23. TENANT DEFAULT: If Tenant defaults in the performance of any of the terms, covenants or conditions herein contained,
other than the covenants to pay Rent (for which there is no cure period), or if any conduct of Tenant or Tenant's guest(s) or
occupant(s) of the Apartment shall be objectionable to the other tenants of the Apartment Complex or to Landlord, in Landlord’s
reasonable opinion, Landlord may give Tenant seven (7) days’ written notice thereof, and if such default has not been cured or the
objectionable conduct stopped within said seven (7) days, Landlord may give Tenant seven (7) days’ notice of termination of this
Lease, and at the expiration of said seven (7) days the Term of this Lease shall terminate and Tenant shall surrender the Apartment
to Landlord, but Tenant shall remain liable as hereinafter provided. In case of default by Tenant in the payment of Rent or if the
seven (7) day notice above provided shall have been given and elapsed without curing such default or stopping the objectionable
conduct, or if the Apartment becomes vacant or abandoned, Landlord may at any time thereafter resume possession thereof by any
lawful means, and remove Tenant or other occupants and their effects by dispossession proceedings or otherwise without being
liable to prosecution or damages therefore, and Landlord may hold the Apartment as if this Lease had not been made. In any such
case, Landlord may at Landlord’s option re-let the Apartment or any part thereof as agent of Tenant or otherwise, and receive the
rent therefore, applying same first to the payment of such expenses as Landlord may have incurred in connection with said
resumption of possession and re-letting, including brokerage, cleaning, repairs and decorations, and then to the payment of Rent
and performance of other covenants of Tenant as herein provided. Tenant shall, whether or not Landlord has re-let the Apartment,
pay Landlord the Rent and other sums herein agreed to be paid by Tenant, less the proceeds of such re-letting, if any, as
ascertained from time to time, and the same shall be payable by Tenant on the dates above specified. Tenant hereby waives all
right of redemption to which Tenant or any person claiming under Tenant might be entitled by law.

24. NO WAIVER: The failure of Landlord to insist in any instance on strict performance of any covenant hereof, or to
exercise any option herein contained, shall not be construed as a waiver of such covenant or option in any other instance. No
modification of any provision hereof and no cancellation or surrender hereof shall be valid unless in writing and signed by both
parties.

25. DAMAGE: In the event the Apartment Complex is made completely uninhabitable by fire or other cause, this Lease may
be terminated by either party upon reasonable notice.

26. POSSESSION: If the Apartment is not available for occupancy upon the date agreed or specified in this Lease for any
reason whatsoever, Tenant shall not have cause for damages, except a rebate of Rent, if paid, for the period that the Apartment is
not available. The rebate shall be based upon a daily proration of the monthly Rent then in effect.

27. PEST MANAGEMENT: Tenant(s) acknowledges that Landlord and Tenant(s) have inspected the Apartment (including
baseboards, carpet edges, window and door molding) and neither is aware nor found any visible signs of bed bug or other pest
infestation. Tenant(s) certifies that all furnishings and personal property (including mattresses, box springs, bed frames and
headboards, couches, sofas, chairs and recliners, nightstands, dressers and clothing, luggage and backpacks) moved into the
Apartment are free of bed bugs or other pest infestation and that Tenant(s) is not aware of any infestation or presence of bed bugs
or any pest in Tenant(s) current or previous apartment(s) or home(s), and Tenant(s) has fully disclosed to Landlord any previous
bed bug infestation or issues which Tenant(s) may have experienced or is experiencing.

Any items, including, but not limited to, furniture and clothing, shall be thoroughly inspected for bed bugs or other pest infestation
prior to said item being brought into the Apartment or onto the Property.

Tenant(s) shall notify Landlord immediately upon discovering bed bugs or other pest infestation. If Tenant(s) fails to immediately
notify Landlord of a discovery of bed bugs or other pest infestation, then Tenant(s) shall be charged the costs of treatment,
eradication of the infestation and cleaning of the infested areas of the Apartment or Property. Tenant(s) agrees not to try to treat
the Apartment for bed bug or other pest infestation or hire any outside pest control company. Tenant(s) acknowledges that
Landlord has the full right to select its own licensed pest control company to perform treatments and cleaning of the Apartment if
necessary. Tenant(s) understands that the cost of extermination, and possibly the invasiveness of treatment and extermination,
will be greatly reduced if the infestation is reported as early as possible.

Tenant(s) agrees not to hinder, disrupt or prevent Landlord and/or anyone acting at Landlord's direction, from inspecting and/or
treating the Apartment or Property. Tenant(s) shall fully, strictly and promptly comply with any instructions/directions given to
Tenant(s) by Landlord and/or its pest control company or professional. Tenant(s) shall fully cooperate with Landlord in inspecting
the Apartment for possible infestations and/or preparing the Apartment for extermination treatments based upon the instructions
provided by Landlord or its pest control professional. Failure to fully cooperate or comply with Landlord's instructions or with
Landlord's pest control professional's instructions or failure to provide access to the Apartment for inspection or extermination,
given reasonable advance notice to enter for inspection, extermination and/or treatments, shall constitute grounds for termination



of the Rental Agreement and/or eviction. Furthermore Tenant(s) expressly authorizes Landlord, its employees and/or pest control
personnel to move any item of personal property within the Apartment to assist in inspection, treatment, prevention or
extermination in the event Tenant(s) fails to do so. Tenant(s) hereby waives any claim against Landlord, its emiloiees or iest

control Eersonnel for ani damacl;es associated with the movinc.; of any item of property for such purposes.

Landlord reserves the right to charge the cost of treatment, eradication of infestation and cleaning of infested areas to Tenant(s).
Said charges include, but are not limited to, the costs associated with additional treatments, rescheduling inspections and/or
treatments and eradication of the infestation. Landlord shall notify Tenant(s) in writing as to any charges assessed to Tenant(s).
Tenant(s) shall be required to pay said charges within thirty (30) days of receiving said notice. Any such charges may be deducted
from Tenant(s) security deposit. Landlord may also terminate the Rental Agreement.

Initials: Initials:

28. SMOKE-FREE COMPLEX: Tenant agrees and acknowledges that the premises to be occupied by Tenant and members
of Tenant’'s household have been designated as a smoke-free living environment. Tenant and members of Tenant’s household shall
not smoke anywhere in the unit rented by Tenant, or the building where the Tenant's dwelling is located, nor shall Tenant permit
any guests or visitors under the control of Tenant to do so. The term “smoke” or “smoking” means inhaling, exhaling, breathing, or
carrying any lighted cigar, cigarette, or other tobacco product or similar lighted product in any manner or in any form. Tenant shall
inform Tenant's guests of the no-smoking rules. Further, tenant shall promptly give Landlord a written statement of any incident
where tobacco smoke is migrating into the Tenant's unit from sources outside of the Tenant’s dwelling. Any outdoor use must be
sufficient distance from the building as to not migrate to any other apartments. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord’'s adoption of a
smoke-free living environment, and the efforts to designate the rental complex as smoke-free, do not make the Landlord or any of
its managing agents the guarantor of Tenant’'s health or the health of any members of Tenant’s household, or of the smoke-free
condition of the Tenant’'s unit and the common areas. However, Landlord shall take reasonable steps to enforce the smoke-free
terms of its leases and to make the complex smoke-free. Landlord is not required to take steps in response to smoking unless
Landlord is put on notice of the presence of tobacco smoke, via agent, personal knowledge, and/or written notice by any tenant.

Initials: Initials:

29. MISCELLANEOUS: This Lease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. If and only to
the extent that any court of competent jurisdiction determines that any provision of this Lease is invalid, then such holding shall not
in any way affect the validity of any other provisions of this Lease.

Initials: Initials:

30. NOTICES: Any notice to Landlord must be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, to Landlord at:

Any bill, statement, notice, demand or communication by Landlord to Tenant, including any notice of expiration or termination of
the Term, shall be deemed to be duly given or rendered if in writing and delivered personally to Tenant or deposited in Tenant's
mailbox in the Apartment Complex, or sent by first class or certified mail, addressed to Tenant at the Apartment, or left at the
Apartment so addressed (or, if prior to the commencement of the Term, addressed to Tenant at Tenant’s then current address).

31. ENTIRE AGREEMENT/NO MODIFICATION: This Lease constitutes the entire agreement between Landlord and
Tenant, and no representations, oral or written, not contained herein or attached hereto, shall bind either party. This Lease may not
be altered, amended, changed or modified unless in writing and signed by both parties. Tenant acknowledges that by executing this
Lease, Tenant has read this Lease, understands its contents, and has been given a fully executed copy.

Initials: Initials:

32. SUCCESSORS: This Lease shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective heirs,
personal representative, successors or assigns.
Accepted:

Date:
Tenant

Date:
Tenant
Waterstone at Village Square, as Landlord

Date:

Agent for Landlord

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY


JLateulere
Highlight

JLateulere
Highlight


EXHIBIT A

RULES AND REGULATIONS

Tenant and Tenant's family, and their servants, employees, agents, visitors, licensees and invitees, shall observe and comply with
the Rules and Regulations set forth below and made a part of this Lease, as the same may be amended, modified or rescinded from
time to time, and with such other and further Rules and Regulations as Landlord may from time to time deem necessary and
prescribe for the safety, care and cleanliness of the Apartment, the Apartment Complex and the grounds and preservation of good
order therein or for the comfort, quiet, convenience and safety of occupants of the Apartment Complex. Failure of Tenant,
Tenant’s family, and their servants, employees, agents, visitors, licensees and invitees, to comply with the Rules
and Regulations shall constitute a default under this Lease, enabling Landlord to exercise any and all remedies
provided at law or under this Lease. Notice of any such amendment, modification or rescission of such further Rules and
Regulations may be given by Landlord by posting or in such manner as Landlord may determine.

VI.

NOISE AND CONDUCT

Tenant shall not make or permit any disturbing noises, including screaming or loud arguing, which in the sole
discretion of Landlord unreasonably interfere with the rights, comforts or convenience of other tenants. Tenant shall
keep the volume of any radio, television, stereo, or musical instrument in the Apartment sufficiently low at all times
so as not to disturb other tenants. The volume of noise that constitutes a violation of this rule shall be left to the
sole discretion of Landlord. Tenant may not conduct any vocal or instrumental instructions in the Apartment.

Tenant shall be responsible and liable for the conduct of its guests. Acts of guests in violation of this Lease or these
rules and regulations may be deemed by Landlord to be a breach by Tenant.

Tenant agrees to abide by rules and regulations established for use of recreational, health and service facilities
provided by Landlord.

Entrances, walks, lawns and other public areas shall not be obstructed. No personal belongings may be placed in
common areas or about the building. Recreational equipment and toys, such as tricycles, scooters, wagons, etc., will
be of size and quantity to permit storage inside the Apartment or garage, if such is available. The use of bicycles,
skateboards, roller skates, scooters, etc. will not be permitted at the Apartment Complex or on community streets,
walkways, or parking lots.

Tenant shall not display any unsightly signs or markings on the Apartment.

CLEANLINESS AND TRASH

The Apartment must be kept clean, sanitary and free from objectionable odor.

No littering of papers, cigarette butts, or trash is allowed. No trash or other materials may be accumulated which will
cause a hazard or be in violation of any health, fire or safety ordinance or regulation.

No goods or materials of any kind or description which are combustible or would increase fire risk shall be placed in
any storage area. Storage in such area shall be at Tenant's risk and Landlord shall not be responsible for any loss or
damage. Tenant shall not store gasoline or other combustibles in the Apartment or in any storage area.

Garbage is to be placed inside the containers provided. Garbage shall not be allowed to accumulate. Items too large
to fit in the trash containers must be disposed of by Tenant and shall not be left beside the trash containers.

Any balcony or patios shall be kept neat and clean at all times. No rugs, towels, laundry, clothing or other items shall
be stored, hung or draped on railings or other portions of the balcony or patio. Unsightly items must be kept out of
vision.

MAINTENANCE, REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS

No screws, anchors or plastic mollies may be placed in the walls, woodwork or any part of the Apartment.

Tenant shall make no alterations or improvements to the interior or exterior of the Apartment without written
permission from Landlord including but not limited to affixing, hanging, or displaying lights or decorations, satellite
hardware, etc. to the exterior of the Apartment without the written permission of the Landlord.

Tenant is prohibited from adding, changing or in any way altering the locks in the Apartment without prior written
permission from Landlord.

All notices and requests for repairs or services by Tenant must be in writing to Landlord. Any maintenance or repair
by Landlord (unless emergencies) shall occur during normal business hours.

LOCKS AND KEYS

PARKING AND VEHICLES
All vehicles MUST be registered with the Rental Office. All guests and extra occupants must park in Visitor Parking.
ALL vehicles must be operable. Any inoperable vehicle will be towed away at Tenant's expense.

MISCELLANEOUS

LIVE CHRISTMAS TREES: Only artificial Christmas trees are permitted.

WATERBEDS: Waterbeds are not permitted unless Tenant receives prior written permission from Landlord and
presents proof of Renter's Insurance.

OCCUPANTS: Occupants under 16 are not to be left unattended on any part of the Apartment Complex and are not
permitted to loiter or play on the common areas, public driveway or parking areas. Occupants under age 16 must be
supervised at all times.

BALCONIES AND PATIOS: Only patio furniture is permitted to be kept on balconies. No partitions or enclosures of
any type and webbing of balcony rail are permitted. Tenant agrees not to place any carpeting or other covering on
the patio or balcony. In addition, Tenant agrees that in the event he/she places carpeting or other coverings on the
patio or balcony, Landlord, without notice to Tenant, will remove same and Tenant shall remit to Landlord, as
additional rent, the sum of One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) as reimbursement to Landlord for said removal.
CLEANING, RUBBISH: Dust, rubbish, litter or other items shall not be thrown or emptied from any windows or
porches/balconies. All rubbish should be properly disposed of in, but not outside of, the provided dumpsters.
Landlord reserves the right to charge Tenant with any additional fee which is assessed to Landlord by the provider of
the refuse disposal by reason of incorrect disposal of waste. Do not place large items into compactors or dumpsters;
call the office to schedule a special pick-up.

ILLEGAL ACTIVITIES: Tenant shall not in the Apartment, parking garages, parking lot, maintenance areas, laundry
rooms, lobbies and all other common and/or public areas of the building or any part of the Apartment Complex,
engage in or permit any drug-related or other criminal activity, or engage in or permit any activity that endangers
the health or safety of other residents in Landlord’s sole discretion, or engage in or permit any activity that is, in
Landlord’s sole discretion, otherwise injurious to the community or its reputation. Instances of such conduct shall
include, but not be limited to, Tenant’s permitting any co-tenant, occupant, member of Tenant's household or family,
guest, invitee, or other persons Tenant permits to occupy or use the Apartment, to use, manufacture, purchase, sell
or otherwise distribute illegal drugs or illegal drug-related paraphernalia in or about the Apartment. The restrictions
contained hereunder are material obligations under the Lease. Landlord’s receipt of complaints from other residents
or building employees shall be conclusive evidence that Tenant has violated the foregoing restrictions. Violation shall
constitute grounds for termination of the Rental Agreement and/or eviction.


JLateulere
Highlight


10.

11.

12.

13.
14.
15.

LAVATORIES: The water closets and other waste and drain pipes shall be kept open at Tenant's sole cost and
expense and they shall not be used for any purpose other than for that for which they were constructed. No
sweeping, rubbish, rags, sanitary napkins, papers, ashes or hair, or any other substance, shall be thrown therein.
The cost to repair any damage resulting to said water closets or sanitary sewers from misuse of any nature
whatsoever shall be paid by Tenant as additional rent within thirty (30) days of being invoiced.

COOKING AND GRILLING: There shall be no cooking or baking done within the Apartment, except in the kitchen.
Tenant further agrees that it will not operate a charcoal, gas or electric grill or barbecue apparatus within the
Apartment. The storage, keeping, or use of gas, charcoal or open burners of any sort (as well as the fuel that they
use) or any other cooking device not designated for indoor use is not permitted in the Apartment. All grilling for
personal use may only be on the back patio or balcony and must be at least ten (10) feet from the building or fence.
Any damage to siding or fence shall be paid by Tenant as additional rent within thirty (30) days of being invoiced.
AWNINGS, SIGNS AND ADVERTISMENT: No awning, projection, sign, advertisement, flag, notice or device of any
kind shall be placed or permitted to remain upon any part of the Apartment or Apartment Complex, nor shall any
article be suspended outside the Apartment or Apartment Complex or placed in the windows or windowsills thereof.
DEFECTS IN PIPES, WIRES AND ROOFS: Tenant shall immediately give Landlord notice of defects in gas, water
pipes or in electrical wires or the leaking of any roof.

WINDOW TREATMENTS: Tenant shall cover all windows and patio doors in the Apartment with either white or
white-lined draperies or curtains.

EXTERMINATING: Tenant agrees to cooperate with Landlord or its exterminating service, if Landlord provides same.
Tenant shall permit Landlord’s exterminating service company access to the Apartment for the purposes of spraying,
baiting or other type of service deemed necessary by the exterminating service company, to control and/or rid the
Apartment of insects, rodents or other pests. Upon notice from Landlord, Tenant shall remove all items from the
cupboards, cabinets and drawers in the Apartment, including all food, food products, dishes and other items stored
in same, in order to enable the exterminating service company to spray the Apartment. Tenant's failure to so
cooperate shall be considered a material breach of the terms of this Lease.

SOLICITATION: Solicitation of any type is prohibited in the apartment Community.
GARAGES: Garages are not to be used as living space.
SATTELITE DISH: Tenant must contact the office prior to installation. Installation must be in accordance with Lease.
There is no guarantee of acceptable satellite reception in every unit. Satellite hardware must be mounted on the
back patio area only and may not encroach onto the common area. Furthermore no holes may be drilled into the
building for any reason. Installed height must not exceed the lip of the gutter.

Read and Accepted:

Initial Initial

EQUAL HOUSING
OPPORTUNITY


JLateulere
Highlight


e TR e RS s e T R T R DT T T A TR R LR T A e TR e T

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION
48 West Huron Street - Pontiac, Mi 48342

CHARTER TOWNSHIP of YPSILANTI
7200 S HURON RIVER DRIVE

YPSILANTI, Ml 48197-7007
Attention: Joe Lawson

STATE OF MICHIGAN,
COUNTY OF WAYNE

The undersigned(ﬁbbg'%‘% Z}‘?’%W , being duly sworn the

he/she.is the principal clerk of Washtenaw Now, Washtenaw Now.com, Washtenaw
Now.com2, published in the English language for the dissemination of local or
transmitted news and intelligence of a general character, which are dully qualified

newspapers, and the annexed hereto is a copy of certain order, notice, publication or
advertisement of:

,, BB .
Published in the following edition(s):

Washtenaw Now 09/04/14
Washtenaw Now.com 09/04/14
Washtenaw Now.com?2 09/04/14

Sworn to the subscribed befare me this

Notary Riiblic, State of Miéhigan

Acting in County of Wayne

Mary Anne Coghlan
Nty Publi
State of Michigan

Clientld: 641381 Ad id: léﬁﬁééﬁmission Exﬁf& 02-27-2020  Totak $61.45




Supervisor

BRENDA L. STUMBO Office of Community

Clerk, ﬁ T ﬁ . Standards

KAREN LOVEJOY ROE C d?’tm’ owns lp 0
Treasurer ) 7200 S. Huron River Drive
LARRY J. DOE . (Y [ t . Ypsilanti, MI 48197
Trustees Phone: (734) 485-3943
JEAN HALL CURRIE pSl anti Fax: (734) 484-5151

STAN ELDRIDGE
MIKE MARTIN
SCOTT MARTIN

“Placing Residents First” www.ytown.org

February 13, 2012

Mr. Scott Jacobson

S.R. Jacobson Companies
32400 Telegraph Road
Suite 100

Bingham Farms, Ml 48025

Re: Lakewood Farms — Re-Approval Process
Mr. Jacobson,

On behalf of our entire development team, please allow me to thank you and Mr.
Kianicky for attending our development team meeting of February 9, 2012.

As discussed during the aforementioned meeting, please find below an outline of
the process necessary to allow the Planning Commission and Board of Trustees
to re-approve the development known as “Lakewood Farms”.

On August 1, 2006, the Township Board of Trustees approved the PD Stage Il
and final engineering for the Lakewood Farms Planned Development consisting
of the following density and types of units:

116 single-family units

97 villa detached units

130 duplex units

72 multiple family residential units

254.90 total acres

90.15 acres of dedicated open space including the lakes

It should also be noted that per section 1903(5) of the PD review process and
approval, this project was granted a density bonus of not more than 20% in
exchange for the amount and quality of the provided open space.

As part of the PD State Il approval, the following conditions were attached
thereto:

e Final approval is contingent upon satisfaction of all conditions
specified in the correspondence of OHM of August 1, 2006
regarding Lakewood Farms South.



Lakewood Farms Re-Approval
February 13, 2012

e All documentation for the Planned Development Agreement and the
creation of the condominium and final approval of the PD rezoning
ordinance must be prepared by the Township Attorney in
cooperation with the applicant for placement on a future agenda of
the Township Board for consideration of final rezoning and
document approval

e Review of open space by the Township Recreation Director;

e Placement of fish insignias on the storm castings;

¢ Inclusion of no phosphorus fertilizer requirement in the association
by-laws

e Installation of dark sky approved street lighting

e Installation of an aerating device in the detention pond

e Turf repair, irrigation system repair and the installation of any
crosswalk improvements that might be required by the WCRC at
Harbor Cove.

Per sections 2115(3)(K) and 1923 of the Township Zoning Ordinance should
construction and development commence within one year of final approval, then
such approval shall continue for a period of five years from the date thereof;
provided, however, that a lapse of more than one year in continuous substantial
construction and development does not occur, in which event, said approval shall
expire. As this project commenced construction more than 5 years ago in
addition to sitting idle for approximately 5+ years, the previously approved PD
Stage Il approval is deemed expired.

With that said, while also taking into consideration the minor changes to the
approved plan discussed during our meeting, | recommend the following
procedure in order to achieve a new plan approval:

e Submit an application for a revised PD Stage | approval taking into
consideration the discussed phasing and product revisions.
= Submit a draft development agreement for review
= Submit a proposed phasing plan
» The Planning Commission makes recommendation to the
Board for review and approval. (8 weeks)

e Schedule a preliminary walk-thru with Township Engineering
consultant OHM and YCUA representatives to create a punch list of
the existing infrastructure. This punch list will also enable OHM to
produce an updated pre-construction requirements letter and surety
amounts once PD Stage Il approval has been granted.

= An inspection escrow deposit will be required for this service.

e Submit an application for PD Stage Il approval for the phase(s) to
be constructed within one year of approval.

2|Page



Lakewood Farms Re-Approval
February 13, 2012

= The final draft of the development agreement shall be
reviewed and approved by the Township Board and Legal
Counsel during this phase of review.

= Pre-construction requirements letter will be issued in relation
to the requested phase(s). Each phase will receive final PD
Stage Il approval individually as requested.

= Sureties will be posted for each phases as noted within the
pre-construction requirements letter. (12-16 weeks)

| would anticipate this entire process, from submittal of the PD Stage | application
through the preconstruction meeting, taking approximately 5 to 7 months to
complete.

As | hope was clearly conveyed during our meeting, the Township is willing to be
as flexible as possible in order to make this project succeed while meeting the
goals and objectives of your company as well as the Township.

Sincerely,

yd ;
o \ A7
- :lﬂ'f .-- A T —
L~

Joseph Lawson
Planning Director

Cc File
Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk
Larry Doe, Treasurer
Mike Radzik, OCS Director
Ron Fulton, Building Director
Denny McLain, Twp Attorney

3|Page



NEW BUSINESS




CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
2015 BUDGET AMENDMENT #4

March 3, 2015

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $8,200.00

Increase budget for non assessment Cameras in Harris Park (2), Tyler/Redwood Catwalk (1), and for main station. The 3
cameras in the park areas and catwalk are approximately $1,800 each and the main station is approximately $2,800
annually. This is funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $8,200.00
Net Revenues $8,200.00
Expenditures: Camera - Non Assessment 101-956-000-925.000 $8,200.00
$8,200.00

266 - LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND Total Increase $45,000.00

Increase budget for Huron Law Enforcement Station Capital Outlay to complete the improvement project started in 2014.
This is funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Revenues: Prior Year Appropriation 266-000-000-699.000 $45,000.00
Net Revenues $45,000.00
Expenditures: Cap Outlay - Huron Police Station 266-301-000.975.266 $45,000.00
Net Expenditures $45,000.00

595-MOTORPOOL FUND Total Increase $90,000.00

Increase the budget for the purchase of (3) vehicles and dump box to replenish fleet not to exceed $90,000 for use of
various departments. (Ford Transit 250XL, Ford F-250 4x4 with dump box, Ford F-250 4x2, Tandem Dump Trailer). This is
funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Revenues: Prior Year Appropriation 595-000-000-699.000 $90,000.00
Net Revenues $90,000.00

Expenditures: Capital Outlay/Vehicles 595-595-000-985.000 $90,000.00
Net Expenditures $90,000.00

lofl



Motion to Amend the 2015 Budget (#4):

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $8,200 to $7,859,035 and approve the
department line item changes as outlined.

Move to increase the Law Enforcement Fund budget by $45,000 to $6,690,573 and
approve the department line item changes as outlined.

Move to increase Motor Pool Fund budget by $90,000 to $312,671 and approve the
department line item changes as outlined.



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
RESOLUTION NO. 2015-4

ADOPTION OF HOUSING AFFORDABILITY AND
ECONOMIC EQUITY — ANALYSIS
FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY

WHEREAS, the Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic
Development undertook an analysis of housing market conditions throughout the
community, with support from the City of Ann Arbor, the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development and the Ann Arbor Downtown Development
Authority; and

WHEREAS, the report from that analysis provides information from
stakeholder interviews, surveys, and data analysis describing a widening
imbalance in the housing markets of Washtenaw County, and particularly the
urbanized area; and

WHEREAS, the report provides findings as well as targets and
implementation strategies that can be considered to improve the balance of
markets and the access of lower income households throughout the community;
and

WHEREAS, the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees is committed to
promoting those policies that create resiliency, promote equity, and improve
opportunity for households of all income levels throughout the County.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that Ypsilanti Township hereby
adopts the Housing Affordability and Equity — Analysis for Washtenaw County;
and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees commits to
advancing the goals of this analysis to promote balance in the County’s housing
market through policy and resource allocations, partnerships and collaborations
throughout the County, and through a goal of providing services to all County
residents, inclusive of the most vulnerable; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees supports the
identification and/or designation of a regional workgroup or structure that will
advance and annually review the status of goals identified on this report and
requests that the Office of Community and Economic Development regularly
report on progress to the Board of Trustees and the community at large.



Housing Affordability and Economic Equity - Analysis
Washtenaw County, Michigan

czb Report

Prepared for the Office of Community and Economic Development
Washtenaw County

January 2015



Theimbalance in income, education and opportunity between the jurisdictions
along with the segregation that goes with it will hamper the regional economic
growth potential of the area. Regions that experience strong and more stable
growth are typically more equitable, have less segregation and better
balanced workforce skills within them.

This report was commissioned by the Washtenaw County Office of Community and Economic Development, and
was funded by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, the City of Ann Arbor, the Ann Arbor
Downtown Development Authority, and Washtenaw County. The goal of this analysis is to provide a snapshot of
housing market conditions and corresponding goals to improve affordability across a wide spectrum of households
in Washtenaw County’s urban core communities. In support of these goals, the report identifies tools intended to
guide the allocation of resources and policy decisions toward a regionally balanced housing market in order to
maximize opportunity for lower and middle class households. This supports the development of a more equitable
community, with corresponding economic, environmental, and other quality of life benefits for all residents.

czb is an Alexandria, Virginia - based community planning
practice specializing in econometric analysis, community
engagement, and strategy and comprehensive planning

www.czb.org


http://www.czb.org
http://www.czb.org

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

While real challenges require attention, the overall housing market in
Washtenaw County is basically healthy.

Despite foreclosure and resulting - and troubling - tenure shifts in Ypsilanti
Township, the countywide market has stabilized to where most homes in
most jurisdictions have recovered at least 85% of their 2005 value. And, at
the county level, the “housing ladder” is balanced, with a wide range of
options for renters and buyers. Though more than 90% of renter
households with annual incomes below $20,000 are cost burdened, the
overall market is affordable. Value to income ratios throughout most of the
county are between 2.67 (Ypsilanti Township) and 4.34 (Ann Arbor), making
home ownership possible. Plus, renter household incomes to median rent
ratios range from 2.4 to 3.4, meaning that all but the most challenged can
find an affordable apartment in the county without a significant commute.

However, this is not a complete picture. The fuller story is that while
Washtenaw County’s housing market today is basically healthy, it won’t be
for long, as it is likely to become considerably out of balance. And while
the county is fundamentally affordable today, housing cost increases are
going to so outpace income gains that affordability will be a real challenge
in the future as regards both housing and transportation expense.

The reality is that Washtenaw County has two distinct housing
markets.

One is fundamentally strong - anchored by the City of Ann Arbor. The other
- the City of Ypsilanti and Ypsilanti Township - is fundamentally weak and in
some respects in abject distress.

The former has a high quality of life and excellent public schools. The latter
faces real challenges. The former does not have a perception problem
when it comes to safety and housing equity, the latter does.

Ann Arbor - and its central driver, the University of Michigan - is a magnet
for highly educated households with upward mobility and significant
disposable income. With some exceptions, Ypsilanti (City and Township) -
and their challenge of being overloaded by a disproportionate number of at
risk households and homes with negative equity - is where the most
affordable options exist.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

Moreover, the deeper truth is not just that the City of Ann Arbor (and Ann
Arbor Township) is strong, but that both and Pittsfield are getting stronger,
and their rate of growing strength is likely to increase.

And, correspondingly, that the City of Ypsilanti and Ypsilanti Township have
not kept pace, and neither are well positioned to keep pace, and are
thereby at real risk of falling even further behind.

In sum, Ann Arbor and those with Ann Arbor addresses are at one end of
the spectrum where property values are increasing and that appears likely
to continue, while Ypsilanti (City and Township) is at the other and in real
trouble. At this unblended scale, these are two markets going in
opposite directions with three very probable outcomes, barring a
significant change in policy at the local jurisdictional or countywide
level.

«  First, Ann Arbor will become more costly, and less affordable, especially
to non student renters in the short run and eventually, to aspiring
buyers as well. The driver for higher costs is a combination of high
livability and quality of life, great public schools, resulting sustained
demand by households with discretionary income, and resulting
expectations of stable and continually rising property values.

- Second, Ypsilanti will become more distressed and thus more
affordable, especially to at-risk households. The reasons include
unstable and falling property values and the impacts of
disproportionate concentrations of struggling families (crime, lower
levels of property maintenance, fiscal stress).

« Third, as housing costs in the Ann Arbor market outpace the incomes
of working families employed in Ann Arbor but not able to afford to live
there, those families will commute to housing they can, particularly on
key corridors. This will increase congestion, compromising
environmental quality and market appeal. And since more and more of
the area’s very low income families (working, as well as unemployed)
will locate to the City of Ypsilanti and Ypsilanti Township for pricing
advantages, those markets will be at increased risk for even higher
concentrations of struggling households. In turn this will further
weaken those jurisdiction’s fiscal capacity.

3 of 55



The result will be a county decreasingly affordable and out of balance and,
eventually, unsustainable, as some parts of the county possibly degrade
beyond a point of no return, and others grow in value beyond a point that’s
ever again affordable.

The imbalance in income, education and opportunity between the
jurisdictions along with the socioeconomic segregation that goes with it will
hamper the regional economic growth potential of the area. Regions that
experience strong and more stable growth are typically more equitable,
have less segregation and better balanced workforce skills within them. !

In the Ann Arbor Metro Area, households in the 90th percentile (income)
have experienced an 18.8% gain since 1979 while wages have decreased
by 14.4% for those in the 10th percentile.

This is important because racial
gaps in income correlate with
educational attainment and
projected job education
requirements. The National
Equity Atlas shows that in the
Ann Arbor Metro Area, 43.6% of
all jobs require at least two year’s
of college. Education gaps for
Black (36.9%) and Latino
(40.6%) households translate
into wage gaps which translate
into racial gaps in income which
turn translates into lost GDP.2

“The rise in inequality in the
United States over the last three
decades has reached the point
that inequality in incomes is
causing an unhealthy division in
opportunities, and is a threat to
our economic growth. Restoring
a greater degree of fairness to
the U.S. job market would be
good for businesses, good for
the economy, and good for the
country.” - Alan Kreuger

As pointed out by PolicyLink, this contributes to a $1.43B opportunity cost
in lost potential regional GDP resulting from racial gaps in income. For
Washtenaw County, this means persistent (if not worsening) gaps in the
conditions that lead to income disparity and lost economic output.

Why? With very few exceptions - parts of Appalachia and the Ozarks
where white poverty is significant - race and class are near perfect proxies
for one another in America today.

To be in the 90th percentile (income) in Washtenaw County is to be white,
and to be in the 10th percentile is to not be white.

Any concentration of households in the 90th percentile in one location is a
de facto guarantee of a concentration of households in the 10th percentile
in another. If the former results in demand for housing that so outpaces
supply that values rise at a greater rate than do the incomes for anyone
below the 90th percentile, housing becomes decreasingly affordable for all
but those at the top. In other words, when the rate of return on capital
(principally in the form of real estate investments in Ann Arbor by those at
the top) is greater than the rate of economic growth (principally as a
function of the wages of everyone else), the result is a concentration of
wealth that by definition will trigger instability if not curtail growth.3

These problems can be addressed, and Washtenaw County is not unique;
many jurisdictions across the country are facing similar challenges, but hard
choices will be required.

« Right now, the City of Ann Arbor focuses much of its attention on the
housing problems for the poorest households. Increasingly however,
another critical housing dilemma in Ann Arbor will be for affordable non-

T Aghion and Caroli asked in 1999 in their seminal Inequality and Economic Growth, “can the negative impact of inequality on growth be reduced by redistribution?” They (and
others - Persson and Tabellini) concluded that inequality may have a direct negative effect on growth because inequality reduces investment opportunities, b) worsens borrower

incentives, and c) generates volatility. See also:

»  America’s Tomorrow: Equity is the Superior Growth Model by PolicyLink (2011)

The Rise and Consequences of Inequality in the United States by Alan Kreuger (2012)

»
»  Equality of Opportunity by Richard Reeves and Isabell Sawhill (2014)
»

Neighborhoods, Cities, and Economic Mobility (Draft) by Patrick Sharkey (2014)

2 National Equity Atlas; PolicyLink (2013)

S Capital in the 21st Century by Thomas Piketty, President and Fellows of Harvard College, 2014; p 353

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

4 of 55



student rentals. Where will they go? Who will develop them? In what
ratio to market rate units?

Right now, vastly disproportionate numbers of subsidized housing units
are in Ypsilanti. Land is less expensive there, as are rents. Greater
numbers of cost-burdened households can be housed in Ypsilanti than in
Ann Arbor or Pittsfield.

- If these trends are not reversed, or worse are continued, the overall
Ypsilanti market and the fiscal stability of the city itself will be in further
jeopardy.

. Itisin no one’s best interest for Ypsilanti (city or township) to fail, as
failure brings on a whole host of increased service costs that invariably
become constraints (such as police and public safety, prolonged
demand for housing subsidies, insurance, et.al.)

- But if subsidized low income households are not housed in Ypsilanti,
where else in the county will they go?

Put another way, there are always going to be those in Washtenaw
County who earn significant incomes, those who earn very little, and
those in between. The more that those who earn very little are
segregated and concentrated, the more those jurisdictions will be in fiscal
distress, and the more those jurisdictions are in fiscal distress, the more
the costs of segregation reverberate throughout the county in costly ways
- air quality reductions through congestion, business attraction and
retention challenges, safety compromises through concentrations of
poverty, reduced real estate values through falling demand and prices.

Right now, the market is doing an adequate job of addressing significant
portions of the rental housing needs of working families. But families with
poor credit and work histories, disabilities, or other challenges are not
being served by the market, and there is limited public and nonprofit
sector capacity to handle the balance, irrespective of where housing
might be found or developed. Addressing this will not be inexpensive.
Who is going to pay for these costs?

Right now, Ypsilanti Township is at risk of entering a point of no return in
its downward spiral, as the domino effect of foreclosures roots ever more
deeply. Turning this around will require expensive cost gaps to be closed,
and most likely, a clawback process relying on rental households in the
short run to achieve stability before a future home ownership strategy can
work. This will require patience and financing. By no means is it too late.
But the current array of policies and practices require revision.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

« Right now, throughout the Ann Arbor-Ypsilanti corridor, in each
jurisdiction, significant stretches of valuable land provide extensive
redevelopment opportunities that can produce large amounts of both
market and below-market rate housing, especially in Ann Arbor and
Pittsfield. These areas can act as powerful receiving areas to absorb
directed growth, contribute to regional balance, reduce congestion in the
long run, and add to multi-jurisdictional stability by taking the pressure off
the weaker Ypsilanti markets to absorb more than their fair share of low
income households. But this requires putting sustainable policies in place
that actively aim for regional balance.

Housing Affordability and Transportation Expense

This report focuses on the urbanized area for Washtenaw County.
This is not to conclude that there are no affordability or
neighborhood stabilization challenges throughout the remaining
geography of Washtenaw County. Significantly, the urbanized area
jurisdictions include 64% of the County’s population and 66% of
the County’s housing stock. These areas also have the greatest
access to public transportation, non-motorized networks, and
higher instances of transportation choice.

This is important as transportation is usually the second largest
household expense for families, after housing costs. This impacts
the housing market in Washtenaw County in many ways. In one
regard, housing that is close to job centers can make land and
housing more valuable. These location-based amenities are valued
by the market, enabling households to reduce transportation costs
through non-motorized trips, utilization of public transit, and shorter
trip distances. In these areas, the same community characteristics
that drive value upward result in a reduced transportation burden
for the average household. Conversely, land is often cheaper
further away from job and economic centers. On one hand this is
appealing, as land cost is a significant determinant in housing
development value and cost. When housing units are moved
significantly outside the job center however, any savings in land
value are quickly redirected to increased transportation costs. This
occurs through more trips requiring automobile access, at greater
distances.

5 of 55



Therefore, it makes sense to focus the development of affordable
units in areas with transportation choices, which are typically close
to job centers and other services, to maximize the long term
sustainability of households in these units. As commuting
expenses as a percentage of income are reduced, either by less
costly transportation options or reduced spatial mismatches
between jobs and housing, more will be available for housing, food,
education, and health care.

The bottom line is that the greater the degree to which Ann Arbor
invests in affordable housing for those working in Ann Arbor, and
Ypsilanti makes progress towards growing demand by investing in
livability, the less the commuting pressures - and resulting
congestion - along Washtenaw Avenue and other key corridors will
occur.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

6 of 55



PART 1
Qualitative Analysis

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 7 of 55



QUALITATIVE ANALYSIS : INTERVIEWS + SURVEYS

czb met and held telephone calls with over 33 elected officials, community
leaders, and staff to discuss issues around affordability in Washtenaw
County during June, July, and August 2014. From those discussions we
have identified a number of themes regarding people’s views about
affordable housing in the region. We also conducted a survey of 489
people to gauge their views and ideas about affordable housing. The
survey responses contain significant information about respondent’s
affordable housing priorities, preferred policy options, and community
concerns.

Respondent Input and czb Comment

1. The sky isn’t falling. Yet. As many pointed out, the county has a
range of housing options and smart government policies like the new
transit system will afford even more opportunities. We agree, but think
Washtenaw County can do much better. There is broad agreement that
the jurisdictions can do a better job of addressing affordable housing
needs. There are clearly growing concerns about the ability of current
residents to continue to afford to live in their community and the long-
term sustainability of affordable housing prices.

2. The big challenge is balance. As many pointed out, there is growing
inequity. Some used the word “segregation” to describe gaps between
jurisdictions. Many concerns were raised about the creation of luxury
units in Ann Arbor at the expense of middle class housing. Over time,
that imbalance is going to harm the economic potential of the county.

It will also continue to conflict with the strong desire for racial and
socio-economic equity in the county expressed repeatedly by many.

3. There is good news. Fortunately, the region is well equipped to
develop and manage a balanced affordable housing policy that can be

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

coordinated between the jurisdictions. It will take work, but the civic
and community ingredients are there to create a state and perhaps
national model. People clearly see the value of a regional policy
framework to help guide the future of housing in the county.

Quality of life is the biggest driver - and divider - of value in the
region. This is a double edged sword as higher quality of life in one
area can cause that area to leapfrog other places quickly and create
greater imbalance around housing affordability. Ann Arbor is on this
trajectory now. If not checked, Ann Arbor will turn into an exclusive
enclave with little alignment between jobs and housing and greater
transportation and environmental impacts as a resullt.

8 of 55



equally strong agreement about the need to limit sprawl and protect

5. Vocabulary. Affordable Housing is a complex term in Washtenaw agricultural and open space areas. It would be unfortunate to not
County that different people understand differently. The region would capitalize on the convergence of opinion and market reality.
benefit from a shared understanding and language about affordable
housing, its relationship to jobs, to development and growth and to 8. Transportation, commuting, jobs, and housing. People want housing
planning. There isn’t a consistent framework for discussing or choices to exist throughout the region and believe they should be,
evaluating these issues, and there needs to be one. ideally, close to jobs. This came up over and over; the issue of housing
near jobs, or workforce housing, was a strong thread in interviews and
6. Image and perception matter greatly. Respondents expressed the survey. This can become the undergirding for a regional housing
concerns about how subsidized housing in Washtenaw County looks, policy.
and about the general safety of the community that is implied by how
well or poorly a place is taken care of. They say they want their region 9. Concentrated poverty is a problem that isn’t going away. People
to be integrated; they also want it to look nice and they want to feel understand that it isn’t economically healthy for any community to have
safe in their neighborhood. These issues need to be addressed in the a disproportionate share of low-income housing. It isn’t sustainable for
context of any housing effort, with safety being the number one issue one area to essentially send low income residents and the resulting
for quality of life. service needs to communities that are not able to afford the services
needed to give the residents the best chance at success. This
7. Agreement. There is strong regional agreement about the value of imbalance is one of the most striking and hardest issues that needs to
mixed-use, mixed-income development along transit corridors and be addressed.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 9 of 55



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Focus. There is a strong desire to focus on homelessness in Ann
Arbor. While appropriate and well-meaning, has taken energy away
from workforce housing preservation and creation, which is the more
significant issue at hand.

Government resources and priorities. To the extent current
government funds are spent, we think the needs to preserve public
housing, subsidize low-income housing and that addressing the service
needs of these residents should take precedence. Strong civic support
for these efforts is healthy and should be fostered. It is important
though, that they be better balanced geographically in terms of how
and where these funds are spent.

Market forces. There is a need to look at market solutions, and land-
use incentives, for workforce housing needs and as something in the
survey suggested, there is clear value in evaluating a funding stream to
ensure the preservation of workforce housing for the long-term. Like
the difficulty of addressing concentrations of poverty (which require
diffusion in a county where few are going to come forward and
volunteer to absorb their fair share), the only value market forces
provide is the value the community extracts through policy.

Nominal history of serious collaborative output. We have been
surprised that there isn’t greater collaboration or policies around the
development community to address these issues. The opportunity for
public-private partnerships, especially around workforce housing, is not
being taken advantage of. This needs to be explored in more detail.
We see opportunities to both educate the development community and
residents about what could be possible, such as development rights
transfer programs.

Weakness and Imbalance. The lack of balance in the housing mix of
each jurisdiction has weakened both the overall economic prospects
for the region as well as the ability to give all residents of the region an
equal chance to move forward successfully. There’s a discernible gap
between viewpoint and rhetoric and nominal collaborative output to
address equity issues. Focusing on this is essential and hard.

Housing ladder. While housing for families and people starting out was
emphasized, people understand the need to provide housing for all life-
stages from people starting out to seniors as well as people with
unique health needs. The view of “community” as being driven by the

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

16.

17.

18.

19.

stakeholders was powerful thread through most discussions. The
desire for a diverse community is a strength that can be built on.

Wages. There is some awareness, especially in the survey, that jobs
and wages are one of the policy arenas that should be focused on. We
strongly encourage housing policy discussion to be connected to wage
issues for there to be any chance for sustainable outcomes.

Schools. Schools. Schools. The fact that some areas of the region
have access to Ann Arbor schools and others don’t creates an inherent
economic challenge for the value of housing outside of the Ann Arbor
school district. Poor performing schools are an issue that will handcuff
any weak market’s capacity to recover, so school quality differential
requires attention.

Capacity. The capacity and ideas to address these issues are within
the County. Between the survey’s and the interviews, it is clear to us
that a policy framework to address the housing issues can be
developed and that champions exist to help develop and support it
over time. We are impressed with the breath and depth of civic interest
and passion around this issue. There is a healthy range of viewpoints
and ideas to create something that can last for the long term. But
experience also tells us that the ability to craft sustainability policies can
vary wildly based on willingness. No progress is likely without risks
being taken, issue literacy being elevated, innovation occurring, and
multi-jurisdictional collaboration at the center.

Positioning. The county is well positioned to play a leading role
helping to address its housing and market strength imbalances and to
support quality economic development and balanced growth
throughout the region, at the center of which are looming affordability
challenges given Ann Arbor’s high and increasing quality of life. People
in the county understand that there should be a planning relationship
between jobs, housing, and transit. The challenge is developing a
policy framework for the region to work within that also respects the
unique differences of each jurisdiction as well as the different economic
capacities of each jurisdiction, and then takes those differences into
account.

10 of 55



RECOMMENDED NEXT STEPS

« The focus should be on bringing the group to a common
understanding of the following:

- Terms/Vocabulary of Affordable Housing

Building on past, successful regional collaborations, we suggest the
creation of multi-jurisdictional housing policy working group.

« The group would be responsible for distilling the qualitative and
quantitative information collected and analyzed by czb about housing
in the county and then to develop a set of housing goals & strategies,
as well as metrics and action steps to pursue. « Relationships of housing to job locations and wages to

housing cost burdens

- The importance of reshaping the county into an equitable community . Link between livability and demand and price and
across jurisdictions cannot be overstated. Segregation of any sort - affordability
racial, economic, other - is also a two way street. It is never
mathematically possible for one area to become segregated unless
other areas as oppositely comprised. The more segregated into a
high income area Ann Arbor becomes, the more segregated Ypsilanti
will be. This group should be responsible for educating the
community on equity issues.

« Drivers for generating or undermining demand, and thus
triggering price change

+ Role of land in determining value and in addressing
imbalances

« Agreement should be pursued on the following:
+ Baseline conditions
- Trajectory

- Specifically: + Metrics

From this foundation, the working group may subsequently be in a

» A working group from multiple jurisdictions should be impaneled position to collaborate on multi-jurisdictional responses to the two

« The group should receive a detailed briefing on the housing
issues in the county

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

looming challenges that the county faces: equity imbalance and
affordability for low and moderate income working households.

11 of 55



POLICY OPPORTUNITIES FOR CONSIDERATION FROM INTERVIEWS AND SURVEYS

The interviews and surveys exposed a broad range of policy ideas to
consider. Below is just a list of the most frequently mentioned concepts. A
plan development process would include a process to identify more ideas
to consider.

«  Push for higher density, mixed-use projects along transit corridors.

«  Re-visit parking requirements to ensure they are encouraging transit
and not driving up housing prices.

- Consider multi-jurisdictional tax-districts to support the growth of
mixed-use development areas.

«  Push for new state rules regarding property taxes for seniors.
Current rules may discourage seniors to move to smaller, more
manageable homes and essentially “lock-up” larger homes thereby
limiting family housing choices.

- Consider ways to develop zoning or other rules that approximate
inclusionary zoning or ask the state for new powers.

- Consider ways for zoning to encourage smaller starter homes, family
sized units and to add some workforce options to existing
neighborhoods.

- Consider changes to zoning and/or policy to encourage development
of mixed-income housing in targeted areas.

- Consider ways to ensure property owners don’t set unfair
requirements for renters and essentially limit choices for low income
residents.

« l|dentify infill opportunities for new affordable housing projects.

- Consider the use of public lands to help develop affordable housing
projects.

- Consider a "fair share" housing provision (each local unit provides a
percentage of the region's affordable housing equal to its percentage

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

of the region's total population) or an "impact fee" approximation of
such a system, in which units that don't provide housing units
provide financial support to those who do.

Consider metrics between a jurisdictions workforce needs and
available housing and set goals for the relationship of the two.
Consider ways to reduce waiting list for affordable housing (vouchers,
etc.)

Evaluate something like the Twin Cities Fiscal Disparity Act / tax-base
sharing -- in part, approximates a per-community payment-in-lieu fair
share housing system; regional shift in property tax revenues from
communities with high taxable value per capita to those with low, so
that cities hosting more low-income residents (and low taxable-value
housing) can address the service needs they have.

Consider creating a local land trusts to hold land to help with
affordability.

Consider increasing local housing trust funds and/or creating a
county trust fund.

Consider approaches to discouraged or prevent over-concentration
of low income housing.

Consider policies to ensure public services are available in areas with
greatest need.

Consider policies to give tenants greater opportunities to purchase
units or stay in units after sale.

Consider changes/update to plan to end homelessness in Ann Arbor
Explore ways to encourage more co-ops.

Explore ways to encourage co-housing options.

12 of 55



PART 2
Quantitative Analysis

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 13 of 65



What affordability challenges are faced by Washtenaw
County owners and potential buyers?

Throughout the target area (as well as in the portions of the county
outside the target area), the number of owners facing unaffordable
housing costs (in excess of 30% of income) increased substantially
between 2000 (pre-recession) and 2012 (post-recession).*
Countywide, the number of owners paying more than 30% of their
income on housing costs increased by 12,438 households
between 2000 and 2012; just under half of this increase (5,358 out
of 12,438) was in the target area (Table 1). The number of
Washtenaw County owners paying more than 50% of their income
on housing costs (those considered to have very unaffordable

costs) increased by 5,078 households; again, roughly half of this
increase occurred in the target area (where the number of owners
with very unaffordable housing costs doubled between 2000 and
2012).

By 2012, nearly three out of every ten owners in the county (and in
the target area) paid too much for housing, up from two out of
every ten owners in 2000. The largest percentages of owners had
unaffordable costs (>30% of income) in Census tracts in western
and southern Ann Arbor city, parts of Pittsfield township, southern
Ypsilanti city, and parts of Ypsilanti township (see map on following

page).

TABLE 1 :: UNAFFORDABLE HOUSING COSTS, WASHTENAW COUNTY VS. TARGET AREA

Washtenaw County Target Area
2000 2012 % Change 2000 2012 Change % Change
o .

gg:fsordab'e (>30% of Income) Housing 11,397 23,835 109% 7,288 12,646 5,358 74%
Very Unaffordable (>50% of Income)

Housing Costs 3,428 8,506 148% 2,200 4,404 2,204 100%
% Unaffordable 19% 29% 19% 28% 9%

% Very Unaffordable 6% 10% 6% 10% 4%

source: US Census (2000); 2012 ACS 5 Year Estimates; czb

4 For the purposes of this analysis, the “target area includes Pittsfield, Ann Arbor City, Ann Arbor Township, Ypsilanti City, and Ypsilanti Township.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

14 of 55



Woashtenaw Census Tracts
% of Owners with Unaffordable Costs (2012)

L 102% - 249%
L 25%-299%
[ 30% - 349%
T I 35% - 399%
B 0% -518%

Ann Arbor Township
3

-

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

® czblLLC

15 of 55



Consistent Affordability for Others — Great Housing Values for in Ann Arbor township; in Ypsilanti city and Ypsilanti township, in contrast,

Buyers roughly three in five units (60% and 64%, respectively) were valued below
$150,000.

Yet, on the whole, for-sale housing is fairly affordable in Washtenaw County.

Countywide, half of all units are valued below $200,000 (according to the This variety not only creates vastly different housing markets (for both

2012 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates); just 25% were owner-occupied housing and for rentals) across the target area, but has put

valued at $300,000 or higher (Graph 1). This breakdown varies greatly, different communities and neighborhoods on different trajectories, as some

though, between local municipalities: in Ann Arbor city, nearly two-thirds of have quickly recovered from the recent recession and others have not.

all owner-occupied units were valued over $200,000, as were almost 90%

GRAPH 1 :: BREAKDOWN OF OWNER VALUES IN WASHTENAW CO. SUBDIVISIONS, 2012

100% ig/g 1%
0 6% 4%
7% 9% °

5%
$500,000 or More

50% $300,000 to 499,999
[ $200,000 to $299,999
B $150,000 to $199,999
B $100,000 to $149,999
M Less than $100,000

25%

0%

Washtenaw Co. Ann Arbor City Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 16 of 55



How do housing market conditions vary across
Washtenaw County Target Area municipalities?

For the Washtenaw County Target Area analysis, we analyzed a range of
people- and place-based data from the 2000 and 2010 Decennial Census
and the 2012 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates. We also
received data from the Multiple Listing Service (MLS) on for-sale properties
and rentals made available through the system and sold or rented between.
These MLS records included 16,570 sales between 2000 and 2014 (with
the bulk sold after 2004) and 1,866 apartments rented between 2003 and
2014 (with the bulk rented after 2006). To complement these MLS records,
czb compiled an inventory of all rental properties in the target area, which
included the number, characteristics, and costs of apartments at each
location.

As of 2012 (according to the 2012 American Community Survey 5-
Year Estimates), the county’s higher-cost owner-occupied housing
units were concentrated in Ann Arbor City and Pittsfield (which
both had more than their share of housing units valued over
$200,000) and particularly Ann Arbor township (which had two
times its share of owner units valued in the $200,000s, three times

its share of owner units valued in the $300,000s, and four times its
share of owner units valued over $500,000). In contrast, both
Ypsilanti city and Ypsilanti township had twice their share of owner
units valued below $150,000.°

To further understand these market dynamics, czb utilized sales data
(collected from the muiltiple listing service (MLS)) to generate average sale
prices at the Census tract level based on single-family home sales in 2012,
2013, and 2014. Based on these averages, czb divided Washtenaw
County Target Area Census Tracts (those within Ann Arbor city, Ann Arbor
township, Pittsfield, Ypsilanti city, and Ypsilanti township) into 6 market
types — from “very weak” to “hot.” “Very Weak” market Census tracts were
those with average sale prices between roughly $25,000 and $75,000
between 2012 and 2014, or had averages more than one standard
deviation away from the target area average sale price during that time.
The average sale price and Z Scores (or how many standard deviation units
each average stood from the overall average) are listed in the table below
(Table 2); the market strength for each target area Census tract are shown
in the map on the following page.

TABLE 2 :: SALE PRICE RELATIVE TO MARKET TYPE

Average Sale Price Z Score Range
"""""""" ow —Hen |
- Very Weak $26,613 to $75,492 Less than -1.00
Weaker $94,086 to $186,061 -0.99 to -0.25
Moderate $199,050 to $262,408 -0.24 t0 0.24
Strong $271,577 to $357,699 0.25 t0 0.99
Very Strong $393,360 to $463,355 1.00to 1.74
Hot $498,139 to $622,393 1.75 or More

5 Figures presented in this paragraph are explained further on page x, under the heading “Washtenaw County - Catch Up and Keep Up”.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

17 of 55



©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

Target Area Census Tracts
Market Strength (2012-2014)
B | - Very Weak

L | 2-Weaker

; 3 - Moderate

| 4-strong

I 5-Very Strong

- 6 - Hot

© czblLLC

18 of 55



GRAPH 2 :: AVERAGE SALE PRICE OF SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES IN
WASHTENAW COUNTY TARGET AREA CENSUS TRACTS BY MARKET
STRENGTH, 2005-2014

$700,000
Across all market types, the average sale

price of a single-family home was up in
2005 (during the housing boom) and
declined during the recession, hitting lows $525,000 @ Very Weak

between 2008 and 2011, before recovering poaker
in the years since (Graph 2, Table 3). Strong

Very Strong
What this table illustrates is that the gap in $350,000 & Hot

value between the strongest and weakest
submarkets in Washtenaw is growing, and

all signs indicate a further widening. $175.000

o A e

$0
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

TABLE 3 :: AVERAGE SALE PRICE OF SINGLE-FAMILY HOMES IN WASHTENAW CO. TARGET AREA CENSUS TRACTS BY MARKET STRENGTH 2005-2014

Average Sale Price

2005 | 2006 i 2007 | 2008 | 2009 | 2010 i 2011 | 2012 i 2013 | 2014

- Very Weak $127,797§ $117,990§ $92,635; $51,599§ $34,o53§ $37,608; $35,294§ $4o,932§ $50,021 $59,687
""""""""" Weaker 5206180} $197.0021 $176.225] $151560] 5115804 | $116,140] $116.620] $122.025 $158.067 ] $164,727
"""""""" Moderate 267618, $262.775 | 5231820} S211,547 | $186.600 | $167.891 $199,818} 5212536 | $230.908, $230,967
""""""""" Stong 327,62 ] S905650| $280,068 | $266,680 | $255,048 | 263,556 | S27B.612] $200,768 | 8320132 $317.318
T Neyswong 8480256 | $425,502 | 3302330 | 8359228 837,454 | $370,635 $342,762 | $367,490 455,815 | $453,071

- ot 567,486 | $624,080 | 8500.958 | 3620733 | 850,523 9502200 | 556,091 | $530312 | 585,000 9610267

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 19 of 65



Interestingly, though, while the average sale price of a single-family home was higher in 2014 than it had been in 2005 in “Hot” markets (suggesting a full
recovery), the 2014 average sale price in “weaker” markets was equivalent to 80% of the 2005 average sale price; in “very weak” markets, the 2014 average
sale price was equal to just 47% of the 2005 average (suggesting far from a full recovery in these areas) (Graph 3).

These still-struggling markets bore the brunt, to a certain extent, of the housing market meltdown: according to Neighborhood Stabilization Program Data
released by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Census tracts within and surrounding Ypsilanti city had the areas highest
foreclosure rates and vacancy rates in the midst of the crisis.

GRAPH 3 :: AVERAGE SALE PRICE (2014) + AVERAGE SALE PRICE (2005) FOR TARGET
AREA CENSUS TRACKS BY MARKET STRENGTH

110%
96.9%
94.3%
89.7%

82.5% 79.9%

55%
46.6%
27.5%
0%
Very Weak Weaker Moderate Strong Very Strong Hot

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 20 of 55



What affordability challenges are faced by Washtenaw
County renters and potential renters?

Renters are far more likely than owners to have excessive housing costs in
Washtenaw County. In the Census tracts in Central Ann Arbor city (near
the University of Michigan), as well as those in far northern and southern
Ypsilanti city and throughout much of Ypsilanti township, in excess of 60%

of renters pay more than 30% of their income on housing (see map below).

Washtenaw Census Tracts

% of Renters with Unaffordable Rents (2012)
0% - 39.9%
40% - 49.9%

[ 50% - 59.9%

[T B c0% - 69.9%

I 70% - 83.6%

Ann Arbor Township

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

College undergraduate and graduate students, whose incomes tend to be
very low (if not $0), as well as higher rents, are driving these numbers in
Ann Arbor city; lower-income non-student renters are doing so in Ypsilanti
city and Ypsilanti township.

According to data from the Multiple Listing Service, the average lease price
for units listed on the MLS was lowest in Ypsilanti city and Ypsilanti
township (and in a few scattered Census tracts in Ann Arbor city), and
highest throughout much of Ann Arbor city and Ann Arbor township (and in
a few scattered Census tracts in Pittsfield and Ypsilanti township).

® azblLC

21 of 565



A

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

Target Area Census Tracts
Average Lease Price

B 5809.58 - $999.99

I $1,000.00 - $1,249.99

| $1,250,00 - §1,499.99
[ $1,500.00 - $1,999.99
B 52.000.00 - $3,20000

© czbLLC

Pressure on the market from student
renters certainly plays a role in driving up
rents in Ann Arbor city and Ann Arbor
township. Both communities have more
than their share of rentals with rents over
$1,000 (according to data from the 2012
American Community Survey 5-Year
Estimates), including those with rents over
$1,500. In contrast, Pittsfield and Ypsilanti
township both have more than their share
of rentals with rents between $500 and
$999, and Ypsilanti city has far more than
its share of rentals with rents below $750.

22 of 55



Rental Inventory
Average Rent per Bedroom
® $200.00 - $499.99
® $500.00 - $749.99
$750.00 - $999.99
®  $1.000.00 - $1.249.99
® $1.250.00 - $2,250.00

°
kel
k=3
o
o
k=l
® [=3
= a
© czblLC

A czb review of the county’s rental inventory further highlighted the variety At the same time, far more subsidized and public housing, as well as
of the target area’s rental market: almost exclusively buildings with average Section 8 vouchers, was concentrated on the eastern side of the target
rents per bedroom below $750 on the eastern side of the target area and area as well (see map on following page).

primarily buildings with average rents per bedroom of $750 or more on the
western side of the target area (see map above).

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 23 of 65



Ann Arbor Township

N aPp
- -Ann Arbor City &\C% :

B

Washtenaw Census Tracts
% of Renters with a HS Degree or Less (2012)
0% - 9.9%

© abllC

Pittsfield

Al

Bl ™ 2
Ypsilanti Ci

Washtenaw Census Tracts

% of Families with Incomes <30% AMI
0% - 49%
5% . 9.9%

B 0% - 199%

B 0% - 399%

B o -627%

© abllC

.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

A

Washtenaw Census Tracts

% of Renters with a Bachelor's or More (2012)
0% - 99%
10% - 24.9%
25% - 49.9%

B sox - 749%

B 75 - 100%

O abllC

Washtenaw Census Tracts

% of Families with Incomes >120% AMI
0% - 19.9%
20% - 29.9%

P 30% - 39.9%

B 0% -59.9%

B ox-87.1%

S abllC

24 of 55



Rental Inventory
Property Type

Private

@

Senior Housing

pr
@

Subsidized Housing
®  Public Housing

© czblLLC

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 25 of 55



Such different rent levels mean that unaffordability reaches higher up the
income ladder in some municipalities than others. For example, across in
all target area municipalities, nearly all (94% or more) renter households
with incomes below $20,000 pay more than 30% of their income on
housing (Graph 4). Most renter households with incomes between $20,000
and $34,999 also paid too much for housing - ranging from 65% of these
households in Ypsilanti city to 87% of these households in Ann Arbor city.
And while affordability was not really an issue for households with incomes
between $35,000 and $49,999 in Ypsilanti city and Ypsilanti township
(where just 23% and 20%, respectively, faced unaffordable costs), it
remained a serious issue for renter households at this income level in Ann
Arbor city (where nearly half (45%) faced unaffordable costs).

Differences in the price of rental units as well as differences in overall
market vitality and amenities — in neighborhood quality of life — contributes
to two very distinct rental markets in the Washtenaw County target area.
Across nearly all Census tracts on the western side of the target area, the
percentage of renter household heads with a high school degree or less
and the percentage of renting families who have incomes below 30% of the
Area Median Income (AMI) are very low, while the reverse is true on the
eastern half of the target area. In contrast, across nearly all Census tracts
on the western side of the target area, the percentage of renter household
heads with a Bachelor’s degree or more education and the percentage of
renting families who have incomes above 120% AMI are very high, while
the reverse is true on the eastern half of the target area (see maps on
following page).

GRAPH 4 :: % OF RENTER HOUSEHOLDS PAYING >30% OF INCOME ON RENT BY INCOME LEVEL
AND LOCATION, 2012

100% OB

95% 94%

B37%

80%

75%
o)
50% 159%
9%
25%
11% 13%
5% 4%
0%
Washtenaw Co. Ann Arbor City

B <$20,000 B $20,000-$34,999

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

8%

Pittsfield Ypsilanti City

$35,000-$49,999

98%
94%

5%

65%

23%
20%

13%
6%

5% 4%

Ypsilanti Twp.

$50,000-$74,999 M $75,000+

26 of 55



In a third example, while 2.6% of Ann Arbor township households
and 7.5% of Ann Arbor city households received public assistance
income or food stamp (SNAP) benefits in 2012, roughly one-fourth
of Ypsilanti city (28.4%) and Ypsilanti township (23.2%) households
did so (Graph 5).

As evidenced by neighborhoods’ varied recovery rates following
the recent housing market meltdown and municipalities’ varied
severity of affordability challenges, such disparities between target
area municipalities is not sustainable.

Such trends point to the need for regional cooperation going
forward.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

30%

22.5%

15%

7.5%

0%

GRAPH 5 :: % RECEIVING PUBLIC ASSISTANCE AND/OR SNAP BENEFITS

7.5%

2.6%

28.4%

23.2%

9.4%

Ann Arbor City Ann Arbor Twp.

Pittsfield Ypsilanti City  Ypsilanti Twp.

27 of 55



The target area is increasingly splitting into winning municipalities
and losing municipalities, and, as time goes by, the gap between
the two is only widening. An analysis of the residential choices
made by Eastern Michigan University faculty and staff, Washtenaw
County employees and University of Michigan graduate students all
show the same thing: households with choice (higher incomes
and more mobility) are concentrating in Ann Arbor city and Ann
Arbor township and pricing out everyone else; those beat out for
housing in these communities are concentrating in Ypsilanti city
and Ypsilanti township (see surrounding maps).

- UM graduate should be taking advantage of the locational and
pricing opportunities that Ypsilanti offers; yet aren’t. \Why?
Because the affordability advantages Ypsilanti can provide are
offset by the livability disadvantages that push UM graduate
students away.

- Pittsfield is filling a middle ground, although is heavily influenced
by the adjacent markets, both positively and otherwise.

Washtenaw County Zip Codes Target Area
U of M Graduate Students

[ -2

[ l2s-99

[ 100-499 ~
I s00-99 . N !
I o0-3608 o < rewe—— =
T N1 S e
:—c ;} <’§\§ - = ©czbLLC
?1 ? = ~r \*\,r, MQ(_L/_‘L_‘:J
L 2
B! — = = L ]
o Yr Vana " é\% Fﬂ,_o/ﬂ
I - {
//‘ LN d ?—"‘
a— o L /4\‘
4 -
B I
] T o
) ) | / J
< ; :
\r’l/*j . ' .
< h S
| L\ ] \‘k = - ~ — I
=] = . L\_‘/ ‘1\‘ A
= T -
- < e SR 3 — r\ I
\,j 1L L [ | N =
e 1 — / - ’, ——
| S '
v i =
\ A N A
/ t —

Washtenaw County Zip Codes 77 nrgeAvea
Average Salary of EMU Faculty/Staff
$48,080 - $49.999
$50,000 - $59.99%
[ 560,000 - $69.99
B 570,000 - $79.9%5

I $20.000 o More

Washtenaw County Zip Codes V7] Target Aren
Average Salary of Wash County E

$39.984 - 544999

$45,000 - $49.999
[ 550,000 - 354999
B s55.000 - $59.9%
I $40.000 o« More

28 of 55



Washtenaw County Catch Up and Keep Up While housing cost burdens are less common among renter households
with incomes between $35,000 and $49,999 (or between 40% and 60% of

Most renters with household incomes below $35,000 (or below roughly Area Median Income), unaffordable rents remain an issue for two-fifths of
40% of HUD’s Area Median Income) in Washtenaw County generally, and renters in this income bracket — and for 45% of renters in this income

the target area in particular, face housing cost burdens. In fact, over 90% bracket in Ann Arbor city. (Rents are more affordable for households in this
of renter households with incomes below $20,000 pay more than 30% of income bracket in Ypsilanti city and Ypsilanti township, where only about
their income on rent; roughly three-quarters of households with incomes one-fifth of households with incomes between $35,000 and $49,999 pay
between $20,000 and $34,999 do so (Graph 6). more than 30% of income on rent.)

GRAPH 6 :: % OF RENTER HOUSEHOLDS PAYING >30% OF INCOME ON RENT BY INCOME LEVEL AND LOCATION, 2012

100% 98%
95% 96%

94% 94%

75%
50%
45%
25% 23%
20%
1%
5% 4% 6%
0%
Washtenaw County Ann Arbor City Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp

Il <$20,000 M $20,000-$34,999 $35,000-$49,999 $50,000-$74,999 W $75,000+

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 29 of 65



Housing costs make the Ann Arbor rental market harder to access
for lower-income households; so does the intense competition for
rental housing from 30,000+ undergraduate and graduate
students, not to mention hundreds of recent graduates choosing to
stay in town, also seeking apartments. As a result, just a small
fraction of Ann Arbor renters have a high school degree or less; the
reverse is the case in Ypsilanti city and township, where only a
small fraction have a bachelor’s degree or more (see maps below).

Washtenaw Census Tracts

% of Renters with a High School Degree or Less (2012)
0% 9.9%
10% - 19.9%

B 20% - 299%

I 0% - 499%

I sox - 100%

I sox - 749%

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

In Ann Arbor city, fully 58% of renter householders has a Bachelor’s
degree or more; just 13% have a high school degree or less. The
breakdown of renters by educational attainment is far different in
Ypsilanti city and Ypsilanti township, where far more renters have a
high school degree or less (25% and 34%, respectively) and far
fewer have Bachelor’'s degrees or more (22% and 18%,
respectively).

Washtenaw Census Tracts

% of Renters with a Bachelor's Degree or More (2012)
0% - 9.9%
10% - 249%

P 2s% - 499%

I 5% - 100

30 of 55



In other words, while Ann Arbor city is home to 48% of the
county’s renter households, it is where just 30% of the
county’s renters with a high school degree/GED or less live
(Graph 7, Table 4). To instead house 48% of the county’s
renters with a high school degree/GED or less (or the city’s
equitable proportion), Ann Arbor would need to
accommodate nearly 2,000 more of them (1,948) (Table 5).
Similarly, while Ann Arbor city is home to 48% of the county’s
renter households, it is where just 38% of the county’s renters
with some college or an Associate’s degree live. To instead
house 48% of the county’s renters with some college or an
Associate’s degree (or the city’s “fair share” of these renters),
Ann Arbor would need to accommodate nearly 2,000 more of
them (1,925). City officials could think of this as a strategy
requiring 2,000 new units for households at 0-40% AMI and
another 2,000 new units for households at 40%-60% AMI.
(At the other side of the spectrum, to house its equitable
proportion of renters with a Bachelor’'s degree or more,
Ypsilanti city would need to add just over 1,000 units for
these renters (1,030) and Ypsilanti township would need to
add more than 2,000 units for them (2,174).)

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

GRAPH 7 :: BREAKDOWN OF RENTERS BY EDUCATION ATTAINMENT AND
LOCATION, 2012

120%

90% 22% 18%

60%

30%

0%

Washtenaw Co.  Ann Arbor City Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp

Bachelor's Degree or More
B Some College or Associate's Degree
B High School Degree/GED or Less

31 of 55



TABLE 4 :: BREAKDOWN OF RENTERS BY EDUCATION ATTAINMENT AND LOCATION, 2012

Washtenaw County Ann Arbor City Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp

All Rental Units: 51,945 24,905 5,922 5,001 8,785
Up to High School/GED 10,608 3,138 1,069 1,226 3,001
Some College/Associate's 19,340 7,348 2,318 2,687 4,238
Bachelor's or More 21,997 14,419 2,535 1,088 1,546

All Rental Units: 100% 48% 11% 10% 17%
Up to High School/GED 100% 30% 10% 12% 28%
Some College/Associate's 100% 38% 12% 14% 22%
Bachelor's or More 100% 66% 12% 5% 7%

All Rental Units: 100% 48% 11% 10% 17%

TABLE 5 :: “FAIR SHARE” DISTRIBUTION OF RENTERS BY EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT AND LOCATION, 2012

Ann Arbor City : Pittsfield : Ypsilanti City : Ypsilanti Twp
""""""""" Fair T g T gy e gy T
Current # Share # Difference Current # Share # Difference Current # Share # Difference Current # Share # Difference
High School : . H
Degree/GED or 3,138 5,086 1,948 | 1,069 1,209 140 1,226 1,021 -205 3,001 1,794 -1,207
Less E : 5
Some College or 7,348 9273 1025+ 2318 2205 113 2687 1,862 825 4238 3,271 -967
Associate's Degree ; ; ;
Sf‘,f/lhoer'gr's Degree 14,419 10,546  -3873 ' 2,535 2,508 271 1,088 2,118 1,030 ¢ 1,546 3,720 2,174
32 of 55

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC



WASHTENAW COUNTY % of County
AFFOR DA BILITY GAPS - (s
OWNER-OCCUPIED Ann Arbor City Ann Arbor Twp. Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp.

Total: 33.9% 1.3% 10.3% 5.7% 15.8%
Owner-occupied housing units:* 25.1% 1.5% 9.5% 3.2% 15.2%
Less than high school graduate 8.5% 0.2% 8.2% 5.8% 32.7%
High school graduate (including o o o o o
equivalency) 10.3% 0.6% 5.8% 3.4% 23.7%
Some college or associate's degree 14.8% 0.7% 6.8% 3.2% 19.1%
Bachelor's degree or higher 34.3% 2.1% 11.7% 3.0% 10.1%

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

=
Current Share
Ann Arbor City Ann Arbor Twp. Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp.
Less than high school graduate 0.339 0.127 0.855 1.804 2.154
ngh school graduate (including 0.410 0.406 0.603 1060 1 562
equivalency)
Some college or associate's degree 0.589 0.448 0.713 0.999 1.261
Bachelor's degree or higher 1.370 1.448 1.230 0.922 0.662
33 of 55



2012 Totals

‘Weshisnaw Gounty  AmAtbor Gty  AmAorTwp. Piisfeld YoslentiGly  YpslantiTwp.
Owner-occupied housing units: 82,938 20,799 1,214 7,912 2,677 12,588
Less than high school graduate 3,778 321 7 308 220 1,235
gg%?vz%hnog) graduats (including 11,284 1,159 67 649 386 2,676
Some college or associate's degree 20,415 3,018 134 1,388 658 3,907
Bachelor's degree or higher 47,461 16,301 1,006 5,567 1,413 4,770

2035 Goal if Move to Fair Share Distribution

‘Washtenaw County ~ Am Atoor Gty Am AborTwp. itsiold Yosienti Gty YpslantiTwp.
Owner-occupied housing units: 96,790 24,273 1,417 9,233 3,124 14,690
Less than high school graduate 4,409 1,106 65 421 142 669
g'(;%ri'v:;hnoccj) graduate (including 13,169 3,302 193 1,256 425 1,099
Some college or associate's degree 23,825 5,975 349 2,273 769 3,616
Bachelor's degree or higher 55,388 13,890 811 5,284 1,788 8,407

Difference between 2012 and 2035 Goal

‘Weshisnaw Gounty  AmAtborGity  AmAmorTwp. Piisfeld YoslentiGiy  YpslantiTwp.
Owner-occupied housing units: 13,852 3,474 203 1,321 447 2,102
Less than high school graduate 631 785 58 113 -78 -566
S&%Tv:%hnicj) graduate (including 1,885 2,143 126 607 39 -677
Some college or associate's degree 3,410 2,957 215 885 111 -291
Bachelor's degree or higher 7,927 -2,411 -195 -283 375 3,637

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

34 of 55



WASHTENAW COUNTY % of County
AFFOR DA BILITY GAPS - (s
RENTER - OCCUPIED Ann Arbor City Ann Arbor Twp. Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp.
Renter-occupied housing units:* 47.9% 1.0% 11.4% 9.6% 16.9%
Less than high school graduate 29.3% 0.9% 8.6% 14.3% 34.3%
High school graduate (including 0 o o o o
equivalency) 29.7% 0.2% 10.7% 10.4% 25.7%
Some college or associate's degree 38.0% 0.6% 12.0% 13.9% 21.9%
Bachelor's degree or higher 65.5% 1.7% 11.5% 4.9% 7.0%
Current Share
Ann Arbor City Ann Arbor Twp. Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp.
Less than high school graduate 0.611 0.858 0.754 1.488 2.031
ngh school graduate (including 0.619 0.241 0.939 1.080 1 522
equivalency)
Some college or associate's degree 0.792 0.558 1.051 1.443 1.296
Bachelor's degree or higher 1.367 1.667 1.011 0.514 0.416
350f55

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC



2012 Totals

Washtenaw County Ann Arbor City Ann Arbor Twp. Pittsfield Ypsilanti City Ypsilanti Twp.
Renter-occupied housing units: 51,945 24,905 520 5,922 5,001 8,785
Less than high school graduate 3,142 921 27 270 450 1,079
:;%Tvz%hng) graduate (including 7,466 2,217 18 799 776 1,922
Some college or associate's degree 19,340 7,348 108 2,318 2,687 4,238
Bachelor's degree or higher 21,997 14,419 367 2,535 1,088 1,546
2035 Goal if Move to Fair Share Distribution
‘Washtenaw County ~ Am Atoor Gty Am AborTwp. itsiold Yosienti Gty YpslantiTwp.
Renter-occupied housing units: 60,621 29,065 607 6,911 5,836 10,252
Less than high school graduate 3,667 1,758 37 418 353 620
g'(;%?vzﬁ:noccj) graduate (including 8,713 4,177 87 993 839 1,474
Some college or associate's degree 22,570 10,821 226 2,573 2,173 3,817
Bachelor's degree or higher 25,671 12,308 257 2,927 2,471 4,341
Difference between 2012 and 2035 Goal
‘Weshisnaw Gounty  AmAtborGity  AmAmorTwp. Piisfeld YoslentiGiy  YpslantiTwp.
Renter-occupied housing units: 8,676 4,160 87 989 835 1,467
Less than high school graduate 525 837 10 148 -97 -459
Z'Q%TVZ?&?) graduate (including 1,247 1,960 69 194 63 -448
Some college or associate's degree 3,230 3,473 118 255 -514 -421
Bachelor's degree or higher 3,674 -2,111 -110 392 1,383 2,795

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

36 of 55



PART 3
Implementation

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 37 of 65



General
Ann Arbor needs to focus its attention on the preservation and production of affordable non student rental housing for low
and moderate-income workers who are helping to keep so much of the Ann Arbor economy vibrant.

Pittsfield also needs to focus its efforts on existing and future demand for affordable non student rental housing for low and
moderate-income workers.

Meanwhile:

Ypsilanti cannot remain the de facto affordable housing policy for Ann Arbor and Pittsfield; continuation of this default way
of operating will ensure further decline of property values and fiscal stability.

Ypsilanti must find partners to intervene in the destabilizing cycle of foreclosure, disinvestment, abandonment, flipping, and
distress.

Ann Arbor and Pittsfield Ypsilanti (City and Township)
Add 3,139 Grow demand by 4,178
non student affordable rentals next 20 years college educated HHs next 20 years

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 38 of 55



TASK GROW THE SUPPLY OF AFFORDABLE NON-STUDENT RENTAL HOUSING IN ANN ARBOR AND PITTSFIELD
GOALS Annual By 2035
Ann Arbor 140 2797
Pittsfield 17 342
Regional Equity and Fair Share Balance (skills, education, housing)

OBJECTIVE . . . . .

to help ensure the County is creating an environment that is best prepared for economic growth.
METRICS Additional Affordable Supply on an Annual Basis As Noted Above
TOOLS Inclusionary Incentive Based Need Based Housing Development

Zoning Zoning Calculations Trust Fund Review

POTENTIAL
IMPACT HIGH HIGH HIGH HIGH HIGH
ACTIONS 1. Work with legislative partnersto 1. In high demand areas, Develop a ratio that equates the The sale of all public land will In high cost markets, evaluate

create framework by which high
demand communities can
implement inclusionary zoning
provisions (i.e. amend State
enabling legislation to enable
communities to require % of
residential units be maintained
affordable).

2. Work with the City of Ann Arbor
to develop an Inclusionary
zoning ordinance.

3. Work with the Pittsfield
Township to develop an
Inclusionary zoning ordinance.

development zoning premiums
or other incentive-based
approaches to add to affordable
and workforce housing
inventory. Evaluate planned unit
development ordinances in
urbanized areas to recommend
methods of incorporating
affordable and/or workforce
housing component to public
benefit evaluation.

development of commercial

floor area or market rate
housing floor area to a certain
number of units of affordable
housing required to support the
new development. (i.e. the
number of low income or
workforce jobs that would be
needed to support a particular
development equate to a
certain number of units to
house those employees).
Develop a ratio that equates the

addition of new high-end jobs

to a community with the service
sector job needed to support
the growing workforce. Use this
framework to help establish and
update annual housing targets.
Develop a ratio for rental
housing stock that relates
current and proposed jobs in
the jurisdiction/county to
available/needed rental housing.
Use this ratio to establish goals
for new rental housing as well
as affordable home ownership
programs.

donate a portion of the
provides to the trust fund.
Explore millage, bonds and/or
other methods of assembling
adequate resources to meet
affordable housing unit targets
based on history of unit
support and projected costs
of future development.

o Seattle

o Austin

Leverage DDA funds for
affordable housing inventory.
Establish a Land Trust to
acquire costly land (at current
prices) that can be later leased
to developers as a tool for
achieving affordability.
Traditional Land Trust activities
can also be accomplished by
a Land Bank with suitable
statutory language in the
organization’s enabling
charter.

opportunity to reduce
development fees and/or
streamline process to promote
affordable units through
reduced time and/or cost of
development review process.
Along major development
corridors that span multiple
jurisdictions, develop common
developer procedures to help
streamline and simplify
developers working on cross-
jurisdictional projects or on
multiple projects within the
corridor.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

39 of 55



TASK GROW THE SUPPLY OF AFFORDABLE NON-STUDENT RENTAL HOUSING IN ANN ARBOR AND PITTSFIELD

GOALS Annual By 2035
Ann Arbor 140 2,797
Pittsfield 17 342
Regional Equity and Fair Share Balance (skills, education, housing)

OBJECTIVE . . . . .

to help ensure the County is creating an environment that is best prepared for economic growth.
METRICS Additional Affordable Supply on an Annual Basis As Noted Above
TOOLS ADUs Choice Voichers Brownfields Tax Foreclosures Tax Exemption 108 Financing
POTENTIAL
IMPACT LOW- MODERATE LOW-MODERATE LOW-MODERATE LOW-MODERATE LOW-MODERATE LOW-MODERATE
ACTIONS Encourage zoning Work with housing choice Amend policy and Work with County Treasurer Maximize use of Public Act Evaluate methods of utilizing

voucher administrators to
maximize utility of vouchers
by utilizing tiered structure (i.e.
higher voucher limits in higher
market areas, lower in areas
of concentrated poverty).

amendments across
communities to provide
additional housing unit
opportunities (e.g. granny
flats, small accessory
apartments).

implementation of Brownfield
incentives to require
affordable housing units
component to any supported
residential project in the target
areas; Establish thresholds for
implementation.

and municipalities to
determine methods of
maximizing the availability of
appropriate tax foreclosed
parcels to increase affordable
housing inventory.

216 of 2006 to provide tax
exemptions for non-profit
ownership housing; Utilize
PILOTs to reduce
development and operational
cost of affordable housing
developments consistent with
Act 346 of 196.

Section 108 loan guarantees
to support affordable and/or
workforce housing
development.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

40 of 55



TASK GROW DEMAND BY WORKING AND COLLEGE-EDUCATED HOUSEHOLDS TO LIVE AND REINVEST IN YPSILANTI
GOALS Annual By 2035
City 69 1,383
Township 140 2,795
OBJECTIVE Regional Equity and Fair Share Balance (skills, education, housing)
to help ensure the County is creating an environment that is best prepared for economic growth.
METRICS 1. Housing Values That Rise at Rates > the Regional Average
2. Poverty Rates That Are Falling Towards a Target Rate of < the Regional Average
TOOLS Investin Regulatory Transportation Educational Neighborhood Limit Additional
Q/L Amenities Updates Options Policy Stabilization Affordable Housing
POTENTIAL HIGH HIGH HIGH HIGH HIGH HIGH
IMPACT
ACTIONS 1. Create a capital 1. Update zoning Develop more robust 1. Create a unified Ann 1. Focus capital 1. Work with housing

improvements plan that is
geared towards urban
amenities such as parks,
plazas, transportation
amenities including
pedestrian facilities, bike
lanes, new transit stops,
etc.

2. Explore millage, bonds
and/or other methods of
assembling adequate
resources to implement
capital improvements

3. Develop county-wide
grant program for
targeted for community
enhancements.

ordinance to allow for
higher density
development along
transit routes. Require
high quality urban
design in key areas.

2. Curtail

apartmentalization of
large, single family
homes

3. Establish mandatory

rental property
registration and
inspection program

4, Alternatively deploy

code enforcement
(focus on code
compliance in middle
market sub areas and
code enforcement in
most troubled areas)

transit options including
expanded bus services
and potential BRT or
light rail on major
corridors as well as the
creation of a complete
network of walking and
biking facilities.

Ensure that public
incentives and
investments in
affordable and/or
workforce housing are
made only in instances
where housing is
effectively linked with
public transit, non-
motorized networks,
and other transportation
choices.

Arbor, Ypsilanti School
District

Develop / Expand
programs to provide
continuing education to
existing workforce in the
community. Set goals
for skill growth in the
community each year.

2.

improvement on
amenities that improved
quality of life, such as
parks, and trails.
Prioritize projects based
on greatest impact.
Create the desire for
private investment in
local/neighborhood
commercial areas by
public investment in
roads and street scape
in order to make them
attractive to developers
and business owners.
In areas of
concentrated poverty,
target investments and
incentives to projects
that stabilize
neighborhoods and/or
improve market
demand/price point as
a means of de-
concentrating poverty.

choice voucher
administrators to
maximize utility of
vouchers by utilizing
tiered structure (i.e.
higher voucher limits in
higher market areas,
lower in areas of
concentrated poverty)

2. Ensure any investments
in affordable and/or
workforce housing meet
or exceed the median
cost of housing in the
jurisdiction.

3. Tie any investments in
affordable or workforce
housing to meaningful
quality of life
improvements.

4. Work with County
Treasurer and
municipalities to
determine methods to
identify available tax
foreclosed parcels and
try to get them into the
hands of programs like
Habitat and avoid
additional absentee
land lords in order to
stabilized/increase
demand.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

41 of 565



TASK GROW DEMAND BY WORKING AND COLLEGE-EDUCATED HOUSEHOLDS TO LIVE AND REINVEST IN YPSILANTI
GOALS Annual By 2035
City 69 1,383
Township 140 2,795
Regional Equity and Fair Share Balance (skills, education, housing)

OBJECTIVE . . . . .

to help ensure the County is creating an environment that is best prepared for economic growth.
METRICS 1. Housing Values That Rise at Rates > the Regional Average

2. Poverty Rates That Are Falling Towards a Target Rate of < the Regional Average
TOOLS Balance S-D to Home Purchase Tax Increment Development Control Energy

Stabilize Prices Assistance Financing Review Land™* Efficiency

::I:?FTAE(ID\ITHAL MODERATE MODERATE MODERATE MODERATE MODERATE MODERATE
ACTIONS 1. Acquire and demolish 1. Target first time buyer Develop TIF districts 1. In weaker markets, Use County wide trust Develop long term

obsolete pre 1930 wood
framed houses
throughout the Township
Intervene in foreclosure
process for post 1960
brick ranch homes
throughout Township
using an acquisition-
rehab-sale process, and
target finished product
pricing above market
Provide incentive and
grants to Township and
City owner occupants for
exterior upgrades
Provide incentive loans to
Township and City owner
occupants for interior
upgrades

programs to highly
qualified working and
professional households,
Expand on successful
efforts such as LiveYpsi

along key corridors or
other methods to move
value creation between
jurisdiction into most
regionally impactful
areas.

Strategically invest TIF
funds into infrastructure
and amenities that
promote a sense of

place, and quality of life.

evaluate opportunity to
reduce development
fees and/or streamline
process to promote
market rate
development through
reduced time and/or
cost of development
review process.

funds to acquire vacant

parcels; where possible

assemble large blocks
of land by connecting
land purchases to
demolition of obsolete
pre 1930s housing
stocks.

o Start with those in
foreclosure
process.

Downzone and place in

conservation easement

to reduce excess land
supply

Establish a Land Bank

to acquire fallow land

(at current prices) that

can be managed and,

eventually, assembled
for development as
market rate housing on
the demand side of the
equation.

quality products that
use best available
technology. Create long
term sustainability that
focuses on the health of
occupants and lowers
energy costs.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

42 of 565



Best Practices for Addressing Affordability Shortages in High Cost Markets (such as Ann Arbor)

Inclusionary Zoning

Madison, WI
http://www.cityofmadison.com/

cdbg/iz/

Boulder, CO
https://bouldercolorado.gov/
housing/inclusionary-housing

Montgomery County, MD
http://montgomerycountymd.gov/

Incentive Zoning

Puget Sound
http://www.psrc.org/growth/

housing/hip/alltools/incent-zoning/

Need Based

Aspen, CO
http://www.aspenpitkin.com/
Departments/Housing-for-

Seattle, WA
http://www.seattle.gov/housing/
incentives/LandUseCode.htm

New York City, NY
http://www.nyc.gov/html/dcp/html/

dhca/resources/files/director/

housing policy/
housingpolicy2012_draft.pdf

Sacramento, CA
http://www.shra.org/
LinkClick.aspx?
fileticket=XZQq8EXTDCU
%3d&tabid=143&mid=418

Barnstable, MA
http://ecode360.com/6556730

New York City, NY

http://www.nyc.gov/html/dcp/html/

zone/zh inclu_housing.shtml

Seattle, WA

http://clerk.seattle.gov/%7Escripts/

nph-brs.exe?
51=883=315518&s52=&s4=&Sect4=

AND&I=20&Sect5=RESNY&Sect6=

HITOFF&dJ=RESF&p=1&u=%2F
%7Epublic%2Fresny.ntm&r=1&f=G

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

zone/zh zoning tools.shtml

Cambridge, MA
http://www.cambridgema.gov/
CDD/housing/
fordevelopersandpropmanagers/
incentivezoning.aspx

Workforce/

Housing Trust Fund/Levy/Bond

Boston, MA
masshousing.com

Austin, TX
http://www.austintexas.gov/
2013bond

tdhca.state.tx.us/htf

Seattle, WA
http://www.seattle.gov/housing/
levy/

housing.ocd.wa.gov

43 of 55



Best Practices for Addressing Demand Problems in Weak Markets (such as Ypsilanti - City + Township)

Use of Vacant Parcels Healthy Neighborhoods Using Major Institutions  Historic Preservation Scaled Redevelopment
Pittsburgh, PA Baltimore, MD Philadelphia, PA Frederick, MD Denver, CO (LoDo)
https://gtechstrategies.org/  http:// https:// http:// http://urbanland.uli.org/
wp-content/uploads/ www.healthyneighborhoods www.fels.upenn.edu/news/ www.downtownfrederick.or development-business/
2013/10/ .org new-report-urban- g/downtown-history from-skid-row-to-lodo-
VacanttoVibrant.pdf revitalization-1 historic-preservation-s-role-

in-denver-s-revitalization/

Louisville, KY Milwaukee, WI Durham, NC Baltimore, MD (EBDI)
http:// http://city.milwaukee.gov/ http://durhamnc.gov/ich/ http://www.ebdi.org
www.metropolitanhousing.o  HealthyNeighborhoods#.VK cb/cdd/Pages/
rg/get-involved/louisville- b-sluppFl ssd revit.aspx
vacant-properties-
campaign/
Jamestown, NY Oakland, CA
http:// http://
jamestownrenaissance.org/ www.downtownoakland.org

neighborhoods/

Battle Creek, Mi
http://www.nibc.org/

#&panell-1

Chattanooga, TN

http://
choosechattanooga.com/

neighborhoods/

Oswego, NY

http://
www.oswegonyonline.com

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 44 of 65



APPENDIX
Survey and Interviews

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC 45 of 65



ADDITIONAL QUALITATIVE FINDINGS FROM INTERVIEWS

Significant feedback was obtained from a large volume of interviews. There
was widespread agreement that the community overall faces some hard
choices. Likewise there was general agreement that the issues facing one
community - while connected - are not the same as those facing others.
There was consensus that Ann Arbor is a strong market with an acute
affordability challenge; and agreement that Ypsilanti is a weak market with
equally acute challenges, but of a different nature. An additional common
recognition was the acknowledgment of the limited capacity of the
nonprofit development sector.

1. While most believe the region values the need for affordable housing,
there is a sense that the region lacks a common definition or
understanding of what affordable housing is.

2. There is a strong interest in addressing affordable housing needs in the
region in a balanced, thoughtful way.

3. There is some confusion about what affordable housing is (meaning);
we were told that some residents have been critical of people that may
live in affordable housing even when the new residents would have the
same income as the current residents.

4. Some have indicated that issues of race and ethnicity play into where
the community wants to put and have affordable housing, but that
these issues are not often discussed in public. This contrasts with
many public statements about the value of diversity. The question
appears to be how that value is supported and implemented through
planning and services.

5. Racial and ethnic diversity is a value shared throughout the
jurisdictions. But it is a spoken value not revealed in objective data
regarding settlement patterns, market values, school district
boundaries, and livability. Residential segregation analysis by both the
Brookings Institution and the Institute for Social Research at the
University of Michigan Social Science Data Analysis Network) speaks
clearly to this issue.

6. Most people say they don’t want rising housing values to push their
neighbors out of their community.

7. The recent regional mass transit plan is an example of multi-
jurisdictional collaboration. There have been other regional efforts

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

around policing and others that indicate an ability for the region to
cooperate.

Mass transit is seen an important part of regional housing,
development and economic planning.

When talking about affordable housing, people emphasize the need to
encourage people to live near where they work and the goal of giving
residents a range of housing choices. This idea of workforce housing
was regularly identified as a priority.

Preserving workforce units - especially as prices are rising and older
low income tax credit projects age - may not be getting the focus it
deserves, given that the public has focused on, especially in Ann Arbor,
the housing options for the very lowest income households.

There is considerable civic and policy focus on people under 30% of
AMI, especially the homeless, and especially in Ann Arbor. Many
commented that public money should focus on helping those under
30% of AMI.

Still, generous supportive services for people under 30% of AMI (area
median income) in Ann Arbor have attracted people from outside the
county to Ann Arbor. This has raised concerns about the sustainability
of these programs.

The fact that most of Ann Arbor’s housing vouchers are used outside
the city has created a services imbalance as other communities, often
with fewer resources than Ann Arbor, are pressed to provide supportive
services to high concentrations of voucher residents.

There is a struggle between housing advocates that want to build in
lower cost jurisdictions to maximize their investments and people in
those jurisdictions concerned about the pressure on their local budgets
and overall economic prospects from over concentration of any one
type of housing or a lack of alignment between housing and jobs.

Existing zoning (density, parking, height, design) can make it hard to
provide under 30% AMI housing as well as other levels of affordable
housing.

Some in Ann Arbor have suggested local zoning and land-use could be
modified to encourage transit, discourage cars, and provide for more
affordability, as well since providing parking spaces for cars. But this
costs extra money. It was raised a few times that changing city parking

46 of 55



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

requirements away from a minimum parking requirement would open
up more options for mixed use, transit projects that support a range of
housing prices.

While the student population is not growing very fast, there are
concerns (completely validated by quantitative analysis) that new
student housing is driving up the cost of housing in Ann Arbor as
developers focus much of their attention on high-end student housing.

People want to make sure seniors can age in place and/or live in the
community for the long term. Many have criticized the state policy that
pushes seniors to stay in their current home at a lower tax level
because it functions as a disincentive from moving into a smaller and
more manageable home.

Some suggested that more assisted living, co-housing, rooming and/or
co-operative housing options for seniors would be helpful. These
housing approaches could be a beneficial tool to support regional
affordable housing goals.

A number suggested greater density in urban areas would help the
region provide a range of housing prices and affordability. Jurisdictions
in the region clearly understand the benefit of mixed-use, higher density
development clusters in areas with appropriate transit services and
their master plans reflect this. But recent development projects, where
developers built less than they otherwise could due to concerns about
market demand, parking, neighborhood concerns, demonstrate that
achieving this development vision can be difficult. Some believe the
government should be stronger about enforcing master plans and the
calls for mixed income, mixed use development.

Urban infill, government owned land and the Washtenaw Avenue
Corridor regularly come up as the best opportunities for bringing a
range of housing options to the area. Also, Reimagine Washtenaw
came up repeatedly as an important regional project that can help
foster the collaboration and regionalism needed to also address a
balance of affordable housing options. But it was stressed that this
project can’t address all the affordability issues.

Where possible, the jurisdictions want to protect rural areas and
prevent sprawl. This is important for environmental, quality of life and
infrastructure reasons. It was not generally acknowledged that such
aims increase the cost of housing.

There is a sense that area developers are not as committed to
affordable housing or mixed-income/mixed-use housing as they could

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

be. It was suggested a few times that the local development
community needs to be augmented by outside developers with
experience in mixed-use-mixed-income projects.

A number expressed frustration about lack of inclusionary zoning
powers due to state law, though many suggested zoning could still be
used to encourage a range of price points.

There may be an opportunity to work more closely with developers to
provide workforce housing options in the area. Public-private
partnerships to create affordable housing have not been as common as
some believe they should be. Most said that there is limited
collaboration with developers today. Many suggested that there are
not enough market-driven developer projects to generate a lot of
affordable housing and that more pro-active efforts using publicly
owned land and, perhaps even publicly purchased land, would be
needed.

It can be hard to get private land-lords and apartment companies to
accept vouchers or ex-felons. Both policies make providing affordable
housing for especially lower income populations hard.

There is natural civic tension between doing what is needed to respond
to the housing market so that a community can provide a range of
affordable housing options and community concerns about change
and density. Many indicated that people in the community are
concerned about the scale of buildings created obstacles to building
affordable housing. We also heard clearly that there are many that
associate their community’s charm, sustainability and social equity as
coming from the diversity and types of people that can live there. But
what we heard varies. (The sentiment in Ann Arbor is not the same as
the view in Ypsilanti.) The perspective in Ypsilanti Township is not
shared by everyone else, and vice versa. Markets with different
strengths produce people with different viewpoints.

There is concern from some that taking a don’t change, low density
approach will essentially drive up home values, create sprawl,
exasperate traffic and lead to a less balanced region.

Carrot Way came up a number of times as a good model for an
affordable housing project with people suggesting it should be
replicated.

Many believe that there is a lot of interest and value in using areas
outside Ann Arbor as the affordable housing for the region because
they are less expensive and government subsidies can go further. This

47 of 565



31.

32.

33.

34.

is tempered by the fact that people outside of Ann Arbor are worried
about over concentration of low income housing and the overall
balance of housing options in their communities.

Outside of Ann Arbor there is concern about the amount of rental
housing. They have a desire to see more affordable home ownership
options. Since the recession, some areas have seen a substantial
change from home ownership to rental.

As already stated, housing vouchers for Ann Arbor are most often used
outside of Ann Arbor and are creating concentrations of vouchers in a
few limited areas. This creates demand for supportive services (jobs,
mental health, public safety, etc.) that these communities can’t afford.
Prisoner re-entry programs often send people to the same
communities and these residents (as well as those exiting
homelessness) have similar needs for support services. It also creates
anger and frustration in the receiving jurisdictions.

Some expressed concern that the region may lack the staff resources
and capacity to support a truly collaborative approach to affordable
housing. Others suggested that the County is well positioned to help
coordinate and catalyze regional collaboration through the
management of grants as well as staff support.

There is general agreement that residents of each jurisdiction should
have multiple choices about where they can live and that there should

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

35.

36.

37.

be a balance of housing options. No one jurisdiction should have all the
high income or the lower income housing, but there are different views
about what balance and regionalism mean with some saying it means
somebody else takes more and few saying it means they should take
more affordable housing. Everyone generally agrees that affordable
housing is important, as long as it is located someplace else.

Sustainability is integrated into area master plans, transportation,
energy and civic planning, but generally speaking is not directly
associated with housing affordability. There are some current efforts to
make affordable housing more energy efficient. There is a sense that
sustainability could be more clearly aligned with affordable housing as
the two go hand in hand.

Schools play a significant role in how people think about where they live
and the value of the housing. Communities that are a part of the Ann
Arbor school district have a clear real estate advantage; This does
impact the balance of housing choices in the region.

There is a sense that more focused political leadership would help
affordable housing issues and that the area lacks clear metrics or
goals. Past efforts with specific numerical goals failed, so some have
also suggested that the focus should be on projects instead.

48 of 55



SURVEY REVIEW

1/3 of homeowners surveyed (321) are concerned (119) that they couldn’t
buy their own home if they tried to do it today.

64% of survey respondents are pretty happy about where they are living
now. 20% ready to move if they can afford it.

80% of those contemplating moving in the future are focused on quality of
life and cost. Some mentioned work, changes in relationship status, a
desire for something new (e.g. warmer weather, country living) as driving
their desire to move.

Safety (19%), Affordability (16%), Schools (15%), and Employment options/
jobs (11%) are seen as the top public priorities.

40% live where they are due to quality of life, 31% for cost/affordability
reasons, and 28% because it is close to work. Others indicated they live
where they do so they can live near family and friends; the need for a larger
or smaller house; a change in their relationship status (married, single, etc.);
retirement; eviction; safety; a desire for something different (e.g. rural living);
needing a place for dogs; needing a place for kids, and; that their previous
rental building had been sold.

80% see community sustainability as an important value, including making
sure a broad range of people can live in a community (50%), a sense of
social justice (44%), protecting community assets (36%), ensuring people
that grow up in the community can live there (36%) and about 33%
identifying clean water and mass transit as important for sustainability.

Others, when asked about lost affordability, brought up concerns about
gentrification, increased foreclosures, increased homelessness,
segregation, and longer commutes.

Feedback on Purpose and Value of Affordable Housing

The top goal identified for affordable housing was making sure people have
choices about where they live (62%). 48% said affordable housing is
necessary to help their community thrive. 41% said the ending

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

homelessness is a major goal. 37% said helping seniors age in place was a
top goal. 37% said helping people live near their jobs was an important
goal.

The top purposes identified for affordable housing are: 69% housing for
working families; 56% entry level rental options; 52% Homeless housing
options; 51% senior housing, first time home buyer and general home
ownership options.

84% believe that affordable housing is an important issue and 86% believe
it is important that people living in their community now can continue to live
there into the future.

46% of respondents think others in their community are worried that
affordable housing will hurt their home values. 36% think their neighbors
believe affordable housing should be somewnhere else.

31% of respondents think others in their community want to live in a place
with a range of housing options.

31% of respondents think there is modest interest in affordable housing
issues amongst their neighbors.

34% are concerned that lost affordability will make it harder to fill jobs in the
community and

32% are concerned that lost affordability will contribute to increased traffic
and congestion.

49% believe families with children need the most help with affordable
housing. 45% say the homeless. 39% say entry-level workers. 37% say
seniors.

Why is affordable housing important?
(summary of written responses)

« ltis needed to attract and keep community diversity and talent; we

need housing for people that work in and contribute to our
community.

49 of 55



- ltis important to have options for people to buy housing so they can
put down roots and become a part of the community.
- Important to attract and retain young people who contribute to

Why is it important for people to be able to continue to live in their
current community?
(summary of written responses)

workforce and put down roots.

People shouldn’t have to be homeless.

People should be able to live near where they work.

It is an important part of dealing with congestion and sprawl.
Because many of us could need a different housing option at some
point.

Housing is critical to a person’s ability to work and get ahead.
People should have housing choices.

To attract new families to an area and to create safe places for
children to grow up.

Single parents need affordable places to raise their families.

So our children can move back and live where they grew up.

It is a human right. Social justice is a core community value.

It helped me.

People deserve a safe, clean place to live.

A strong community should not exclude low-income people.

A strong community has people from all backgrounds and economic
levels.

People with developmental disabilities and mental illness should have
places to live in a community.

The new housing being built is too expensive.

People shouldn’t be priced out of their communities/homes/
apartments.

It is very hard to find a place to live (especially in Ann Arbor).
Ownership opportunities are too limited for folks; there are not
enough affordable choices.

People shouldn’t have to choose between food and rent.

It is hard to save to buy a home if you can barely afford your own
rent. This makes it hard to climb the economic ladder.

We don’t have enough options for seniors to live in.

Affordable housing in Ann Arbor would increase access to good
schools.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

A stable community should have a mix of people, talent,
backgrounds.

Family and community stability require people to have the ability to
live in their community for a long time.

To prevent/slow gentrification.

The residents are the character and most valuable assets of a
community.

Contributes to strong neighborhoods; long term residents are more
civically active.

If people don’t think they can keep living in a place, they are less
likely to help improve it or to participate in civic life.

| want to stay in my community.

Helps promote pride in the community; community roots get stronger
the longer somebody lives in a place.

People should be able to stay in a community they enjoy.

Fairness.

Contributes to community balance and sustainability; community is
based on long-term relationships and shared experiences.

Stability helps contribute to economic base of a community.

A true community should support people at every stage in their life;
Aging in place is important.

What is quality of life?
(summary of written responses)

A safe and well maintained neighborhood.

A place you can safely walk around; the ability to walk places.
Quiet.

Access to parks & green space. Trees and grass.
Neighborhood with kids & sense of community.

Great neighbors.

Civic pride.

Grocery stores.

Access to arts and culture and entertainment.

Transportation options (walking, biking, transit).

Access to health care.

Access to friends.

Access to farmer’s markets and local food choices and local farmers.

50 of 55



« Access to libraries.

«  (Good schools nearby.

«  Diversity.

«  Time to spend with friends and family.

«  Quality landlords that are available and provide good customer
service.

«  Access to restaurants.

« Vibrancy and activity.

What should affordable housing look like?
(summary of written responses)

. Safe.
«  Clean and well cared for.
. Well-built.

+  Need to fix derelict buildings.

«  Affordable housing should be energy efficient.

«  Close to good schools.

« It should allow people to have disposable income for other needs.

« It needs to be transportation and transit accessible (need more of
this).

« A part of a stable community.

« It should ensure people have choices as to where they can live.

«  Close to work. Affordable homes should be within two miles of a job.

« It should be in mixed-income settings. [very strong comments about
not segregating housing types].

« Must be compatible with surrounding neighborhood; Should look like
the other housing that is near it.

«  There should be a range of housing types in every neighborhood for
different life stages.

«  Denser urban areas with greater mix of housing price points.

- It should not be concentrated; it should be integrated & blended
throughout community.

«  Smaller scale housing units that are more affordable.

« It should provide options for families. We need more family sized
housing.

+  Options for working families and retirees.

« Avoid city-owned housing; focus on private-ownership rental.

«  Explore market-based affordability rather than government subsidies;
zoning and density should be tied to market-based affordability.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

- Affordable housing needs to include ownership options, not just
rental.

« Ownership is important. Co-ops could be a good form of ownership
to encourage.

- Rental and purchase options mixed together.

«  Opportunity for long-term living to put down roots in the community.

«  Should encourage personal responsibility, growth and ownership.

«  Co-housing options should be explored.

Regional Coordination + Balance

88% of respondents believe that communities should provide a range of
housing options and types for their residents.

65% don’t think there is a fair distribution of housing types in the county.
41% would like to see more opportunities for people to live where they
work. 29% wants to see more balance of housing affordability options.
19% wants to see more affordable entry-level housing options.

65% of respondents believe that their commmunity should provide a range of
ownership and rental options and need to do more to make this happen.
21% think their community is already doing enough.

83% would like to see coordination between jurisdictions on affordable
housing issues, but only 9% think this coordination is already happening.

45% believe different areas of the county currently have different roles with
regard to affordable housing...

What does that mean?
(summary of written responses)

«  Clearly some areas have more affordable housing than others; all
areas should have affordable housing - there shouldn’t be a “poor”
area.

«  Ann Arbor has more subsidized housing, but outside areas are more
affordable.

- Ann Arbor should do more. It has become very expensive.

«  Ann Arbor needs to focus more on making housing affordable for
working people.

51 of 55



- Ann Arbor provides a lot of services, but other areas of the county «  Areas with the most transit and services should support the most
have greater numbers of people with needs. affordable housing.

«  All of the new development in Ann Arbor is high-end and expensive «  The County is balanced overall.
for people to afford. «  The decisions about balance should depend on each community’s
»  There are options, but not enough. unique needs.

«  Ypsilanti seems to be more diverse and affordable than Ann Arbor.
«  Ypsilanti houses a disproportionate amount of the county's affordable

housing. What does “fair” mean with regard to affordable housing distribution?
«  Ypsilanti isn’t as supportive of new affordable housing as other areas. (summary of written responses)

« It appears that some think Ypsilanti should solve everybody else’s

affordable housing and workforce needs.

Rentals are concentrated in the eastern end of the county.
Ypsi/Eastern Washtenaw generally has enough affordable housing
and need to focus on stabilizing neighborhoods, fixing the public
schools and getting people good jobs, and encouraging home
investment.

Service needs are concentrated in the eastern end of the county.
Western Washtenaw, Chelsea and Dexter in particular, are fast
becoming retirement centers for wealthy baby boomers & should
maybe start thinking about affordability now while space is still
available.

Urban areas have a greater role to play due to proximity to jobs and
transit; the more urban an area is, the more important affordable
housing is for workforce needs.

If you have employment, you should have housing near it.

There should be a variety of people and hosing everywhere;
everybody has a role to make sure people have housing options.
Some areas of county are very expensive; wealthier areas of county
should do more.

Some areas of county have disproportionate share of housing
vouchers.

Need more transit services to support housing options for people.
We need a regional approach rather than each jurisdiction having a
different model.

Every community needs a health triple bottom line--socially,
economically and environmentally--to become truly sustainable.
Diversity is not spread evenly throughout the county - the county
seems very segregated in terms of housing.

Less dense areas are pushing the more urban areas to cover the
needs for affordable housing.

Some places are trying to ban affordable housing.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

Every jurisdiction has a role in helping provide the region’s housing
needs for all income levels; each community has some reasonable
degree of diversity of housing options and price points.

No one community (or two) should have to bear a disproportionate
share of low income housing; over concentration isn’t fair.

We should have a fair distribution of tax base so lower cost, lower tax
producing properties are not concentrated in one area.

Ann Arbor, Saline, Dexter and Chelsea should play more of a role.
We should work to distribute rents/housing choices based on
average wages in an area.

If 20% of the jobs in a town pay poverty-level wages, then 20% of
the homes in the town should be affordable to those workers who
live in poverty.

Housing should be available within a 45 minute commute to work or
less.

If you can be employed in a community, you should be able to live
there.

Minimum wage should enable you to find housing that is safe and
clean.

Teachers, firefighters, police officers should all be able to live in the
community they work in.

You should not have to earn 6 figures to live in the community.
Paying a fair rent (30% of income)

We need more affordable options near transit lines.

More opportunities for families with kids.

People shouldn’t have to choose between good schools for their kids
and affordability; the best schools should be available to all
communities

People should have a chance to get on their feet, but should not get
a free ride.

People should have a chance to live in a community and get ahead.

52 of 55



People shouldn’t get special deals based on their income — fair is
everybody pays the same for the same house.

Ex-felons should have a chance to re-start their lives

Elderly and disabled should be able to live in their community.

Every community should provide a certain amount of housing options
for those with disabilities, senior citizens, and the poor because that
is the decent thing to do.

We should have either a "fair share" housing provision (each local unit
provides a percentage of the region's affordable housing equal to its
percentage of the region's total population) or an "impact fee"
approximation of such a system, in which units that don't provide
housing units provide financial support to those who do.

There should be a sliding scale of income to rent payment.

Housing choices should take into account all aspects of a persons
life. Look at poverty issues and disability issues that affect a person's
income.

What affordable housing policies and programs are you most familiar

(summary of written responses)

Low income tax credits (some would like them to allow for more
mixed income projects).

Community Development Block Grant Funds.

HOME Funds.

Section 8 Vouchers (frequently mentioned, many concerned about
concentrating poverty or concerns about being bad neighbors, many
also say they work when they are available but that they are not
available in all communities or usable with all land-lords and the
waiting lists are too long).

Habitat for Humanity (most commonly sited) people want to see it
used more.

Avalon (mentioned multiple times as needing more support, as
providing good supportive services).

RAAH.

Shelter Association.

Ann Arbor Housing Commission.

Ann Arbor and Ypsilanti Housing Authorities.

HOPE 6.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

Public housing projects raised as being unsafe while others talked
about how vouchers work and that more are needed (and they
should be accepted in more places).

Co-ops do work.

USDA Rural Homeowners Program.

Strong comments about the value of mixed-income development (we
don’t want segregated areas).

Rent controls like in NYC.

Concerns raised about effectiveness of developer contributions and
small projects to impact market forces.

Increase housing first funding.

Should offer tax incentives so people can live closer to work.
Inclusionary zoning (mentioned a few times to help create mixed-
income housing options).

Fair share housing (per-community).

Twin Cities Fiscal Disparity Act / tax-base sharing -- in part,
approximates a per-community payment-in-lieu fair share housing
system; regional shift in property tax revenues from communities with
high taxable value per capita to those with low, so that cities hosting
more low-income residents (and low taxable-value housing) can
address the service needs they have.

Tenant right of first refusal.

There are few programs to help seniors.

Should have local land trusts to hold land to help with affordability.
Housing first policies.

Should have a larger housing trust fund.

Shared Tax District between jurisdictions to address infrastructure
and housing needs.

Some concerns about concentrated low income housing in Ypsilanti.
Concerns about low income tax credit projects expiring and people
being priced out.

MSHDA downpayment assistance program helps homebuyers with
the substantial financial burden of the downpayment on a mortgage.
Plan to end homelessness needs to be updated.

Concerns about subsidized housing producing dependency.

Step Forward Michigan.

Interfaith Hospitality Network.

Some think the focus should be on education not on housing.
Some want “granny-flat” rental options

Hamilton Crossing pointed to as a good project.

Delonis and Alpha House. Need more of these and mental health
services.

53 of 55



Water street

1st ave

Paradise manor

University Townhouses

Arrowwood mentioned a few times as a good project

What would you do for affordable housing if you could do anything?
(summary of written responses)

New, denser mixed use and mixed income development near all
transit lines in region.

Increase affordability in downtown areas with the most walkability,
jobs and transit

Allow for more density.

Have a mix of housing in every neighborhood; balance in thee region.
Provide more home ownership options.

Prevent sprawl; halt all development on agricultural land.

Stop McMansions.

Increase housing supply along key corridors, including both subsidize
and market-rate housing.

Don’t allow developers to tear down modestly-priced housing.
Stop building luxury apartments.

Don’t segregate or concentrate — integrate.

Expand transit routes (have more buses to and fro Chelsea, Dexter,
Canton and add Saline)

Make sure all affordable housing looks nice and is something we can
be proud of.

Make units small so they are more affordable (e.g. 800 sq ft); make
sure zoning allows smaller homes (e.g. more affordable)

Make all affordable housing energy efficient.

Support small, modest apartment units/buildings throughout the
urban areas.

Allow ADUs in Ann Arbor.

Provide more starter homes for young families.

More rental options for young professionals just starting.

More affordable first time home buyer options.

House young families with seniors so the seniors can help with the
kids

More co-ops.

More senior housing options.

Affordable 2 bedroom apartments.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

Affordable 3 bedroom purchase options/starter homes.

More infill housing.

More housing for non-students in Ann Arbor.

Less low income housing in Ypsilanti.

Something near Chelsea that is affordable.

Change state law to allow inclusionary zoning.

Expand incentives for developers to include affordability benefits in
market-rate housing developments.

Increased government investment/subsidy.

Expand Ann Arbor’s housing trust fund.

Rebuild all current public housing.

Eliminate housing waiting list.

More options for use of section 8 vouchers.

Expanded voucher program for more people at a range of income
levels.

Increase use of habitat for humanity.

Provide vouchers targeted for senior citizens.

More housing re-habitation funds for seniors and others.

More support services (mental health, social workers, jobs programs)
for people in subsidized housing.

Make sure people living in subsidized housing take care of their
homes.

Increase subsidized housing options for working - poor with
incentives for them to maintain their units.

Help people with underwater mortgages.

Lower taxes.

Continue building the Sister Yvonne Gelise Fund for Supportive
Services.

Reclaim abandoned properties for affordable housing. Use housing
funds to buy up low cost housing and work with habitat for humanity
to then re-sell it; Take over all vacant properties fix them up.

Bring in more outside capital to the area to invest in housing choices.
Put less money into housing first and more into first time home-
buyers and workforce housing needs.

Increase the living wage in county.

More job training so people could work and afford housing; attract
more jobs to area.

Provide more security in neighborhoods with a lot of affordable/public
housing.

Provide rent to own housing options.

Develop rent control policies.

More Avalons.

54 of 55



Work collectively as a region; create a region-wide plan.
County-wide affordable housing trust fund paid for through millage.
Create a community/regional panel to oversee these issues on a
regional scale.

Create some sort of income metrics to guide plans.

End homelessness.

More safe shelters, especially for women and children.

Improve options for Camp Take Notice.

More emergency housing options.

Just let the market due what it does - don’t try to control it.

Work with private investors instead of government.

Remove the fear and bias from this issue - eliminate the stigma.
Make sure everybody could find a place to live.

Working people, seniors, vets, families all deserve places to live.
Make sure everybody has access to a great education.

Make sure everybody has access to healthy, local, foods

More housing options, with services, for people with mental illness.

70% think developers should do more to help with affordable housing. ..

What does that mean?
(summary of written responses)

They need to set aside more units as affordable.
There should be more incentives for developers to create affordable
housing.

©2014, ALL RIGHTS RESERVED, czbLLC

We need them to stop building luxury housing — they are only
focused on expensive homes and condos.

They need to put more work into making inexpensive housing look
good.

They are only focused on profit, so their profits should be tied to
affordability.

They are not building mixed income and mixed use buildings that we
want

We need more Avalon’s.

We need inclusionary zoning.

Should require smaller homes integrated with larger, more expensive
ones.

Unless they are forced to, they won’t do it.

They should have to build on transit and infrastructure corridors...
stop sprawl.

Need to build more small, starter homes.

When developers do try to build affordable housing, the community
opposes it and/or it is struck down by the local government;
developers need confidence their affordable projects have a fair shot
to move forward.

Ann Arbor’s extra floor space premiums for developers have not
been working.

Zoning restrictions make it hard for developers toe expand housing
supply and thus impact supply and demand pressures.

Developers focus a lot on the student market, not the workforce
market.

55 of 55



OTHER BUSINESS




AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS




Supervisor
BRENDA L. STUMBO
Clerk,

KAREN LOVEJOY ROE
Treastirer
LARRY J. DOE
Trustees

“ JEAN HALL CURRIE
STAN ELDRIDGE

/Charter Township of
Vpsilanti

“@lacing Residents First”

Residential Services

7200 S. Huron River Drive
Ypsilanti, Ml 48197
Phone: (734) 484-0073
Fax: (734) 544-3501
www. ytown.org

MIKE MARTIN
SCOTT MARTIN
TO: Charter Towhship of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees
FROM: Carl Girbach, Public Services Superintendent
DATE: February 26, 2015
RE: Request for Approval to Purchase Vehicles for Various Departments

[Mi-Deals Pricing], Per Budget Amendment for Your Approval, out of
Motorpool Fund 595.595.000.985.000

The three (3) vehicles requested are replacements for four (4) vehicles sold at last fail’s

on-line auction (+$24,000.00).

Building Operations currently has two (2) 2008 vans assigned to that Department - #58
and #59. Last fall, we sold #35 — a 1998 Ford E-350 van which was used in the Parks
Department to maintain shelters. The necessary repairs to #35 exceeded its vajue. It is
my suggestion to transfer #58 to the Park’s Department from Building Operations and
purchase the Ford Transit 250 XL, with required bulkhead and safety shelving, for

replacement of #58.

I am requesting to purchase a Tandem utility dump trailer. There is a need at the Golf

Course, as well as in the Parks Department for this type of equipment. It is my

suggestion to share this trailer between the two departments.

1 am also requesting to purchase two (2) Ford pick-up trucks: an F-250 4x2 and an

F-250 4x4 with slide-in dump box. (The dump box enhances time use unloading

materials in the park system)

In order to maintain our fleet in a reasonable condition, | am requesting that we purchase
three (3) vehicles and one (1) dump trailer. [Part of the 5-year Capital Improvement Program|

Ford Transit 250 XL

Ford F-250 4x4 w/Dump Box

Ford F-250 4x2

Tandem Dump Trailer [Kept at Golf Course]

PN

Sold:

1994 Ford F-150 4x2

1997 Ford F-250 4x4

1997 Ford F-350 Crew Cab
1999 Ford F-150 4x2

Ll

$25,914.00
$32,289.00
$24,690.00
$ 7,000.00




GORNO FORD
22025 ALLEN ROAD
WOODHAVEN, MI 48183

DATE:  1/21/15

TO: CARL GIRBACH, YPSILANTI TWP.
734-368-1180 @mecT) cgitbach@ytown.org

FROM: JIM AGNEY, GORNO FORD, GOVERNMENT & FLEET SALES
734-671-4033 (mrect) @ax) 734-676-7647 jagney(@gornoford.com

RE: MiIiDEAL #3958-0039 (1) “All New” 2015MY. FORD TRANSIT-250 XTI,
REG. ROOF 148”WB, OXFORD WHITE/GRAY VINYL, 3.7L V6, 6spd.A/T,
HINGED SIDE & REAR DOORSw/ REAR WINDOWS, PWR.WINDOWS/LOCKS-
Htd. MIRRORS, VINYL FRNT./REAR FLOOR, AM/FMw/CLOCK, A/C, TILT/CRUISE,
PWR. DISC BRKSw/ABS, AIR BAGS, 3.73 LTD. SLIP AXLE, 9,000 # GYWR, TPMS
CARGO LED LIGHTS, LT235/65Rx16E-AS, ADVANCE TRACw/ROLL STAB. CNTRL,,
SAFETY STEEL SCREEN MESH BULKHEADw/DOOR, FULL LENGTH DRIVER SIDE
GEN. MAINT. SHELVING PKG.w/37”x 12” STORAGE DOOR

F.O0.B. DELIVERED TO YPSILANTI TWP, MI .....c.covvvnvene Crerariiens viererrasse o $25,914.00
(MSRP = $37,972.00)

Current lead tinie to order.is 16-18 weeks fromi receipt of Purchase Order

RECOMMENDED OPTIONS:

TRAILER TOW PKG. ........c0000 PP PPROe 465.00
ELEC, TTAILER BRAKE CNTRLR. ..ottt 230.00
MUNICIPAL SAFETY LIGHT PKG. ..iiviiiiiiviniiiianiimiiiiiicminimisn 1,495.00

(Tneludes: Amber LED Roof-Mount Mini Light Bar Frat/Rear Amber LED Flashers)

Please review SELECTOPTIONS, sign and e-mail/fax back or e-mail/lax Purchase Order to Jim Agney.

Customer Signature;

Thank you,
Jim Agney

This quotation is confidential and privileged and is intended solely for the use of Gomo. Ford and Yps:[nnii'l‘ownshlp This quotation is compiled in association with
the MiDEAL Contract and intended for use by MiDEAL Members and Statc of Michigan govermiment ﬂgCIIClES stated above. Information/speeifications in this
quotation have been established by and are inteided only for usc by the stated parties. This document is not to be disclosed, distributed, used/re-used as 2 basis for
specitications subsequent bids or request(s) for quotation(s) to any other party or bidders other than the intenided partics and/or their authorized personnel,




GORNO FORD
22025 ALLEN ROAD
WOODHAVEN, MI 48183

DATE:  12/18/14 (2.23.15) (Ollt of Stock Sale—OSS Currently On Order)

TO: CARL GIRBACH, YPSILANTI TWP,
734-368-1180 mirecT) cgirbach@ytown.org

FROM: JIM AGNEY, GORNO FORD, GOVERNMENT & FLEET SALES
734-671-4033 (@rEcT) FAX) 734-676-7647 jagney(@gornoford.com

RE: MiDEAL #3958-0092 (1) 2015MY FORD F-250, 4x4, REG. CAB, 137”5, 8’ Box,
OXFORD WHITE/STEEL VINYL, 6.2L V8, 6spd.A/Tw/OD, A/C, AM/FMw/CLOCK,
PWR. DISC BRKSw/ABS, AIR BAGS, 3.73 REG. AXLE,10,000 # GVWR,
L.T265/75Rx17AT, TRAILER TOW PKG., TILT/CRUISE, H.D. TOW PKG.,
ADVANCE TRACW/ROLL STABILITY CNTRL., FRNT. TOW HOOKS, TPMS,
PWR. WINDOWS/LOCKS/Htd. MIRRORS, ROOF CLR. LIGHTS, ENGINE BLOCK-
HTR., UPFITTER SWITCHES, DECOR TRIM, ELEC. BRAKE CNTRLR.,

ILD. ALT., DAYTIME RUNNING LIGHTS, SKID PLATES, REAR WHEEL WELL -
LINERS, ILD. SUSPw/REAR SWAY BAR, SPLASH GUARDS,

RHINO SPRAY-IN-BED LINER, ALL-WEATHER H.D. FLOOR MATS,

BUYER’S SLIDE-IN ELEC. DUMP BOXw/CAB PROTECTOR & ROLLER TARP

F.O.B. DELIVERED TO YPSILANTL MI .....covcevvvennnne e tereerrasssiharee it caenettrarrany $32,289.00
(MSRP = $42,945.00)

off is 2/27/15. -
mated at 10 — 12 weeks.

Currentlead time to order is es

RECOMMENDED OPTIONS:

MUNICIPAL SAFETY LIGHT PKG. ........ccuen Ceetreisreerasiitatsitrinns vrvessesne 1,395.00
(Includes Amber LED Roof Mount Mini-Light Bar, Fmt.Amber Grill LED's & Rear Amber LED Taillight Flashers)

Please review SELECT OPTIONS, sign and e-mail/fax back or e-mail/fax Purchase Order to
Jim Agney.

Customer Signature:

Thank you,
Jim Agney

This quotation s ‘cotifidentinl and privileged and is'intended Solely for the use of Gorno Férd and Ypsilanti Township. This quotation is compiled in
association with the MiDEAL Conlract and intended for use by MiDEAL Menbers and State of Michigan govermment agencics stated above,
Information/specifications in this quotation have been established by and are intended only for usc by the stated parties. This document is not to be disclosed,
distributed, used/re-uscd as a basis for specifications subsequent bids or request(s) for quotation(s) to any other parly or bidders other than the intended parties
and/or their authorizes personnel.




GORNO FORD
22025 ALLEN ROAD
WOODHAVEN, MI 48183

DATE:  12/18/14 (2.23.15)

TO: CARL GIRBACH, YPSILANTI TWP.
734-368-1180 mmect) cgirbach{@ytown.org

FROM: JIM AGNEY, GORNO FORD, GOVERNMENT & FLEET SALES
734-671-4033 (precTy (FAX)y 734-670-7047 jagney(@gornoford.com

RE: MIiDEAL #3958-0029 (1) 2015MY FORD F-250, 4x2; REG, CAB, 137"ws, 8 Box,
OXFORD WHITE/STEEL VINYL, 6.2L V8, 6spd.A/Tw/OD, AIC AM/FMw/CLOCK,
PWR. DISC BRKSw/ABS, AIR BAGS, 3.73 E-LOCK AXLE,10,000 # GVWR,
LT245/75Rx17AT, TRAILER TOW PKG., TILT/CRUISE, H.D, TOW PKG.
ADVANCE TRACw/ROLL STABILITY CNTRL., FRNT, TOW HOOKS, TPMS,
PWR. WINDOWS/LOCKS/Htd. MIRRORS, ROOF CLR. LIGHTS, ENGINE BLOCK-
HTR., UPFITTER SWITCHES, DECOR TRIM, ELEC. BRAKE CNTRLR,,
H.D. ALT., DAYTIME RUNNING LIGHTS
RHINO SPRAY-IN-BED LINER, ALL-WEATHER H.D. FLLOOR MATS,

F.0.B. DELIVERED TO YPSILANTL MI .......... ettt e sttt terereeeereeeanrenenes $24,690.00
(MSRP = $35,823.00)

RECOMMENDED OPTIONS:

MUNICIPAL SAFETY LIGHT PEKG. .iiiviiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisisisci 1,395.00
(Includes Amber LED Roof Mount Mini-Light Bar, Fint. Amber Grill LED’s & Rear Amber LED Taillight Flashers)

Please review SELECT OPTIONS, sign and e-mail/fax back or e-mail/fax Purchase Order to
Jim Agney,

Customer Signature:

Thank you,
Jim Agney

This quotation is confidential and privileged and is interided solely for the use of Gorne Ford and Ypsilanti Township. This quotation is compiled in
association with the MiDEAL Contract and intended for use by MiDEAL Members and State of Michigan government ageneies stated above.
Informatiow/specifications in this quotation have been established by and are intended only for use by the stated parties. This document is not to be disclosed,
distributed, usedfre-used as a basis for specifications subsequent bids or request(s) for quotation(s) to any other parly or bidders other than the intended parties
and/or their authorizes personnel,




	March 3, 2015 Board Meeting
	Work Session Agenda
	Ntl. Church Res. Clark East Tower
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Board Meeting Agenda
	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	Minutes
	Work Session 2-17-15
	Regular Meeting 2-17-15

	Statements and Checks

	Attorney Report
	Old Business
	2nd Reading Res. 2015-2, Prop. Ord. 2015-443, Vegetation
	Res. 2015-3, Vegetation Enforcement Fee
	Majestic Lakes PD Stage 1 Amended Prelim Site Plan

	New Business
	Budget Amendment #4
	Res. 2015-4, Adoption of Affordable Housing Report

	Other Business
	Authorizations and Bids
	Request to Purchase Vehicles and Dump Trailer




